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Corporate Information
AFEHE
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Ping An Bank Company Limited
China Construction Bank
Bank of Communications (Hong Kong) Limited
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Hong Kong
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Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman

KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
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Financial Highlights
MEHE

RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS

Revenue

Gross profit

Net profit

Earnings per share (RMB cents)
— Basic

— Diluted

Revenue % %58

RMB’000
AR¥T T

1,000,000 -

A

L

800,000

<8

teeetteeeect

600,000 [~

{8

teeeech
$446644464¢

400,000 -

200,000

$6644¢

—FNE —F-nE

RIRME

For the year ended
31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLEE

2019 2018
—E-NF —T)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBFT
WA 900,800 618,835
EH 337,054 208,753
#B 163,110 78,255
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THE BREAKDOWN OF TOTAL REVENUE BY

BUSINESS SEGMENT

Financial Highlights
MEHE

BERESBBSHRK2AME

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-ZA=t—-HLFE

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARETT
Property management services segment Y ¥EERHE D
- Property management services —MEEE RS 390,122 305,997
— Sales assistance services — S EF R 172,876 98,907
— Community value-added services — = (B R TS 83,389 48,324
646,387 453,228
Commercial operational services segment FEXEBEZRE DI
— Commercial operation and —HEEEREERY
management services 160,902 102,577
- Market positioning and — WIS ELM KL EFBERS
business tenant sourcing services 93,511 63,030
254,413 165,607
Total &5t 900,800 618,835
SUMMARY OF BALANCE SHEET HERREEE
At 31 December
R+=-—A=+—H
2019 2018
—E2-hEF —FE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR®ETT
Total assets BEPRE 1,386,345 503,046
Total liabilities BEHsE 540,029 376,755
Total equity Em i 846,316 126,291
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Year in Review
FEXEDBA

1. Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited (“Aoyuan
Healthy” or the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries
are collectively referred to as the “Group”, “we”, “our”
or “us”) held a press conference on its global offerings as
well as large-scale luncheons for investors
RERREEEEBRAR ([RERE] K [ARAE] - ER
HEE A m g [AEE ] s [, ) RIT2HRBEENEEM
EHARWKREETES

2. Aoyuan Property launched its 2019 Benchmark Projects to
create a municipal demonstration community. A series of
Chinese New Year celebrations were hosted as a part of its
Good Neighbor Initiatives
BEMERRK2019FFIRIE B IEE A2 MR8t E 5 S
BB RRMITRZNERINED

3. MS ARORA and Kolmar Korea held discussions on
cosmetics development
MS ARORAEREEBI RIS /A AL MmAREE
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The Group was officially listed in Hong Kong ﬂ =
AEEERBEXNEE LT

The Group held its 2018 annual results conference highlighting a leap
in growth and great improvement in various operational indicators
AEEAF2018F2FXERME  XEERBUAER - RIAELE
EINEE

Grand opening of MS ARORA, the Group’s first medical beauty clinic
AEEHREEFEMS ARORA B AR 2

Launch of the Group’s Ao Parking System
FEBREBRR LKF

The Group held a charitable activity with a
memorable ‘Be with you’ theme
AEBEFRARTA [HIFET] BXTENEE
NI )

(

Year in Review
FEXEDBA
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Year in Review
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Year in Review
FEXEDBA

1. The Group's headquarters was relocated to a new office
building at Aoyuan International Center

|| “ ARBRNBEEREBRTOMBAE

2. The Group regularly organises employees’ volunteer
teaching program for schools in Leizhou, Lianjiang and
other areas which brings new educational concepts to
teachers and students in impoverished regions
AEBETFTHEBETAEEMN  BIZFERSERETELE
- RERMERMEFRKFAHHREES

J

ur

AUG \A
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Year in Review
FEXEDE
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Year in Review
FEXEDBA

LU T
R Yt

QUNT]
JI]
1)

The Group began strategic cooperation with Zhi-an Tech; Aozhiyun (BB % =)
officially launched five solutions for three major product systems
AEFREBLHRBZZEREE  RETEABL=AERBROIRBATR
The Group and a Japanese elder care at home service company discussed

an operational and service model for a elder care at home service ‘m
AEBEABEREZRBAFMHEERELZES - REEETRS

Grand openings of malls under management — Aoyuan International Centre,
Nanjing Baolong Times Plaza Commercial Street and Xiushui Happy Coast
Aoyuan Plaza

HEEBREERERERES L  BAREERKESHETREKERLEER
EH 312 INGES

Aoyuan Property held a ‘Aoyue Business Brand Release and BOMA
Platinum Member Kickoff Meeting’
REMEENR RS mEEMEBOMAB SR EREE ]

MS ARORA (Linhexi branch and Zhujiang New Town branch) opened to
visitors, while ARORA LAB released three new cosmetics

MS ARORAMANFE & « BRI IS R B 28 -

LA R ARORA LAB Z i = 3T b Al G

The Group and China Aoyuan Group Limited (“China Aoyuan”,
together with its subsidiaries (excluding the Group) as the
“China Aoyuan Group”) jointly conducted charity donation
activities at Southeast Primary School, Shaxi Ancient Town,
Jianchuan, Dali, Yunnan

AEEEFHRESERMERAR (HEREE] - EREWEA
A (TEEAEE) B PEREER |)BSEZEARER)IIDE
THERENPETAREORENRED

REREETEEARAR —T—FH 11



2019 Honor and Awards
—E-hFHERIEIF

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group was awarded
“New Listed Enterprises of the Year 2019”
by Bloomberg Businessweek/Chinese Edition
BERRELEE b TALTSE SRR e
[FE#H EHEE2019 KEE |

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group was awarded
“The Best Investment Value Award of 2019”
by the China Finance
N fE

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group was awarded

the Top 10 Community Service Providers (Listed)

in China in 2019 b Ehconsultlng
50 (5] g y e

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group was awarded
the “2019 Blue Chip Property Management
Enterprise” by The Econ
il er QU Scd
LIESISE S

12 Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2019

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group was ranked
“10th in the 2019 Top 10 Listed
Company of Property Management
Service” by the China Property
I\/Iana ement Instltute

EE
21 (2019%%% 1o
ETARI0&(FE104) ]

Aoyuan Property was ranked “15th in
the 2019 Top 100 Property Management
Companies in China” by the China Index

Academy
EL B +E B 75 bt [2019 1 B
MERBBERERX(E158) ]




Aoyuan Property was awarded the “2019
Top 20 Community Service Providers in
China” by Ehconsulting
NFERERHEE 2019 E

#t & BR 7% 7 Top 20

Aoyuan Property was awarded the “Top 10
of the 2019 Community Service Providers
in China in Terms of Community Culture

Bqulng’ by Ehconsulting
LUE

Aoyuan Property was awarded the “2019
China Top 50 Exemplary Community Service

Providers with Highest Customer Satisfaction”

by Ehconsulting
l#’w% & [2019 7 & AR 7% 7
ERE A 54

Aoyuan Property was the “2019 Top 10
QOutstanding Community Service Projects in
China” by Ehconsultmg

/ B [2019 7

2019 Honor and Awards
—E-hFHEREIF

Aoyuan Property was awarded the “Top 20 of
the 2019 Community Service Providers in China
Brand Value” by Ehconsulting
WHELERBEE [2019 F B4R
R MR EE — 15

Aoyuan Property was awarded “The Power
of the Community Pioneer Award for Poverty
Alleviation and Agriculture Support in Guangzhou
District” by The Power of the Community
Poverty Alleviation Through Consumption Project
Operation Team Committee

REREETEERRLR —T—AFH 13



2019 Honor and Awards
—E-NFHEERRIF

Aoyuan Property was awarded the “2019 China
Leading Property Management Companies in
Terms of Social Responsibility” by the China

Index Academy
REYELEFEIESMELR [2019FE
MERBFELEEERLE]

Guangzhou Panyu Aoyuan Plaza was
awarded the “Mall China Golden Mall
Awards 2019 City Advancement Award”
by Mall China

BMNEBRE féE o B Bk
[2019 FEREWH LT
YA % B HEE) 42 |

Aoyuan Property was awarded the “2019 China

Leading Property Management Companies in Terms

of Characteristic Service” by
the China Index Academy
BBE W) 3 S Bl R 2R 9efe [2019 R ED
HEMERBRLELXZ—EE4EE]

Guangzhou Luogang Aoyuan Plaza was
awarded the “2018-2019 Most Expected

14  Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2019

Aoyuan Plaza Management was awarded the
“Influential Shopping Mall Brand in China of
the Year 2019"” by Guandian Index Academy
 (BEEEEER)
REESERES R IEHM T R

(2019 B EZENEDT LM

Aoyuan Property was granted the title of “Model
Community for Poverty Alleviation Through
Consumption” by the China Community Poverty
Alleviation Alliance
REYMFEREPREGRKBER EEKE

Bt ]




2019 Honor and Awards
—E-hFHEREIF

Aoyuan Commercial Management was awarded Guangzhou Luogang Aoyuan Plaza was awarded Zhuhai Aoyuan Plaza was awarded the
the “Mall China Golden Mall Awards 2019 the “Whimsy Award e Experience Marketing “2018-2019 Municipal Commercial New
Excellence Management Company Award” by Case Award (Luogangdaji Aoyuandali) Original andmark” by Winshang. (FrA)
Mall China IP Debut” by Winshang.com KERERESGRERES
HEHELREDIE [2019 FEBY T O JBE 1 2 e B2 () 355 AR B FEYBARNE o 58 [2018-2019 G E 4 i i 3 304% |
ik = 1 REINPEF ]

i
TEEREEARE] BRI HER

Zhuhai Meixi Commercial Plaza was Jiangmen Aoyuan Plaza was awarded the “2019
awarded the “Mall China Golden Mall Shopping Mall Industry Marking Award” by
Awards 2019 Plan and Design Award” by Winshang.com
Mall Chi 5 A [2019F
EEE GH b &I 22 |

REREETEERARLA —T—AFR 15
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Chairman’s Statement
EERE

Dear Shareholders,

I am pleased to present the annual report of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Year").

During the Year under review, the Group achieved revenue of
approximately RMB900.8 million, representing a significant
increase of 45.6% over the previous year. Net profit
attributable to the parent company was RMB162.5 million,
representing a significant year-on-year increase of 108.1%.
To share the remarkable results of our performance with our
shareholders, the board of directors (the “Board”) of the
Company recommended payment of a 2019 final dividend of
RMBO0.09 per share.

On 18 March 2019 (the “Listing Date”), the Group was spun
off from China Aoyuan Group Limited (“China Aoyuan”) for
a separate listing on the main board (“Main Board”) of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Over the years, the Group has maintained a stable long-term
partnership and strategic complementary advantages with the
parent company, China Aoyuan. Leveraging on its property
management and commercial operational service experience as
well as capital market advantages, the Group is continuously
expanding and increasing profitability to create a solid
foundation for our business.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group has been facilitating our fundamental business
development in a dual-core form, offering property
management services for residential and non-residential
properties and commercial operational services for shopping
malls, with a focus on mid to high-end properties and mixed-
use property development projects. The Group operates on a
large scale. As of 31 December 2019, its property management
services covered 13 provinces, municipalities and autonomous
regions in China, providing property management services
for 94 properties in 38 cities, with the property management
business’s total gross floor area (“GFA”) under management
exceeding 15.1 million square metres. We also provide property
management services for most of the property projects
developed by the parent company, which brings us a stable
revenue. Additionally, in view of the significant growth of
revenue from independent property developers during the year,
we will continue to expand our cooperation with third parties.

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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With consumption upgrade and rapid expansion of the
consumer service industry, consumers are increasingly
demanding “shopping experiences” with quality service, and
demand for professional commercial operational services has
grown commensurately. The Group also provides commercial
operational services for the parent company’s two major
projects, “Aoyuan Plaza" (2E &%) and “Aoyuan City Plaza”
(BE¥MAIM) . The Group's extensive experience in property
management helps it to provide quality commercial operational
and management services after projects begin to operate,
and to enjoy a synergistic effect from businesses. During
the Year, revenue from the Group’'s commercial operation
increased substantially year-on-year by 53.6% to approximately
RMB254.4 million.

At the same time, the Group has expanded its property
management and commercial operational services to general
health and wellness. Through the effort of professional
management teams and employees, this year’s business model
has achieved a breakthrough, making the Group a leader in
healthy life services in China. During the Year, in addition to
establishing MS AORORA, our own medical beauty brand, and
ARORA LAB, a cosmetics brand, the Group was committed
to integrating its existing edges by creating and operating
traditional Chinese medicine (“TCM") centres and medical
beauty clinics at our managed properties, aiming to meet
customer demand for general health and wellness services.
To construct the one-stop Yue Life ecosystem (1{4E/EERE
Bl), the Group developed a healthy life service circle under
the innovative “health + technology” and “health + ecology”
models in Guangzhou Luogang Aoyuan Plaza (BMZ=H R
Bl &), featuring TCM diagnosis, treatment and intelligent
healthcare services. The Group is committed to deploying its
general health and wellness business, focusing on medical
beauty, TCM and healthcare, and healthcare management
businesses. We will continue to uphold the brand concept
of “creating the joy of life”, build up more professional and
comprehensive health management services, and realise the
vision of sharing a quality life.

Chairman’s Statement
ERRE
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Chairman’s Statement
EERE

Our outstanding business performance is not only reflected in
our results; it has also been widely acknowledged in the capital
market in less than a year after our listing. We were included
as a constituent stock of the MSCI China Small Cap Index in
November 2019 and named the “New Listed Enterprises of the
Year 2019" by Bloomberg Businessweek/ Chinese Edition this
year. At the same time, various domestic and overseas securities
firms issued investment reports which positively rated the
Group, indicating that the Group is highly recognised by the
capital market.

STRATEGY AND OUTLOOK

In mid-late January 2020, COVID-19 broke out in the PRC.
The Group responded quickly to this nationwide battle, and
established the “Coronavirus Emergency Management Office”
for guiding epidemic prevention. The Group actively and
comprehensively took all-round measures from resource supply,
disinfection and protection, publicity, to closed management.
Besides, the Group provided owners with two types of
personalised value-added service models: “Yue Service” (1% AR
%) and “Healthy Life Service” (f2F4)EMR7%), and launched
group purchase service of scarce protective materials such as
alcohol and organic agricultural by-products to ease owners’
worries. The Group also overcomes difficulties together with
tenants through various preferential policies such as rent
reduction and exemption. Meanwhile, the Group has jointly
launched a free online consultation service for COVID-19 with
chunyuyisheng.com* (B E4). During the epidemic, the two
personalised value-added service models provided by property
management have been effectively examined and affirmed by
the owners.

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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No winter lasts forever, every spring is sure to follow. After
the end of the pandemic, the Group will continue to innovate
and strive for excellence, reforming, transforming and making
breakthroughs in traditional property management to meet
demands for a higher quality of life, cater to the consumption
upgrade, and meet people’s needs for healthy living. In these
regards, the Group will provide users with more valuable,
professional and comprehensive health services. The upgrading
of the business model will enrich the property management
services, increase its scalability, and offer more business
opportunities and momentum into this blue ocean segment.

Looking ahead, the Group will constantly develop the general
health and wellness business. We will integrate the advantages
and resources of the three business segments (property
management, commercial operations as well as general health
and wellness) to meet the increasing needs of customers and
improve customer satisfaction. The Group will continue to
consolidate its position in the property management services
and commercial operational services industries, and will
expand its business with quality services. To enhance our
competitiveness, we will expand cooperation with quality
independent third parties to adjust and enrich our management
portfolio.

The Group believes that with its existing business (property
management + commercial operations) as a foundation,
expansion of the general health and wellness business can
widen our service scope, enhance our competitiveness, and
help achieve the strategic goal of building a comprehensive
healthy life platform. The Group will cooperate with the
International Well Building Institute (IWBI) to build a “Healthy
Home” (f2EE=E) residential service system. “Healthy Home"
features a “Xiao Ao Healthy Living Centre” ( [/NEEEAE
#8 ] ) in each community operated by the Group. In addition to
a professional medical staff, nutritionists and health facilities,
the centre boasts professional fitness coaches to instruct
residents in the use of gym equipment as they improve their
cardiovascular and digestive systems, muscles and bones.
“Healthy Home"” will progressively develop “intelligent health
runways”, which will be integrated into the communities’ water
fountains, gardens or buildings, and indoor “healthy rainbow
staircases” to encourage residents to exercise. Apart from the
provision of basic property services, the Group will allocate
a health manager to each “Healthy Home"” family to provide
health service for the residents and will continue to meet the
needs of residents in terms of comfort, environment, noise, air,
water etc.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
EERE

Based on the ecosystems of property communities and
commercial operations, the Group also officially launched
the elder care business at the beginning of this year. To
this end it made use of the link of “property + elder care”,
implementing multilevel and diverse industry planning. The
Group launched the “Aoyue Home - Community Healthcare
Service Centre” ( [Bii v Rett[@EERBEH L] ), a service
brand for “property + elder care”, which allows the owners
to enjoy quality in-home elder care services ranging from
education, health management to TCM healthcare. The Group
will also cooperate with Nichii Group (HE£[E), Japan's
largest listed elder care service company, for unique elderly
care service community projects. We understand that the
healthcare business is subject to more stringent requirements
than property management and operations, and the Group's
high standard and standardised services will fully support the
operation of the general health and wellness business. The
Group’s successfully won the bidding for the state-owned
construction land use rights of a land plot in Fengxian District,
Shanghai, China in December 2019 and will jointly operate it
with China Aoyuan by providing asset-light service to develop
the medical beauty business marking, another important
milestone of our progress in this market. Fengxian District
has been dubbed the “Oriental Beauty Valley” and “City of
Cosmetics Industry in China”, and is a hub for many well-
known domestic and international brands. Establishing our
presence in the area will bring huge development potential
for Aoyuan Healthy and create momentum toward our
development in the general health and wellness business.
The Group will continue to maintain a strategic cooperative
relationship with the parent company. With the comprehensive
experience and advantages of the parent company in real
estate development and the Group’s comprehensive advantages
of resource integration, business investment and property
management in the general health and wellness industry, the
Fengxian project will receive more comprehensive support.
To cater for the government'’s elder care policies and improve
community service quality and customer satisfaction, the Group
will expand services in areas such as elder care and health
management, and build an online and offline platform for
community health management.
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Aoyuan Healthy is an asset-light service operator committed to
developing general health and wellness business, and deriving
revenue from its property management, commercial operation
and general health and wellness services. At the same time,
the Group will seize the development opportunities brought
by regional policies for national development, such as Yangtze
River Delta and the Greater Bay Area. The Group will also
strive to expand business coverage and enhance operational
capabilities to further consolidate its position as a top one
healthy life service group in the PRC.

The Group’s development and outstanding performance are the
result of the strong support of shareholders and customers and
the hard work and dedication of all staff members. On behalf of
the Board of the Company, | would like to take this opportunity
to express my heartfelt gratitude to our shareholders, business
partners, customers and employees. We will continue to work
hard, maximise value for customers and shareholders, and
create desirable returns.

Guo Zining
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis
TEEEMRRES N

BUSINESS REVIEW
Business Overview

The Group is a renowned property management service
and commercial operational service provider in the People’s
Republic of China (“the PRC"). It develops the general health
and wellness business in the segments of medical beauty,
community healthcare and healthcare management, with
a business strategy of delivering diverse service to meet
customer’s evolving demands. The Group offers diverse
property management services for residential and non-
residential properties, and a full range of commercial
operational services for shopping malls, with a focus on mid to
high-end and mixed-use property development projects. The
Group aims to create a quality healthy living and business social
environment whilst providing comprehensive quality healthy life
management services.

Property Management

As of 31 December 2019, the Group provided property
management services to 94 properties in 38 cities across 13
provinces, municipalities, and autonomous regions in the PRC
with a total GFA under management of approximately 15.1
million square metre (sq.m.), of which the Group achieved an
increase in the GFA under management of 4.7 million sq.m.
under the property management service segment for the Year,
representing a year-on-year growth of 45.2%.

Commercial Operation

As of 31 December 2019, the Group was contracted to
provide commercial operational services to 37 shopping malls
with a contracted GFA of approximately 1.8 million sq.m..
Among them, contracts provided for post-opening commercial
operation and management services to 28 shopping malls
represented a contracted GFA of approximately 1.5 million
sg.m.. During the Year, the Group achieved an increase in
aggregate contracted GFA of 493,000 sq.m. under commercial
operational service segment, representing a year-on-year
growth of 38.8%.

As of 31 December 2019, the Group provided commercial
operational services to 17 shopping malls in operation in 11
cities in the PRC, with a total GFA under management of
approximately 775,000 sg.m..

During the Year, the Group had a total of 10 newly opened
shopping malls.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEERES

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued) XKD =)
Commercial Operation (Continued) E£:1. 3% A=)

The breakdown of newly opened shopping malls during the T~XREHIPFANFTHAERSHA -
Year is set out in the table below:

Occupancy
Contracted rate as at
Contract GFA 31 December
No.  Shopping malls Opening date Location effective date® Contract term (Year) (sg.m.) 20199
R2019%
ARREER 124318
Fi  BUES HERH g AHBENAHO BHER(F) (FH%) AEZEO
1 Panzhou Aoyuan Plaza January 2019 Panzhou 11 May 2018 10 45,000 98.1%
BMAREES 2019518 BN 2018554118
2 Guangzhou Luogang May 2019 Guangzhou 3 January 2018 10 34,500 99.3%
Aoyuan Plaza
BNEERERES 2019%57 BN 201841730
3 Zhuhai Meixi Commercial ~ May 2019 Zhuhai 21 July 2018 From contract 26,800 82.6%
Plaza effective date to 31
December 2023
REEEBEES 2019%57 i 2018%7A21R BANENABZE3E
124310
4 Shunde Aoyuan Plaza September 2019 Foshan 1 July 2019 9.5 66,700 88.2%
=R EES 2019594 1l 201957818
5 Hefei Aoyuan City Plaza ~ September 2019  Hefei 10 June 2019 8 45,900 95.5%
ARERENT R 2019494 &R 2019564108
6 Aoyuan International December 2019 Guangzhou 1 April 2019 105 28,000 86.9%
Centre
RERRD L 2019612 1 BN 201954818
7 Nanjing Baolong Times December 2019 Nanjing 25 June 2019 3 14,000 100.0%
Plaza Commercial
Street
BREENAEGEES  2019F127 [ 201956258
8 Xiushui Happy Coast December 2019 Xiushui 8 June 2018 " 50,000 70.7%
Aoyuan Plaza
BABREEFRERES 2019F12 1 Bk 201856 48H
9 Yulin Aoyuan Plaza December 2019 Yulin 25 May 2018 1.5 56,000 93.1%
IHRERS 2019F 12 A B 2018554258
10 Fuzhou Caizi Lane® December 2019 Fuzhou 20 September 2018 From contract effective date N/A N/A
to 31 December 2019
e i 2019612 1 A 201859A20H BENENBEZE2019% T TER
12A318
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Management Discussion and Analysis
TEEEMRRES N

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Commercial Operation (Continued)

(1

Contract effective date represents the date on which we began to
provide our commercial operational services pursuant to the relevant
commercial operational services contract entered into between us
and the property developer or owner.

(2)

Occupancy rate is calculated as actual leased area divided by
available lease area of a shopping mall as at 31 December 2019
based on our internal record. The occupancy rate may be higher or
lower in different periods within a year.

(3)

The Group only provides Fuzhou Caizi Lane with market positioning
and business tenant sourcing services, instead of commercial
operation and management services.

General Health and Wellness Business

The Group deeply applies the two ecosystems of “lives in
properties and commercial complex” in the general health and
wellness business segment, and continuously integrates quality
healthcare resources to provide customers with TCM healthcare
services and medical beauty services.

In respect of healthcare business, as a strategic business
officially launched at the end of the Year, the Group set up a
dedicated team composed of well-known healthcare experts
in the industry and formulated the development strategy of
healthcare business for the next three years, and proposed the
"143"” model and "1+1+N" healthcare system strategy, namely:
to generate synergy with elder care at home, at institution,
and during sojourn with community elder care as the
foundation; building an online intelligent healthcare platform,
connecting offline healthcare cards, and providing more than
70 comprehensive healthcare services in 3 categories: healthy
aging, happy aging, and learning while aging, so as to provide
customised products and services for the elderly with different
health conditions and achieve the synergy among the product
lines. Meanwhile, the Group will jointly establish a healthcare
industrial research institute with well-known domestic and
foreign healthcare and elder care institutions and universities
to combine international advanced models, advanced products
and technologies with the development of the PRC's healthcare
industry for research, consultation, and industrial guidance
services.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

General Health and Wellness Business (Continued)
At the end of the Year, the Group and Nichii Group* (H &%
&), a well-known Japanese elder care services provider, entered
into a cooperation agreement to jointly expand elder care and
nursing services. Meanwhile, the Group officially launched
two community healthcare pilot projects in Guangzhou Panyu
Jinye Villa Garden* (BE/MNEFEHELZERIEIEE) and Guangzhou
Luogang Aoyuan Plaza* (/N R EE%), and will share the
experience of elder care from Japan and Hong Kong based on
the customer group of Aoyuan Community, and fully explore
the quality resources of the cultural tourism industry under
China Aoyuan, so as to open up a new life of living, healthcare
and vacation experience for the elderly.

In respect of TCM business, the Group set up two TCM centres
in Guangzhou Panyu Aoyuan Healthcare Plaza* (BN &SR
B &4 ES) and Guangzhou Luogang Aoyuan Plaza* (&M
Z M B ERES) under its management, and the Group had a
team of well-known TCM practitioners, delivering services of
massage, moxibustion, acupuncture, internal and external TCM
treatment, and external washing, etc., providing professional,
convenient and distinctive TCM services, and sincerely serving
the community and surrounding population. The TCM centre
signed a dual referral agreement with Guangzhou Panyu
District Hospital of Traditional Chinese Medicine* (B/MM&E
#EEFERL) and Guangzhou Hospital of Traditional Chinese
Medicine* (EMMEPT) to provide quick referral green
channels and expert medical consultation for the patients.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
TEEEMRRES N

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

General Health and Wellness Business (Continued)

In respect of medical beauty, the Group introduced
international medical team, modern medical system, and
service concepts. With the rich experience of our established
management team, the Group created a “light medical beauty”
concept of “professional medical beauty is all around you”
for the medical beauty business, and established the medical
beauty brand MS ARORA and cosmetics brand ARORA LAB, to
accurately cater to the customer’s demand for medical beauty
services and enhance the owner’s experience. The Group set
up three medical beauty clinics during the Year, which provide
skincare treatments, micro cosmetics, and plastic surgeries
services, and formed a medical system with Chinese and Korean
features by integrating Korean medical elements and domestic
medical beauty market features, to provide better medical
beauty services for domestic consumers. Meanwhile, the Group
jointly developed five new cosmetics products with the well-
known Korean cosmetics research and development company
“Cosmax Group” during the Year, of which the hyaluronic acid
mask was launched in February of the Year, the hyaluronic acid
mist was launched in September of the Year, the hyaluronic
acid cleanser, the medical cooling mask, and the calming repair
cream were launched in December of the Year. Customers’
experience has been further enhanced with these five products
and the skin treatments provided by the Group’s medical
beauty clinics.

Online and Offline (“020"”) Platforms

In order to integrate the development of the three major
segments of the Group namely property management,
commercial operation and, general healthcare and wellness,
the Group upgraded the original 020 platforms to optimise
business models and enhance service quality, while establishing
two major technology companies (“Aozhiyun Technology” (£
B ERHX) and “Aojia Technology” (ERI)) with the support
of technologies such as the Internet and AIOT, and enriched
online and offline platforms and health products to enhance
customers’ experience and satisfaction.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Online and Offline Platforms (Continued)

The online platforms of the Group mainly include Aoyuejia (B
1) Android and i0OS mobile applications and WeChat public
account. The Group launched the Aoyuejia mobile application
(formerly known as “Jiayuan” ({£[&) and “Aoyuan Property”
(BE®Z)) in June 2017, and upgraded to Aoyuejia mobile
application version 3.0 in October 2019, through focusing on
the three cores of Yue Activity (f)&®)), Yue Community (1%
tT[&) and Yue Health (1), thereby building a Yue Life
Ecosystem in Aoyuan Community (ERE R4 45 £ REE]), in
order to meet the diverse needs of the residents and tenants
in residential and commercial communities under the Group’s
management and enhance experience of the owners. As of
31 December 2019, the Aoyuejia mobile application covers
91 residential and commercial properties the Group managed,
with a total of approximately 48,336 registered users. During
the Year, the Group also entered into a strategic cooperation
agreement with Guangzhou Zhi'an Angel Technology Co.,
Ltd.* (BEMNEZXEREBRAR]), according to which both
parties jointly cooperated in cloud services, big data, Internet
of Things, artificial intelligence and other fields to form a
strong alliance so as to complement one another, establishing a
comprehensive strategic partnership.

Aozhiyun (B %) under the Group, together with Anjubao
(Z/FE), DANKE (Jkfi#52), AURINE (57#F) and other leading
companies in intelligent field, jointly created a health
intelligence system with health and intelligence features. The
Group has independently delivered five major solutions of
“Healthy Living Hall” (f2E4)&%E), “Healthy Smart Home"
(fBEERERE), “Smart Community” (BFZ/]&), “Smart
Commercial Plaza” (BEE%¥/E$%), and "AlOT Marketing
Centre” (AIOT& $57 1), and has signed over 50 projects within
half a year with total contract value of nearly RMB50 million.
Many projects have been smoothly implemented and were well-
received.

Aojia Technology (B{EFHE) created a Smart and Healthy
Cloud Platform of AoHealth (BEFREEZEREETFA) through
the integration of superior resources in the industry such as
WeDoctor* (%), AKCOME* (EfE), DAAN GENE* (F&LE
A), with the application of technologies such as AIOT and
the Internet, to develop health service terminals as well as
community health indexes etc., and establish a healthy living
service system for the real estate sector, providing entry-level
health services for real estate customers. Currently, it covers
more than 10 cities such as Guangzhou, Foshan, Chengdu,
Xi'an, and Beijing.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
TEEEMRRES N

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Outlook

In mid-late January 2020, COVID-19 broke out in the PRC.
The Group responded quickly to this nationwide battle, and
established the “Coronavirus Emergency Management Office”
for guiding epidemic prevention. Always putting the lives and
health of the owners, merchants, customers, and employees
as the top priority, the Group actively and comprehensively
took all-round measures from resource supply, disinfection
and protection, publicity, to closed management. Communities
is the main battle field and property management is the
main force for epidemic prevention and control. The Group
implemented joint prevention and control measures, built
a tight line of defense for group prevention and strictly
controlled community entry and exit, and executed access
control and epidemic prevention. Besides, the Group provided
owners with two types of personalised value-added service
models: “Yue Service” ($tfR7) and “Healthy Life Service” (fi&
FEAEEARTS), and launched group purchase service of scarce
protective materials such as alcohol and organic agricultural
by-products to ease owners’ worries. As a listed company, the
Group also takes up corporate social responsibility. In addition
to cooperating with China Aoyuan Group in the donation of
protective materials, the Group also overcomes difficulties
together with tenants through various preferential policies
such as rent reduction and exemption. Meanwhile, the Group
has jointly launched a free online consultation service for
COVID-19 with chunyuyisheng.com* (FME4). During the
epidemic, the two personalised value-added service models
provided by property management have been effectively
examined and affirmed by the owners. In the future, the Group
will continue to implement and improve the models. As the
epidemic still prevails, the Group will continue to adhere to
the “customer-oriented service” principle and mobilise various
resources for prevention. In a complex and volatile market
with diverse and competitive situation, the Group has always
followed a sound financial management strategy, maintained
low-cost and multi-channel financing advantages, as well as
reasonable and safe debt levels. Regarding project investment,
the Group will explore external cooperation and secondary
market acquisitions to control the cost of diverse services
and enhance the efficiency of capital use. In addition, various
businesses are carried out with focuses on security services and
operations, and based on the support policies issued by the PRC
government, the Group will make effective use of funds and
take stock, and plan to find new profit growth points for the
business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Property Management

In respect of property management, the continued trend of
urban development and consumption upgrade will support
the long-term steady growth of the property management
industry in 2020. In light of the increasing competition in the
industry, the Group provides property management services
for most of the property projects developed by China Aoyuan
Group; while achieving stable income contribution, expansion
is the only way for property management to enhance market
competitiveness. The Group will leverage on the edge of
the listing platform to deepen its strategy and focus on the
coordinated development with other businesses and will also
further expand the scale of property management through its
own expansion, investment, mergers and acquisitions, and joint
investment and cooperation. Besides, multiple business formats
will be operated to complete strategy of the entire industry
chain of the property management industry. Through asset
management, it is developing a commercial and office property
market with great potential. The Group will further strengthen
its property diversification operations. The Group will set up
professional lease and sale companies and open new stores
in multiple locations to realise the rapid growth of first-hand
asset agency and second-hand asset lease and sale business.
Opportunities arise with challenges, the Group dedicates to
developing home services to address the consumer’s demand
against the outbreak of the epidemic, providing more value-
added services for community customers to create new profit
growth points, such as vegetable distribution, housekeeping
services, laundry service, furniture disinfection, and other
businesses. The Group will also provide value-added services to
developers’ major customers, as well as value-added services
such as initial cleaning and sporadic projects for developers.
In addition, the Group will increase investment in information
technology and intelligence. During the year of 2020, all car
parks will be operated unmanned to further reduce operating
costs and increase profits.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
TEEEMRRES N

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Commercial Operation

With the consumption upgrade and rapid expansion of the
consumer service industry, consumers are having higher
expectation on shopping experience and service quality, thus
the demand for professional business operation services is
increasing. The Group provides commercial operation services
for two major brands of China Aoyuan Group, i.e. “Aoyuan
Plaza” (BE &%) and “Aoyuan City Plaza” (BE¥ X)), and
also extended the service to third parties. The Group’s extensive
experience in the property management industry, helps provide
quality commercial operation and management services
after the project operation starts, and generates synergy of
multiple businesses. The Group’s past contracted projects will
be successively launched in Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
Greater Bay Area, Anhui, Jiangxi, and other areas. In response
to the business development, changes in the market as well as
the impact brought by the epidemic, the Group will focus on
enhancing its operation quality, and the shopping malls under
operation, and continuously improve its operation capability to
increase the revenue on projects. The Group will also expand
quality projects in a prudent manner.

Leveraging on the advantages in the general health and
wellness business and industrial integration, the Group has
explored a new asset-light business model. The Group provides
asset-light services (medical beauty as well as healthcare
services and products) to the industrial zone owned by its
service targets through the ways of business and management
consultation and business development and operation service,
and property management service.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
General Health and Wellness Business

As customers’ needs are constantly evolving, the Group will
continue to provide general health and wellness service to
meet customers’ needs and enhance their experience, thereby
achieving future growth. As such, the Group will continue
to expand the TCM healthcare business and medical beauty
business to cater to eldercare policies, build online platform for
community healthcare management and improve community
service quality and customer satisfaction. In addition, the
Group is actively exploring strategic alliance, investment,
and acquisition opportunities, which can provide services
complementary to the property management and commercial
operation services of the Group.

TCM Business

The TCM business, as a basic element of the Group's
industrial chain, has continuously undergone the process
of consolidation. The Group plans to establish strategic
partnerships with “Hudayi Doctor Group”* (fAK—E4 %
E) and “Daxiang Pharmaceutical Group”* (KFZEEEE),
to develop a series of products for Aoyue Health (175 4),
in order to deepen its presence in the community, further
strengthens its business operation, and vigorously develop and
expand new business lines.

The Group plans to open TCM stores in multiple communities
of China Aoyuan Group, and will appoint a Chinese medicine
practitioner with special expertise in each store to provide
community residents with TCM health services such as
consultation and pulse diagnosis. Besides, 24-hour automatic
vending machines will be installed in the commercial malls
operated by the Group to promote the Aoyue Health and
beauty products developed by the Group, to provide our
commercial tenants with quality healthcare services.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Healthcare Business

The healthcare business will focus on creating a "1 + 3"
healthcare system network in Southern China in 2020,
horizontally building the Group’s unique business model of
3in 1 "property under management + health + elder care”,
and accelerating the development of “the Internet + health”
vertically, including the establishment of Asia Health and
Wellness Industrial Research Institute (35N AfEFEAE £/
B2), Smart Health Centres, the creation of a video consultation
cloud platform and a smart elder care platform, to provide
online services such as member services, senior university,
senior products sales exhibition, health management, etc., and
provide strong guarantee for the realisation of retirement at
home in the community.

In response to the national policy on general health and
wellness and meet the growing concern of the customers over
life and health and demand for quality products and services
promoting healthy life, the Group cooperates with We Doctor*
(B [E), a leading international medical health technology
platform, chunyuyisheng.com* (E™M%4), Hudayi Doctor
Group (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.* (SAK—EE£EE (&) &
f[R27]) and Shu Tang Information Technology (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd. *(FFEEL BRI ORYI)BR A F))to accurately posit
the general health and wellness business in the market and
direct the development of service of general health and
wellness industrial operation. The Group is planning to enter
the upstream of the medical beauty industry and the field of
technical aesthetics with world-renowned medical equipment
companies. Besides, the Group plans to improve its 020 health
management and medical services and enhance the function
of smart health community services; cooperate with Rophe
Health*(R)AfF)to introduce overseas health operational
service providers; and expand into business fields related to
nursing, healthcare and medical, which are diverse and closely
related to living with Nichii Group* (HE £ H).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Medical Beauty Business

The Group will cooperate with well-known medical and
aesthetic experts and teams at home and abroad to provide
professional medical training and non-medical training to
further improve the existing medical management system,
comprehensively improve service safety and quality, strengthen
customer trust, and incubate cosmetics business in conjunction
with the medical and aesthetic institution platform, launch
more high-end functional cosmetics, and enrich its business
lines and service content. Meanwhile, by expanding the
acquisition of leading domestic medical beauty companies
to strengthen its position in the medical beauty industry, it
will perfectly integrate services and products to expand and
strengthen the medical beauty business. The Group earns
customers’ recognition with trustworthiness, care, safe medical
technology, meticulous and friendly consultation, humanistic
and rational scheme design, and satisfactory postoperative
results. The Group plans to work with world-renowned medical
equipment companies to enter the upstream of the medical
beauty industry, enter the field of technical aesthetics, apply
high-end technology to develop medical beauty equipment,
and expand the business chain of home beauty equipment.
Besides, the Group will focus on integrating its internal and
international resource advantages, tapping the brand value and
creating social value through public relations and community
welfare activities.

In addition, the Group successfully won the bidding for a land
plot in Fengxian District, Shanghai, China in December 2019,
and will provide asset-light operating services and gain part
of the asset returns. It is an important milestone for further
penetrating the general health and wellness market. Fengxian
District has been known as the “Oriental Beauty Valley” and
"City of Cosmetics Industry in China”, and has gathered many
well-known medical and beauty and healthcare brands at home
and abroad. Entering this region will bring huge development
potential to the Group and complement the general
development direction of general health and wellness business.
The Group will continue to maintain a strategic cooperative
relationship with China Aoyuan. With the extensive experience
and edges of China Aoyuan in real estate development and
the comprehensive advantages of the Group in resources
integration, business solicitation, and property management
capabilities in the general health and wellness industry, the
project will get more quality and comprehensive support.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
TEEEMRRES N

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

020 Platforms Formulation and Deepen one-net
Strategy

As part of its one-net strategy, the Group will apply AIOT, big
data, and Internet technologies to build an online closed-loop
ecosystem for the Group’s main business; build an “Aowulian”
(B ¥)B%) group centralised command centre and platform to
integrate the Group's parking, passenger flow, monitoring,
security, smart home product, and other smart equipment
resource, while creating “Aowulian” (B#)8) an independent
brand for smart product supply and sale, to lay the foundation
for future market expansion; and jointly upgrade the Aoyuan
Health-Healthy House 2.0 (B E{#E - #F=2.0) service system
with International WELL Building Institute, which ranks first in
the international health building certification field, to provide
products and services including but not limited to WELL health
building certification and Ao Health (B{EE) platform to the
top 100 real estate developers nationwide, generating revenue
through business services and expanding customer base.

In the future, adhering to the core values of "efficiency,
integrity, responsibility, and win-win”, the Group will not only
pay close attention to the perspective and rules of the capital
market with an open mind, but also polish the increasingly clear
multi-dimensional business structure with the brand concept
of “creating the joy of life” while striking a balance between
vision and practice. The Group will continue to consolidate its
position in the property management service and commercial
operation service industries, and expand cooperation with
quality independent third parties, actively adjust and enrich
its management portfolio, to enhance competitiveness, and
leverage on the unique general health and wellness industry
model to build an all-round industry chain strategy with
property management and commercial operational service, and
seize market opportunities to reach a higher level.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Results of Operations

The Group’s revenue was mainly derived from property
management services and commercial operational services. For
the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s total revenue
was approximately RMB900.8 million, representing an increase
of approximately RMB282.0 million or approximately 45.6%
as compared to that of approximately RMB618.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2018. Revenue generated from
property management services and commercial operational
services contributed approximately 71.8% and 28.2% to the
total revenue, respectively.
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The following table sets forth a breakdown of total revenue for TERZHFI R AT REBIZEL D IBE D LKA
the periods indicated by business segment: B4
2019 2018
“E-hE —E-NE
Revenue Revenue Growth Growth
contribution contribution amount rate
1 ON 154 WA R ERE
RMB’000 % RMB'000 % RMB’'000 %
AR®TrR % ARETFT % ARETT %
Property management MEEBREH L
service segment 646,387 71.8 453,228 73.2 193,159 42.6
Commercial operational ~ HEBEZREDE
service segment 254,413 28.2 165,607 26.8 88,806 53.6
Total aat 900,800 100.0 618,835 100.0 281,965 456
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EHEMRASH
FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued) M¥ELOE =)
Property Management Services MEREERY

The increase of revenue generated from property management X EBERBH BURAEMHARKE 19328
services segment was approximately RMB193.2 million, &JTsk#142.6% + E ¥ % & 12 Ik WA H
or approximately 42.6%, of which the increase inthe MAOAR®K841BEETHLK27.5%  kiEE
revenue generated from property management services was $HBIIRBUW A INOARE 7408 E LA
approximately RMB84.1 million or approximately 27.5% and 74.8% - KEWEEERBE ML AN - E
the increase in revenue generated from sales assistance services ZHREEEEMEB104BEFHKIEE
of approximately RMB74.0 million or approximately 74.8%. 15. 1B &Y KM - R A HEH IR KUK
The increase of revenue generated from property management A T EHRBMARBS B SRS EM
services was mainly due to the increase in the GFA under RESHAHKELEN  UERFERESEEER
management from 10.4 million sg.m. to 15.1 million sq.m.. The  $H&EZEE M -

increase of revenue generated from sales assistance services

was mainly due to the increase in number of pre-sale display

units and sales offices for which the Group provided services

and the increase in contracted sales amount of China Aoyuan

Group.

The following table sets forth the breakdown of revenue from TR#EFI A TAMZERSENSSNMES
the property management service segment by service category IEARIE D BBFTEER U AR :
for the periods indicated:

2019 2018
“E-hE —E-N\EF
Revenue Revenue Growth Growth
contribution contribution amount rate
1 ON 14 WA B ERE BRE
RMB’000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000 %
ARETFR % ARETT % AREFT %
Property management YEEERE D
service segment
- Property management  — ¥ EEIBIRHE
services 390,122 60.4 305,997 67.5 84,125 27.5
- Sales assistance services — 34 # B R 172,876 26.7 98,907 218 73,969 74.8
- Community value-added —# [BIZ{E R
services 83,389 12.9 48,324 10.7 35,065 72.6
Total 4ar 646,387 100.0 453,228 100.0 193,159 42.6
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Management Discussion and Analysis

Property Management Services (Continued)

The following table sets forth the breakdown of the GFA under
management as at the dates indicated and total revenue for
the periods indicated generated from provision of property
management services under the property management service

segment by type of property developer:
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MO 2
MEEEBRE (Z)
TEHINRYEREHERESORF B B

MEERERMEMRATBRDEEERE D
BTIREDXEERBELNAEKARA

As at/year ended 31 December
Rt=A=+-B/BE+=A=t+-ALEE

2019 2018
—B-NE —E-N\F

GFA Revenue Revenue GFA Revenue Revenue

BEEE A A BEME WA WA

(000 sq.m.)  (RMB’000) % ('000 sq.m.) (RMB'000) %

(FERKR) (AE¥EF) % (FEFK) (AREFT) %
China Aoyuan Group and FEREEE LA

its related parties Mot B 7y () 13,904 352,566 90.4 9,874 289,719 94.7
Third-party property E-AMEREY

developers 1,178 37,556 9.6 558 16,278 53

Total Fay 15,082 390,122 100.0 10,432 305,997 100.0

Note: Related parties of the China Aoyuan Group include the China MiiZ: FERESE@EBIREFRIREEENEE

Aoyuan Group's joint ventures and associates.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EHEERE SR
FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued) MELOE =)
Geographic Presence W E

The following map illustrates the location of the properties MW THBEBAEN T —hLF+_A=+—H=XK
under our Group’s management and properties it contractedto S B EVMERAEBEIINEENMEN
manage as at 31 December 2019: =
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Geographic Presence (Continued)

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEERES

The following table sets forth the breakdown of the GFA under
management as at the dates indicated and total revenue from
the property management service segment for the periods

indicated by geographic regions:

MO 2

WEHEE(E)

TREIIZWEUEESONARAHRNEE
REEBERATHEDEEERB Y BEL

Y AU A B A

As at/year ended 31 December

RT-A=t-B/BZ+-A=t-HLEE

2019 2018
—g-nf G
GFA Revenue Revenue GFA Revenue Revenue
BEmE O B BEERE WA WA
(000 sq.m.)  (RMB’000) % ('000 sq.m.) (RMB'000) %
(FEAK) (AR¥ETFR) % (FY¥AK) (AREFT) %
South China® ErE 8,739 401,969 62.2 5,893 302,090 66.7
Southwest China @ AEtEe 2,321 89,763 13.9 1,586 53,677 11.8
East China® ERMEC 1,639 62,272 9.6 1,206 40,695 9.0
Central and North China® #Ed R #Ebif[E@ 1,040 57,213 8.9 550 25,509 5.6
Northeast China ® BibiRe 1,343 35,170 5.4 1,197 31,257 6.9
Total st 15,082 646,387 100. 0 10,432 453,228 100.0
Notes: B 5
(1) South China comprises Guangdong Province and Guangxi Zhuang (1) EHWEREEEREREAMLERARE -

Autonomous Region.

(2) Southwest China comprises Chongqging Municipality, Sichuan,

Yunnan, Guizhou and Shaanxi Province.

(3) East China comprises Anhui, Fujian, Jiangsu, Jiangxi, Shandong and

Zhejiang Provinces.

(4) Central and North China comprises Hunan, Hubei, Hebei and Henan
Province and Beijing Municipality and Tianjin Municipality.

(5) Northeast China comprises Liaoning Province.

(2) AEtRBEEED -

mE -

il - E A -

B B BR

(3) ERMEBELH  WBE TH TA - UR

RHTTE -

(4) FEhkEimRESENRE - L T RTE

B odERmRRET -

(5) RitEBEEES -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
TEEEMRRES N

COMMERCIAL OPERATIONAL SERVICE

The increase of revenue generated from commercial
operational services segment was approximately RMB88.8
million or approximately 53.6%, mainly due to the increase
in revenue generated from commercial operation and
management services of approximately RMB58.3 million or
approximately 56.8% and the increase in revenue generated
from market positioning and business tenant sourcing services
of approximately RMB30.5 million or approximately 48.4%.
The fluctuation in the revenue generated from commercial
operation and management services and market positioning
and business tenant sourcing services was primarily driven by
the number of shopping mall openings during the respective
periods. The increase of revenue generated from commercial
operation and management services was mainly due to the
increase in number of shopping mall we managed and operated
from nine for the year ended 31 December 2018 to seventeen
for the year ended 31 December 2019. For the year ended
31 December 2018, the increase of revenue generated from
market positioning and business tenant sourcing services was
primarily attributable to the opening of Chongging Chayuan
Aoyuan Plaza (EBEXEREEY), Zhuhai Aoyuan Plaza (¥
BEEE), Kangwei Plaza (FEEEY) and Foshan Aoyuan
Plaza (8 ILU B EE!5). For the year ended 31 December 2019,
the revenue generated from market positioning and business
tenant sourcing services was primarily attributable to the
opening of Panzhou Aoyuan Plaza (8 /M B & &%), Guangzhou
Luogang Aoyuan Plaza (BMZEMEBEES), Zhuhai Meixi
Commercial Plaza (BRI E % ES), Shunde Aoyuan Plaza
(lBf= B EE5), Hefei Aoyuan City Plaza (A REREWM i K),
Aoyuan International Centre (RERFR ), Nanjing Baolong
Times Plaza Commercial Street (AR ERRBRESHED),
Xiushui Happy Coast Aoyuan Plaza ({&/KELg F REEH),
Yulin Aoyuan Plaza (E#E EE%) and Fuzhou Caizi Lane (FEM
A F45), respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEERES

COMMERCIAL OPERATIONAL SERVICE
(Continued)

The following table sets forth the breakdown of revenue from
commercial operational service segment by service category for
the periods indicated:

BMEEERE 2

TREIN AR BEZREERNE DO EE

ERB D EAELENKARA

2019 2018
“E-hE —E-N\E
Revenue Revenue Growth Growth
contribution contribution amount rate
O A
RMB’000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000 %
ARETR % ARETT % ARETT %
Commercial operational BHEEZREDH
service segment
- Commercial operation ~ —HEELREERE
and management services 160,902 63.2 102,577 61.9 58,325 56.9
~ Market positioning and  — M35 f1 R P HA#E
business tenant sourcing  fR7%
services 93,511 36.8 63,030 38.1 30,481 48.4
Total Hxt 254,413 100.0 165,607 100.0 88,806 53.6
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BTEBRE S

COMMERCIAL OPERATIONAL SERVICE
(Continued)

Geographic Presence
The following map illustrates the location of the shopping

malls under our Group's management and shopping malls it
contracted to manage as at 31 December 2019:
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEERES

COMMERCIAL OPERATIONAL SERVICE
(Continued)

Geographic Presence (Continued)
The following table sets forth the breakdown of revenue from

the commercial operational service segment for the periods
indicated by geographic regions:
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TREHIZWERBEADRATHARBRES

R BELRMRARMA :

Year ended 31 December

BE+tZA=t—-HLFE

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
AR¥ETR % ARETIT %
South China®™ EFEO 189,760 74.6 126,829 76.5
Southwest China®@ i E@ 41,728 16.4 32,395 19.6
East China® FEHIERO 21,719 8.5 948 0.6
Northeast China® Ribim©@ 1,206 0.5 5,435 3.3
Total 1T 254,413 100.0 165,607 100.0
Notes: M EE
(1) South China comprises Guangdong Province and Guangxi Zhuang (1) EMMRBEEREAREAMEKERE -

Autonomous Region.

(2) Southwest China comprises Chongging Municipality and Guizhou

Province.
(3) East China comprises Jiangxi Province and Anhui Province.
(4) Northeast China comprises Liaoning Province.

COST OF SERVICES

Our cost of services primarily consist of (i) labour costs which
arose mainly from the security services, house-keeping services
and maintenance services; (ii) cleaning and gardening services
expenses; (iii) maintenance costs; (iv) utility expenses; (v)
marketing and promotion expenses; and (vi) materials and
consumables.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
TEEEMRRES N

COST OF SERVICES (Continued)

Our cost of services increased by approximately RMB153.6
million from approximately RMB410.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018 to approximately RMB563.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2019. This increase
was primarily attributable to (i) the increase in labour costs
from approximately RMB252.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2018 to approximately RMB313.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 as we employed more employees to
cope with our business expansion; (ii) the increase in cleaning
and gardening services expenses from approximately RMB80.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately
RMB109.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 as
a result of our business expansion; and (iii) the increase in
maintenance costs from approximately RMB22.9 million for
the year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately RMB32.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 due to the
major maintenance work performed for certain of our property
management projects during the year ended 31 December
2019.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the gross profit of the
Group was approximately RMB337.1 million, representing an
increase of approximately RMB128.3 million or approximately
61.4% as compared to approximately RMB208.8 million
for the year ended 31 December 2018. For the year ended
31 December 2019, the gross profit margin was approximately
37.4%, representing an increase of approximately 3.7
percentage point as compared to 33.7% for the year ended
31 December 2018, mainly due to (i) the increase in the
proportion of revenue from commercial operational service to
total revenue, and the higher gross profit margin of commercial
operational service; and (ii) the scale economies effect of
property management service and the increase in the average
unit price of property management fees. For the year ended
31 December 2019, the gross profit of property management
service segment was approximately RMB223.9 million and the
gross profit margin was 34.6%; the gross profit of commercial
operational service segment was approximately RMB113.2
million and the gross profit margin was 44.5%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES AND
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Our selling and distribution expenses primarily consist of
(i) advertising expenses; (ii) salaries and allowances for our
sales personnel; and (iii) office expenses, travelling expenses
and business development expenses. The total selling and
distribution expenses of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 was approximately RMB2.5 million.

Our administrative expenses and other expenses primarily
consist of (i) salaries and allowances for our administrative
and management personnel in our headquarters; (ii) travelling
expenses; (iii) professional fees; (iv) rental expenses; and (v)
office expenses.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the administrative
expenses and other expenses of the Group were approximately
RMB126.0 million, representing an increase of approximately
RMB37.0 million or approximately 41.6% as compared
to approximately RMB89.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2018. This increase was mainly due to the increase in
administrative expenses as a result of the expansion of business
scale, the increase of personnel in headquarters and relocation
of the headquarters’ office.

OTHER INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2019, other income of the
Group amounted to a net revenue of approximately RMB29.7
million, representing a significant increase as compared to
that of approximately RMB6.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2018, which was primarily attributable to (i)
net exchange gain of approximately RMB19.0 million; (ii)
government subsidy and tax subsidy of approximately RMB5.9
million; and (iii) bank interest income of approximately RMB4.8
million.

THEBEMWRAS N

HERSHAILURITHRAX

BPNEERDHEHRAXTIEBRR)ESE
(iNHEABZHF LR R(GIINHAER
X EZRAXEEBRREAX -BE_ZT
—NEFT_A=t—"HLFE ~AEEHERK
DHAXBELSHNARBK 2588 -

BANTBRRAXREMRAXEZEE 1) HME
MOTHRMEEABZH © MOER ¢+ (i) 2K

)
s (INEXER  (VEEER + &(

NER o

v) 3

BE-_Z-hhFE+-_A=+—BILtFE  &X&
EmTBAZIREMATAHOARE 12608
Bl BREE_Z—NEF+_A=1+—HILHF
BZHARKSIOEETLLEANAREKSIZ.0
BEILKANL1.6% c ZEMEBRHNERR
BHEGR - BESABEIN - @I P RDBHIRE
BHITRAZ BRI

Hfih i A

BE-_Z-hhE+-_A=+—BILtFE  &&
ErHEbBASESFRANDARE 20788
T BBE_E-N\F+_A=+—BLFE
ZWARE66EETHBEBRA FTE2HR
MEZARFZFEOARBI90EE T (K
R MBS HE W ARBSOEE L UK
() IRITFBEBWMABNARE48EET °

RERBELEEEEARAR —T—NFR

45



46

Management Discussion and Analysis
TEEEMRRES N

OTHER INCOME (Continued)
Income Tax

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the income tax of
the Group was approximately RMB55.5 million, representing
an increase of approximately RMB25.3 million as compared
to approximately RMB30.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2018. For the year ended 31 December 2019, the
effective tax rate of the Group was approximately 25.4%,
representing a decrease of approximately 2.5 percentage points
as compared to approximately 27.9% for the year ended 31
December 2018, mainly due to the Group made full use of the
preferential tax policies for development of China‘s western
regions and small low-profit enterprises.

Profit for the Year

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the net profit of the
Group was approximately RMB163.1 million, representing an
increase of approximately RMB84.8 million or approximately
108.3% as compared to that of approximately RMB78.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2018. For the year ended 31
December 2019, profit attributable to equity Shareholders of
the Group was approximately RMB162.5 million, representing
an increase of approximately 108.1% as compared to that
of approximately RMB78.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2018.

FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2019, the total assets of the Group was
approximately RMB1,386.3 million (as at 31 December 2018:
approximately RMB503.0 million), and the total liabilities was
approximately RMB540.0 million (as at 31 December 2018:
approximately RMB376.8 million). As at 31 December 2019, the
current ratio was 1.97 (as at 31 December 2018: 1.26).

As at 31 December 2019, the net assets of the Group was
approximately RMB846.3 million (As at 31 December 2018:
approximately RMB126.3 million). The return on equity (ROE) is
calculated based on net profit divided by average net assets. As
at the year ended 31 December 2019, ROE was approximately
33.5%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
Property, Plant and Equipment

The Group’'s property, plant and equipment consist of
buildings, office equipment, motor vehicles and leasehold
improvements. Our property, plant and equipment increased
by approximately 59.1% to approximately RMB20.2 million
as at 31 December 2019, primarily attributable to office
improvements and the addition of office equipment during the
year ended 31 December 2019.

Right-of-use Assets

The right-of-use assets of the Group mainly included lease
right-of-use assets of approximately RMB15.9 million and the
land use right of the leasehold land for the development of a
healthcare and medical beauty industrial complex in Fengxian
District, Shanghai of approximately RMB84.9 million.

Upon application of IFRS 16 Leases in 2019, the Group
recognised right-of-use assets at the commencement date of
the lease. As at 31 December 2019, the right-of-use assets
were approximately RMB15.9 million (adjusted amount as at 1
January 2019: RMB9.1 million).

Intangible Assets

Our intangible assets represent the property management
contracts obtained upon the acquisition of other property
management companies. Our intangible assets increased
from approximately RMB3.0 million as at 31 December
2018 to approximately RMB4.3 million as at 31 December
2019, primarily due to the new acquisition of four property
management companies during the year.

Goodwill

Our goodwill represents the difference between the total
consideration for the acquisitions of Anhui Hanlin and
Shenzhen Huazhong and their respective total identifiable net
assets as at the respective acquisition dates.
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FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
Trade and Other Receivables

As at 31 December 2019, the total trade and other receivables
was approximately RMB316.3 million, which increased by
approximately RMB229.3 million as compared to approximately
RMB87.0 million as at 31 December 2018, which is mainly due
to (i) the increase in the project under management under the
property management service segment of the Group and the
increase in owner occupancy rate; (ii) increase in the number
of newly opened shopping malls; and (iii) advance payment to
contractors for the development of a healthcare and medical
beauty industrial complex on the leasehold land in Fengxian
District, Shanghai and for the leasehold improvement of the
commercial operational projects.

Amounts Due from Non-controlling Shareholder of a
Subsidiary, Fellow Subsidiaries, Related Parties and
Joint Ventures

The Group’s amounts due from non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary, fellow subsidiaries, related parties and joint
ventures decreased from approximately RMB176.1 million as at
31 December 2018 to approximately RMB98.8 million as at 31
December 2019, mainly due to the Group's effort to collect the
amounts due from related parties and fellow subsidiaries.

Trade and Other Payables

As at 31 December 2019, the trade and other payables was
approximately RMB297.6 million, representing an increase of
approximately RMB71.4 million or approximately 31.6% as
compared to that of approximately RMB226.2 million as at
31 December 2018, mainly due to the increase in GFA under
management and more services subcontracted to independent
third party service providers.

Bank Borrowings

As at 31 December 2019, we had (i) outstanding bank loans
of approximately RMB100.3 million; and (ii) unutilised banking
facilities for short term financing of approximately RMB45.0
million. Our bank borrowing were credit loans and average
interest rate is approximately 5.53% per annum.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
Lease Liabilities

Upon application of IFRS 16 Leases in 2019, lease liabilities of
the Group due within one year were approximately RMB3.3
million and the balance of lease liabilities due above one year
was approximately RMB12.8 million as at 31 December 2019.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2019, we did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

Gearing Ratio

Gearing ratio is calculated based on the total liabilities divided
by the total assets. Gearing ratio was 0.75 for the year ended
31 December 2018 and 0.39 for the year ended 31 December
2019, such change was mainly due to the proceeds from the
Listing.

Asset Pledge

As at 31 December 2019, none of the assets of the Group was
pledged.

Proceeds from the Listing

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 18 March 2019 (the “Listing”) and issued
175,000,000 new shares. On 2 April 2019, the over-allotment
option was fully exercised to allot 26,250,000 new shares.
After deducting the underwriting fees and relevant expenses,
net proceeds from the Listing and the over-allotment option
amounted to approximately HK$577.0 million and HK$93.7
million (approximately RMB493.1 million and RMB80.1 million).
As of the date of this announcement, the Group has utilised
approximately RMB64.0 million of the capital raised, of which
approximately RMB6.0 million was used to develop and
upgrade our 020 platforms; approximately RMBO0.7 million
was used to develop intelligent service systems and upgrade
our internal IT system; and approximately RMB57.3 million was
used for working capital and general corporate purposes. Such
proceeds will be applied in the manner consistent with that in
the prospectus of the Company dated 28 February 2019:
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FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

Proceeds from the Listing (Continued)

o approximately 62.0%, will be used to pursue strategic
acquisition and investment opportunities to acquire
or invest in other commercial operational service and
property management service providers to achieve
our business strategies of scaling up our commercial
operational service business and expanding our property

management service portfolio;

o approximately 10.0%, will be used to pursue selective
strategic acquisition and investment opportunities to
acquire or invest in service providers which provide
various services that are complementary to our property
management services and commercial operational
services, such as traditional Chinese medicine services,
medical beauty services, elderly care services and
telecommunications services, to achieve our business
strategy of diversifying our service offering to meet the

evolving needs of our customers;

o approximately 12.0%, will be used to continue to

develop and upgrade our 020 platforms;

o approximately 6.0%, will be used to develop intelligent

service systems and upgrade our internal IT system;

o approximately 10.0%, will be used for our working

capital and general corporate purposes.

The net proceeds are currently held as bank deposits and are
planned to be used in the same manner of distribution as

proposed in the Prospectus.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had 4,548 employees.
The staff cost was approximately RMB354.4 million in 2019.
The Group regularly reviews remuneration and benefits of
its employees according to the relevant market practice
and individual performance of the employees. Pursuant to
relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the Group provides
contributions to social insurance in China (including pension
insurance, medical insurance, unemployment insurance,
maternity insurance and occupational injury insurance) and
housing provident funds for our employees in the PRC.

Significant Acquisitions and Disposals

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group did not
have any significant acquisitions and disposals.

Significant Investments

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group did not
have any major investments.
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Biographical Details of Directors
EEEEHNS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Miao Sihua, aged 55, was appointed as a Director
("Director”) of the Company on 6 June 2018 and was re-
designated as an executive Director of the Company on 9 July
2018 and responsible for supervising the overall management
and operation of the Group. Mr. Miao is the President of
the Group since 16 September 2013 and was appointed as a
Director of certain subsidiaries. Mr. Miao has over five years of
experience in property management and commercial operation
management. Prior to joining China Aoyuan, Mr. Miao worked
as a general manager of Zhongtian Urban Group Business
Management Company Limited (R XM EBMEEEZTEBR A
A]), a company principally engaged in the commercial property
investment and commercial real estate management, where
he was primarily responsible for overall management and
operation of the company from July 2012 to August 2013.
Mr. Miao received a bachelor’s degree in Heating Ventilation
and Air Conditioning Engineering ({£Z#:BREEZF T2) from
Tong Ji University (EEXZ2) in the PRC in September 1987
and a master’s degree in Business Administration from the Asia
Metropolitan University in Malaysia in December 2017.

Mr. Tao Yu, aged 26, was appointed as a Director of the
Company on 6 June 2018 and was re-designated as an
executive Director of the Company on 9 July 2018 and
responsible for supervising the strategy formulation and
management of the capital operation and business acquisitions
of the Group. Mr. Tao worked in Aoyuan Property Group
(Australia) Pty Ltd, a subsidiary of China Aoyuan, as a finance
analyst primarily responsible for the management of the key
financial debt facilities providers from September 2016 to April
2018; and a capital transaction manager primarily responsible
for the daily operation and strategic advice on business
acquisition from February 2017 to April 2018. Mr. Tao received
a bachelor’s degree in Project Management from Nanjing
Auditing University in the PRC in June 2015 and a master’s
degree in Finance and Business Analytics from The University
of Sydney in Australia in October 2017. Mr. Tao Yu is the son-
in-law of Mr. Guo Ziwen, a controlling shareholder of the
Company, and the younger brother of Mr. Guo Zining.
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CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD AND NON-
EXECUTIVE DTRECTOR

Mr. Guo Zining, aged 58, is the Chairman of the Board of the
Company. He was appointed as a Director of the Company on
13 December 2016 and was re-designated as a non-executive
Director of the Company on 9 July 2018. Mr. Guo is also
the Chairman of Nomination Committee and a member of
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Guo has been
serving China Aoyuan for over 20 years and is currently an
executive Director, vice chairman and chief executive officer of
China Aoyuan as well as a Director in certain subsidiaries of
China Aoyuan, and he is primarily responsible for commercial
property investment, development and operation, and leads
the party committee, trade union and corporate culture of
China Aoyuan. In December 2006, Mr. Guo obtained a master’s
degree in Business Administration from City University of
Macau (formerly known as Asia International Open University
(Macau)) in Macau. In July 2015, Mr. Guo obtained a certificate
of postgraduate doctor in Business Administration from Beijing
Normal University (dt EMFIKE) in the PRC. In November
2015, he obtained a doctoral degree in Business Administration
from Nueva Ecija University of Science and Technology in
Philippines. In September 2016, he obtained a post-doctoral
certificate from the California State University Monterey Bay in
the United States. During the period from May 2016 to April
2017, Mr. Guo participated in a topic of “Research on Peking
University — China Brand Value (LR REHERIEEBEHT)",
and independently wrote a postdoctoral thesis on “Research
on the Business Operational Strategy of Aomaijia Cross-Border
E-commerce ( ( BEREIREFHLERMAIT) )", and therefore
received a certificate from Peking University China Sustainable
Development Research Centre (L R RSP RIFEHERIFITH
L) in May 2017. Mr. Guo has also been an external tutor of
Peking University HSBC Business School EDP Centre (Jt ;R K E24%
HERSREIEZHE (EDP) F.)) since November 2017, and is
currently a domestic visiting scholar in the faculty of Economics
in Peking University in the PRC. Mr. Guo is the elder brother of
Mr. Guo Ziwen, a controlling shareholder of the Company and
the father-in-law of Mr. Tao Yu.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chen Zhibin, aged 38, was appointed as a Director of the
Company on 6 June 2018 and was re-designated as a non-
executive Director of the Company on 9 July 2018. Mr. Chen
is currently chief financial officer of China Aoyuan and a vice
president of China Aoyuan Group and primarily responsible for
the overall capital markets operation and financial management
of China Aoyuan. Prior to joining China Aoyuan, Mr. Chen
served as a general manager of finance department of Fantasia
Group (China) Co., Limited, a subsidiary of Fantasia Holdings
Group Co., Limited whose shares have been listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1777) since November 2009 and
principally engaged in the provision of property development
in the PRC, where he was primarily responsible for the
financial management of the company from October 2012
to May 2014. During the period from July 2004 to January
2012, Mr. Chen served in Deloitte Guangzhou Office and was
primarily responsible for supervising daily operations of audit
engagements, where his last position thereof was the audit and
assurance manager. Mr. Chen received a bachelor’s degree in
Finance from the Sun Yat-Sen University (1111 X22) in the PRC
in June 2004.

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hung Ka Hai Clement, aged 64, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 22
February 2019. He is also the chairman of each of the Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee as well as a member of
the Remuneration Committee. He obtained a bachelor of arts
degree from the University of Huddersfield, United Kingdom in
1980. Mr. Hung had served Deloitte China for 31 years where
he had assumed various leadership roles before he took up the
chairman role of Deloitte China from 2014 to 2016. He retired
from Deloitte China with effect from June 2016. When Mr.
Hung was working with Deloitte China, he had assumed various
leadership roles, including the managing partner of Deloitte
Shenzhen office and Guangzhou office. He was also a member
of the China management team of Deloitte China. Mr. Hung
had also assumed the role of the southern audit leader and
the deputy managing partner of the southern region of China
(including Hong Kong, Macau, Shenzhen, Guangzhou, Xiamen
and Changsha). He was also a board member of Deloitte
Global.

Mr. Hung served as the Guangzhou Institute of Certified Public
Accountants consultant from 2004 to 2014. During the period
between 2006 to 2011, he also served as a member of the
Political Consultative Committee of Luohu District, Shenzhen.
After his retirement as the chairman of Deloitte China, he was
appointed as an expert consultant of The Ministry of Finance
in the PRC. Mr. Hung is a life member of The Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.

Mr. Hung has, in the past three years, served or is serving as a
Director of each of the following listed companies whose shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange:

o an independent non-executive Director of Gome Finance
Technology Company Limited (formerly known as Sino
Credit Holdings Limited) (stock code: 628) since 31
October 2016;
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an independent non-executive Director of Sheng Ye
Capital Limited (stock code: 8469, the listing of the shares
of which has been transferred to the Main Board (stock
code: 6069) from the GEM of the Stock Exchange from 24
October 2019) since 19 June 2017;

a non-executive Director of High Fashion International
Limited (stock code: 608) since 1 December 2017;

an independent non-executive Director of Zhongchang
International Holdings Group Limited (formerly known as
Henry Group Holdings Limited) (stock code: 859) since 12
January 2018;

an independent non-executive Director of China East
Education Holdings Limited (stock code: 667) since 12
June 2019;

an independent non-executive Director of Huarong
International Financial Holdings Limited (stock code: 993)
since 13 December 2019;

an independent non-executive Director of Tibet Water
Resources Limited (stock code: 1115) since 31 December
2019;

an independent non-executive Director of Skyworth Group
Limited (stock code: 751) since 18 March 2020;

an independent non-executive Director of Lerthai Group
Limited (formerly known as LT Commercial Real Estate
Limited) (stock code: 112) from 24 February 2017 to
3 March 2017 and a non-executive Director of the
company from 3 March 2017 to 30 June 2017. He was re-
designated as an independent non-executive Director of
the company on 30 June 2017 and subsequently resigned
with effect from 30 September 2018; and

an independent non-executive Director of SMI Holdings
Group Limited (stock code: 198) from 16 January
2017 to 15 March 2017 and re-designated as a non-
executive Director of the company on 15 March 2017. He
subsequently resigned with effect from 28 February 2019.

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Dr. Li Zijun, aged 55, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 22 February 2019. He is primarily
responsible for supervising and providing independent
judgement to the Board. He is also the member of each of
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee. Dr. Li is currently the chief of the East Medical
District and the head physician of Gastroenterology in
Guangdong General Hospital (BR& AREPT), and a part-
time professor at Southern Medical University (Fj /7 &Rl KE2).
He possesses more than 30 years of extensive experience as a
doctor and is an expert in medical treatment and endoscopic
treatment of chronic stomach, intestinal, liver and pancreatic
diseases. He had been qualified to practice as a chief physician
of Internal Medicine (R®IEIAEERT) since March 1995 and
a deputy chief physician of Gastroenterology (CH{E AR &l
F1E) since December 1999, and has been a chief physician
of Gastroenterology (GH{EAEIEE) since February 2006.
He received a Guangdong Science and Technology Award
(Second Class) (BRERIZRIMHE (Z%4) ) for his research
on experimental study on the mechanism and prevention of
intestinal mucosal inflammatory injury (IB2HIE A 1B S H)
B[RRI ERITIT) by People’s Government of Guangdong
Province in the PRC (FBIERA ARBKNAT) in July 2009. Dr. Li
obtained a master’ s degree in Internal Medicine (A&IE2) from
Tongji Medical College (EEE R AZ) in the PRC in June 1992
and a doctor’s degree in Internal Medicine (RN%I2) from Sun
Yat-sen Medical University (FFILERIKE) in the PRC in July
2011. Dr. Li has engaged in clinical work for over 30 years and
published a number of papers and has extensive clinical and
teaching experience in the field of gastroenterology.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. Wang Shao, aged 48, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 22 February 2019. He is primarily
responsible for supervising and giving independent judgement
to the Board. He is also the member of each of Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee. Mr. Wang has been serving Guangdong Real Estate
Association (BREFMETTERE) since October 1994 and
is currently the president where he is responsible for its overall
management, including strategic planning, public relations
and presiding the council meeting. Since August 2017, Mr.
Wang has been serving as an external supervisor of A-Living
Services Co., Ltd. (MELELERBRMHERAA), whose
shares have been listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
3319) and a reputable property management services provider
in China, where he is responsible for supervising the Board
and the senior management of the company. He is a special
supervisor of Guangdong Provincial Local Taxation Bureau (/&
HAMHHIEBFIEEE 8), an executive Director of China Real
Estate Association (FEIFEMEXREEHKIEE), the president
of Guangdong Southern Real Estate Magazine (B (EHE
HE) #MFhtt4t&) and an adjunct professor of Guangdong
Construction Vocational and Technical College (ERERBE
FT R 2 E#I%). He was also honored as the Outstanding
Member in the National Real Estate Industry (2 BEIREMETTE
BFHETIIEE) in May 2014. He obtained a diploma from
Sun Yat-Sen University (1 ILKEZ) in the PRC majoring in Real
Estate Brokerage and Management in June 1995 and obtained
a bachelor’s degree in Administration Management from the
same university in July 1999.

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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Profile of Senior Management and Company Secretary

EXECUTIVE PRESIDENT OF THE GROUP

Mr. Su Bo, aged 56, is the executive president of the Group
and responsible for management of the daily operation of
the general health and wellness business. Mr. Su joined the
Group in October 2019. Prior to joining the Group, from
November 2016 to October 2019, he served as the hospital
superintendent of Guangzhou Panyu Central Hospital (ZE /N
mEBHROERTK) and was primarily responsible for the
overall management of the hospital. During his tenure, he
successfully established the largest closely allied group of
healthcare in Panyu District and became a healthcare reform
pilot unit in Guangzhou (BN T & 2 ¥ A1). From June 2011
to November 2016, he worked as the hospital superintendent
of Hexian Memorial Hospital of Panyu District, Guangzhou (&
MTEBRMAB L 2ERRE) and was primarily responsible
for the overall management of the hospital. During his
tenure, he successfully established the first closely allied
group of healthcare in Guangzhou, created a zone for the
obstetric specialist hospitals in Panyu district and made the
best achievement in the history of the hospital with a record
of zero maternal death. From January 2002 to June 2011,
he served as the vice hospital superintendent of Guangzhou
Panyu Central Hospital (BMmHEF LEREIFLE) and was
primarily responsible for logistics and administration. He led the
preparatory work for establishing Panyu Central Hospital (% &
F L E8BT) throughout the entire process and won the National
Demonstration Project of Building Energy Efficiency (& El2 &
ENEE/REIEH) award. From September 1997 to January 2002,
he served as the vice principal of Panyu Nurse School (& &7
R @I &) and was primarily responsible for administration and
logistics. He won the Second Class of Quanjun Technology
Success Award (RERIEZAI =% ) in 1990. He was named
as one of the National Top Ten Hospital Superintendents in
Hospital Infrastructure Management for the year 2015 (2015
FEZHTEEREZEEMREK) in 2015, In addition, Mr.
Su is currently the executive vice chairman (F#EI&€ &) of
Guangdong Eldercare Services Association, the vice chairman
of the Hospital Building Professional Committee of Guangdong
Provincial Hospital Association (ERE B BRELEZES
BE&|EZ) and the vice chairman of the Guangdong Provincial
Association of Primary Medicine and Pharmacy (J& 3R & £ /B 58 &4
& l€ ). Mr. Su received the bachelor’s degree of Science
from Henan Normal University (AR EI#EAE2) in June 1983
and bachelor’s degree in Health Management from The Second
Military Medical University (55 —E 2 X&) in June 1997.
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EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT OF THE GROUP
AND GENERAL MANAGER OF COMMERCIAL
MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lei Yiqun, aged 39, is the executive vice president of
the Group and responsible for the management of the
daily operation of the commercial operation and property
management business. Mr. Lei joined the Group on 27
February 2015 and was appointed as a Director of our certain
subsidiaries. Prior to joining the Group, from February 2010 to
January 2013, he worked at Wuxi Longhu Real Estate Company
Limited (E5EMEBZEER A A) and Wanda Commercial
Management Company Limited (BEmHEETERR QA
where he was responsible for the headquarters commercial
tenant sourcing and operation management business. Mr. Lei
received a bachelor’'s degree in Business Administration from
the Technical College of Zhuzhou (#M T %) in the PRC in
June 2005 and a master’s degree in Business Administration
in the Asia Metropolitan University in Malaysia in December
2017. Mr. Lei was granted the Commercial Real Estate Awards
as Outstanding Leader for the year 2017-2018 (ZE—+tE_-%F
— \EEEEESBHES A YWE) by Winshang.com (mE#) in
April 2018. He was awarded the Outstanding Business Leader
in Guangdong for the 40th Anniversary of Reform and Opening
Up from 1978 to 2018 (—hENZEZZT— \FHERMKM+
FEREERELDAY). In July 2019, Mr. Lei was awarded the
2019 New Era Business Leadership Award (2019%7 5 X 75 2£ 48 4
#%) by China Finance Summit (FBEIEI4£1&€). He was awarded
2019 China Commercial Real Estate Outstanding Professional
Manager by Guandian Index Academy (BB EHAT%EER) in
2019. Mr. Lei was named as Leadership Figure of Commercial
Real Estate Asia Cup Role Model by Mall China in September
2019
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Profile of Senior Management and Company Secretary

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER AND GENERAL
MANAGER OF CAPITAL OPERATION CENTER
Mr. Xu Xiaodong, aged 36, is the chief financial officer and
general manager of Capital Operation Center of the Group and
responsible for the financial management and capital operation
of the Group. Mr. Xu joined the Group on 28 November 2016
and was appointed as a Director of our certain subsidiaries.
Prior to joining the Group, he worked as a chief financial officer
of Kingdee Medical Software Technology Company Limited (&
WEBERGEARAF]), a company principally engaged in
the provision of internet medical software development and
information technology consultancy services, where he was
primarily responsible for the overall capital markets operation
and financial management from June 2016 to November
2016; and an associate at investment banking division in
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited,
one of the leading banks in Hong Kong in the provision of
comprehensive range of banking and related financial services,
where he was primarily responsible for serving corporate clients
in terms of capital market and financial advisory business from
June 2010 to October 2014. Mr. Xu received a bachelor’s
degree in Science from The London School of Economics and
Political Science in the University of London in the United
Kingdom in July 2007.

CAMPANY SECRETARY AND AUTHORISED
REPRESENTATIVE

Ms. Chak Wai Ting was appointed as the company secretary
and authorised representative of the Company on 30 June
2019 and is responsible for matters in relation to reporting
and disclosure of the Company in accordance with the Listing
Rules. She holds a bachelor’s degree in Business Administration
in Corporate Administration from The Open University of Hong
Kong. Ms. Chak is a fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators in the United Kingdom. She has extensive
experience in corporate governance and company secretarial
matters. From July 2016 to October 2018, Ms. Chak was the
company secretary of Colour Life Services Group Co., Limited
whose shares have been listed on the stock exchange (Stock
Code: 1778).
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Project Overview
HEEBE

COMMERCIAL OPERATIONAL PROJECTS

.

GUANGZHOU PANYU AOYUAN PLAZA

Guangzhou Panyu Aoyuan Plaza, which is located at
No. 281 Fude Road, Qiao Nan Street, Panyu District,
Guangzhou, Guangdong province (BER&EE/MH
EHERBEHEEEEK281%), commenced operation
on 21 December 2012. It is a regional international
voguish shopping center comprising shopping, leisure,
entertainment, food and beverage and culture and
arts features, with a contracted area of approximately
140,000 sqg.m.. Its operational services include a large-
scale shopping center, themed retail street and serviced
apartments, which brings together the major brands
such as China Resources Vanguard, Tao Heung, Hidilao,
ADIDAS SWC, ZARA, H&M, Uniqglo, Yes Fitness, Jiu Mao
Jiu, Starbucks, and Pizza Hut etc.

\

Guangzhou Panyu Aoyuan Plaza B/ &8 EEES

2.

ZHUHAI AOYUAN PLAZA

Zhuhai Aoyuan Plaza, which is located at No. 237 Mei Jie
Road, Xiangzhou District, Zhuhai, Guangdong Province (&
RBEKETEMNRERIE2375%), commenced operation on
21 July 2018. It is a regional international voguish shopping
centre comprising shopping, leisure, entertainment,
food and beverage and cultures and arts features, with
a contracted area of approximately 69,000 sq.m.. Its
operational services include a large-scale shopping center,
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HEBARE
themed retail street and serviced apartments, which brings EH o ttREKE - 2REREEE
together the major brands such as Aeon Supermarket, CC 5= - fEliiE - Mjstyle - UR - EFH

Cinema City (CC5¥), Century Star Skating Rink (ft4 2 2=l
7K35), Pro Go (B E#2), CA SEGA, Lao Maque (FEE),

Mijstyle, UR, and MY GYM (& #8) etc.
— \ e T (

.-

Zhuhai Aoyuan Plaza ¥/ R EE %

3. JIANGMEN AOYUAN PLAZA 3. IMRERS
This property, which is located at the junction of Fengle IFRERESURERE L F'EJW%EI
Road and Fazhan Avenue in Pengjiang District, Jiangmen, EERANBEHEEERIAE - KX2017
Guangdong Province (BRAIFIMET R E K@ H F12R238H%X - %BEH IETiZ%%i
@R X FER), commenced operation on 23 December JE%W%E%E{%D T BT HVEME A /105,000
2017. It is a family entertainment center, which is FHK - BERBEERREEYF
operated as a large-scale shopping centre, with a e E%Iﬁuuﬁiﬁﬁ%ﬁiﬁgﬁ i
contracted area of approximately 105,000 sg.m., which AU %Eﬁ%ﬁﬁ*mﬂ - EAREAE -
brings together the brands such as Xinhua Bookstore, EET  Nmis BXREBM M
Dadi Cinema, CA SEGA Wonder Forest, Hutaoli (#8#k i - Mjstyle & o

#8), Burger King, Aishang Fitness (3 &% &), Chain Mart,
AMASS, and Mjstyle, etc..

T
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FOSHAN SHISHAN AOYUAN PLAZA

Foshan Aoyuan Plaza, which is located at the junction
of Keji Road and Boai Road in Shishan Town, Nanhai
District, Foshan (f# L7811 #EEZ K EBHR
X IERR), commenced operation on 23 December
2018. It is a community children’s park with leisure,
food and beverage and culture and arts features, with
a contracted area of approximately 47,000 sq.m.. It
is operated as a semi-open commercial block, which
brings together the major brands such as Haohaoduo
Supermarket (4F4F% #87H), Burger King, Yang Xiao Xian
(#/VE), MINISO, Tang Xiang (% £), China Gold (fE =
%), Heilan Home, and De Lan Qi Shi ({Z# & +) etc.

\

Foshan Shishan Aoyuan Plaza # LU BEE S

PANLONG AOYUAN PLAZA

Panlong Aoyuan Plaza, which is located at No. 2 Panjin
Road, Jiulong Town, Jiulongpo District, Chongging (&
BENEEENEEESE25), commenced operation
on 30 December 2017. It is a voguish shopping center
featuring themed dining, entertainment and fashion
zones with a contracted area of approximately 50,000
sg.m., which provides all-round themed experience. It is
operated as a large-scale shopping center, retail street,
offices and business serviced apartments, which brings
together the major brands such as Wanda Cinema City
(FBEZ ), COCOKTV, Yonghui Superstores (Gk¥EFB™),
Healthpark (8)kfi2 &), KFC, Luckin Coffee, Adidas, and
Nike etc.
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Panlong Aoyuan Plaza #&#E R E &5

6. CHONGQING CHAYUAN AOYUANPLAZA 6. EBEBZEREES
Chongging Chayuan Aoyuan Plaza, which is located BEERERBEESNAREETERRE
at No. 159 Chayuan Tianwen Avenue, Nanan District, XE KX KE1595 - R2018F6
Chongqing (EEMEAEEBABR R AKE1595), this A30BRA¥ - ZBETEMNAEEY
property, commenced operation on 30 June 2018. It is B KBE - REHFLEN 8 B
operated as a one-stop lifestyle shopping center, with BEmFEXENEN — WX EEE
shopping, food and beverage, leisure and children’s WML FTHEBELR B41,000F 75
facilities and covers the whole Nanan District of Chayuan K BERBEERAKREEY S /L\ .
New City. It comprises a large-scale shopping center, MEHRBEABABAZTAEMNX -
retail street and business serviced apartments with a HFrhmBaxE#Em - 577[?&%
contracted area of approximately 41,000 sq.m.. It brings COCOKTV - HEZHE - %#—#Hﬁm
together the major brands such as Yonghui Superstores, BE-Eh EFHEE - EBR -
Healthpark, COCOKTV, Suning.com, Meters/bonwe (/& B MNESE -

IKfEH), Hotwind (#4/&), Huawei, Tongnian Dadang
(BFHEHFE), Starbucks, McDonald’s, and Country Style
Cooking etc.

— \ Wpw g T
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HEFEI AOYUAN CITY PLAZA

Hefei Aoyuan City Plaza, which is located at the
intersection of Changjiang West Road and Shufeng
Road in Shushan District, Hefei, commenced operation
on 28 September 2019. It is an experiential street
for community, parents and children with shopping,
leisure, entertainment, food and beverage, and parent-
child education options with a contracted area of
approximately 45,900 sq.m.. The operational services
comprise large-scale residential buildings, a themed
subway station retail street, service apartments, etc.,
It brings together the major brands such as Yonghui
Superstores (KIEFE™), King Sport Gym (& L& 5),
Ji Hotel (&Z)fJE), McDonald's, Watsons, Xiangtianxia
Hotpot (BAX T Aif), Snack Hou Xiang (/NEEH),
KIDONE Children’s Playground (KIDONE 5 Z £4[&]), ABIE
American Baby International English (£ B 5% 38), and
Youbetter International Children’s Education Group (12
HERH) etc.

Hefei Aoyuan City Plaza & BB B4 Th At
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SHAOGUAN AOYUAN CULTURAL
TOURISM CITY

Shaoguan Aoyuan Cultural Tourism City, which is located
at 493 Huimin North Road, Wujiang District, Shaoguan,
commenced operation on 28 September 2017. It a
cultural tourism complex comprising residential buildings
with river and mountain views, a retail street, leisure
sports projects, special inns, etc, with a contracted area
of approximately 44,000 sg.m.. Its operational services
include a catering plaza with local catering brands and
experiences. It brings together the major brands such as
Jiangnan Water Village (L& 7K%5), Longju Jianghu (BB
ST#), Wu Laocu (=:#8), Song Ge Oil Prawns (fAE}/d
MK IR), Sour Bamboo Beef Shank (BA&4F &), Fenghui
Restaurant (BLEERJT), Sen Yan Restaurant (R B FT),
Tandazui Hunan Cuisine (B AEMEX), 7 Coffee (7Yl
M), Yijiang Water Dragon Restaurant (—/I/KEESREEE),
Guangli Yinhe Art Training Center (&F|$R & Zliss 3|
L), Gewu Mingdao Chinese Learning Experience Center

Project Overview
HEHBE
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(1& ¥R 8 M2 BEER£E), and Liangyijian Wushu Exchange
Center (52— RIEMT R L) etc.
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PROPERTY MANAGEMENT PROJECTS PETHIFH

1. AOYUAN INTERNATIONAL CENTRE 1. BREEBKPL

Aoyuan International Center, which is located at BERRAOZNERSEMT o
the heart of Wanbo's central business district, is a BEEHEEGRACBDEERREKE
commercial integrated CBD in the south of a major RO E - %IER RS EE341,300
arterial route of Guangzhou City, Guangdong Province, FHAIHEFTEBEREER - B
it has a service area of 341,300 sq.m.. It is a new ERBAE REXEERS - 181
benchmark for non-residential projects, it features EBERRLE  BELCRBEERETDT
a carefully selected service staff and professional FAEEEEE SRS EEZELCRS
standardised commercial and office service systems from BE WHREVERSmELEE -

different dimensions such as professional concierges
and one-to-one butlers, strengthening the branding of

Aoyuan Property’s commercial and office services.
I \g \ \ ﬂ

Aoyuan International Centre E2E B KA L

\
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PANYU OLYMPIC GARDEN

Panyu Olympic Garden, which is located in the south
of Qiaonan Street, Panyu District, Guangzhou, is a
standardised and mature community within Panyu
district offering a villa area, CEO residences, a
championship city, cultural promenade, sports city,
etc, and integrates housing, shops, sports and leisure,
with a service area of 289,500 sq.m.. The property is
actively innovating in community service management
by establishing the community party committee with
non-public enterprise as the main body — the first one
in Guangdong Province, and the second one in China.
The community party committee organises existing
party members’ active participation in community
management and service, and forms a new model of
community management integrated with the community
Party Committee, developers, neighborhood committees,
property management companies, property owner
committees and community life service organizations
(‘Six in One’) through party committees and party
building. On 1 July 2013, the Panyu Community Party
was established with a comprehensive service platform
to provide residents with one-stop services and integrate
party building resources at all levels into the community.
The platform’s ancillary facilities include a sports city, a
fitness room, a tennis and badminton court, a swimming
pool, a table tennis room, a children’s playground, an art
room, a fitness facility, a basketball court, and electric
vehicles in the district.

o
‘q

Panyu Olympic Garden & & BRI 5% {EE
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LUOGANG AOYUAN PLAZA

Luogang Aoyuan Plaza, which is located to the west
of Kaichuang Avenue and to the south of Xiangxue
Avenue in Huangpu District, Guangzhou has a service
area of 414,688 sq.m.. The property launched a "Health
Butler’ model for housekeeping services, employing
nutritionists, physicians and other experts to train and
assess property staff. Apart from handling routine health
requirements and emergency first aid, ‘Health Butlers’
also maintain health database of the owners in the
community, providing services such as health reminders
and inquiries, chronic disease management, regular
physical examinations and health management. 'Health
Butlers’ also collaborate with Aoyuan TCM to provide
regular free medical consultations and online medical
services, health knowledge lectures and health product

ERRERS

EERERISLREMNTEHRERFE
RNENA BERENE ZEBEER
BHETE414,688F 7K BEEER
R FHTEERER]ER - BB
EEBBYR FHEBMEERAY
EABETHEIUVEZRE - LB
BREZHNIBRRERIBRTEESK
MHB - ERREERTFESKE &
BRTEEFEVEREER  RERE
RRELEHR BUHERER T8
By EREEREERB -IRREXR]
3% HEETETHRARBERESR
DR BREMBAEE REEEMB
%’i WMEBERBSE  URIIBRE
AR REBREFRRREEM -

campaigns. They will also maintain a Yue Health Service

Station (1##2FE AR L) to monitor the well-being of
community owners.

-~ S

Luogang Aoyuan Plaza % [ R E & %

70  Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2019



Project Overview

HEHBE
4. AOYUAN YINGDE XINHUA TOWN 4. BREZEBTBOLIEDE
Auyuan Yingde Xinhua Town is located at Honggiao BEERLNENDBUREREBEERET
Community, Ying Hong Town, Yingde, Qingyuan, RETMRAIEAG - ZBERBEE
Guangdong Province. The property has a service area 130,000 F 752K » W2 MR % DA [ 1% AR 75
of 130,000 sq.m.. It features a ‘Yue Service Model’ B A=l REFPIRHEETE  BE
to ensure convenient and quality property services to B E R o

owners.

e o o

3 (

1

Aoyuan Yingde Xinhua Town B E &L IE/NE

5. ZHUZHOU SHENNONG HEALTH TOWN 5. HM@RTELER
Zhuzhou Shennong Health Town, which is located at BN REEERMCABEAKRMT X
No. 99 Zhujiang North Road, Tianyuan District, Zhuzhou, TERIHKIIEEE 95 - ZIBERBEE
Hunan Province, has a service area of 308,000 sq.m.. 308,000 F A K KFEBEGIEHIEE
The government invested RMB19 billion to establish a 19018 #T 4 8 X R IR /& /0 89 18 R I
Shennong District comprising cultural, commercial and R - TR Rd  REPRE
residential areas. It features 'Yue Service Model’ to HEFTE  BENMERE -

provide convenient, quality property services to owners.

-
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6. CHENGDU CHENGHUA AOYUANPLAZA 6. RBYOBEREES

Chengdu Chenghua Aoyuan Plaza, which is located at B ED R 2E B R & % A 5 91 A K ED
No. 418 Cuijiadian Road, East Central, Wannianchang, TREREFSRPRERERK418
Chenghua District, Chengdu, Sichuan Province, has a St o % B EH BRI MEESS,342F 7
service area of 881,342 sq.m.. It comprises a high-rise K-RETHMES - KEKBE®E
residence, a large leisure and commercial street, high- e SERTFERBRBES -9
end offices, boutique hotels, etc. ‘Yue Service Model’ (1} ERBUAERBEER BB - WA
BR#EHE ) is a distinguishing feature of the property, and BEAETIARAC-—BItRERZERX -
'Six in One’ community party building model is launched, REPRHEFE EENOWERT -

providing convenient and quality property services to

\

business owners.

3

Chengdu Chenghua Aoyuan Plaza fX #BAk i B2 E £ 15

W A 0
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N
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7. BENGBU AOYUAN MANSION 7. HERE%ERN
Bengbu Aoyuan Mansion, which is situated beside Longzi HERRENUALZHEHETER
Lake, a national 4A scenic area in Bengbu, Anhui, has a BANSEETFHM - ZHEBRB@E
service area is 435,600 sq.m.. Highlights of the property 435,600 F 75 K » ¥ 2 AR 75 DA 4 AR 75
include its "Yue Service Model" (i lR#E ), and ‘Six BARTE  WEMLEAHET[NE—
in One’ community party building model, providing BltEEZERX  AEPREMHETE
convenient and quality property services to business BENYERT

owners.

. (

1

Bengbu Aoyuan Mansion 3% B & 2 i

8. CHONGQING AOYUAN BEYOND ERA 8. EERREBEN
Chongging Aoyuan Beyond Era, which is located at No. ERREMRRUAEETHRAER
206, Chuangzhi Road, Tongjiang Avenue, Chayuan New B % @@ KRB 2065 - %18
District, Nan‘an District, Chongging, has a service area B AR MIES540,000F H K - W ER
of 540,000 sq.m.. The property features ‘Yue Service BULATHRBER] Aok REPRE
Model’ (1ifR7#E ) to ensure convenient, quality HEFE  BEOYMERS -

property services to business owners.
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9. SHENYANG AOYUAN INTERNATIONAL 9. 5 5 R B

CITY

Shenyang Aoyuan International City, which is located & 5 BB BB 7 B =R R 5 T &
in Sujiatun District, Shenyang City, Liaoning Province, RHEE - R MEFE756,914F 5K
has a service area is 756,914 sq.m.. It provides plenty ERAgENE - kKsE 5B
of tree shade and a unique landscape that includes a K—BRS GEFNEEFTLETSR
scenic water area and fitness area, creating a full range FUKEEERE ZBENYWERY
of comfort and convenience for the owners. It features U RBEX SR WEHRAE
both the ‘Yue Service Mode’ (1} R ) and the ‘Six in TIAR—EB I dREEER AEP
One’ community party building model to provide a high RMETE  BEENMER -

standard of property services to business owners.

3

Shenyang Aoyuan International City J&F% 5 & BB
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10. SHENYANG AOYUAN EXPO PLAZA 10. ERREERRE

Shenyang Aoyuan Expo Plaza, which is located at No. BEEREERESUNESMEHRT
1218 Nanjing South Street, Sujiatun District, Shenyang, EMRMmE12185% c ZIBERBKEE
has a service area of 580,000 sq.m.. In the era of 580,000 F 5K BEEERHMERE
continuous development of large real estate, combined HE FEXHFHUBLEESHNRILE
stock trading and operation, and the mainstreaming of R EXEFPHEAZEENYERBEK
property services by business owners and developers, REBGEIREBBEHNER T  BEER
the property has embraced the new era with its ‘Yue BRETENEL  HEIHRBEE
Service Model’ (1 ARFHE ), which focuses on creating X BRHAHEER BERBAR
an ecosystem of community party building and health Do BERENERETEREE W
services and uses the “Yue Service Model” (1} fR7GHE AT REER | A2 E9WESR
) as a fulcrum and changes the quality of the property EMEE . BERE EONRELE
like buttery-change, to build a healthy and beautiful & e

community life.

— \ e
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MEDICAL BEAUTY PROJECT

MS ARORA

MS ARORA is an international light medical beauty brand.
Combining fashionable design, professional technology and
personalised service, MS ARORA is committed to becoming
the most popular light medical beauty benchmark brand for
young people. MS ARORA has five characteristics: ‘The Chinese
and Korean beauty medical giant providing more professional
beauty service’ ('"HFEEEE AN - BEFHE'"), 'Korean light
medical beauty making it easier to become more beautiful’
('BERECEEE - BETRIE"), 'Adhering to the three ‘Zheng’
to provide safer beauty service' (‘B#F= [1E] ' BEXEZZ),
“A new light luxury aesthetic space providing a more pleasant
experience to become more beautiful (‘"FTiEEEE7%R &
EE ML) and ‘Korean prestige service — a more comfortable
beauty treatment’ (‘BB FERE - FEF L), It focuses
on laser skincare, skin management, beauty injections, face
and body rejuvenation, plastic surgery, and teeth whitening
products.

ExXmH
REMEX

RENBEXE - BABERICOEEXME  BR
B EAE - RMERL - REAMELCR 8 -
ﬁjjﬁ’\ﬁkﬁ% X FREAZEBENEEXSRRM
o DR AEBIhERESAm BXEFEX]

(KRS EXFHE] [BH=TE]"
EXBELRR | [HEEXBEH BEXEM
HI TBEEERE TXEHFL] AXRE
B FIEFXE KEERE ITHER -
EREEEFEL B FEXxA]REA -

o\

1st Store: MS ARORA (Wanbo flagship store)
19005 - BRENESE (BiEEESE)
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MS ARORA has now opened three stores. The first is at
the Wanbo flagship store (4/F, Block 2, Wanbo Aoyuan
International Centre, Nancun, Panyu District, Guangzhou
City) (BMNTmEHEERENEHEREREEHO28R4%8). It offers
micro plastic surgery, dermatology, and plastic surgery. It was
opened on 15 March 2019 to serve many beauty-conscious
people. The second store is the Linhe store at Shop 106, Linhe
Middle Road 136, Tianhe District, Guangzhou City (BN X
AT [ AR AR B% 13655 10686), while the third MS ARORA store is
at Zhujiang New Town, located at Rooms 102 and 201, Third
Fangyuanyuedao, 55 Huacheng Dadao, Zhujiang New Town,
Tianhe District, Guangzhou City (&M ™R & BT ¥ TEm R
EHEAB555 2 =102  2015). The two new stores offer
micro plastic surgery and dermatology services.

2nd Store: MS ARORA (Linhe store)
25RIE  BENEZE (MAE)

3rd Store: MS ARORA (Zhujiang New Town store)
355 - AN B (BRIHEE)

o
)
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HEALTHCARE PROJECTS

AOYUAN TCM CENTRE (HEALTHCARE
PLAZA STORE)

Aoyuan TCM Centre (Healthcare Plaza store), which is
located at No.2 Business Building, 51 Fuyudong Road,
Qiaonan Street, Panyu District, Guangzhou (BE/N&
BEBEEEMEES15MEE25%E), opened on 23
December 2018. It is a Medical Insurance Designated
Medical Institution offering TCM internal medicine,
orthopedics, gynecology, pediatrics and acupuncture and
massage. The centre also features well-known veteran
local TCM practitioners and young key doctors from
Panyu District, Guangzhou, to provide integrated TCM
internal-external therapeutic services such as health
enhancement, acupuncture treatments and massage. In
addition to TCM decoction pieces, the TCM pharmacy
provides medicines with TCM features such as portable
granules and homemade joint patches.

EERHE

1.

REPEMLH (EERS
&)

BEPEMZHB(BEESE)URE
MNEEEBEHERMEKSIREmE?2
RAE - N 20184F 12 A23BF%E - %
PI2IEABRTEREN  RERE
Bg# B8 AREHtx#EsR
ERE RAREEENEERAMS
EThEREFERELS  BREEEH
B #HRAE HZEUZSEHRFTE
RINEBEEES RS o tLIN - REEK
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Aoyuan TCM Centre (Healthcare Plaza Store)
RESEMZE (BEESE)
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AOYUAN TCM CENTRE (LUOGANG
STORE)

Aoyuan TCM Centre (Luogang store), which is
located at 1/F, Block H5, Luogang Aoyuan Plaza,
Xiangxuedadaozhong, Huangpu District, Guangzhou
City, Guangzhou Province (BEREAENTEBERES KE
725k %M B EESHS®REE), opened on 23 December
2018. It is the first community Chinese medicine clinic
under Aoyuan Health, providing medical treatments with
Chinese medicine features and healthcare services to
owners and residents within a 1 km radius. The services
are provided by highly educated young doctors who
have received national standardised training. It focuses
on community families (mainly middle class users aged
28-38) and provides child healthcare as a flow entrance.
It also provides gynecological conditioning for women
and pain management for the elderly. Other services
include Chinese medicine preventative treatments,
community Chinese medicine clinic services, non-drug
therapies (external treatment method) as the highlight,
treatment of common and frequently recurring diseases
for community residents, and special services for health
stewards (family doctors) of community residents.
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The Board is pleased to report to the shareholders on the
corporate governance of the Company for the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to achieving high corporate
governance standards.

The Board believes that high corporate governance standards
are essential in providing a framework for the Group to
safeguard the interests of shareholders, enhance corporate
value, formulate its business strategies and policies, and
enhance its transparency and accountability.

The Company has adopted the principles and code provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code")
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules as the basis of
the Company’s corporate governance practices.

The Company has also in place a corporate governance
framework and has established a set of policies and
procedures based on the CG Code contained in Appendix 14
of the Listing Rules. Such policies and procedures provide the
infrastructure for enhancing the Board’s ability to implement
governance and exercise proper oversight on business
conduct and affairs of the Company.

The Board is of the view that throughout the year ended 31

December 2019, the Company has complied with all the code
provisions as set out in the CG Code.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
Model Code throughout the Year.

The Company has also established written guidelines (the
“Employees Written Guidelines”) no less exacting than the
Required Standard of Dealings for securities transactions by
employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
price-sensitive information of the Company. No incident of
non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the
employees was noted by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by an effective Board which oversees
the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance
and takes decisions objectively in the best interests of the
Company.

The Board should regularly review the contribution required
from a Director to perform his responsibilities to the
Company, and whether the Director is spending sufficient
time performing them.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Board Composition

The Board currently comprises 7 Directors, consisting of 2
executive Directors, namely Mr. Miao Sihua and Mr. Tao Yu,
2 non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Guo Zining (Chairman)
and Mr. Chen Zhibin, and 3 independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Hung Ka Hai Clement, Dr. Li Zijun and
Mr. Wang Shao.

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in
the section headed “Directors’ Biographical Information” on
pages 52 to 58 of the Annual Report for the Year.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.
Board Meetings

Regular Board meetings should be held at least four times
a year involving active participation, either in person or
through electronic means of communication, of a majority of
Directors.

During the Year, a total of 12 Board meetings were held.
The Board meetings were held to determine overall strategic
direction and objectives, approve interim and annual results,
and discuss other significant matters on the businesses and
operations of the Group. Details of the Directors’ attendance
at the Board meetings are set out under “Directors’/
Committee Members’ Attendance at Meetings” on page 95
of the Annual Report for the Year.

The Board is responsible to the shareholders for providing
effective leadership, and ensuring transparency and
accountability of the Group's operations. It sets the
Company’s values and aims at enhancing shareholders’ value.
It formulates the Group’s overall strategy and policies and
sets corporate and management targets, key operational
initiatives as well as policies on risk management pursuant to
the Group’s strategic objectives.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The position of Chairman is by Mr. Guo Zining and he
provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning and leadership of the Board. The Company does
not at present have any officer with the title “chief executive
officer”.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the Year, the Board at all times met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three Independent Non-executive Directors representing more
than one-third of the Board with one of whom possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect
of his independence in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) of the Company are appointed for a
specific term of three year commencing from the Listing Date,
subject to renewal after the expiry of their current term.

All the Directors of the Company are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the annual general meetings.
Under the Articles of Association of the Company, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the
time being, or if their number is not three of a multiple of
three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. The Company’s Articles of Association also
provides that all Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy
shall be subject to election by shareholders at the first general
meeting after appointment. The retiring Directors shall be
eligible for re-election.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions
of the Board and Management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and
control of the Company; and is collectively responsible for
directing and supervising the Company'’s affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees,
leads and provides direction to management by laying down
strategies and overseeing their implementation, monitors the
Group's operational and financial performance, and ensures
that sound internal control and risk management systems are
in place.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors, have brought a wide
spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. The independent non-executive Directors are
responsible for ensuring a high standard of regulatory
reporting of the Company and providing a balance in the
Board for bringing effective independent judgement on
corporate actions and operations. The independent non-
executive Directors will also be able to provide an impartial,
external opinion to protect the interests of our public
Shareholders.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information
of the Company and may, upon request, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’'s expenses for discharging their duties to the
Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other
offices held by them.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating
to policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control
and risk management, material transactions (in particular
those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant
operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating
to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and co-
ordinating the daily operation and management of the
Company are delegated to the management.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions
of the Board and Management (Continued)

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage
on Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal
actions taken against Directors and senior management
arising out of corporate activities. The insurance coverage
would be reviewed on an annual basis.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and
changes in order to effectively perform their responsibilities
and to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received a formal and
comprehensive induction on the first occasion of his/her
appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and full awareness
of Director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant statutory requirements. Such induction
shall be supplemented by visits to the Company’s key plant
sites and meetings with senior management of the Company.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. Internally-facilitated briefings for
Directors would be arranged and reading material on relevant
topics would be provided to Directors where appropriate.

All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training
courses at the Company’s expenses.

During the Year, the Company organised trainings for
the Directors. In addition, relevant materials including the
Directors’ duties and role and function of board committees,
the risk management and internal control, ESG reporting
and the Directors’ roles on corporate governance have been
provided to the Directors for their reference and studying.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

(Continued)

The training records of the Directors for the Year are

summarised as follows:

Directors =3

Executive Directors HITEE

Miao Sihua |EaE

Tao Yu M=

Non-Executive Directors FHHITESE

Guo Zining Iy e

Chen Zhibin PeR 75 R

Independent Non-Executive Directors BUHHTEE

Hung Ka Hai Clement HEE

Li Zijun TFE&

Wang Shao o=t

Note:

Types of Training

A: Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, briefings,
seminars, conferences, and workshops

B: Reading/Studying relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals,

magazines, and relevant publications
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company'’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are
established with specific written terms of reference which
deal clearly with their authority and duties. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee are posted on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are available
to shareholders upon request.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Hung Ka Hai Clement (as
Chairman), Dr. Li Zijun and Mr. Wang Shao. Mr. Hung Ka
Hai Clement, the chairman of the Audit Committee, with
the appropriate professional qualifications, accounting and
related financial management expertise as required under
Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The
main duties of the Audit Committee are to review and
supervise the financial reporting system, risk management
and internal control systems of the Group, oversee our audit
process and perform other duties and responsibilities as
assigned by our Board.

The Audit Committee held two meetings to review, in respect
of the Year, the interim and annual financial results and
reports and significant issues on the financial reporting,
operational and compliance controls, the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems and
internal audit function, appointment of external auditors,
engagement of non-audit services, relevant scope of works,
connected transactions and arrangements for employees to
raise concerns about possible improprieties.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors twice
without the presence of the Executive Directors.

Corporate Governance Report
LETLIRE

EEERE

EXECRU=AZEBg AEZXZES  F
MEZEeRREZEE  NEEARTFHH
FENE - ARBFBEEEFRBEAENLEY
REARZERBELE  BFREINARENER
BB BERZES FMZESRRESRZE
ENBEEETER AR F AL K58
ut o WHNR ERE R &R -

FxEAE
ENZEGH-RBUIFATESTMAR - BL
RRELE(XER) FFEREBEEREHLAE -
ERZESIREAREBAEBALTRAUE
B0 GRAAMEMNBEETZXER - 5t LM
M EEERAH

BERZEENRBESETA LTRAUFE3. 21K
RETRBMSE14AMEHEEE TR RE
XERME - BERZEENIEZBRERENN
EEAKEENMBERE RS  AREERAR
THER  EERMNERRETFRETESS
HEMEMBE REE -

ERZEGCEBITMASHE  UEHNFAFE
MAMRFENHEEENRRES  UREBYH
WE - EERERES - EREE K& A ERES
R e M AR R B BE OB AR - SN AR AZ BUED MO B
T RHFFZRFLEBIFLE  BER
HNERERAENTETRRLBEINT Y
FEAEEH

ERZEENELEBATESTHENBR T A
SMNERIZ BT B R MR8 5% o

RERBELEEEEARAR —T—NFR

87



88

Corporate Governance Report
LETLIRE

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of four members,
being three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Hung Ka Hai Clement (as Chairman), Dr. Li Zijun, Mr. Wang
Shao and one non-executive Director, namely Mr Guo Zining.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The
primary functions of the Remuneration Committee are
to establish and review the policy and structure of the
remuneration for the Directors and senior management and
make recommendations on employee benefit arrangement.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the Year to
consider the relevant matters regarding/to review and make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy and
the remuneration packages of the executive Directors.

Details of the remuneration of the senior management by
band are set out in note 10 in the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for the Year.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of four members,
being one non-executive Director, namely Mr Guo Zining (as
Chairman) and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Hung Ka Hai Clement, Dr. Li Zijun, Mr. Wang
Shao.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee are to

make recommendations to our Board on the appointment and
removal of our Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination
Committee would take into account various aspects as
well as factors concerning Board diversity as set out in the
Company’s Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee
would discuss and agree on measurable objectives for
achieving and maintaining diversity on the Board, where
necessary, and recommend them to the Board for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for
directorships, the Nomination Committee would consider
the candidate’s relevant criteria as set out in the Director
Nomination Policy that are necessary to complement the
corporate strategy and achieve Board diversity, where
appropriate, before making recommendation to the Board.

The Nomination Committee held a meeting to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board and the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors,
and to consider the qualifications of the retiring directors
standing for election at the Annual General Meeting. The
Nomination Committee considered an appropriate balance
of diverse perspectives of the Board is maintained and has
not set any measurable objective implementing the Board
diversity policy.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which
sets out the objective and approach to achieve and maintain
diversity of the Board. The Company recognises and embraces
the benefits of having a diverse Board and sees increasing
diversify at the Board level as an essential element in
maintaining the Company’s competitive advantage.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Board Diversity Policy (Continued)

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, in relation to reviewing
and assessing the Board composition, the Nomination
Committee is committed to diversifying at all levels and
will consider a number of aspects, including but not limited
to skills, knowledge, gender, age, ethnicity, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, length
of services and any other factors that the Board might
consider relevant and applicable from time to time. All Board
appointments will be made on meritocracy and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, with due regard
for the benefits of the diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, skills, age,
professional experience, knowledge, cultural, educational
background, ethnicity and length of service. The Nomination
Committee will discuss and agree annually all measurable
objectives for achieving diversity on the Board and
recommend them to the Board for adoption.

Our Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge and skills,
including overall management and strategic development,
human resources, information technology, accounting
and financial management, risk management, corporate
governance and evaluation of properties and assets. They
obtained degrees in various majors including business
administration, project management, commerce in finance
and business analytics, medicine and heating ventilation and
air conditioning engineering. We have three independent
non-executive Directors with different industry backgrounds,
representing more than one third of the members of our
Board. Furthermore, our Board has a wide range of age,
ranging from 26 years old to 64 years old. Taking into
account our existing business model and specific needs as
well as the different backgrounds of our Directors, at present,
the composition of our Board satisfies our Board Diversity
Policy.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity
Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness. The
Nomination Committee will discuss any revision that may be
required and recommend any such revisions to the Board for
consideration and approval.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Director Nomination Policy

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for
selection and appointment of Directors to the Nomination
Committee of the Company.

The Company has adopted a Director Nomination Policy
which sets out the selection criteria and process and the
Board succession planning considerations in relation to
nomination and appointment of Directors of the Company
and aims to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
Company and the continuity of the Board and appropriate
leadership at Board level.

The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for
assessing the suitability and the potential contribution to the
Board of a proposed candidate, including but not limited to
the following:

o Skills, experience and professional expertise — the
candidate should possess the skills, knowledge,
experience, qualification and professional expertise
which are relevant to the operation of the Group

o Diversity — The candidate should be considered with due
regard to the diversity perspectives set out in the Board
diversity policy of the Company

o Commitment — The candidate should be able to devote
sufficient time to attend the Board meetings and
participate in induction, training and other relevant
activities.

o Standing — the candidate must satisfy the Board and
the Stock Exchange that he/she has the character,
experience and integrity, and is able to demonstrate
a standard of competence commensurate with the
relevant position as a Director of the Company

o Independence — the candidate to be nominate as an
independent non-executive Directors must satisfy the
independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Director Nomination Policy (Continued)

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures
for the selection and appointment of new Directors and re-
election of Directors at general meetings. During the Year,
there was no change in the composition of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Director
Nomination Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out
in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the Year, the Board had reviewed the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices, training and
continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management, the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
the compliance of the Model Code and Written Employee
Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS EEHEEEEI

The attendance record of each Director at the Board and EEERFANEFELRESERNESZEES
Board Committee meetings and the general meetings of the FERARRBREAENDHEHN TR
Company held during the Year is set out in the table below:

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HESERY EHRETRE

Audit Remuneration  Nomination  Annual General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Name of Director Espg Ezg ERERE FMESE REZ8E RREAFAE
Mr. Miao Sihua HEBELE 11712 N/A TNE N/A NEMA N/A NEH 0/1
Mr. Tao Yu s A 12/12 N/A TE R N/A TER N/A TER 11
Mr. Guo Zining (Chairman) — SHEX4E(FE) 9/12 N/A 7N 11 1”1 171
Mr. Chen Zhibin PR R 5 A 8/12 N/A TNEA N/A NER N/A NiE A 7
Mr. Hung Ka Hai Clement MEELE 6/12 212 171 7 il
Dr. Li Zijun TFERE 6/12 212 n 11 0/1
Mr. Wang Shao TREE 6/12 2/2 0/1 0/1 0/1

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also FAN - BEHESTLRIIN EFENEHEME
discussed with independent non-executive Directors without ENEGNERTEHE Y FRITEETW ©
the presence of other Directors during the Year.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL RIEEERAEIER
CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk EEemRAEAERBEE LRI S X
management and internal control systems and reviewing UREEEARME - ZZEHK EE EEmIEHE
their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage MBokfpEREBBEMNER MBRERE KR
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business E’q%ﬁﬁ%;ﬁgﬂéé&{/ﬁﬂjéi@ﬁﬁ#%@”‘}ﬁ’j{%ﬁ °
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute

assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and EEerHABETERETEKRALNTIEEA
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing EEBEEEANRREERIZE  WEIE

to take in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives, and EIFABELERREEEIE LA SIS KL -
establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee, assists the Board in leading the ERLCEeHhESeEETEELE f—gf&ﬁ
management and overseeing their design, implementation HE - BELEERRERE LA X

and monitoring of the risk management and internal control

systems.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS (Continued)

The Company has developed and adopted various risk
management procedures and guidelines in relation to,
among others, corporate governance, risk evaluation and
management, anti-corruption, disclosure of information,
confidentiality and financial reporting in order to achieve
effective and efficient operations, reliable financial reporting
and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

All departments conducted internal control assessment
regularly to identify risks that potentially impact the
business of the Group and various aspects including key
operational and financial processes, regulatory compliance
and information security. Self-evaluation has been conducted
annually to confirm that control policies are properly
complied with by each department.

The management, in coordination with department heads,
assessed the likelihood of risk occurrence, provide treatment
plans, and monitor the risk management progress, and
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board on all
findings and the effectiveness of the systems.

The management has confirmed to the Board and the Audit
Committee on the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems for the Year.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well
as the management report and the internal audit findings,
reviewed the risk management and internal control systems,
including the financial, operational and compliance controls,
for the Year, and considered that such systems are effective
and adequate. The annual review also covered the financial
reporting and internal audit function and staff qualifications,
experiences and relevant resources.

The Internal Audit Department is responsible for performing
independent review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems. The Internal
Audit Department examined key issues in relation to the
accounting practices and all material controls and provided its
findings and recommendations for improvement to the Audit
Committee.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the Year.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on
pages 176 to 182.

Where appropriate, a statement from the Audit Committee
explaining its recommendation regarding the selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of external auditors
and the reasons why the Board has taken a different view
from that of the Audit Committee.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s external
auditors in respect of audit services and non-audit services
for the Year amounted to RMB2,630,000 and RMB1,370,000
respectively. An analysis of the remuneration paid to the
external auditors of the Company, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the
Year is set out below:

Service Category

Audit Services
Non-audit Services

PR 7% B

ERRS
IEEZ R 1.370
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chak Wai Ting (“Ms. Chak") is appointed as the company
secretary with effect from 30 June 2019. She is an employee
of the Company and has day-to-day knowledge of the
Company'’s affair.

For the Year, Ms. Chak has undertaken not less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training respectively in compliance
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company engages with shareholders through various
communication channels.

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, separate
resolution should be proposed for each substantially separate
issue at general meetings, including the election of individual
Director. All resolutions put forward at general meetings will
be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll
results will be posted on the websites of the Company and of
the Stock Exchange after each general meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting/Right
to call an Extraordinary General Meeting

Shareholders may request the Company to convene a
general meeting according to the provision as set out in the
Company’s Articles of Association and the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands. A copy of the Company’s Articles
of Association can be found on the Company’s website.
The procedures for shareholders to nominate a person for
election as a Director of the Company is available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website with
title “Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director of the Company”.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person
for Election as a Director of the Company

The Company also adopted a set of procedures for putting
forward proposals by the shareholders at general meetings.

Subject to the provisions of the Company’s Articles of
Association, the Company may from time to time in general
meeting by ordinary resolution elect any person to be a
Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional
Director.

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than
a Director of the Company for election as a Director at a
general meeting, he/she can deposit a written notice at the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong
for the attention of the Board and Company Secretary. The
period for lodgment of such written notice shall commence
on the day after the dispatch of the notice of general meeting
and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such general
meeting.

In order for the Company to inform shareholders of that
proposal, the written notice must state the full name of the
person proposed for election as a Director, including the
person’s biographical details as required by Rule 13.51(2) of
the Listing Rules, and be signed by the shareholder concerned
and that person indicating his/her willingness to be elected.

In order to allow the shareholders have sufficient time to
receive and consider the proposal of election of the proposed
person as a Director of the Company, shareholders are
encouraged to submit and lodge the written notice as early as
practicable.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the
Company, shareholders may send written enquiries to the
Company. The Company will not normally deal with verbal or
anonymous enquiries.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)
Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as
mentioned above to the following:

Address: Company's principal place of business in Hong
Kong at 26/F, The Cameron, No.33 Cameron
Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong (For
the attention of the Board/Company Secretary)

Fax: +852 3907 0333

Email: general@aoyuanhealthy.com

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS/INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company’s website (www.aoyuanjksh.com) provides
comprehensive and accessible news and information of
the Company to the shareholders, other stakeholders
and investors. The Company will also update the website
information from time to time to inform shareholders and
investors of the latest development of the Company.

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company is endeavours to maintain
an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in particular,
through annual general meetings and other general
meetings. At the annual general meeting, Directors (or their
delegates as appropriate) are available to meet shareholders
and answer their enquiries.

During the Year, the Company has adopted the amended and
restated Memorandum and Articles of Association pursuant
to a special resolution passed by the shareholders on 22
February 2019. Since then, the Company has not made any
changes to its Memorandum and Articles of Association.
An up-to-date version of the Company’s Memorandum and
Articles of Association is also available on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS/INVESTOR RELATIONS
(Continued)

Policies relating to Shareholders

The Company has in place a Shareholders’” Communication
Policy to ensure that shareholders’ views and concerns are
appropriately addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to
ensure its effectiveness.

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment
of dividends. The Company expects to pay a dividend
equivalent to 40% of the profit after tax upon Listing
each year. The payment and amounts of dividends, if any,
depend on the Company’s results of operations, cash flows,
financial position, statutory and regulatory restrictions on
the dividends paid by us, future prospects and other factors
which the Company considers relevant.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

%1% M ﬁga Elniﬁﬁ

INFORMATION ABOUT THIS
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

About This Report

This report is the second environmental, social and
governance (“ESG") report (the “Report”) of Aoyuan Healthy
Life Group Company Limited (“Aoyuan Healthy” or the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries are collectively
referred to as the “Group” or “we”, "our” or “us”). The
contents focus on the Group’s commitments, practices and
performance in ESG in 2019.

Scope of Reporting

This report will disclose information on ESG of the Group
from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019 (“2019", “the
Year” or the “Reporting Period”). The Report covers the
Group’s commercial operations and property management
business in mainland China, as well as the new general health
and wellness business launched during the Year. The above
three business segments comprise the entire portfolio of the
Group.

Reporting Standards

The Report follows the ESG Reporting Guide set out in
Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("HKEX") (the
“Guide"”) as the reporting standard, covering the general
disclosure and key performance indicators at different levels
in each of the environmental and social aspects listed in the
Guide. For the details of corporate governance, please refer
to the “Corporate Governance Report” in the latest annual
report of the Group.

The Group based on the four reporting principles of
materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency to prepare
and compile the Report and determine the presentation of
the content to ensure that it provides true, accurate and
valuable information to the reader.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE  HEREIRSE

Materiality
EEH

In determining the environmental, social and governance issues to be reported, we have taken into
account how they are being affected by or their impact to the operations of the Group.

HAEREERNRR L@ REARERDE BT ENAEMEENTE AR AEENTE o

We measured key performance indicators with reference to the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 27 on the Listing
Rules of the HKEX, including collecting environmental and social data from various departments, checking files, and calculating and disclosing data. The final
ESG Report was submitted to the Board of Directors for review after verified by the Management For ll standards, methods and assumptions adopted for

ca\culat\%q gerformance data (ff a%pllcab\e) please refer to the relevant sections in the Repor
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Balance

il

The Group described and disclosed its relevant data and content in an objective and fair manner, without
biasing the content of the Report due to any factors.

AEENEBNEESEEANEAEENERZRERAR - Y TERAEAERMRRBRENAR

Consistency

—H

Vision and Mission

The Group is committed to becoming a leading healthy life
service group in China. Upholding the corporate core values
of "efficiency, integrity and responsibility”, the Group aims
to achieve the brand concept of “create the joy of life” in a
sustainable way. New thinking, new ideas and Internet + Big
Data are applied in the services under the general health and
wellness business, resulting in continuously improved service
quality and bringing benefits to the environment, community
and people’s health.

The Group will do its best to work together to create an
all-round healthy life platform for the general public, and
to work with different sectors to create a harmonious,
sustainable and adaptable future.

We adopted the consistent data statistics and conversion methods for the Report as the previous year. The
relevant data of the previous year have been disclosed in the Report, enabling stakeholders to clearly
understand and meaningfully compare the ESG performance of the Group.
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All Aoyuan Healthy people foster awareness of time and effectiveness, and coupled with scientific management,
reasonable planning and coordination and high quality execution, we focus on efficiency, optimise results and
pursuit effectiveness.

%?%@/\ﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬂﬁ?ﬁéﬁﬁ CRIZHER - RENFEISS  SEENRIT - BEREE - BERR
BSRRGS

Integrity is the foundation of business, therefore Aoyuan Healthy encourages all employees to be an honest and
trustworthy person and focus on their work, take the initiative to undertake and perform due duties and obligations,
abide by the credit to fulfil commitment, and earn respect and expand the market with integrity.
MERLHVEZA  REESEF B IMARETE  MEAOEL - THRENBITEENBMEMEL -
BHMER - BITHRG - EREREEM - BEERATS

Our enterprise bears four major responsibilities, namely being responsible for customers, employees, shareholders
and the society, and guides the behaviour of employees through a culture of responsibility.

CEBEMAEME -HEFAER HEIAE HRREE HUHEEEHE  UEELREEREINTRIA

Governance Structure of Sustainable Development ABEZERELRE

The Group’s ESG structure is as follows: REENERR  HEREREBNAT :

@ Reporting
PR

Senior management
(including heads of departments)

SREERE (RESHIIEE)

Specialised working group (including
representatives of major operating
departments engaged in ESG work)

BERETHRE(BEST2LEM
SHEESGT{EHIARR)
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The Group has established a sound governance structure
for sustainable development, which consists of a tri-party
combination of the Board, departmental management and
the ESG working group. The Board, as the chief decision
maker, sets the direction for sustainable development and
is collectively responsible for the Group’s ESG matters.
The Board gains knowledge about the ESG-related risks
and opportunities faced by the Group through annual risk
assessment and internal control assessment. The Board
also regularly reviews the effectiveness of the assessment
mechanism and reviews the sustainable performance of the
Group.

Playing a management role, the senior management
formulates relevant ESG policies and procedures in line with
the development direction, objectives and priorities set by the
Board, and promotes and implements controlling measures.
In addition, the ESG working group, which comprises
representatives from various major operational departments
that are familiar with the day-to-day actual business
operations, is responsible for handling and implementing
ESG issues, including preparing ESG reports, monitoring
and recording environmental and social data, assessing and
responding to our stakeholders’ expectations, etc. The ESG
Report and related performance data have been reviewed
by the Senior Management and approved by the Board of
Directors.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group and its stakeholders from all walks of life share the
benefits and effects brought by the healthy life services, feel
for each other, and will unite as one. The Group continues
to deepen its relationship with stakeholders through various
communication channels, from which it understands the
expectations and suggestions of stakeholders and identifies
potential crisis and opportunities at an early stage, in order
to adjust its service focus and improve its business operation,
thereby creating quality services that exceed customers’
needs. Our main stakeholders include individuals and groups
that have a significant impact on the Group’s operations
or are significantly affected by the Group’s operations. The
table below briefs the engagement channels of the six major
stakeholders of the Group:
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Materiality Assessment

Due to the wide range of ESG topics, in order to comply
with the materiality principle, the Group performed an
ESG materiality assessment during the Year to identify and
determine the ESG issues that are the most important for the
Group and its stakeholders, which were specifically discussed
in this Report. In the Report, an important ESG issue refers to
the issue that may have a significant impact on the Group’s
commercial operations, property management, and general
health and wellness business, or have a practical impact on
stakeholders.

Firstly, the Group made a preliminary analysis of ESG issues
related to the Group with reference to different levels in the
environmental and social aspects specified in the Guide and
related disclosures by peers in the same industry. Then, the
Board of Directors agreed on the 29 ESG issues for the Year
after considering the overall market trends and reviewing the
views of stakeholders collected by the Group during daily
communication with stakeholders.

The Group has invited representatives of stakeholders and
senior management to conduct an external and internal
materiality assessment in the form of questionnaire, so as to
understand and prioritise the ESG issues that stakeholders
and senior management are concerned with. Then, the
Group analysed the questionnaire responses to assess the
importance of each ESG issue to the Group’s sustainable
operation and our stakeholders, and the materiality
assessment results were eventually reviewed by the senior
management to ensure appropriateness to Group's business
nature and being broadly representative.

Materiality Matrix

Based on the results of the review, the Senior Management
believed that the additional 2 ESG issues for the Group over
the previous year, namely “Adaptation to Climate Change”
and “Use of Environmentally Friendly Products and Services”,
are included for the purpose of responding to the growing
concern of the society on these environmental issues.

29 ESG issues for the Year are ranked and listed below
according to their materiality:
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Climate change and greenhouse gas emissions
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Energy consumption and efficiency
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MANAGING A HEALTHY LIFE

As a national health service platform, Aoyuan Healthy
engages in commercial operation, property management and
general health and wellness businesses. With our rich and
in-depth industry experience and professional and efficient
service capabilities, we have put in place a sound quality
management system, which makes Aoyuan Healthy to be
an outstanding health service group trusted by customers in
the market. We fully comply with regulatory requirements
related to service quality and safety, and bear the needs of
our customers and consumers in mind by providing the most
satisfactory, innovative and healthy management services.

Included in MSCI China Small Cap Index
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On 26 November 2019, the Group was included in the MSCI China Small Cap

Index after the market closed.

AREETE20195 11 A26 A& 5 AMSCIH B/ NS S (7 AR ©

The Group’s inclusion in the MSCI China Small Cap Index fully reflected that the
Group's strength and contribution was recognised by the capital market.

SEENAMSCIF B/ NS - ERDRR T EAMSHAKE

B NMEREYRA

Customer Service Quality

Aoyuan Commercial Operation Management (“Aoyuan
Commercial Management”) leverages on its core operation
philosophy of “Establish Metropolitan Centers and
Continuously Enhance Property Values”, which provides
comprehensive one-stop commercial operation management
services covering the whole process. The business covers
pre-planning, commercial design, technical consultation,
business tenant sourcing agency, preparation for business
grand opening and asset operation, etc. Aoyuan Commercial
Management endeavoured to develop two major self-owned
brands which meet development needs of market and possess
market competitiveness, namely, Aoyuan Plaza and Aoyuan
City Plaza. They have become the shopping centers with the
highest growth potential in China and successfully realised
their management output. Meanwhile, Aoyuan Commercial
Management is dedicated to become a social platform
for better living experience. Through diversified merchant
tenant cooperation, unique marketing activities, precise and
efficient service scope, it provided consumers with rich and
comprehensive experience and brands which meet the desire
for consumption.
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On the other hand, Aoyuan Property holds the level one
qualification in property service in the PRC. As a pioneer of
creating better life, Aoyuan Property has always adhered to
its service philosophy of “Treat People with All Sincerity” (AL
F3 -« AsIAR%E), brand concept of “Create Better Life” (1#4
&+ FFE4F) and core values of “Customer First, Pragmatism
and Efficiency, Responsibility and Accountability, Openness
and Health” (RFE L - BERK  HEEE  BAER) ,
and provided a full range of services covering the entire
life cycle of real estate. The business covers agency service,
management service for sales office, services for community
and community asset, and properties under our management
include high-end residence communities, commercial
complexes, apartments, office buildings, villas, tourist
towns, etc. Aoyuan Property has built the “Smart and Love
Living” (ZE4)E) 020 service platform, and put the “Yue
service mode” (H{ARFEIET) into practice. We were the
first to propose the concept of health manager, and through
the application of smart healthcare by Aoyuan Traditional
Chinese Medicine, as well as the industrial combination of
traditional Chinese medicine and the eldercare services,
we have promoted the standardised and high-standard
development of the industrial integration of Aoyuan Property
and Aoyuan Traditional Chinese Medicine. We have always
been focusing on the end consumers, taking the true value
striver as our positioning, making developers as back-to-back
partners, establishing value concept based on healthy life,
continuously innovating service mode as well as combining
traditional services with modern Internet technologies, so as
to create a healthy life for more property owners.

Guangzhou Aoyuan Property Services Company Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, has obtained the ISO
9001 quality management system certification, and we have
established a mature quality management system to enhance
our service value in all aspects to fulfil the personalised needs
of our customers and to create a high-end brand experience.
We have formulated nearly 300 service quality standards,
which cover the customer service staff’s image and etiquette,
front office and shopping mall management, environmental
management, check up and inspection, notice and label
management, health and hygiene management, security
and fire prevention, complaint handling, etc., and have
clearly defined the work procedures to ensure employees’
full understanding and execution in order to establish a
standardised professional image.
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To further improve its service standards, the Group conducts
customer interviews and customer satisfaction surveys on
a regular basis to understand the real needs of customers
and take customers as the first priority. We have also
designated customer service staff to receive and reflect
customers’ opinions. If there is any complaint, the Group
would designate the person in charge and advise the solution
according to complaint handling mechanism based on the
content and severity of the complaint as well as the complaint
channel. The designated person in charge shall give the
customers satisfactory response within a prescribed period of
time. The management also analyses cases at regular weekly
meetings, summarises the key points for improvement, and
requires related departments to follow up.

In 2019, several wholly-owned subsidiaries under the Group
obtained more than fifteen awards and recognitions', such
as:

BR HERELIHE

RE-FRITRBKE  AEEEHAEP#
THRERBHREERSHMN  NETHEER
BEELEA® RERE - RATRBEZEMANER
RBAE BRIRMREFER - MAEME
#FAEERRBRRFEERS  RERFAT
BRFER  RFREEDBEAREBH TR
BEEEREARNKEERBALTERLPREND
B -BEEEBTIMNEBAMNS LOMERD - BEK
R WESKMEEEBFIRE -

F2019FF AEEETZE2EHB T
AERMGEB T ABENBRERZRA " finm:

China Property
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Property Service

Companies in 2019
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' The “Top 10 Listed Property Service Companies in 2019” award was
conferred to Aoyuan Healthy Life Group at the Press Conference
on the Evaluation of Performance of Listed Property Companies in
China and Press Conference on the First Evaluation of Performance
of Listed Property Service Enterprises 2019 co-sponsored by China
Real Estate Association, China Property Management Institute and
China Real Estate Evaluation Center of Shanghai E-house Real Estate
R&D Institute, and organized by Beijing CRIC and Beijing CPMI
Information Technology Company Limited; the “China Property
Service Enterprises with Social Responsibility in 2019” was awarded
to Guangzhou Aoyuan Property Services Company Limited at the Press
Conference on the Evaluation of Performance of Top 100 Property
Service Enterprises in China 2019 co-organized by China Index
Academy and China Real Estate Top 10 Research Team; and the “2019
Most Investment Value Award” was conferred to Aoyuan Healthy
Life Group at the Eighth China Finance Summit co-organized by
syobserve.com with various finance and public media.

Service Enterprises
with Social
Responsibility in 2019
20199 BB
FEMEEERLE

2019 Most
Investment
Value Award
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Customer Health and Safety

We place our customers’ health and safety as our first
priority, and we make our best effort to create a comfortable
and safe office and living space. We conduct safety
management systematically, including the establishment of
the safety management leading group of Aoyuan Healthy to
coordinate safety work, establish the safety standards and
operation system, and set up the emergency mechanism to
improve work efficiency of safety management of the Group
and prevent accidents.

The safety management leading team of Aoyuan Healthy is
coordinated by the executive vice president. The members
include vice president, general manager and heads of
departments/regions/projects of various business segments.
The safety management leading team is responsible for
improving safety management system, preparing annual
security work plan, solving security flaws and difficulties,
implementing safety management measures, supervising
execution and holding relevant persons accountable for
each of the business segments of the Group by setting up
divisions.

The Group regularly invites professional and technical
personnel with relevant qualifications and experience to
check and ensure the safety of the facilities in the building
such as decoration, external wall, glass, elevators, etc. In
addition, we have set out the safety measures in details
in our service quality standards, assigning staff to inspect
the surrounding area of the property and be on duty in the
control room. We ensure that the fire service installations are
in good conditions and escape instructions are clear. We have
also established an emergency handling mechanism in which
any safety accidents are required to be immediately reported
and handled by relevant departments to ensure the safety of
the Group’s assets as well as the property owners, staff and
customers’ assets and lives.

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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Anti-corruption and Compliance
Anti-corruption and money laundering

The Group has formulated sound internal policies and
guidelines in accordance with the Anti-Corruption Law of
the People’s Republic of China to prevent all crimes such as
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering. The Group
has an independent audit and monitoring centre to monitor
and prevent potential illegal acts.

We distribute the Code of Conduct to all the new employees,
which lists out the policy and procedure on bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering and employees must comply
with laws and regulations, keep incorruptible, and be self-
discipline. Employees must sign to confirm that they have
understood and will follow the Code of Conduct before
joining the Group. Employees can learn more about anti-
corruption laws and methods to deal with illegal acts during
anti-corruption training provided by the Group on a regular
basis, preventing them from violating laws and regulations.

In addition, we have established a whistle-blowing
mechanism and grievance channel and notified employees of
the relevant reporting guidelines. Employees can report any
illegal act or potential problem to independent management
personnel so that the illegal act can be dealt with or
prevented timely. The Group continued to improve internal
control and tried to find problems through self-assessment
of internal control, routine audit, specialised audit and other
forms of audit so as to avoid risks and stop management
loopholes. We also set up an unified reporting channel and
reward for reporting, and issued Aoyuan Group Regulations
on Supervision, forming a complete supervision mechanism
and process.
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The Group strengthened the integrity of employees through
training and education. In 2019, the Group conducted
awareness education through anti-corruption cases every
quarter as it was fully aware that anti-corruption education is
important to the Group and employees. In the first quarter,
the Directors and executives were organized to visit the
integrity education base in Panyu District and learn the anti-
corruption code. In the second quarter, a lecture on honest
practising and industry cases was conducted. In the third
qguarter, officials from Guangdong Economic Investigation
Bureau were invited to give anti-corruption training to
employees of the Group. All new employees are required to
receive integrity education and sign a letter of commitment
to practise in an honest manner. Meanwhile, an educational
activity on integrity co-construction by business management
departments and merchants was conducted in the third
quarter.

The Group’s “Eight Major Regulations” ({/\KE#E)) clearly
sets out the rules for the prohibition of violation of laws and
regulations, infringement of duties, approval beyond the
authority and misappropriation of company funds. Employees
must strictly abide by the guidelines. In case of any violation,
the Group will, in accordance with the Administrative
Measures on Reward and Punishment of Employees (( & T #&
BEEPE))and the Administrative Measures on Punishment
for Violation of Regulations and Accountability ((ZRME &
EE L)), terminate the labor contracts with employees,
who violate “Eight Major Regulations”, solicit and accept
bribes and use their position to infringe rights of customers,
without paying them any economic compensation. Any
losses suffered by the Group due to misconduct would be
reimbursed at its discretion. The suspected criminal offence
would be transferred to judicial authorities in accordance
with the law.

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2019

AEBEBERBBEIEKE  BRLELETHNREE
B ARBERARESHEHRAARETINE
2 HE20195E  8FEHRERZRRD
ERHE - FFTESEBFERREHEER
o ETEEERRENRERESTES -
F_FTELETRBREERTERIETREH
F_FTERFERELEAHNBMERRABET
ETREREIEE  YERKMAFTABRET
FEEIREYE  ZERRUEAFE - F
B RMCEE=FEHRTAEBFPRREL
BHERY -

REBEMCNA\KRER)EM PP FEEER
BSENG BESLEMARLE - BT MER
RETHES MAERR AEEBKB(ET
HEEERLAIMERBERIEEIEA)Y
BRNAKER B2 W MABEZER
EEFPEIMETIMRGESHERBETINEM
WEmE e ATRITABENEERKL - ARE
HITRE - PHUEEILFEE AR EB R a A 1K
BRIE -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Compliance

Aoyuan Healthy places great emphasis on compliance with
laws and regulations, and has established an independent
legal center to monitor the legal and compliance related
matters of the Group, to ensure that the daily operation
and business decisions of the Group conform to laws and
regulations. The legal center’s responsibilities include
ensuring the soundness of the legal management system;
dealing with legal work such as business negotiations and
drafting of contracts of the Group; being responsible for
the preparation, revision and review of standard contracts;
coordinating legal affairs of the Group as well as those
reported by different business segments; organising research,
training and sharing of legal risks and issues; inspecting the
legal work of each business segment and participating in
the appraisal of legal personnel; and handling of operation
disputes and proposing solutions, etc.

Aoyuan Healthy strictly adheres to the requirements
on proper and honest business practice, prohibition on
conducting wrongful acts, such as corruption, bribery,
money laundering and generating benefits from confusing
consumers, collusion and infringement of commercial secrets,
under the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Anti-Money Laundering Law of the People’s
Republic of China and other anti-corruption related laws and
regulations. The Group has operated in accordance with the
law through the above measures. During the Year, the Group
did not have any material non-compliance with applicable
laws and regulations relating to anti-corruption.
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Data Protection and Privacy

The Group's business could access to the personal
information and privacy of customers. Therefore the
Group has adopted a number of measures to regulate the
confidentiality work of customer information. The Group can
collect personal information of the customers only with their
consent, the use of information is restricted to designated
business purpose and only accessed by authorized personnel.
The Group has archived the information of the property
owners in a repository. The archives are clearly classified and
stored in an orderly manner. The repository is locked and
monitored by a designated person. Only authorized persons
are allowed to enter the repository and archives inspection
must be recorded. Fire-resistant and moisture-proof work
of the repository would be performed and sundries would
be removed to ensure the security and confidentiality of the
information of the property owners. The Group also has an
encrypted data system in place and the access rights of the
staff are classified according to the business needs to ensure
that there is no inappropriate access or use of customer
information.

We also strictly regulate the management of key, mail
and package receipts, access card dealing procedures
and registration. Employees must follow the guidelines
and disciplinary punishment may be taken against those
in violation of regulations. In addition, we provide the
information protection training to our employees in order to
ensure that they understand the importance of protecting
personal information and privacy and our employees are
required to sign a confidentiality agreement to undertake the
responsibility of not to disclose clients’ personal information.

Advertisement and Labelling

Aoyuan Healthy holds sincerity, truth and accuracy as the
operating principles of marketing and sales. The Group
refuses to mislead the customers or consumers with false
or exaggerated advertisement. The marketing and branding
department of the Group strictly monitors the promotion
information and materials. The information and materials
would be issued to the public upon approval, which
is to ensure that the correct information is effectively
presented. Apart from this, the Group’s sales department
has also established stringent sales guidelines on providing
customers with compliant and lawful service descriptions
and information, so as to safeguard customers’ legitimate
interests.
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The Group strictly abides by the Property Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the General Provisions of the Civil Law of
the People’'s Republic of China and the laws and regulations
relating to other property and commercial management
services, which require the protection of the personal rights,
personal safety, property rights, privacy and intellectual
property rights of consumers, customers and the public. The
Group provides high-quality services in accordance with the
law to enable customers to enjoy the most secure and reliable
healthy lifestyle platform through the above measures.
During the Year, the Group did not have any material non-
compliance with applicable laws and regulations relating to
service quality and responsibility.

Environmental and Social Risk Management of
Supply Chain

As the major operating partners of the Group, the suppliers have
a direct impact on the service level of the Group. The Group
appointed suppliers through exclusive procurement, direct
procurement, quotation, price comparison, and competitive
bidding. The Group has established a documented bidding
management system and a standard operation procedure for
cost management to supervise every workflow during tendering,
which can ensure a prudent screening and evaluation process,
maintain a high standard of business ethics, and help the Group
hires outstanding partners that are willing to undertake the
environmental and social responsibility.

The Group selected cooperative suppliers in strict accordance
with the principles of fairness and justice, the bidding
management system and the standard operation procedure
for cost management. The Group also considers the
environmental performance of suppliers and give priority
to suppliers with environmental management system
certification or have advanced performance in environmental
protection. Furthermore, we review the background
information of suppliers every six months and grade our
suppliers’ quality of goods and services. The Group has
established a complete supplier database and regularly
updates suppliers’ information and reviews the results.
We enter into the strategic contracts with suppliers which
obtained high rating for two consecutive years to ensure
long-term cooperation. To ensure the service quality of the
Group, disqualified suppliers would be removed from the
approved supplier list.
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Use of Environmentally Friendly Products and Services

The Group implemented prior control before tendering.
When the Group confirmed schemes and checklists through
the internal scheme approval and email approval process,
each professional department would give professional
advice on the schemes and checklists with consideration on
environmentally friendly and energy-saving products in order
to avoid secondary pollution to the environment. In terms of
construction engineering, the Group improved construction
schemes, formulated safety precautions to ensure safe
construction as well as reducing environmental pollution,
and to ensure the disposal of construction waste are in
accordance with national regulations. After the schemes and
checklists were approved, the Group organised professional
departments to inspect the suppliers on field or through
the Internet to ensure that the selected partners meet the
requirements of the Group and are willing to undertake the
environmental and social responsibility.

The Group strictly reviewed the tendering schemes and
checklists, specified the construction process, material
quality, material brand and model, etc. in the contract. The
performing suppliers must comply with all the requirements
of the Group’s schemes and checklists. The Group would
check and accept the services provided by suppliers and
evaluate their fulfilment of contracts. If violating the contents
of the contract checklists, the performing suppliers would
be required to re-construct or replace products. If the
performing suppliers fail to fulfill the requirements of the
contract checklists, payment would be deducted according to
the contract list price.

Intellectual Property Rights

Aoyuan Healthy values and protects intellectual property
rights. As a high-end boutique enterprise, the Group
possesses its own brand and trademark, and has registered
domain name and brand logo to maintain its authoritative
image and consistency, and help us to gain the recognition
of the Group from the public effectively. In addition, we
clearly define the Group’s and private assets, and state in
our staff handbook that employees are required to properly
protect the Group’s confidential information and respect
the achievements of the research and development of the
creators, and prohibited from any forms of unauthorized
use, misappropriation or other infringement of intellectual
property rights.

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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CONTRIBUTION TO THE HEALTHY
COMMUNITY

Social Donations and Activities

The Group is deeply aware of corporate social responsibility
and is committed to giving back to the community through
charitable donations and public welfare activities, hoping
to improve the quality of life of citizens, bring people closer
and build a harmonious neighbourhood. The Group has set
up public welfare associations, business party branches,
Aoyuan Stage of Splendor, Aoyuan community, the first
Aoyue Day and other programs to reach out to the masses,
organized different activities to help poor families, promoted
youth education and provided financial assistance to the
community. The Group aims to build an integrated healthy
life platform. Therefore, we set up Chinese medicine stores in
communities and business districts to promote social mutual
support and build a healthy society.
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Case Study: Aoyue Day

Aoyue Day is an exclusive community festival for owners of
Aoyuan Property. To celebrate the festival, Aoyuan Property
Community holds a series of two-month activities from
September to November each year, creating a convenient,
healthy, and pleasant community living atmosphere and
meeting the owners’ expectations for a better life.

During the Year, Aoyue Day has lasted for 3 months,
consisting of three thematic chapters,”September +
Health”, “October + Fashion” and “November + Colour”.

All Aoyuan communities across the country have organised
more than 100 community culture activities around various
thematic chapters, including evening parties, banquets,
fun games, waste sorting volunteer activities, and poverty
alleviation activities with a total of more than 100,000
people participated.

In the future, Aoyue Day will continue to actively explore
various new service modes to create a better community
healthcare environment for the owners of Aoyuan.
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In addition to offer the development opportunities to the
younger generation and the improvement of rural poverty,
the public welfare activities organized by the Group also
include the construction of community culture. Over the
years, the Panyu Community Party Committee of the
Group devotes itself to build a harmonious community by
holding five major activities, namely the Aged Day, the
Neighborhood’s Day, the Children’s Day, the Volunteers’
Day and the Cultural and Art Festival, to promote the
construction of harmonious community, improve the sense
of belonging of citizens among community, and strengthen
their neighbor relationships. The Panyu Community was
awarded by the Ministry of Civil Affairs as a model for the
construction of a harmonious community in China, and
has been selected as the China intelligence community
leader, the “Six Good” safe and harmonious community in
Guangdong, the Livable Community in Guangdong Province,
the Charity Community in Guangzhou City, the Happy
Community in Guangzhou City, Top Ten Charming District
of Guangzhou City, the Civilized District in Guangzhou, the
Inclusive Community Demonstration area in Guangzhou, and
the first batch of Five-star Security Standards Community in
Guangzhou Panyu District and other honorary titles.

The Group actively implemented corporate social
responsibility, participated in the public welfare
undertakings to serve the society through organizing public
welfare social activities, and contributed to building a
harmonious society.
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The Group launched a charity event themed
with “With Your Childhood” to warmly
convey love and hope. In addition to giving
health education, the Group donated
approximately RMB12,500 of money and
materials including 130 breakfast cups,
65 toothbrushes, 65 sets of stationery,
200 books and RMB5,000 scholarship to
Huangge Primary School in Nansha District,
Guangzhou City.
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The Group organised an autism care activity,
widely popularizing autism-related knowledge
to the society and improving the public
understanding and concern about autistic
patients. Meanwhile, an activity themed
with harmony between parent and children
was held to provide care and warmth for 53
families living with autism. Moreover, the
Group donated about RMB182,000 to its
employees in need.
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Zhuhai Aoyuan Plaza operated by the
Group donated a student grant of
RMB3,000 to Qianshan Women and
Children Charity Development Fund “Yi
Dream™”.
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The Group promoted its first Consumption-
based Poverty Alleviation Campaign & Party
Building Public Welfare Activity in Aoyuan
communities, allowing owners to easily
participate in poverty alleviation. Using the
poverty alleviation action “buying some
home”, the Group encouraged owners to help
impoverished mountainous areas to alleviate
poverty by means of “buying instead of
donating”. This event is expected to last from
22 August 2019 to December 2020 and has
sold more than 6,948 catties of agricultural
products for impoverished mountainous areas
as of 28 October.
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In the “Power of the Community”
Consumption-based Poverty Alleviation
CampaigneTrip to Guangdong
Communities (Guangzhou Station) &
Daixian E-commerce Targeted Poverty
Alleviation China Campaign, the Group
has achieved top three by contributions
to consumption-based poverty alleviation
in Guangzhou and won “Pioneer Award
for Poverty Alleviation and Agriculture
Assistance”.

The Group and China Aoyuan, joined hands
with Nanfang Daily, Southcn.com and
Nanfang Plus to host the Aoyuan “Building
Dream e Public Welfare Action-Caring for
the Elderly e Going Together”, recording
the past years of strugglers and calling for
the society to pay attention to the lives of
the elderly.

RItEONE ] HEKERBREFIRLT
e ERHEBEET(EMY)  BEREE
HBEKRERHTESHFR - XEEAEIM

BEHEREEMBERAIZOKE  £8
[TKEB)ELEEE] -

AEBHEPEREHBRAE AR @A
IS rﬁﬁ+/J1£ﬂﬂo1&@EFﬁJ%-Fé

BITI-[EAERE « FRRTIEZEETER
mEd BEACHKEMENEERA W
BHEMIRELR -

2019
December

2019
=

At the second conference of the China
Accurate Poverty Alleviation Community
Union, Guangzhou Aoyuan City World
Community managed by the Group won the
title “Consumption-based Poverty Alleviation
Model Community” by selling 5,550 catties of
poverty alleviation products through poverty
alleviation activities.

The Group also cooperated with China
Aoyuan to hold a charity donation activity in
Southeast Primary School, Shaxi Ancient Town,
Jianchuan, Dali, Yunnan and donated teaching
equipment such as water purifiers, computers,
and reference books, these greatly improved
the school’s hardware facilities.
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Fight against the Novel Coronavirus Pneumonia

Since the outbreak of the novel coronavirus pneumonia
epidemic in January 2020, the Group highly values the
protection and interests of merchants and consumers.

In order to minimise the negative impact of the epidemic on
the merchants, the Group hereby announced that, the free
rental policy was implemented on all tenants in the projects
under management of the Group, such as Aoyuan Plaza and
Aoyuan City Plaza, for 15 consecutive days (from 25 January
2020 to 8 February); and communicated with the owners to
reach the consensus for all tenants of the franchise light asset
project, the free rental policy will be executed the same for
15 consecutive days (from 25 January 2020 to 8 February).

In addition, on the basis of ensuring safety, in order to ensure
each business segment could resume business and production
in an orderly manner, under the circumstance of stagnant
offline marketing channels, the Group has actively innovated
and explored online marketing methods, Aoyuan Plaza in
various regions together with the tenants have launched
services such as “online shopping” and “secure takeaway” to
satisfy the customers’ shopping needs. For tenants involving
in the livelihood security industry such as supermarkets, on
the basis of ensuring safety protection, to advocate three
major principles of “no price increase, no stock shortage and
no closing”. Apart from the zero-touch shopping channel
launched by the business operation segment, the general
health business segment has actively developed new products
and promoted online marketing while carrying out activities
such as online pubicity and continuing education for elderly.

We also did not loosen the internal management of the
Group. The Group has formulated the “Prevention and
Control Manual 2.0” against the novel coronavirus pneumonia
in accordance with the National Emergency Management
Department Training Centre, the content includes guidance
for employees on the way to work, working, dining, on the
way home, exercising, prevention, protection, spreading and
monitoring, requires all employees to complete the learning
through attendance monitoring. Lastly, the employees may
obtain the latest information against the epidemic by following
the Wechat public account of “Human Resources of Aoyuan
Healthy Life Group Company Limited”, the employees can
get the telephone psychological counseling services through
the psychological hotline provided by Aoyuan Healthy, they
can also consult the solutions of psychological anxiety during
the epidemic from psychologist for themselves, families and
relatives.

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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OFFERING HEALTHY EMPLOYMENT

The success of Aoyuan Healthy relied on the efforts,
dedication and contribution of each employee,
whether front-line operation employee or manager of
the middle and back office, is regarded as the most
important human resources treasure of the Group.
The Group has established a comprehensive human
resources policy. The Group is committed to providing
a united, harmonious, respectful, happy and valuable
working environment, enabling employees to achieve
self-improvement and healthy development, and strive
for excellence together with the Group.

Employee Health and Safety

As a human resources-oriented large property and
commercial services group, staff’s health and safety
are important to us. The Group provides training
on work safety to new employees and occupational
safety education to incumbent employees. The
occupational safety guidelines have included in
staff handbook and established the occupational
safety management policy in staff handbook which
formulated the division of duties and responsibilities
of the safety management personnel to ensure proper
implementation of safety work which is to prevent and
guard against accidents.

The annual safety duties plan of the Group covers
daily fire safety and health work. We hold fire drills
every year to make sure our employees are familiar
with proper emergency response, emergency exits
and fire passages. The Group also requires employees
to keep the workplace, storage, parking lots and
other areas clean and ensure that the objects are
properly in place to avoid blocking the fire passages.
Devices, pipes and machinery with potential hazards
are subject to regular inspection and maintenance.
In addition, due to the Group’s concerns on the
physical and mental well-being of our employees, we
organize physical examinations for our employees,
and advocate the correct working postures and the
stretching exercise to avoid occupational disease
issues caused by repeated processes.
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The number of lost days during the year due to work-related
injuries was 1,167 days?. We have maintained labor insurance,
work-related injury insurance and commercial insurance for
our employees, including but not limited to group accident
insurance, employer liability insurance. In case of work-related
accidents, the insurance department would provide assistance
to employees to support employees’ recovery and treatment and
other living expenses as soon as possible.

Aoyuan Healthy strictly complies with the Labor Law of the
People’s Republic of China and other laws and regulations
relating to occupational health and safety, which require
the enterprises to establish and improve its workplace safety
and hygiene system, to strictly follow the national safety
rules and standards, and provide employees with education
on workplace safety and health. The Group safeguards
the health and safety of its employees through the above
measures. During the Year, the Group did not have any
material non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations
relating to occupational health and safety.

RFE -

AEERTIEMBRNIIEBEA1,167K2-
REBDAEIBEL TRE  LERR LS
¥RBR(2SETRANEEENIG  BEE
TR  -BEBEIGEEWELE  REIMESHR
RAEEBTREEY UITEETINERRER
HMEERY -

RERFEERET(PEARKMBELEZHE) R
HiBERBELLZE2MEBERER  EREXR
CEEINTETI SN2 REERS
BERBRERZNZE2RAUREE  THESE
TIESMEZE2EEHES - AKEBRB LM
Bt REETIMNERERRZE  REAFER
AEEYEEIMNERERBRERRELR L2
BV A RIEM -

IR #2.0

122

Case Study: Yue Service 2.0 &

Aoyuan Property has upgraded to

“Joy Service 2.0"” from the 1.0 version, aiming to build a happy living

ecosystem in Aoyuan Community focusing on community party building and health services.

In addition to community services, Aoyuan Property has also launched a “healthy steward” mode within the
steward service. The “health steward” that are trained by experts in nutrition science, professional physicians
and other experts invited by the Group and certified through rigorous assessment. The “health steward” must
master first-aid knowledge and can complete daily emergency treatment timely, thereby improving the health
knowledge level of employees and enhancing the overall health and safety awareness of the enterprise and all

communities.
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2 The work-related injuries this year included several traffic accidents
which caused fractures to our staff and resulted in a total of 400 lost
days. As the car owners of the other party in these traffic accidents
were held liable, we felt deeply regretted to the injured staff, we
assisted the staff to deal with the follow-up matters of the injury
immediately, and organise the visit with sympathy messages.
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Compensation and Welfare

The Group has established policies and procedure in strict
accordance with the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of
China to ensure that employees are provided with proper
compensation and benefits. In addition, in order to improve
the sense of belonging of employees. The employees of the
Group are entitled to better salaries and benefits than that
offered in the market. The Group determines the fixed salary
with reference to industry compensation benchmarks, the
Company’s operating conditions and the standard of position
and grade. The bonuses on a quarterly and annual basis are
granted to employees based on the individual and company
performance to ensure the compensation system is attractive
and effective in rewarding employees and motivating
them to lead the Group to continuous improvement. In
addition to salary, employees are also entitled to statutory
benefits such as provident fund, social insurance, physical
examination, etc., and additional company benefits, such as
meal allowance, transportation allowance, communication
allowance, accommodation and other welfare subsidies.

Recruitment, Promotion and Dismissal

Aoyuan Healthy hopes to attract professionals with the same
philosophy as that of our Group, and to build an outstanding
team with high quality and efficiency. The Group has
established its recruitment management system to identify
competent talent through recruitment channels such as
internet, talent exchange market, agency firms and graduates
recruiting, and developed a detailed background survey and
assessment standards guidelines to ensure the matching of
job positions and effectively recruit professionals to achieve
the strategic goal of the Group’s operation. Every staff has
at least two career development paths, i.e. management
channels and professional technical channels, to provide the
staff with horizontal and vertical development. Outstanding
staff can be promoted and give full play to their strengths
subject to performance appraisal. In addition, the Group has
established resignation management measures to regulate
the procedures of resignation and safeguard the legitimate
rights and interests of the Group and its staff. All the human
resources policies of the Group are built on the principle
of fairness and justice, and in compliance with ethical and
legal regulatory standards, so as to achieve standardized
management of our people.
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RE  HEREIRSE

Number of employees by region in 2019 2019 EE S HIESE A
89 170
2% 4%

. Northern China
iR

. Northeast China
Rt

ERER

4,442

2,473
56%

Central China
R

. Southern China

i
|
i
i
|
i

. I

Total ,f\/g%f( i Eastern China

I
|
i
|
|
i
1 =HEY

New employee hire rate? and Employee turnover rate in 2019 ABETHFEIRF4.ETHF
2019¢

New employee hire rate Employee turnover rate
- by gender - by gender
FABETILE -85 >> FxBTHE- 1R
MaleE: 38% MaleE: 36 %
L FemaleZ: 28 % JRN FemaleZ: 22 % )
New employee hire rate Employee turnover rate
- by age - by age
>>¥5A3§§Itt$—fﬁﬁ%iﬂﬁ > RABIHEE-FRE D
Aged below 3085 AT : 36% Aged below 308 AT : 31%
Aged 30-495% :29% Aged 30-495% : 26%
Aged 50 or above Aged 50 or above
505% 5k BA | 1% 505% s LA £ : 1%
\ J
New employee hire rate Employee turnover rate )
- by region - by region
HABEIHZR-#EES > RAETHR-#HESS
Northern ChinaZEdt Ei5, : 2% Northern ChinaZEt @15 : 0
Northeast China3Rt B35, : 1% Northeast China3R Lt &1 : 0
Eastern ChinaZREH, : 12% Eastern ChinaZEHR &1 : 9%
Central ChinaZER &, : 14% Central ChinaZEdp @3, : 13%
| Southern ChinaZF B 37%1 | Southern ChinaZEFI B4, 36%J

3 New employee hire rate (percentage) = Number of new hires of the
category/Total employees at the end of the Reporting Period x 100%

4 Employee turnover rate (percentage) = Number of employee departure
of the category/Total employees at the end of the previous Reporting
Period x 100%
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BE  HERELIHRE
Number of employees by region and gender in 2019 2019 T RMEFE 7 HWETHE

Southern China

qehne 1,482 991

Central China

EHEH 654 455

Easter%%h‘%\% 359

Northea%tjgll:_li:ril; 106 64

242

Northegj??,]:%?;z 48 41

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

@ male B @ female &

Number of employees by employment category in 2019 2019 ERBEFIZ S HWIESHE

Southern China 12
EEEYE

Central China

bl 1,108

Eastern China

#REH 2 0

Northeast China
R B, 170 0

Northern China

EZiEE 0

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90%  100%

@ Long-term contract REIE4 @ Temporary contract EREEH

* During the Year, since the Group did not hire part-time employees, * AFEEBREEFERBEL  AtERBBKERE
number of employees by position category is not applicable. PHHMBITHEAINTER -
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RE  HEREIRSE

Number of employees by position category in 2019 2019 BREZHIESHS
Southern China
EPEE 2,129 335 9

Central China

EHEH 1,038 71

Eastern China

EREH 548 53

Northeast China
RILtEHE 160 10

Northern China

EiEE 88 J0

10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

mBelow deputy ®Deputy manager =Assistant to the president

manager level level and above  of the group
BIETBRIAT BIRIRR A £ level and above
KEBRHBNERIA
Number of employees by age category in 2019 2019 FRE T HIESHEE
southern china - (R ED €A
e E 1,136 1,267
Central China
et 353 698
Eastern China
EREBS 287 292

Northeast China
RitEE

Northern China
FEEE

I
O
I
©
©
\‘
w
o)

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90%  100%

mAged below 30 = Aged 30 - 49 Aged 50 or above
30BRA T 30-495% 50pREk A
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Employee Communication

The Group hopes to have two-way communication with
its employees, so as to listen to their voices and needs,
strengthen their confidence and sense of belonging to
the Group through in-depth communication, enhance
their morale and create an inclusive and caring working
environment. Through work reporting and evaluation,
employee interviews and satisfaction surveys, the Group
understands employees’ opinions on different areas such
as business development, employment relationships, job
benefits, responsibilities and obligations.

In addition, the Group also organises a number of staff
activities to share happiness with employees at work. We
regularly hold birthday parties for employees to celebrate
their birthday and give birthday gifts. On festivals such as
Women's Day, Mid-autumn Festival and Spring Festival, we
send greetings to employees and convey the wishes of the
whole group. The Party Committee of the Group has also set
up an art troupe to welcome employees with performing skills
to join. Furthermore, the Group also holds annual meetings
and occasionally launches recreational and sports activities to
invite employees to participate.

The human resources of Aoyuan Healthy are regulated by
the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China and other
employment-related laws and regulations, which require
the operating units to provide an equal and safe working
environment, and the workers with reasonable working hours
and rest holidays, as well as the right to obtain compensation
and welfare. Based on the above measures, the Group has
clearly implemented the legal requirements.

To strengthen compliance management, the Group also
immediately formulated the Labor Law Implementation and
Supervision and Control Procedures ( (&8 Aah 1T E R
EH|F2FE) ), strengthened multi-party monitoring, ensured
strict compliance with laws and regulations in the process
of employment, purchased Five Insurances and One Fund
for employees according to law, provided a good working
environment, paid salaries on time, and provided legal
training and growth opportunities for all employees. During
the Year, the Group did not have any material breach of
applicable laws and regulations related to employment.

BR HERELIES

BEI®E

AEBEREETERRN  #HHKEETH
LBEFE BREREBRBERBIHASKE
MELEEBR RABITRAKERBETE
B TIERE - AR EBB T FERLFME -
BTHAERERRAERATHETIHAEHE
B EBREER THEFE BEEREKETH
BHEMNELR -

A !
FAAZFRENTIERE - HMSTHERET
AHE UENEHLERMNET  UREEX4ER
Y RNiERE - PUE - FEEHAE - B
SHBTHETHME BEEELTHLE K
SEEZTOKRIEZME - BEPARES ZH
BETHREMA  ARETGRBFEG R TEE
EXIRERERE  HBETSHE -

HERENANERIIKPEARLNMES
BRI EMERBBAERERARE @ &
RERKEENRHFIERZE2NTIERE
BETEAAEIHLRKEERE - ANRENS

FMRRAMEERN NREBERU LEE
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RMMBRERERE - NEBE IR G ECH EE
WITHREEENEN)  BRSTERE - BR
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i%iﬁ M iﬁi@& EII:IEE%

Prevention of Child Labor or Forced Labor

The Group respects and protects human rights. We strictly
prohibit the use of child labor, illegal labor and forced labor
under the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China and
other relevant laws and regulations. During the recruitment
process, the Group has conducted detailed background
checks and qualifications checks on applicants, and also
check their identity documents to ensure that they meet
the legal working age and are eligible for employment. In
addition, all employees are required to sign labor contracts
with the Group voluntarily and legally. The Group’s labor
standards are also applied to our suppliers and contractors.
We have prohibited the use of illegal labor in commercial
contracts to prevent any violation of human rights. Through
the above measures, the Group did not have any material
violations of applicable laws and regulations related to the
prohibition of the use of illegal labors during the year.

Occupational Training and Development

We are keen on talent training and development. We
are committed to inspiring our staff and innovating
their potential skills in order to enhance the overall
competitiveness of our staff as well as the enterprise. The
talent cultivation system of the Group is tailored to the
capabilities and skills of the trainees, which is mainly divided
into three general groups:

BIEETRMEHESET

AEEBETREAE  BAKB(PEAR
EMBESESE) (FEARANBELEHAR
AEOREMBEAREIRRTE  BRELERS
BET FEABTIRAHET - AEERBEB
REHHEFAETHEENERHEREESR
T NERHESFOHIAXM  BRENE)

ETIEFE  YAREER U ABERET
i’]fﬁéﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ?/ﬁiﬁi&lxm LHER - AEE

ﬁwﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁmmwﬁﬁ&wﬂﬁ-

ﬁzﬁEE"Fﬁ% #1751 B 25 11 A 9F
ARG IEEfE E Tngﬁ°LLtLTEEm i
AEEARN  AEEBYEETAENZRELE FE

RERS THEMEREZREMR -

WREZENAZR
BARIRATHBIRER  MOREELR
MYHMRED  KMRABETIEARGEER

B AREMATEEBREEEIAL
HBOENREETESTE TEHB=X
i

The AO-STAR training program is applicable to operational staff to focus
on the functions and business skills of the staff;

AR EES THIAO STARE

BlE K

EFIE I B TrORBE MERB R -

The “Fly High Plan” (B¢ 21)is applicable to the middle management personnel
of the Company, to establish their management and leadership; and

BRARPREIEABHRERE -

PREHEIRREL S

Leadership program(<Bffiizt 3] )is applicable to the senior management, to broaden
management’s insight and enhance strategic capability and leadership.

HERARBRERENEMTE
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A variety of auxiliary training programs have also been
developed by the Group to meet the needs of different
training. A new employee orientation (JTEZI5HE)
was introduced for newly recruited mid-level and senior
employees and operating staff, so that new employees could
quickly integrate into the Company and team, and clearly
understand their roles, corporate culture and specific work.
Mentors were arranged to conduct the pre and pro job
trainings and share the professional skills of inherit internal
experience. The employees who are familiar with the Group’s
business and departments were encouraged to act as internal
lecturers to spread knowledge and skills to others; Employees
were dispatched to participate in external trainings and assist
them to obtain professional qualifications and certifications.
Internal rotation plan was carried out to allow staff to
experience the work characteristics and develop all-round
skill from different positions in a short time to enhance
themselves quickly.

The percentage of employees trained by gender in 2019

Male

EB
73

= Number of employees
trained
EXIEIE TAE

m Number of employees
not trained
REEZBIETIAH

14X, 1%

® Number of employees
trained
EXIEIE TAE

BR HERELIES

AEBETAZRZBEHEPLANBITE - UE
EAAMBEIER - EPREAFT LENTS
MHETIRELE TIRENFEEIIFTE - £
METHRAERARARER  BEWHBESA
B THREEXCRERIF : RIELHE
BREITHEA - HR REXKEIR - AR
DR FBABEENTIEENE TEE
MEPFBED - FAB R R EEGEEMBA - KE
BET28IEEI - UHBERSEXRERLK
RE BN RETE  FETHENERRE
NEETREUNTHERERER2HK
B REEABEC -

2019 MBI 7 ZIES B 7L

Female

X

= Number of employees
not trained
REEZIZIETAH

18K, 1%
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BR HERELIHE

The percentage of employees trained by position category in 2019

Assistant to
the president of
the group and above
SEARBERUE

® Number of employees trained

BRRIBIET A

& Number of employees
not trained
REBEZIFIE A

0A, 0%

Deputy manage

2019 B BRBAEE W ZIEE B 7L

r

level and above

BIRERARUE

EEEIIE TAR

® Number of employees trained

® Number of employees

not trained
REEZFIEIAH

8A, 2%

The average training hours completed per employee in 2019

Gender

Male

Female

Position category

Below deputy manager level

Deputy manager level and above

Assistant to the president of
the group and above

5l

ES

58

BAEE

B RIAT
BIAEER R £
SEAHRYERIA L
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Below deputy
manager level
BIRBHRAT
® Number of employees trained
EREIIETAR
& Number of employees

not trained
REEZIFIETAH

24X, 1%

3,939 A
99%

2019 & % 18 8 55 Fi 3 3| 9 F 15 b5 B

Number of
employees
trained
EZEA
BT A

2,635
1,775

3,939
462
9

Total
training Average
hours hours

BEEEI
BER 19 B B
60,211 23
38,921 22
90,294 23
8,638 19
200 22
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Anti-discrimination, Diversity and Equal
Opportunities

The Group, as a responsible employer offering equal
opportunities, advocates equal, diversified and non-
discriminatory principle, advocates the principles of respect
and mutual understanding, and integrates different
cultural backgrounds. We establish a harmonious and
inclusive working environment by integrating different
cultural backgrounds according to the principles of respect
and mutual understanding. The Group has established
comprehensive and transparent standardised appraisal
indicators to select staff based on objective factors, such as
their job skills, qualifications, experience, track record and
interview performance, so that staff can enjoy the identical
opportunities of employment, promotion, performance
appraisal and other working opportunities, irrespective
of their gender, race, religion, disability, marital or family
status. We also strictly oppose all discrimination, harassment,
vilification or other conducts which pose a physical or mental
threat or injury to our staff. Should any of these misconducts
be noticed, we take disciplinary actions and transfer this case
to the law enforcement authorities when necessary.

Working Hours and Rest Periods

The Group places great emphasis on the interests of its
employees that we aim to achieve work-life balance for
employees and relieving their work pressure properly.
Employees working hours are set according to the statutory
requirements. Employees are provided overtime leave or
cash compensation if they are required to work overtime.
In addition, the Group arranges employees’ leave in strict
accordance with relevant national regulations, which includes
public holidays, annual leave, sick leave, marriage leave,
family planning leave, compassionate leave, work injury
leave, etc. Attendance, holidays, wages and benefits of the
employees are also stated clearly in the staff handbook to let
each employee fully understand the benefits.

BR HERELIES
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RE  HEREIRSE

PROTECT THE HEALTHY ENVIRONMENT FERREIE
Make Good Use of Resources EHER

The Group has formulated the following policies regarding AEEBHETUATERERERER(BHERE
effective use of resources (including energy, water and other TR K REAM R B BUR -
raw materials):

Formulate the Office Behavior Code, well managing employees’ use of related resources such as
electricity, water and paper. Require employees to set the computer to sleep during meal breaks,
close all doors, windows, lights, air-conditioning, etc. at lunch or after work, and achieve three
cleanings and three offs (garbage cleaning, aisle cleaning, desktop cleaning, power off, turning
air conditioning off, and turning water sources off).

FIECEIRABBIZE) MHEIHAFTAE K A ERSHBEREANSTE - ExXET
HMERHERE KRB AZKIEMRE - PFREX TR EMEMENSE  E&  =HEF - M3
=EZE(NRE - REBEE - RHE - WER - BEH - BAKR)

Use intelligent printers in office, implement on-demand printing by swiping cards, double-sided
printing, and effectively control unnecessary paper waste.
WMAEFTHRERINENE  BITERFRRIE  EEIED - BREHTLENERREE

Hold an energy-saving and environmental protection meeting and copy the work arrangement for
energy conservation and emission reduction to all the members of the Group by e-mail.
BHRMERRHEREG  BUHPDEXAEE SRS MR TIELH

The Group sets up a leading group for managing energy conservation. The heads of all

functional departments are members of the leading group. The project subsidiaries set up energy
conservation department, which is responsible for regular inspection and reporting wastage.
REBRMEEBEEAS /A SBEBPIRERNDEAKE REEIFNERBBRET B
BERAA  APEHETKS - REBETE &R

Organise energy-saving advertisement and training on a regular basis, raise the awareness
of energy conservation according to laws and regulations, build the awareness of water
conservation, through water management courses, and post water saving tips near office
buildings and water facilities.

EEAERSEMNDEESEMEIN  IBREREHAE  DREXNEH  HUBKER RAEK
BRETRHE  WERAKRBIKRESRUS FIRE

Plan to set up an energy management system. Incorporate the scientific, advanced and
reasonable principles to formulate the energy consumption targets for major energy-consuming
products, processes, equipment and posts, and conduct regular evaluation of the target
accomplishment with reward and punishment measures.

STEHTRERTREEESNE - RRBHE L SEMNRA HEFEREER I8 RHE
MELTITRREETHE THETHETKBERETESR  THEBIEEELES
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B -dERELIRE

The resources used by the Group during the Reporting Period® REERABREHRABANEREBEWT :
are as follows:

Intensity® (Calculated based
on each management

Resource types Unit Consumption project or each store)
BEC(UE—EEEEAR

ERER B KRR B -RMETHE)

2019 2018 2019 2018
Energy
BEIR
Electricity KWH 135,409,483 45,191,139 1,327,544 645,588
g TR
Natural gas Cubic metre 273,899 120,175 2,685 1,717
RIARR SR
Diesel Litre 17,965 9,475 176 135
5 AT
Gasoline Litre 26,456 15,149 259 216
B )UM nF

Water resources

KEIR

Water Cubic metre 2,544,971 1,420,160 24,951 20,288
VN SR

Energy management BEFEHE

The Group focuses on energy consumption and uses a AEBBIERAE WS EESEBERD
variety of control measures to reduce energy consumption. et - M eRBEL—FNRAERAKERIRE

We formulate next year’s resource saving targets and EEANETFENERHOBEREHTE
implementation plans according to the electricity xOBBBAOERERLIZES EERA - T
consumption and water consumption in the previous year HFESREEKELREE  UYHEAER
which effectively reduce energy consumption and control FREORBAEFEERERDN -

operating costs. The administrative department records the

data of the water and electricity meter daily and compare

the monthly and annual consumption over the corresponding

period for energy consumption analysis.

The resource consumption data disclosed in this report include only the S AREFMBEENEARBEREEBEREEAAEERLE

5
energy and water directly used by the property management segment MEEIE BEESNARFEEEEMEEFERD
and commercial operation and general health and wellness businesses R RAKR WA BEAEEBE =75 W
of the Group, and do not include the resource data used by third parties P RERAMERANEREE -

such as contractors, tenants and customers.
The data sources disclosed in this report are 102 with an increase of ¢ AREMBPENMASBEREAALEBENRESHHE

o

31 new projects compared to the previous year from the main property WEENMHXERELH4E  HEEREE17@ -
management projects (84) and commercial management projects (17); UEAFEMAHNRBREEKMAE IR  SEHA
and a new general health and wellness businesses store (1) joined this 102MENF 8 EF T8 T3VEAMEREEBTEMIER -

year of the Group at the Report preparation stage.
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BE -ERELHE

We adopt energy-saving devices that conform to the
national regulations and standards, avoid using halogen
lamps, mercury lamps, iodine tungsten lamps and other
high-power lamps as far as possible, and consider the light
sources, control circuit and lighting circuit in decoration and
maintenance in order to achieve energy-saving. We have also
set switching time for electrical machinery and equipment to
ensure proper shutdown during holidays without affecting
business. The engineers maintain the equipment according to
its operation status, so as to avoid affecting power efficiency
due to aging. We keep the indoor temperature at 26 degrees
to reduce the energy consumption of air conditioning. In
addition, we publicize the energy-saving plan monthly, and
encourage owners, tenants and employees to do their best
in environmental protection and energy-saving measures and
develop good habits.

In 2019, our scale of operation significantly increased,
including expansion of our general health and wellness
businesses, newly-added projects in commercial operation
and property management, and setting up of more branch
companies to provide supporting and administrative work.
Therefore, our overall utilization of resources increased as
compared with the previous year, and it is expected that
the above energy saving measures can reduce the intensity
of resource consumption in the forthcoming year. During
the Year, the ESG goals set by the Group include: Overall
consumption of energy to reduce 5% to 10% in 2020. The
energy consumption reduction measures can be implemented
through LED energy-saving renovation of underground
garage and renovation of the water pumping system of pump
houses. The LED energy-saving renovation of underground
garage will be piloted in Guangzhou City World in March
2020 and promoted throughout the country if successful. It is
estimated that the energy-saving expenses for 10 months can
offset the cost of renovation.

Achievements made by Group headquarter and offices:

BAEATEERRERTENHERE &
BECEANEE  RE BEBZADIE
B URERENEERERBLR - AR
RGBS BIEIHEYR - RATER
ERERRERENRBAKGE RRETTE
EENRRETHHERRATEEFEH - T2

il

ABEEREBHETER  HRELTE
o BeREAMYERERE - RBER

B X

BEBRE26E - B Z=HEE - I &K
MR ASEHEE - FEEE: HEFP - BT
e IRIRENRERE i - BAXRIFBIE -

2019F F » MM EEREKREB LA B1F
BABRER FHENEELRMEETER
B MBRVYEZHANAIREIERITHRIE-
FHit r ZRFEENEREREREF LA B
PEEFE B - EIREHE HEfE SR F R K B R FE A
BRE e AFE  AEEMFUMNESGEEZSR
B ERBEENE T2020F E2ERD
5% Z10% ° RFEEREE A F @ T
BHELEDMREME R KREREKRHEKEG NG
BIAEM o 1 FEELEDS AR MEET 2172020
FIAEEMB TR B NE - B 1018 A
MERE BB AEMRERA BRI EBESR
B OR iE o
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Low- energy-consumption LED
bulbs are used in the office,
turned for an hour during
lunch break, and used as
needed during off-hours, and
employees are required to turn
off lights once leaving, saving
electricity consumption by
approximately 20% a year.

S B 48 5P R A N 2= (8 R R 7S
BiBEEILEDIE A - IR
—RE— B R TR
T - BEIAERETRE -
WA EREL20%

£l
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Computers, photocopiers,
water dispensers, and
microwave ovens are turned
off when not in use and after
used, saving electricity
consumption by approximately
30% over before.

B - AEENHE - BROKHE - UK
1E A R RARA IR - (21
BRARMBERNEE - BIEHE
MERTERE B S14930%

Reduced electricity consumption
by 50% in 2019.

2019FERBBARMAE
BIEFEER L 50%

Reduced electricity consumption
by 1,440,000 kWh in 2019.

2019F BB RIAE
B J1EFEZRM A 1,440,000kWh
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Water resources management

The Group treasures water and records water consumption
properly to formulate water saving plans. All employees are
required to work in accordance with the Group’s water saving
guidelines. Water-saving faucets and sanitary wares are well-
equipped. We regularly check water tanks and water pipes
to avoid waste caused by leakage. The water supply system
is closed at night and during holidays. We have also installed
automated sprinklers, which can cover wider at just the right
time than traditional irrigation, and greatly save water. During
the Reporting Period, the Group did not find any problem in
sourcing water as we use municipal water supply legally.

Achievements made by Group headquarter and offices:

Use water saving faucets to
reduce the volume of flow and
adopt water saving flushing
pumps in toilets to reduce
wasteful use of water, reducing
water consumption by
approximately 30% at offices
and Group headquarter.

5 SRR K BESRIE HII/K 2 &
HIRK ¢ T IR R A
KR BORKEERE &
BB R AR E A
JHFEFK T RE#I30%

water consumption by
approximately 10% at offi
and Group headquarter.

RIRFS KR - SEEA
A ERIEHEE R T
RFE4910%

As there was significant increase in the number of
management projects which contributed to the majority of
energy and water consumption of the Group, therefore,
the overall energy and water consumption of the Group did
not reflect the energy and water conservation of the Group
headquarter and offices. In the forthcoming year, we will take
more conservation measures as mentioned above to each of
the management projects, so that the management projects
can attain the results of the Group headquarter and offices,
which will be reflected in our energy-saving and water-saving
targets in terms of intensity.

Cherish the Environment

Environmental protection, as one of the main focuses of
sustainability development, is implemented in the operational
concept of the Aoyuan Healthy. The Group always keeps in
mind that the importance of natural resource protection, and
strives to create a comfortable and pleasant living environment
for the community and next generation. The Group understands
that residential and commercial land are the most important
part of human activities, which have significant impacts on the
natural environment and ecological resources. Therefore, the
Group implements a series of efficient environmental protection
measures, shoulders the responsibility for greening, strictly
complies with laws and regulations regarding environmental
protection, and achieves a shared success between humanity
and nature by reducing pollution, making good use of resources
and cherishing the environment.

Reuse wastewater, reducing

ices

=95
Rk

BR HERELIES

KEREE
AEBPERK X2 Z0EMKE A E
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Estimated to reduced water
consumption of offices and Group
headquarter by approximately 40%

in2019
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Planting grass brick

HEREAE

Tree management and conservation

We value the greening of the park and cherish every plant.
We plant green plants in gardens, pedestrian areas and
recreational areas to create a natural and harmonious living
space. The Group has taken a number of soil and water
conservation measures (including regular fertilization and
irrigation) to maintain soil moisture and fertility, so that green
vegetation and trees can thrive. If there is construction need,
we lay a net on the grass to avoid the erosion of soil caused
by dust and human trampling. We also employ experienced
horticulturists and tree maintainers for plants cultivation.
They check the growth of the trees and take appropriate
protective and maintenance measures to make the plants
grow healthily.

Conservation measures include:

Energy-saving design
i pe B R AT

HAEERRE

BPMERERAL  TEE-BE—K - HMHR
EE TARBRAKBSHEESZEEY Al
EARMBENERER - AREZ RIS AKX
T RETIEOKD RIEK - EAREER
KRR E A &K - B E B 1756 I ROE
Mo mERIFE  RMSRE L5 EI8EE
W OBRERMARBEULTERMEXNNR
Bh o BRI IRES B A AL B A B A Ko A8 R AR & BD
REEY  AEREEARERMAR REKRE
EHERRERR  EEVERELER -

REEBERE

Regularly trim, weed, control insects, fertilize, and water; apply nutrient

solution if necessary.

EEED  BRE - BE o it Bk AN EREER

Save trees and lawns through sprinkler irrigation, fertilize, weed, and

prevent floods, and make records.

AR EEHAREITETIRKE®

HERERRE D% - S ACER

Straighten and reinforce trees tilted timely, clean dust, care for, inspect, etc.

BIAER RERIEME - R - BE - KEF

Set up protective railings and identification plates in roads near trees to
prevent them from being hit by vehicles during driving and turning.

MANERER B RSBy AT RS e - @ e 75 R ERIZ P E R
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(right) beautified over before (left)

(right) beautified over before (left)

-

Comparison of a stump in Shenyang Convention and Exhibition Plaza after

EEERESHBEXCA (L& (A HLE

Comparison of seasonable flowers in Shenyang Convention and Exhibition Plaza after

EEEeRESEEREMEI(CH ()R (A)HLE

Climate Change

The Group is committed to managing and controlling the
risks and taking emergency measures against climate-related
potential safety hazards in order to adapt to or mitigate the
impact of climate changes on its business. The measures
include developing a special climate warning mechanism
to reduce climate-related security risks; paying real-time
attention to dynamic changes of climate and setting up a
goal of early detection, early prevention, and early resolution
and formulating an emergency plan mechanism to respond
to potential safety hazards caused by climate changes and
extreme weather, so that the Group can be timely and
effectively handle the risks in the risk management process.

RIRE L

AEBEAFREBRHHREELENL 2R AMLYT
VB 1 b BB = E b 0 TSR SO R R IR &
EHEXBNTE  BEERE  FIEERAIK
BEES  BRORREKNLZZRE - BN
ERIEB R - URER - BHED - BER
ABRR B RR B A0S i KR AT BE TS R EY
ZeRE - HERBRSERES - AFER

BEMRE  ME&RERELCRBREEERTN
R EERIEZA
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In response to significant climate changes, such as
earthquakes, severe typhoons, hail, and rainwater, the
Group’s Safety Management Centre has established a leading
group for safety management. It is also responsible for the

following tasks:

Give professional training on
responding to extreme weather to
members of the leading group for
safety management.

W2 BB NERBETT
FEH EE R R R A

A Regularly review the material ledger
of the extreme weather preparedness

drills by members of the leading
group for safety management.

TEHRY 22 2 E IR/ MERK B AR H S
RREBHEEME QRETTEH

ZEEEHL

Review and summarize in order to
enhance learning and gain experience
from the occurred and related case
on extreme weather accidents.
HELEA LD FEERPINIGRHK
REW  ETTEZBLE - EEE
IR EN A B o

HHEARGK - Pl E - REERE - KE - £
MARERER  AKRENZE2EERLEKL
TRE2ERES/E YEEUTIE:

Conduct regular spot checks for
the extreme weather preparedness
drills by members of the leading
group for safety management.
EHE 2 2 B/ MEK BN
HiRm R RBERIENETTHE

Safety Management Center

Reduce Pollution
Waste Disposal

The Group’s waste mainly refers to non-hazardous waste
generated from office administrative activities, including
paper, ink cartridges and toner cartridges, and hazardous
waste generated during office decoration and routine
maintenance, including waste oil, paint and lamp tubes
containing mercury. The amount of waste’ generated by the
Group during the Reporting Period is as follows:

Types of hazardous waste Unit
EEBEYESR B
Waste oil and paint Kg
JBE i K2 i AR NI
Lead acid battery Kg
R EEM N
Lamp tubes containing mercury Kg
BREE NI

7 The waste data disclosed in the Report only includes emissions directly
caused by the Group’s operation of property management, commercial
operations and general health and wellness businesses, and does not
include waste emissions from third parties such as contractors, tenants
and customers. Among it, the amount of waste is estimated based on
the purchase quantity during the Reporting Period.
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Types of non-hazardous waste Unit
BEBRYWER B
Ink cartridge Kg
FIKE NI
Toner cartridge Kg
k3 N
Paper Kg
S NI
Plastic water bottle Kg
BB N
Other waste Kg
H 1 BE ) N

The Group strived to use environmentally friendly and
recyclable office consumables, including recycled paper
and refillable ink cartridges. The electronic method was
adopted instead of paper to reduce the reliance on paper.
If needed, employees must print on both sides as much as
possible. In 2019, the Group started to engage in the general
health and wellness businesses and gradually expanded its
commercial operations and property management business in
Southern China, so that the total number of new stores and
subordinate projects increased. More administrative office
supplies, low-value consumables, mercury-containing lamp
tubes, waste oil and paint were consumed over previous years
with decoration of new stores and increase in the number
of project employees. We also required employees to sort
waste, such as placing sorting bins and collection points for
used clothing and batteries, making them easy to be recycled.
During the Year, we recycled nearly 8,029 kg of paper, a
decrease of nearly 30% from 11,520 kg in 2018, and the
main reason is that the Group promoted the use of double-
sided printing documents to increase paper usage, thus
reducing the need of paper recycling. We also continued to
promote waste reduction, such as publicising waste sorting
to owners of our projects and parks, recycled discarded
materials through waste sorting, helped projects to control
waste from the source, regularly sent people to recycle waste,
and improved the utilisation of recyclable resources, whereby
encouraging employees, owners and tenants to work with
us to support environmental protection and reduce daily
waste. In the future, the Group will continue to seek feasible
emission reduction and waste reduction measures to avoid
negative impacts on the environment.

BR HERELIES

Amount of Waste Generated

EEXE
2019 2018
4,543 731
2,130 276
29,660 27,418
42 0.3
882 100

AEBZEFARARAUBRREANNRAETRE
Mo BREBERRAERNEKE - HFEX
ETFNUNEFEARNET  RLEHKKRNK
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Case Study: Voluntary Waste Sorting Campaign

BRMR UK BEEEEE

140

In November 2019, the voluntary campaign themed with “New Journey Led by Party Building and New
Fashion of Waste Sorting of remaining true to our original aspiration and keep our mission firmly in mind”,
jointly hosted by Panyu District Panao Community Committee, Aoyuan Health Life Group Property Party
Branch, and Panao Community Neighborhood Committee, was held.

The voluntary campaign aimed at mobilising surrounding owners to participate in the deep clean of all
communities, and waste dropping, thereby optimizing the environmental sanitation of communities.

20190118 ZEREBRHEZES  BRERELEEEE
MEELI  FRAMEEZSEZFRLEH SR [T
D B Eam - EESIEIRE RSB BRE
@J o

WEBMBENREBEEXT - E2EREHT  HERE
HETARE - YHEFET OB - KME(EHLRIRE
B -

Food waste treatment of commercial tenants providing
food and beverage

Household living and business operations produce a lot of
kitchen waste every day, so we pay attention to reducing
kitchen waste. We post slogans in the staff canteen to
encourage employees to cherish food and take appropriate
amount of food to avoid waste. We also remind residents and
tenants to reduce kitchen waste. By classifying the sources
of kitchen waste, organic resources can be properly utilized
for composting decomposition or converting into other useful
materials for agricultural and horticultural purposes, so as
to achieve the aim of making the best use of things. The
Group purchased special kitchen waste crushers to reduce
the storage volume of kitchen waste, thereby improving the
utilization rate of kitchen waste. In addition to providing
sorting bins and labelling them, the Group provide training
and conduct regular inspection.
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Specific ways adopted by the Group to reduce kitchen waste REERAERBB R FH TR B
include:

Procurement IREBEE

Choose clean vegetables, net food, semi-finished products, etc., which can greatly reduce the processing
time, costs and pre-meal losses.

BEFX  FRM - FHMTF  JUBRAREE DN TERE - KAMEFERE -

Storage, transportation and refrigeration f#ESRHBRH

Improve refrigeration equipment and facilities to prevent generation of kitchen waste due to incorrect
storage and transportation methods.

TERBRERE  HLARFEESBRIATHEMELEFR -

Adopt refined processing methods to reduce pre-meal losses.
RABALOH NI FBMDERIBR -

Use equipment and facilities with high utilisation rate of food ingredients.

RARMHAAMESHRERE

Advocate the Clear-Your-Plate Campaign.

BERITE -

It is not recommended to provide consumers with disposable chopsticks, spoons and other tableware.
EZETPREEERBE-AMERTIRAZESER -

Ingenious recycling of kitchen waste 5 &3 Kl FH B s 3

(1) Egg shells are used for growing seedlings; (2) Kitchen waste such as bones and vegetable leaves are used
to feed stray animals; (3) Leftovers are used as fertilizers for flowers; and (4) Bottles and cans are recycled

after cleaned and used for storage.
(NWEZAREE Q) FHNRAINERE ZEFHARBERRDY 0 Q) FEFBRANIERE : &
(4)MELE B LR FEBRER  AREDRED -
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Air pollutants and sewage discharge

The main business of Aoyuan Healthy is property
management and commercial operation, which includes
security and fire safety management, environmental
cleanliness and hygiene, repair and maintenance of facilities
and equipment, landscaping of the garden, club management
and back office operation, etc. Therefore, it would not
produce significant air emissions.

The Group places significant emphasis on the potential
impact of its operations on air quality. Therefore, the Group
has established internal guidelines, including requiring all
internal transport or patrol vehicles to comply with EU-6
standards to ensure the compliance with the latest emission
standards; using eco-friendly unleaded gasoline to reduce
the lead content of vehicle exhaust and avoid the damage
of lead to the ecological environment; limiting the use and
speed of vehicles, shut down the engine after parking, reduce
the production of unnecessary vehicle exhaust; regularly
maintaining vehicles, generators and other fuel equipment
for energy efficiency improvement and effective emissions
control.

On the other hand, the Group produces sewage when
carrying out cleaning and maintaining work, so the amount of
sewage discharged?® by the Group during the Reporting Period
is as follows:

Emission type Unit
BHRER B
Sewage Tonnes
aIK WA

8 The sewage data disclosed in this report only cover emissions directly
caused by the Group’s property management, commercial operation
and general health and wellness businesses, and do not include waste
and sewage emissions from third parties such as contractors, tenants
and customers of the Group.
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The Group also strives to reduce waste water discharge
and avoid pollution of pure natural water sources. The
Group controls the water usage of cleaning and use
sewage interception facilities, such as waterproof barriers
or catchment ditches, to prevent sewage spillover. The
Group also conducts regular inspection and maintenance of
drainage pipes and ditches to eliminate leakage of sewage. In
the future, the Group will continue to monitor emissions and
closely review the data.

The Group strictly complies with the Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China and other
laws and regulations related to pollution discharge, which
require enterprises to take measures to prevent and reduce
emissions, avoid damage to the ecological environment, and
bear legal responsibility for the damage caused. Through the
above measures, the Group strives to reduce exhaust gas and
sewage to maintain environmental health. During the Year,
the Group did not have any material violations of applicable
laws and regulations related to environmental emissions.

Greenhouse gas emissions

The Group uses electricity, fuel, water resources and
paper when providing services, thus directly and indirectly
producing greenhouse gas emissions. The Group's
greenhouse gas emissions during the Reporting Period are as
follows®:

Types of greenhouse gas emissions Unit
BERBERES Efr

Tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalent
MoaltixEE
Tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalent
BoatixEE
Tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalent
BoaltixEE

Direct emissions from fuel use (scope 1)

R A EE SR (FE )
Indirect emissions from power
use (scope 2)
ENERREFT(HE2)
Other indirect emissions (including water
and paper waste) (scope 3)
Hih g R
(BEAKNARESE)(HBE3)

9 The calculation method of greenhouse gas emissions is determined with
reference to Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs released by
HKEX, China Regional Power Grid Baseline Emission Factors by Ministry
of Ecology and Environment of China and Guidelines to Account for and
Reports on Greenhouse Gas Emissions for Public Building Enterprises
(Trial) by the Department of Climate Change under the National
Development and Reform Commission of China.

BR HERELIES

REBINE R D BRI - @05 RAFH
BAKR AEESERBRMEANAKE -
I 8 5K BERE - MBPKEREKE - A
BIimkoNE - NEB TS E BETHIRE R
KBNEER#E  HESKNZREE - K
X AEESREZTSAMOBERIBER - &
BEWEHE -

AEEBEBET(PRARAMBERRREL)
R EASRBFBMBABARIEAR - ARBERKDE
EERBIERD ERBADEROSR - BEBIRE
BRI UHMERNBEREZEAERET - A
SEBEBLAEE BHRPBERKISK £
REREGUNHER RAFER  AEELE
FAEANERBRFHNBENERERE
Moo

BEREHH

AEEREERREEACRES - BB KE
BEAERS ANEELEAZRHBEZTRERE
BERR - REBERARERHE AR ERBIN
E°WF

Intensity (calculated for each

Emissions management project or each store)
BE(US-EEEER
e R85 -KMERE)
2019 2018 2019 2018
675 319 7 5
75,399 27,201 739 389
2,821 958 28 14
S RERBHRAOGHEMEZREEZSACGRERSE

BRERE®RES)  PREERRFEDHER2Z(PE
EREREERINETF)  PEBRERMUEER
BeREUARRELCAAMI(AHELELLERE
FREFREETEAMBRERR (H17)) -
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The Group treasures all kinds of resources, including energy,
water and packaging materials. By minimizing the use,
recycling and fully utilizing of resources to avoid depletion
of resources, we strive to reduce carbon dioxide footprint
to address climate change. For the practical measures of
resource management, please see the section of “Make Good
Use of Resources”.

The Group is also committed to reducing greenhouse gas
emissions and protecting natural resources by promoting a
culture of energy conservation, discouraging paper waste and
reducing unnecessary business travel.

Packaging material management

Packaging materials are used in our property management
services for the purposes of protection and logistics to
prevent material damage. As for the environment protection,
the Group has adopted the principle of simple packaging and
used recyclable packaging materials. The Group’s resource
consumption data' during the Reporting Period was as
follows:

Packaging materials Unit
BRYE B

2019
Wrapping paper Kg 1,742
BER N
Carton Kg 3,213
WA Na
Blister Kg 300
%8 Ny

In 2019, the Group expanded its commercial operation
and property management business in the Southern China,
resulting in a substantial increase in the total number
of projects, more packaging materials were used for
advertisement and transportation purpose which led to a rise
in the volume used. In the future, we will continue to ensure
that packaging materials are used properly and look for
alternatives to reduce their usage.

' The packaging materials consumption data disclosed in this report
include only the packaging materials directly used by the property
management, commercial operation and general health and wellness
businesses of the Group, and do not include the packaging materials
data used by third parties such as contractors, tenants and customers.

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2019

Consumption

HHE

AEEPEEREREREER  KEREEK

BoBBERAOER  BREARMEERNLE
RFEMER - RD BN Z AR EIIA FE &
RIRZL  BREENERERIRIEZRE
R EBD o

AEEBNRBNREREREBEER - LBEBRIE
ERIBEIRXAL - THEREBRRIRDIELE
MBEHER  REBRER

BRYHEE

BN EEERBFEERI R ARF
ERENRFEGRSZ  HLEYHEE - KEE
EXRBENERERA - A EBA @MUK BE

o HRBAR - AKERAREHEAEE
MRERE WM

Intensity (calculated
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project or each store)
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20195  AEEZRSBERAEMNDRENE
XELMMEEEERY  AMSHETHEBAR
REEM UERELERMAFEBERER
A SEBELN KRRRMSEERRE
KYHRAGHR » X5 REMEKITTENRD
M -

0 ARERARENERDHNERRBERACRERALAEHE

REYEXER BEEERAREEBEMEER
AHBEEYH YTeEAEENE =T MmN
BHEPREEMEANSRYMNEE -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
EF‘ i ilﬂ:e& Ell:l iﬁ%

INDEX OF REPORTING GUIDE BRERNBIES

Remarks

ok

Sections

HBEBD

General Disclosures and KPIs

—REBEREREN

EEA1: BERY

Aspect A1: Emissions

General Disclosure

Policies that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
—RIKE

BRABERIAERBEN - M/KE I
5 AEREZTEEVHNELESZTOHRR

Reduce pollution (p.138)
A5 (p.138)

KPI A1.1

The types of emissions and respective

emissions data

Air pollutants and sewage
discharge (p.142)
ZERT R 5K (p.142)

Since the Group’s operations
do not generate significant air
emissions, there is no relevant

data on air emissions
HRNEEEELIEELEENER
Ber - Fib2 BREER B BEIE

FRREMALI
Pep & S8 K 48 BE BE R BUE

KPI A1.2

Greenhouse gas emissions in total and,
where appropriate, intensity
BAEENAL2

RERBEAHMER (MER)RE

KPI A1.3
Total hazardous waste produced and,
where appropriate, intensity

Greenhouse Gas Emissions
(p.143)
B ERBEZEM (p.143)

Waste disposal (p.138)
FEEYEE (p.138)

BEREMALS
EAAEREEVESER (WMER)TE
KPI A1.4 Waste disposal (p.138)

Total non-hazardous waste produced FEEYRE (p.138)
and, where appropriate, intensity

FREEMALL
FTEEEZEEEYEE R (WER)BE

KPI A1.5

Description of measures to mitigate
emissions and results achieved
BREMALS
iR R EN BB RETERE
KPI A1.6

Description of how hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes are handled,
reduction initiatives and results
achieved

BRENALG
HEEEERBREBEEMN A
EEENEBRAEKER

Air pollutants and sewage
discharge (p.142)
ZERITRY KT KBER (p.142)

Waste disposal (p.138)
BEEYREE (p.138)

A
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General Disclosures and KPIs Sections CENELS

—REBREREXN ]EED B

Aspect A2: Use of Resources EMEA2: ERMEH

General Disclosure Make good use of resources
Policies on the efficient use of resources (p.132)

including energy, water and other raw ZRER (p.132)

materials

—RIKE

BRERER(BREEER - K EEM R

) BB

KPI A2.1 Make good use of resources
Direct and/or indirect energy (p.132)

consumption by type in total and =RER(p.132)

intensity

BEENA2.1

REASSMER R SHEERERSE

R

KPI A2.2 Make good use of resources
Water consumption in total and (p.132)

intensity ZRER (p.132)
FREMA2.2

BFEKERTE

KPI A2.3 Energy management (p.133)
Description of energy use efficiency BERE IR (p.133)

initiatives and results achieved

BRENA2.3

A BEIRE A st B AT IS AR

KPlI A2.4 Water resources management
Description of whether there is any issue (p.135)

in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, IKERE (p.135)

water efficiency initiatives and results

achieved

BHREMA2.4

FAKEGE AR ERATBEEAHEE - AR

RARKM T B RFEKR

KPI A2.5 Packaging material management
Total packaging material used for (p.144)

finished products and, if applicable, BEYEIERE (p.144)

with reference to per unit produced

BREMA2.5

%zﬁﬁzuuﬁfrﬁﬁﬁ“*ﬁﬂm pE Rk (ER) S

FEBMEE
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Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

EHA3: RERRARER

General Disclosure

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s
significant impact on the environment
and natural resources

— R E
MIRBEITAHRERRAEREKERF
EHER

Cherish the environment (P.135)
B IEIRE (p.135)

KPI A3.1

Description of the significant impacts
of activities on the environment and
natural resources and the actions taken
to manage them

BREMA3.1

L E GBS EIRFE R AR E RN E R
ZRERDNEEBMTZENTH

Aspect B1: Employment EHEB1: Ef&

Tree management and
conservation (P.136)

Climate change (P.137)

Food waste disposal for catering
merchants (P.140)
BIAREERIRE (P.136)
RIRE L (P.137)

ERR 7 P BT R ER B2 (P.140)

General Disclosure

Polices relating to compensation

and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and
welfare

—RiEE

ERAFHNRAE  BEREF IR
g R FE#HE 2l REKN
K B AR o A8 A B B R

Offering healthy employment
(P.121)

Compensation and welfare
(P.123)

Recruitment, promotion and
dismissal (P.123)

Employee Communication
(P.127)

Anti-discrimination, diversity and
equal opportunities (P.131)
Working hours and rest periods
(P.137)

BER R (P.121)
R e (P.123)

RS - BT KRR (P.123)
BT8m(P.127)
R~ ZERFEHS
(P.131)
THREHP.131)

B

KPI B1.1

Total workforce by gender, employment
type, age group and geographical
region

BASRAARB1.1

RIER - BREE - FERERN Mt EE D
B E B A%

Recruitment, promotion and
dismissal (P.123)
RELE ~ EF RfRE(P.123)
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General Disclosures and KPIs

—RRERBEREX

Sections

]EED

CENELS

B

Aspect B1: Employment [EEB1: {E{§

KPI B1.2

Employee turnover rate by gender, age
group and geographical region.
BREMB1.2

BMR - Fheddh kiR Bl 5 HEBIRK
gz

Recruitment, promotion and

dismissal (P.123)
REE - EF RfRE(P.123)

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

General Disclosure

Polices relating to providing a safe
working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards
—RIKE
BRRMT 2 TERE RREE S B RH
FMEENBR

Employee health and safety
(P.121)
BTRERZZ(P.121)

KPI B2.1
Number and rate of work-related
fatalities

Not applicable
i

No death-related case during
the year
RERIRBRTEZR

B AN B2.1

ETEBEREM T A R E

KPI B2.2 Employee health and safety
Lost days due to work injury (P.121)

RAERENB2.2 BTREEZZ(P.121)
HIBEEIERR

KPI B2.3 Employee health and safety

Description of occupational health and
safety measures adopted, how they are
implemented and monitored
BREENB2.3

HIR TR A BB R R R 286 - AN
HERTRERTE

(P.121)
ETREHEEZE(P.121)
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RIE  HEREIRSE

Remarks

([ E

Sections

&I D

Aspect B3: Development and Training

[Em B3: & K3E

General Disclosure

Policies on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for discharging
duties at work. Description of training
activities

—RIKE
ERRAEERITIERE &A@ &R
BR o B IR

Occupational training and
development(P.128)
BEIEIIEER(P.128)

KPI B3.1

The percentage of employees trained by
gender and employee category

B A B3.1
RUERREERMNE S NXIEER DL

Occupational training and
development (P.128)
B S AR P B R (P.128)

KPI B3.2

The average training hours completed
per employee by gender and employee
category

RS2 A B3.2

BRMFIREEERNED  BEEET
Al T £ B

XA

B4

d

Occupational training and
development (P.128)
B IR IR (P.128)

Aspect B4: Labor Standards

[EHE B4: &5 TX#A

General Disclosure

Policies on preventing child or forced
labor

—RIXE

BN EZE T sog |85 THBR

Prevention of child labor or
forced labor (P.128)
By b2 T ki@ Hl 45 T (P.128)

KPI B4.1

Description of measures to review
employment practices to avoid child and
forced labor.

AR E M BA.1

b T AR IR 1 1 O HE 2 LA 2 B T R 3R
Hla T

Prevention of child labor or
forced labor (P.128)
By 1E & T skog 25 T (P.128)

KPI B4.2

Description of steps taken to eliminate
such practices when discovered

B ENBA.2

HMTE IR R IE SR B R A BB ST ER
R A BR

Prevention of child labor or
forced labor (P.128)
712 Tk ag 6145 T (P.128)
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—RRERBEREX

Sections

]EED

CENELS

B

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management JETH B5: {EHEEE

General Disclosure

Policies on managing environmental and
social risks of the supply chain

—RIKE

EIRHEENIRE L g RARBER

Environmental and social risk
management of supply chain
(P.115)
HrEENIREATgRRER
(P.115)

KPI B5.1 Not applicable “Proposed disclosure” is
Number of suppliers by geographical i A not a mandatory disclosure
region requirement

EREXMB5.1 [EERE| U TERGIMREE
iR E D HERE A sk

KPI B5.2 Environmental and social risk

Description of practices relating

to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are

being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored

RS2 B5.2

M ERERAMHERNED  MEARTE
BIEPIMEEREE - ARBBENHH
TRERTE

management of supply chain
(P.115)

Use of environmental friendly
products and services (P.116)
HEENRSAITERKRER
(P.115)

RREmMRBEEER (P.116)

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility EHEB6: EmEE

General Disclosure

Polices relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of
redress

— R E
BHMRMHERMBRBNRERLZ S - &
& BERALEBEEUARBRTENBR

Manage a healthy life (P.107)
KE R ATE (P.107)

KPI B6.1

Percentage of total products sold or
shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons

S E X B6.1

EERDEXEMEHTRL 2 HEZRIE
mmMARKSE DT

Not applicable
TE M

As the Group’s business is
service-oriented, there are no
procedures relating to product
recalls
REBOEBTRBESE - X
FHEEmEWRE

KPI B6.2

Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are
dealt with

B E N B6.2

BN ERMRBHIRFEE AR
A

Customer service quality (P.107)

BEERBEE=Z(P.107)
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Sections Remarks

&I D ([ E

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility EHEB6: EREE

KPI B6.3

Description of practices relating to
observing and protecting intellectual
property rights

B EE N B6.3

it B E R RE A E R VB

intellectual property rights
(P.116)
FIGHERE (P.116)

KPI B6.4
Description of quality assurance process
and recall procedures

Customer service quality (P.107)
Customer health and safety
(P.110)

BA 52 4&E 3 B6.4 BEFIREEE (P.107)
B S48 B X E B WGR P BEFEEEZ R (P.110)
KPI B6.5 Data protection and privacy

Description of consumer data protection
and privacy policies, how they are
implemented and monitored

RS2 B6.5

U B E ERHRE RALRBGR - A KR8
BT RERA

(P.114)
ERMRE R FLEE (P.114)

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption EHEB7: R&ES

General Disclosure

Polices relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering

—RixE

BRI IEEER BF - MEFFRERENK

s

R

Anti-corruption and compliance
(P.111)
REBRERELEP.111)

KPI B7.1

Number of concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases

BREMBT.1
RERHAHETAIHEERLIEE
HEHOESHRARGHNEE RFME

Not applicable No such incidents were

TiEA considered or noted during the
reporting period
A EF R REASOTES
RS

KPI B7.2

Description of preventive measures and
whistle-blowing procedures, how they
are implemented and monitored
BgENBT7.2

T AL [y €045 7 S B IRAZ - LA RRABRAEATT
MESRTE

Anti-corruption and compliance
(P.111)
REGRAMEEP.111)

RERELEEREARAR —T-NFH

151



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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General Disclosures and KPIs Sections CENELS

—REEREREN ]EED B

Aspect B8: Community Investment EMBS: HtE&RE

General Disclosure Contribution to the healthy
Policies on community engagement community (P.117)
to understand the needs of the BRERLE(P.117)

communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’
interests.

—REE

BN R2ERTREEMEHREE
MBREEBTB G Bt R a8 BER

KPI B8.1 Contribution to the healthy
Focus areas of contribution community (P.117)
B E X BS.1 FRIEREME (P.117)
I ER

KPI B8.2 Contribution to the healthy
Resources contributed to the focus area community (P.117)
ESE/E M BS.2 BRIEEME (P.117)
TETHEMBABEIR
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The Board herein present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note
41 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2019
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on page 183.

The Directors recommended the declaration of a final
dividend at the rate of RMB0.09 per share (equivalent to
HK$0.098, according to the central parity rate of Renminbi
to Hong Kong dollars as announced by the People’s Bank
of China on 24 March 2020, i.e. RMB0.91556 equivalent
to HK$1.00) amounting to RMB65,362,500 (equivalent to
approximately HK$71,172,500) is expected to be paid on
Friday, 19 June 2020 to all persons registered as holders of
shares of the Company on Monday, 1 June 2020, subject to
the approval of the shareholders at the AGM. The aggregate
amount shall be paid out of the Company’s share premium
account.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business during the year, a
discussion on the prospect of the Group’s future business
development, a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties that the Group may be facing are provided
in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 16 to 21 and the
Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 22 to 51 of
this Annual Report.

The financial risk management objectives and policies of the
Group are shown in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements. The particulars of significant events affecting
the Group that have occurred subsequent to the reporting
date are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Report of the Directors
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
using financial key performance indicators is provided in the
Chairman’s Statement on pages 16 to 21, Financial Highlights
on pages 4 to 5 and Five Years Financial Summary on page
328 of this Annual Report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

As a socially responsible corporation, the Group has
endeavoured to strictly comply with laws and regulations
regarding environmental protection.

The Company recognizes the importance of environmental
protection. The Company is committed to providing an eco-
friendly energy environment for our staff and has developed
energy conservation and carbon reduction policy so as to
minimize negative environmental impacts.

Details of the Group’s environmental policies are contained
in the section headed “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” on pages 100 to 152 of this Annual Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the financial year, as far as the Company is aware,
there was no material breach of or non-compliance with
applicable laws and regulations by our Group that has a
significant impact on the business and operations of the
Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

We fully understand that employees, customers and suppliers
and other (together “stakeholders”) are the key to our
sustainable and stable development. We are committed to
maintaining a good relationship with our stakeholders so as
to ensure our continuing development.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS
(Continued)

The Group regarded our staff as the most valuable assets
of the Company. The Group is providing a fair and
harmonious workplace where individuals with diverse
cultural backgrounds are treated equally. The Group offer
a reasonable remuneration package and fair opportunities
for career advancement based on employees’ performance.
The Group also provides our staff with different trainings,
including on-the-job training and training courses provided
by professional organisations in order to enhance our staffs’
career progression.

The Group believes that our vendors (including contractors)
are equally important in building high-quality property
projects. We proactively communicate with our vendors to
ensure they are committed to delivering high-quality and
sustainable output.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for each of the last five financial years is set out in
the Five Years Financial Summary on page 328 of this Annual
Report. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme as set out below, no
equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2019.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital
during the year are set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s Articles of Association or the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the period of the year ended 31 December 2019,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during
the year are set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements of this Annual Report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for less than 30% of the total sales of the Group
for the year. Purchases from five largest suppliers accounted
for less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of the bank borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2019 are set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements of this Annual Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices.

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted

by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 80 to 99.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed
during the following periods:

(a)

For the purpose of determining the qualification as
shareholders of the Company to attend and vote at the
AGM, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Monday, 18 May 2020 to Friday, 22 May
2020, both days inclusive. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged for registration with the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, no later
than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 15 May 2020, being the last
share registration date.

For the purpose of determining the entitlement to the
Proposed Final Dividend (subject to the approval of the
shareholders at the AGM), the register of members of
the Company will be closed from Thursday, 28 May
2020 to Monday, 1 June 2020, both days inclusive. In
order to qualify for the entitlement to the Proposed
Final Dividend, unregistered holders of shares of the
Company are required to lodge all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday,
27 May 2020.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Director
Mr. Miao Sihua
Mr. Tao Yu

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Guo Zining (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Zhibin

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Hung Ka Hai Clement

Dr. Li Zijun

Mr. Wang Shao

In accordance with Article 84(1) and (2) of the Articles of
Association, Mr. Hung Ka Hai Clement, Dr. Li Zijun and Mr.
Wang Shao shall retire by rotation and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the 2020 AGM.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from all Independent Non-Executive Directors,
and still considers them to be independent as at the date of
this report.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the existing Directors of the Company
are set out on pages 52 to 58 of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS LIABILITY
INSURANCE

Promoting good corporate governance and managing
enterprisewide risk is a priority of the Company. The
Company convinced that corporate governance and Directors
and Officers Liability Insurance (the "D&O Insurance”)
complement each other. The Company has arranged
appropriate D&O Insurance coverage on Directors’ and
officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against Directors
and senior management arising out from corporate activities.
The D&O Insurance will be reviewed and renewed annually.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the existing executive Directors has been appointed
for a term of three years subject to the provision of
retirement and rotation of Directors under the Articles of
Association of the Company.

Each of the non-executive Directors has been appointed for a
term of three years at an annual remuneration set out in their
appointment letters subject to the provision of retirement and
rotation of Directors under the Articles of Association.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
been appointed for a term of three years at an annual
remuneration set out in their appointment letters subject to
the provision of retirement and rotation of Directors under
the Articles of Association.

Save as disclosed above, no other Director have entered into
service contract with the Company which are not determined
by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than as disclosed in note 10 to the consolidated
financial statements, no transactions, arrangements and
contracts of significance, to which the Company, its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, was a party and in which
a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE WITH
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

Save as disclosed under the paragraphs headed “Related Party
Transaction” and “Continuing Connected Transactions”,
there is no transactions, arrangements and contract of
significance to the business of the Group between the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries, or a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during the year. During
the year, no transactions, arrangements and contract of
significance for the provision of services to the Group by a
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries was made.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the year under review and up to the date of this
report, the Company’s Articles of Association provide that
the Directors shall be indemnified and secured harmless out
of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which
they shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution
of their duty in their respective offices, provided that this
indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any
fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any Director.

During the year under review and up to the date of this
report, the Company has taken out and maintained
appropriate insurance to protect the Directors against
potential costs and liabilities arising from claims brought
against the Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests or short positions of
the Directors of the Company in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“"SFO")) which were to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein or which were required, pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (“Model Code”) of the Listing Rules were as follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the
associated corporations of the Company:

Equity Approximate
interest/ percentage
number of of equity
underlying interest/
Name of associated Capacity/Nature of shares shareholding
Name of Director corporation interest (Note 3) interest
HERGZ
B #E LR ERN
EENA BB EEEE M, HE (KtaE3) Aokt
Guo Zining Ace Rise Profits Limited Interest of spouse 10 (L) 10.00%
("Ace Rise") (Note 1)
il e Bo sz (et 1)
Chen Zhibin China Aoyuan Beneficial Owner (Note 2) 1,250,000 (L) 0.04%
("Mr. Chen")
FR AR ([BREE]) A R E BEmlEBA(KZ2)
Notes: Biat -
(1) The 10 shares are beneficially owned by Ms. Su Chaomei( & (1) 10 BABEELAEAZEBHRBEELLES
B34 4), who is the spouse of Mr. Guo Zining. %A -
(2) These represent underlying shares in respect of share (2) IhIERERER FRAEENERES ROIEE
options granted to Mr. Chen by China Aoyuan. A1 o
(3) The letter “L"” denotes the long positions in the shares. (3) [L]IEERBHHTE -
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company had or was deemed to have any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as recorded in the register which were required
to be kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

None of the Directors or their spouses or children under
the age of 18, had been granted any right to subscribe for
the equity or debt securities of the Company or any of its
associated corporations, or had exercised any such right for
the year ended 31 December 2019.

DIRECTOR’S INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

In order to eliminate competing business with the Group,
on 22 February 2019, China Aoyuan, Ace Rise, Joy Pacific
Group Limited (“Joy Pacific”), Main Trend Limited (“Main
Trend”), Mr. Guo Ziwen and Ms. Jiang Miner spouse of Mr.
Guo Zi Wen, entered into a deed of non-competition with the
Company.

In compliance with the deed of non-competition signed on 22
February 2019 “Deed”, each of China Aoyuan, Ace Rise, Joy
Pacific, Main Trend, Mr. Guo Ziwen and Ms. Jiang Miner has
made an annual declaration on his/her/their compliance with
the non-competition undertaking.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
status of compliance stated in the Deed for the year under
review and have confirmed that, as far as they can ascertain,
there is no breach of any of the undertakings in the Deed.

As of the date of this annual report, the Company is not
aware of any other matters regarding the compliance of the
undertakings in the Deed that are required to be brought to
the attention of the shareholders of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors had an interest
in any business which competes or may compete with the
business in which the Group is engaged.
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GROUP’S EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Company’s policy on determining the emolument payable
to Directors are based on the skill, knowledge, involvement in
the Company’s affairs and the performance of each Director,
together with reference to the profitability of the Company,
remuneration benchmarks in the industry, and prevailing
market conditions. To enable the Remuneration Committee
to give better advice on the Group’s future remuneration
policy and related strategies, the Remuneration Committee
has been advised of the Group’s existing remuneration
policy and succession plan, such as guidelines on designing
employees’ remuneration packages and related market trends
and information.

The details of the Directors’ emoluments and senior
management’s remuneration for the year ended 31 December
2019 are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, so far as is known to the Directors,
the following entities, not being a Director or chief executive
of the Company, had interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:
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ERRRERORERKRGEADN
RRRE

RZZB—NF+ZA=+—8 BEAQAESF
FETBTHRAEMME - THER(ALIEAR
AEFHTBTHRAR) RARF &M KA
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Approximate
Number of percentage of

shares the issued
Name of shareholder Capacity (Note 1) share capital
BREEBE HEBTRAE
BRERERE 14 (Hiat 1) HNEDHL
Mr. Guo Ziwen Settlor/Beneficiary of The Golden Jade Trust 396,375,000 (L) 54.58%
(Note 3)
R The Golden Jade Trust{E5E&M A
X@mA (Wit 3)
Ms. Jiang Miner (“Ms. Jiang”) Settlor/Beneficiary of The Golden Jade Trust 396,375,000 (L) 54.58%
(Note 3)
AR ([iTzt]) The Golden Jade Trust{ZsE:&Z A
=AM 3)
Main Trend Beneficiary owner (Note 2) 396,375,000 (L) 54.58%
BA E=EBANHF2)
RERREEEEERAT —T—IFk
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

Name of shareholder

BREM

China Aoyuan
B R E
Ace Rise

Joy Pacific
Sturgeon Limited
Asia Square Holdings Ltd.

J. Safra Sarasin Trust
Company (Singapore) Ltd.

Dawn Agile Limited
("Dawn Agile”)

Winfield Investment Limited
("Winfield Investment”)

Pine Capital Partners LP
(“Pine Capital”)

Pine General Partners Limited
("Pine GP")

Winfield Capital Partners LP
("Winfield Capital”)

Winfield GP Ltd
("Winfield GP")

Chiu Man Wai (“Mr. Chiu")
I ([#HEE])

Lai Wing Sze Teresa Francesca
("Ms. Lai")
mEkE ([Ert])

Capacity

&1

Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2)

RIEHIAE S (feE2)

Interest of controlled corporation (Note 3)

G AERES (ML 3)

Interest of controlled corporation (Note 3)

REHEEES (FiF3)

Interest of controlled corporation (Note 3)

RIEHIAE S (feE 3)

Interest of controlled corporation (Note 3)

RERVEE RS (f73)

Trustee (Note 3)

REEAN (B 3)

Beneficiary owner (Note 4)

BEnEBAAN(Mit4)

Beneficiary owner (Note 4)

EnBERAN(MT4)

Interest of controlled corporation
(Note 4)

RESEERER (At 4)

Interest of controlled corporation
(Note 4)

XEEEERER (fit4)

Interest of controlled corporation
(Note 4)

RESEERER (At 4)

Interest of controlled corporation
(Note 4)

XEEEE RS (fit4)

Interest of controlled corporation
(Note 4)

RESEERERS (A 4)

Interest of spouse (Note 5)

FoiBrEs (Mt 5)
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Approximate

Number of percentage of

shares
(Note 1)

the issued
share capital

BOBE HERTRAS

(HfaE1)

396,375,000 (L)

396,375,000 (L)

396,375,000 (L)

396,375,000 (L)

396,375,000 (L)

396,375,000 (L)

128,625,000 (L)

128,625,000 (L)

128,625,000 (L)

128,625,000 (L)

128,625,000 (L)

128,625,000 (L)

128,625,000 (L)

128,625,000 (L)

WET

54.58%

54.58%

54.58%

54.58%

54.58%

54.58%

17.71%

17.71%

17.71%

17.71%

17.71%

17.71%

17.71%

17.71%



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

Notes:

)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

The Letter
Shares.

“L" denotes the entity/person’s long position in the

Main Trend (wholly and beneficially owned by China Aoyuan) is
interested in approximately 54.58% of the total issued Shares. By
virtue of the SFO, China Aoyuan is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by Main Trend.

China Aoyuan is owned as to approximately 51.85% by Ace
Rise. Ace Rise is owned as to 90% by Joy Pacific (which in turn
is wholly owned by Sturgeon Limited) and as to 10% by Hopka
Investments. Sturgeon Limited is wholly-owned by Asia Square
Holdings Ltd., as nominee and trustee for J. Safra Sarasin Trust
Company (Singapore) Ltd. as the trustee holding such interests on
trust for the beneficiaries of The Golden Jade Trust. The Golden
Jade Trust is a discretionary family trust established under the
laws and regulations of Singapore. Each of Mr. Guo Ziwen and
Ms. Jiang is the settlor and beneficiary of The Golden Jade Trust.
Accordingly, each of Joy Pacific, Sturgeon Limited, J. Safra Sarasin
Trust Company (Singapore) Ltd., Mr. Guo Ziwen and Ms. Jiang is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by China Aoyuan by
virtue of the SFO.

Dawn Agile (wholly and beneficially owned by Pine Capital, which
is wholly owned by Pine GP) and Winfield Investment (wholly and
beneficially owned by Winfield Capital, which is wholly owned
by Winfield GP) are interested in approximately 14.10% and
3.61% of the total issued Shares respectively. Both of Dawn Agile
and Winfield Investment are ultimately controlled by Mr. Chiu.
Accordingly, the interests held by them shall be aggregated by
virtue of the SFO.

Ms. Lai is the spouse of Mr. Chiu. As such, Ms. Lai is deemed to
be interested in the 128,625,000 shares of the Company in which
Mr. Chiu is interested for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, according
to the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO, there was no
person who had any interest or short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

Report of the Directors
EFERE

FERFRRBRORIERRKROEREDN
BERKkE &)

wiz -

(1) (LI fREE ATHHERNITFE -

(2) AE(ATEAE2ETEEE) REHTRD
BHBPWAS4.58% AR - REEFLHE
7|<H RO B R AR s 0 B P B 4D R A

E)f

(3) PR EHAce Rise#EH#)51.85% ° Ace Rise
i Joy Pacific( i Sturgeon Limited® & #%
BIEBION RERREERATEE10% °
Sturgeon Limited B3 Asia Square Holdings
Ltd. 2 & B - Asia Square Holdings Ltd. &
J. Safra SarasinTrust Company (Singapore)
Ltd. MR B AKRZEFEA » ). Safra Sarasin Trust
Company (Singapore)Ltd. MZ A &1 A The
Golden Jade TrustI ¥ m A B EE#ED °
The Golden Jade Trust B —HEERL(E5
TIRBHIMBE ERRERR L - BHEXEER
I#Z+t& B AThe Golden JadeTrust (9% A

EZmA- Al REFZE %&Hﬂ & - Joy
Pacific ~ Sturgeon Limited ~ J. SafraSarasin
Trust Company (Singapore) Ltd. - EBRECSE
A OIXLTEERARBEAEFBIREFFRMDE

(4) Dawn Agile (i Pine Capital 2 &8 E&=HH -
M Pine Capital 8] HPine GP2EEXHEH)
K Winfield Investment (A Winfield Capital
> ¥ &F &= ¥ A MWinfield Capital Bl £
WinfieldGPZEEZ#EHR ) D RIREBITRG
BEARMNL14.10% [23.61% A2 - Dawn
Agile & Winfield Investment & & ¥ A8 5t &
Tl o Bt RIBFHFRBERD - BERHE
BREmEAD -

(5) BT hAHEEERB - At REHFRBPEE
BIEXVEmE - %ﬁﬁﬂsﬁﬁﬁﬁétf‘aiﬁgﬁ%
259 128,625,000 A R Akt A EA HER o

BREXHBEEZEN RZZE—NAF+ZA
Z+—H BEAQRTERELFLPEKDHE
36HRATHEENESELZM BEEMAL
RARB D KAMEERD P EE T AREE
FEEGEMEXVEE 2R3 D IEBRAR
AIWEMNERIAE -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”), which was adopted on 28 May 2019 (the
“Adoption Date”), for the purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to selected eligible persons for their contribution to
the Group. Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the Share
Option Scheme will remain in force for 10 years from the
Adoption Date.

Capitalised terms used herein shall have the same meanings
as defined in the circular dated 23 April 2019.

Who may join and performance target:

1. Any full-time or part-time employee of the Company
or any member of the Group, including any executive
Director, non-executive Director and independent
non-executive Director, and any supplier, customer,
agent, advisor and consultant of the Group who, in
the sole opinion of the Board, will contribute or have
contributed to the growth of the Group.

2. The Board may, at its absolute discretion, invite
any Eligible Persons to take up the Options at the
Subscription Price. Upon acceptance of the Option, the
Eligible Person shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company by
way of consideration for the grant of the Option. The
Option will be offered for acceptance for a period of
28 days from the Offer Date.

3. The exercise of an Option may be subject to the
achievement of performance target and/or any
other conditions to be notified by the Board to each
Participant, which the Board may in its absolute
discretion determine.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all Options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme is 72,625,000 shares of the Company, representing
approximately 10.00% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this annual report.
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The maximum number of Shares issuable under the Options
granted to each eligible Participant pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1%
of the Shares of the Company in issue from time to time. Any
further grant of Options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

The exercise period of the Options granted is determinable
by the Board, save that the period commences on the date
on which the grant is made and ends on a date which is not
later than 10 years from the date of the grant of the Options
subject to any provisions of the Share Option Scheme.
Subject to the lapse of any Options and the restrictions which
may be imposed by the Board, an Option may be exercised
in whole or in part (but if in part only, in respect of a board
lot or any integral multiple thereof) at any time during the
Option Period.

The Subscription Price of the Options is determinable by the
Board and shall be the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the Offer Date, which must be a Trading Day; (ii)
the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five Trading Days
immediately preceding the Offer Date; and (iii) the nominal
value of a Share.

No share option was granted, exercised, cancelled nor lapsed
during the year ended 31 December 2019 under the Share
Option Scheme.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, there is
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s
issued shares as required under the Listing Rules during the
year and up to the date of this report.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS HERERXS

The Company has entered into the following continuing RARRBE_T—NF+ZA=+T—HLF

connected transactions during the year ended 31 December BAIVATHEBRERS - ZEXHNFRER
2019. Details of the transactions are set out in note 34 to the RiFEMBREMT 4R T :

168

consolidated financial statements and below:
1. Trademark License Arrangement

On 13 August 2018, Guangdong Aoyuan Commercial
Property Management Company Limited (BR B E
HEMEEEAR AR (for itself and as trustee for
the benefit of other members of our Group before
listing) entered into a trademark license Agreement
(the "Trademark License Agreement”) with Aoyuan
Limited (RESEHBRAR]), formerly known as
Guangdong Aoyuan Property Group Limited (BHRE
BEEXEBARZAR) and Guangdong Jinye Group
Limited* (ERESZEEBBERAQF]), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of China Aoyuan, pursuant to which
Aoyuan Limited agreed to grant to the Group the right
to use the trademarks for a nominal consideration of
RMB1.00 for the period commencing from the date
of the Trademark License Agreement to 31 December
2020, which shall be automatically renewed for a
further three years perpetually unless the agreement
is terminated upon (i) three months’ prior written
notice from our Group; or (ii) mutual agreement of the
parties.

Aoyuan Limited is an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of China Aoyuan, one of the Controlling
Shareholders, and is therefore a connected person
of the Company under the Listing Rules. Given the
nominal consideration paid by the Group under the
Trademark Licensing Agreement, the transactions
under the Trademark License Agreement will constitute
de minimis continuing connected transactions exempt
from the reporting, announcement, annual review
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of
the Trademark License Agreement have been set out
in the section “CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS” in the
Prospectus of the Company dated 28 February 2019.
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Master Lease Agreement

On 22 February 2019, the Company (for ourselves and
as trustee for the benefit of other members of the
Group) entered into a master property lease agreement
(the "Master Lease Agreement”) with China Aoyuan
(for itself and as trustee for the benefit of other
members of the China Aoyuan Group), pursuant to
which the Group shall lease from the China Aoyuan
Group certain premises for office use (the “Lease of
Premises”) for a term commencing from 18 March
2019 (the "Listing Date”) until 31 December 2020
provided that the maximum annual rental payable to
China Aoyuan Group by the Group for the Lease of
Premises under the Master Lease Agreement for each
of two years ending 31 December 2020 will not exceed
RMB12 million and RMB17 million, respectively.

China Aoyuan is one of the Controlling Shareholders,
and is therefore a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules. As each of the applicable
percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) under
the Listing Rules in respect of the annual caps in
relation to the Master Lease Agreement are higher
than 0.1% but less than 5% on an annual basis,
the transactions under the Master Lease Agreement
are exempt from the independent Shareholders’
approval requirements but subject to the reporting,
annual review and announcement requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of the Master
Lease Agreement have been set out in the section
“CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS"” in the Prospectus of
the Company dated 28 February 2019.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019, the total
amount of fees payable by China Aoyuan Group to
the Group for the Lease of Premises under the Master
Lease Agreement amounted to RMB3.47 million, which
was within the annual cap of RMB12 million for the
same period.

Master Property Management Agreement

On 22 February 2019, the Company (for ourselves and
as trustee for the benefit of other members of our
Group) entered into a master property management
services agreement (the “Master Property Management
Agreement”) with China Aoyuan (for itself and as
trustee for the benefit of other members of the
China Aoyuan Group), pursuant to which the Group
agreed to provide pre-sale sales assistance services
and property management services at the pre-delivery
stage to properties developed by China Aoyuan Group
for a term commencing from the Listing Date until 31
December 2020.

China Aoyuan is one of our Controlling Shareholders
and therefore is a connected person of our Company
under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions
under the Master Property Management Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions for our
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules upon
Listing. As one or more of the applicable percentage
ratios (other than the profits ratio) under the Listing
Rules in respect of the annual caps in relation to the
Master Property Management Agreement are more
than 5% on an annual basis, the transactions under
the Master Property Management Agreement are
subject to the reporting, annual review, announcement
and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of the
Master Property Management Agreement have been
set out in the section “CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS”
in the Prospectus of the Company dated 28 February
2019.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019, the total
amounts paid to payable by the Group to the China
Aoyuan Group for the Property Management Services
under the Master Property Management Agreement
amounted to RMB213.041 million, which was within
the annual cap of RMB245 million for the same period.

Master Commercial Operational Agreement

On 22 February 2019, the Company (for ourselves and
as trustee for the benefit of other members of our
Group) entered into a master commercial operational
services agreement (the “"Master Commercial
Operational Agreement”) with China Aoyuan (for itself
and as trustee for the benefit of other members of the
China Aoyuan Group), pursuant to which the Group
agreed to provide commercial operational services
to properties developed or owned by China Aoyuan
Group for a term commencing from the Listing Date
until 31 December 2020.

China Aoyuan is one of our Controlling Shareholders
and therefore is a connected person of our Company
under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions
under the Master Commercial Operational Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions for our
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules upon
Listing. As one or more of the applicable percentage
ratios (other than the profits ratio) under the Listing
Rules in respect of the annual caps in relation to the
Master Commercial Operational Agreement are more
than 5% on an annual basis, the transactions under
the Master Commercial Operational Agreement are
subject to the reporting, annual review, announcement
and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of the
Master Commercial Operational Agreement have been
set out in the section “CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS”
in the Prospectus of the Company dated 28 February
2019.
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Report of the Directors
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For the year ended 31 December 2019, the total
amounts paid to payable by the Group to the China
Aoyuan Group for the Commercial Operational
Services under the Master Commercial Operational
Agreement amounted to RMB74.539 million, which
was within the annual cap of RMB75 million for the
same period.

Review and Approval

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the
independent non-executive Directors of the Company
have reviewed the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions and confirmed that the transactions have
been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms; and

(iii) in accordance with relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditors were engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 "Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditors have issued their letter
containing the findings and conclusions in respect of
the continuing connected transactions disclosed above
by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules:

1. nothing has come to their attention that
causes the auditor to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transactions have not
been approved by the Company’s Board.
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2 for transactions involving the provision of
goods by the Group, nothing has come to their
attention that causes us to believe that the
disclosed continuing connected transactions
were not, in all material respects, in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Group.

3. nothing has come to their attention that
causes the auditor to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transactions were
not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions.

4. with respect to the aggregate amount of each
of the continuing connected transactions,
nothing has come to their attention that
causes the auditor to believe that the
disclosed continuing connected transactions
have exceeded the annual cap as set by the
Company.

A copy of the auditor’s letter on the continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019 has been provided by the
Company to the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

Details of related party transaction(s) entered into by the
Group during the year under review are set out in note 34
to the Group's consolidated financial statement. Save as
disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” in this report which has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules, these transactions do not fall under
the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing
connected transactions” (as the case may be) under the
Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company comprises of Mr. Hung
Ka Hai Clement (chairman), Dr. Li Zijun and Mr. Wang Shao.
The audit committee, together with the Board, have reviewed
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed auditing and financial reporting matters
including the review of the financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the reporting date, the Group had the
following significant events taken place:

(1) On 13 March 2020, the Company (for itself and as
trustee for the benefit of other members of the Group)
entered into supplemental agreements with China
Aoyuan (for itself and as trustee for the benefit of
other members of the China Aoyuan Group) pursuant
to which the parties agreed to revise the annual caps
for the provision of the relevant services under the
master property management agreement and the
master commercial operational agreement for the year
ending 31 December 2020. Details of the transaction
are set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 13 March 2020. The transaction has not yet
completed up to the date of issuance of this annual
report. A circular in relation to the transaction will be
despatched to the shareholders in due course.

(2) On 13 March 2020, Shanghai Aohuiyan Health and
Technology Company Limited* (/8RB EHEERK
BRRAT]) (“Shanghai Aohuiyan”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, and Guangzhou
Aoying Investment Company Limited* (BME&%
BB AR ("Guangzhou Aoying Investment”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of China Aoyuan,
entered into a cooperation agreement in relation
to the the land plot situated in Fengxian Industrial
Comprehensive Development Zone No. 11A-01A,
Fengxian District, Shanghai City, the PRC (the
“Land Plot”), pursuant to which Shanghai Aohuiyan
and Guangzhou Aoying Investment shall carry out
cooperation on the project for the development
of the Land Plot (the “Project”), whereby (among
other things) Guangzhou Aoying Investment shall be
responsible for the overall development, construction,
operation and management of the Project and be
entitled to 70% of the economic benefits arising from
the Project. Details of the transaction are set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 13 March
2020. The transaction has not yet completed up to
the date of issuance of this annual report. A circular
in relation to the transaction will be despatched to the
shareholders in due course.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2019 have been audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu. It is the auditor’'s responsibility to form an
independent opinion, based on their audit, on those financial
statements and to report their opinion solely to the Company
and for no other purpose. They do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of the independent auditor’s report.

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire as auditor of
the Company and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
appointment at the 2020 AGM.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor’'s Report”
on pages 176 to 182.

On behalf of the Board
Guo Zining
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AOYUAN
HEALTHY LIFE GROUP COMPANY LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 183 to 327, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS REEXER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional FEREEZZEZREBEESENEEHE @ ZAHK
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the HIGAMBHENERSZAEENSEIE - 5LF
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These ERGEEEZERELBEAHBEHRLEASBE
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the [RIf  EET W ELEBERIEESZSR -
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Key audit matters

HEERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

EEZERNNEEREERER

Impairment of trade receivables and trade related amounts due from fellow subsidiaries and related
parties

BEZRUREARBEREANBLARERL EZHBREZRE

We identified impairment of trade receivables and
trade related amounts due from fellow subsidiaries
and related parties as a key audit matter due to
the significance of the balance to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, combined with the
significant degree of estimations by management,
in estimation of expected future cash flows of
collection of trade receivables which may affect the
carrying value of the Group’s trade receivables and
trade related amounts due from fellow subsidiaries
and related parties.
EEEREHRBFIAREKRFARWE R R REKS &
ZHEBFIBZREZNREREZEE - WIHNER
HiZEMBWMAIERBEEN - I EREFAKREE S E
WA K EW R R KB A R KRS B S EERIA &
HRKRBEeRE(FRETEESEEZE IR KFTIAZER
B BEEELEREEME -

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach
to measure expected credit loss (“ECL") which use
a lifetime ECL for all trade receivables (including
trade related amounts due from fellow subsidiaries
and related parties) as disclosed in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.
EEEERABBRYEREEREIRE LR AT =B
FEEBR([EREEER]D  ZAHiERE2HBHEE
EEFERA VB BRERMTIMBEEZE 2B E S EIREK
H(BREERRARWE RGBT B SHEERIE) -

Our procedures in relation to assessing impairment of
trade receivables and trade related amounts due from
fellow subsidiaries and related parties included:
EERTHEFRUKIBER IR ZME N F RS E
SHBRIBRECRFEE

Obtaining an understanding of how management
assesses the impairment of trade receivables
and trade related amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries and related parties by applying the
ECL model and assessing the appropriateness
of the ECL model, by examining the inputs and
assumptions used by the Group in calculating the
ECL;
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For collectively assessed ECL, we assess the
reasonableness of whether trade receivables
have been grouped based on common credit risk
characteristics and are assessed collectively using
a provision matrix with appropriate groupings;
while for individually assessed ECL, we assess the
creditability of the debtor with significant balance
by evaluating its past default records and its past
due exposure, on a sample basis;
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Key audit matters

HEEXER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

EEZERNNEEBRRELRSEE

Impairment of trade receivables and trade related amounts due from fellow subsidiaries and related

parties

EZRUREARBERERAWBLAREAKLESHBREZRE

As disclosed in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements, the measurement of ECL requires the
application of significant judgments which include
expected future cash flows and forward-looking
macroeconomic factors.

BN E MG mAMESRE  HHEEEEZFEE
SRERERHE (BREBHARRIRE RE RATEIEZE
mEmE =) o

As disclosed in notes 21, 23 and 24 to the
consolidated financial statements, the carrying
amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are
RMB67,550,000 (net of impairment loss of
RMBS8,721,000), trade related amounts due from
fellow subsidiaries are RMB64,394,000 (net of
impairment loss of nil), and trade related amounts
due from related parties are RMB14,198,000 (net
of impairment loss of nil), respectively, as at 31
December 2019.

%JﬂZZZDi*/—\Eﬁ“‘iﬁEEW%N 23R24%FE - R=ZT—N
F+ZA=+—H ESBEEZREKNEZEAEBA
}\Eﬂ%67,550,0007c(?D%WEWEAEMS,721,ooo
T)REKRBERNBARAEZHEAREBEAARE
64,394,000 (R EBES) REWBE 7 E 518
BRIEAARK14,198,0007T (IR RERIEST) -

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2019

Evaluating the appropriateness of expected loss
rates applied by comparing to historical recovery
rates of its customers and forward-looking
information;
BBRKEHERXETFPBERKRTETLERER
BRI EN A RANERERAXRTEE

Assessing the reasonableness of impairment
losses made on trade receivables and trade
related amounts due from fellow subsidiaries
and related parties with reference to the ageing
analysis, history of past settlement records and
subsequent settlements to estimate future cash
flows; and

DERKRONT  BLAETHERBRBENGTSE - &
HESRWRERERRARMEARIREKTES
HEAREZ REBERERARE + &

Performing recalculation based on expected credit
loss rates applied by management to ascertain
the accuracy of impairment losses on trade
receivables and trade related amounts due from
fellow subsidiaries and related parties.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs and the
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2019

EHRMBEEXGSMBERRARIE
HRE

FENAE EHEREANBRRRETEE
R A B S AR T B ) B A S R PL B A TR

ReE - YRIBFBESAHENTEGRER BT
(EREB)LABERESERNZBIRS @ iF
BEASN - BEENREENMEEMAE - EFTH
HHRENAR - SEMEMA LB RIOREEMA
fE ARERERZSKFNRE  BTERER
REBZBERETHRTERX —EARHERRAL
TE%@%%E B8 RR BRI A] A B HRRF Bl AR 5

i - ﬁAﬁ%%&#“%&EQiXT%%;M
ER AV BHRREREMELNEERE - AE
RAH)$E R BUR AJ AR AEE K ©

BEERBEBRBENETEANITEZ - &
EREXRAE - EEEFEHERTRITREEER

RBE - HEFI:

. a8k Bl A0 B PR X AR RF 3KE AR T 28 BUeR & B
BHRAFEERFERRANER - &t &
TR EFAREZFAR - ARREF
ARMEE WFRE Wﬁ%ﬁfﬁm
HiE - ANMGFAIRES REBRR - B
BER - ERERA - &&%WW%T%Z
£ Rt REERARFEMEHNEALR
AR ER SN EERTERNEKRH
RERRE R o

. TRREET A ARES - LRTEE
MEETIEFF @E%I#ﬂﬁ%lWﬂh
HIEREEBRRER -

. HEEEMRASABENSE 1 RAE
SEHEF AR REE NS EN



AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
3L % BED R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Wong Kuen.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

31 March 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
FARSRRAMEZEWRSE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE_Z—NFT_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
M= AR T ARET T
Revenue A 6 900,800 618,835
Cost of services Al 7 A AR (563,746) (410,082)
Gross profit EF 337,054 208,753
Other income HaA 7 29,662 6,629
Impairment losses under expected TEEIE B AR EL T 8 R E
credit loss model, net of reversal B8 - kR EE (3.547) (987)
Gain on deemed disposal of subsidiaries R {EH S B R R AW 36 4,576 =
Administrative expenses and other THRZ REARS
expenses (125,975) (89,045)
Selling and distribution expenses HENDHEFAY (2,470) (1,331)
Listing expenses FmAX (15,919) (15,513)
Share of results of joint ventures JEihAEEhREES (2,434) =
Finance costs B 75 K 7R 8 (2,334) (11)
Profit before tax B AR A 218,613 108,495
Income tax expense TS’ &2 9 (55,503) (30,240)
Profit and total comprehensive income — FR%EF| &
for the year ZE Y A EE 11 163,110 78,255
Profit and total comprehensive income AR AT FEME S REF &
for the year attributable to: ZHEEETE
— Owners of the Company —ARRAHEBA 162,478 78,144
- Non-controlling interests — e iR R 632 111
163,110 78,255
Earnings per share (RMB cents) SRAF(ARES)
— Basic — B 12 23.78 16.54
— Diluted —#F 12 23.77 N/AjE

RERBELEEEEARAR —T—NFR



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
GaepmBERAE

As at 31 December 2019 R-_ZE—AF+_-_A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hE  —TN\F
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000

(3= AR®T R AR¥ETT

Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 14 20,248 12,694
Right-of-use assets CREEE 15 100,783 —
Intangible assets mEE 16 4,320 3,031
Goodwill Bk 17 3,491 3,491
Interests in joint ventures REBahENRER 18 8,455 =
Deferred tax assets RIEFRIBEE E 19 2,576 7,389
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, BEW - BE R &RE
plant and equipment S iEe - 1,051
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E b FE YRR 21 209,400 =
Deferred contract costs BIES HI P AR 2,882 2,306
352,155 29,962
Current assets REEE
Inventories EE 20 653 77
Trade and other receivables B 5 K E M EW A 21 106,921 87,045
Deferred contract costs RIS #I R AN 4,971 9,492
Amount due from a non-controlling JE U — FEI BT B R R FE4E R A%
shareholder of a subsidiary IR 22 593 =
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries FEW R 2 B & Bl 5 R 23 64,394 175,933
Amounts due from related parties FE W Ea Bk 5 SRR 24 14,276 206
Amounts due from joint ventures W& & b3 FIR 25 19,491 =
Bank balances and cash SRITHB MRS 26 822,891 200,331
1,034,190 473,084
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 & E b FE S /I8 27 297,641 226,233
Contract liabilities ENEE 28 93,941 120,789
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries X RIEE N EPNGIE: 29 - 6,659
Amounts due to related parties JE 1< BA BSE 75 5RIR 30 834 =
Tax liabilities MIEEE 30,075 20,538
Lease liabilities HEAE 31 3,313 =
Bank borrowings RITE 32 100,313 1,779
526,117 375,998
Net current assets REBEEFE 508,073 97,086
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBAERE 860,228 127,048
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FeMEBERAE

As at 31 December 2019 R -_ZE—NAF+_-_A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-)N\F
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AREBT ARBEF T
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEIBEEE 19 1,080 757
Lease liabilities HEAE 31 12,832 =
13,912 757
Net assets FEE 846,316 126,291
Capital and reserves EAREK#E
Share capital &N 33 6,207 =
Reserves f# 838,861 125,675
Equity attributable to owners RRARHE AEGER
of the Company 845,068 125,675
Non-controlling interests FEFEIR = 1,248 616
Total equity 2 2 7R 846,316 126,291

The consolidated financial statements on pages 183 to 327
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of

Directors on 31 March 2020 and are signed on its behalf by: RREE:
Miao Si Hua Tao Yu
Pt (S
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
2= 2=

FI183ENTENGEVBREIN - _TF =
—t—BKEESHEREETE WA THIES

RERBELEEEEARAR —T—NFR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FARSEHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_ZT—NFT_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RATHEARR
Paid-in Non-
apitall Share Statutory Captal Special Retained controlling
share capital premium Teserve reserve Teserve profits Subtotal interests Total

Edar/hn hiftiag EERE Ak klGE R it FEhES Eh
RVB'000 RMB'000 RVB000 RVB'000 RVB'0000 RNB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000 RNB'000
J\iz v ARETT AEETT J\iz v \EETTL NEETT J\iz v AEETR NEETT
(Note 3] (Note b} (Note ¢
(frita) (Riith) (ko)

At1 January 2018 A5-NE-F-R 11,083 (14510) By 156,692 110,051 50 110,556
Proftand total comprehenive  EREFIRAEAGEE

income fo the year - - - - - 78,144 78,144 1 78,55
lsue of hares (note 3() [ - 74511 - - - 14511 - 1511
Aopropriaton tostatutory reserie A ERE - - 21,00 - = (21,000) s - 5
Netcontribution fiom Guangzhow KE3ENAEEEREEE

Royuan Asses Management—~~ ARAANELR

Company Limited - - - - 1843 - 18430 - 1843
Capital contribution from RAANELAE

& fellow subsidary - - - 10,000 - - 10,000 - 10,000
Deemed distiouton o utimate ~ REBEAKES

holdng company upon Growp. - AEEERATNAR

Reorganisation asdefined (E5RhE)

nnote ) - - - (32.803) - - (32803) - (32.863)
Dividend declared (note 13) ke ) - - - - - (132.600) (132,600) = (132.600)
At 31 December 2018 R8-NEtZRZt-A - 14511 0103 (31313) (4782) 81,216 125,675 616 126,91
Poftand total comprehensie.  EREHR2EAGEE

income for the year - - - - - 162478 162478 632 163,110
lsue of shaes note 33il) AR (Riz33i) 170 627,900 - - - - 629,620 - 8295620
Captaliaton sue of shares & EARRIE (i)

(note 33() 4487 (4480 - - - - - - -
Sharessuance costs (note 330) A8 233 o) - (32761) - - - - (32761) - (32,761)
Diidend decred rote 13~ ERKE (1) - (39,944) - - - - (39.94) - (39,944)
At 31 December 2019 i o e 6,207 625,219 0103 (31313) (4782) 203,69 845,068 1,248 846,316
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Notes:

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2019

The statutory reserve represents the amount transferred from net
profit for the year of the subsidiaries established in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") (based on the subsidiaries’ PRC
statutory financial statements) in accordance with the relevant
PRC laws until the statutory reserve reaches 50% of the registered
capital of the subsidiaries. The statutory reserve cannot be reduced
except either use to set off the accumulated losses or increase
capital.

The capital reserve includes: (1) a debit amount of RMB5,156,000
related to an excess of the proportionate share of carrying amount
of net assets acquired upon the acquisition of the remaining
interest in Guangzhou Aoyuan Property Services Company Limited
from Shenyang Hua Xin International Company Limited, a non-
controlling shareholder, in previous years; (2) share capital of
subsidiaries contributed by fellow subsidiaries of the amount
of RMB26,700,000 in total prior to the completion of Group
Reorganisation and (3) deemed distribution of a debit amount of
RMB58,917,000 in total to ultimate holding company upon Group
Reorganisation. For details of the Group Reorganisation, please
refer to the annual report of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018.

The special reserve includes: (1) a credit amount of RMB43,214,000
related to the net return to Guangzhou Aoyuan Assets
Management Company Limited (“Guangzhou Aoyuan Assets
Management”), a subsidiary of China Aoyuan Group Limited
(“China Aoyuan”), which represent the net fundings transferred
from Panyu Commercial Operational Services Business (as defined
in note 2 the annual report of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018) to Guangzhou Aoyuan Assets Management prior
to the completion of the Group Reorganisation and (2) a debit
amount of RMB18,432,000 related to the net contribution from
Guangzhou Aoyuan Assets Management, which represent the net
fundings transferred from Guangzhou Aoyuan Assets Management
to Panyu Commercial Operational Services Business prior to the
completion of the Group Reorganisation.

Q

B

FreEcEDR
BE_ZT—hFEt+-A=1+—BItFE

EERBBERBEAETEARLMBE ([HE])E
2 8 A R BRSO BT A R B F AR F (IR 1 Y a8
AANPBEEM HHRR) EBNEE  ER2EE
FEEIZENERRZMAEARNS0%  KRIEM
RIEIH R EIRIGEME AR - B RIRANR DA E
@ -

EARERE (1) AEEEBERETEREE
BERAR(RBAEFEAIFERBRE) KEEMNR
EMERBERARBR T E=EGBEMKEFE
EREEMELAnE &8 ARES, 156,000
TC o Q)REBEEHTAT - R R E A R ES
BARBABLEEARK26,700,0007T ¢ & (3)
REEBEHER  ARKERARREREES S
st AR#58,917,0007T - AL ESEAMGE
% BERHAEERE_E-N\E+-_A=+—
AILEFENFERE -

BREERE  (WVTHRREEEERAA([FEH
BREDWHBARBENREEELCLEEEGRA A
([EMNREEELLETE]) N FORAIEEEA
ERAEEBBEELREERS (ERLASEE
BT N\F+-_A=Z+—BLEFEZERHE
DRENBREEELEEEERNTIES)NES
SEHBARKA43,214,000t K Q) BMNERAEER
2EENFER(EESATKRITERNERRE
EREERENEBRNEEERBELEBRNFE
£)MEH£EARK18,432,0007T °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HEReRER

For the year ended 31 December 2019

e TR et m B = 1+— B IEEE

2019 2018
“E-hE —T-N\F
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
(i ARET T ARETTT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES LT
Profit before tax B 251 A% A 218,613 108,495
Adjustments for: R
Depreciation of property, mE - BER
plant and equipment REINE 7,508 2,919
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEH 1,076 898
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERESENE 3,552 -
Share of results of joint ventures EiEE &SR EER 2,434 =
Impairment losses under expected HHEEBEER TRRE
credit loss model, net of reversal B8 kR EE 3,547 987
Gain on deemed disposal of subsidiaries BIELEM B AR KR 36 (4,576) =
Exchange gain, net fE X e - FEE (18,994) (5,474)
Interest on bank borrowings RITIE A E 1,517 11
Interest on lease liabilities HEAENE 817 =
Bank interest income RITH B WA (4,824) (320)
Operating cash flows before LEECEHRLE
movements in working capital BeR=E 210,670 107,516
(Increase) decrease in inventories FE (Em) md (1,381) 16
(Increase) decrease in trade and 2 5 K E b U FIE
other receivables (&) " > (136,021) 2,878
Decrease in deferred contract costs BIEA YRR 3,945 2,749
Decrease in amounts due from fellow U [B) Z [T B 2 7]
subsidiaries IR A 111,539 77,573
Increase in amount due from a U — BT 8 1~ B) FE 2 A AR R
non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary ~ FIEE A0 (520) =
(Increase) decrease in amounts due JRE L R B 5 5k 3B (3 n) 3 >
from related parties (13,992) 6,412
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 N EL A FE A< FRIEE 68,467 29,237
(Decrease) increase in contract liabilities BHEECRD) LM (27,894) 75,711
(Decrease) increase in amounts due EANIEES = PNGIE S
to fellow subsidiaries CRA) 380 (3.486) 2,445
Cash generated from operations REEENRS 211,327 304,537
Income taxes paid B REH (41,420) (80,950)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& ZEFERETFE 169,907 223,587
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  BEBEW% - BE k& (18,560) (10,033)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (net of WEEHT B A B G HMBRFTER 2
cash and cash equivalents acquired) RELZED) 35 (80) =
Cash outflow on deemed disposal of BIEHENBRARR SR L
subsidiaries 36 (596) -
Capital injection on joint ventures RELEIE (12,850) =
Upfront payment for right-of-use assets FEREEERNR (84,918) -
Prepayment for construction of healthcare =~ BEFENBEBEERNEZE
and medical beauty industrial complex RERBZENR (100,000) =

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2019



For the year ended 31 December 2019

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

ReBaRER
BE_ZT—hFEt+-A=1+—BItFE

2019 2018
“E-hE —E-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET R AREFTT
Advance to a non-controlling shareholder B —EM B A B FEER
of a subsidiary IR FRIA (73) =
Advance to related parties B RERE T KIA (78) (53)
Advance to joint ventures BNEECERIE (6,002) =
Interest received B U F B 4,824 320
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, BEME  BERSE
plant and equipment Y zEe - (1,051)
Repayment from fellow subsidiaries RRH B A RIER 3,667 83,808
Advance to fellow subsidiaries BRI AN B AR FIE (25,943) (322,275)
Repayment from related parties MR 7 E T - 87
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REFEHFAREFE (240,609) (249,197)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES METE
New bank borrowings raised A RITER 100,313 1,779
Repayment of bank borrowings RITEREN (1,779) =
Interest paid on bank borrowings RITERENLFIE (1,517) =
Interest paid on leases liabilities HEBBEEMNAE (817) =
Advance from fellow subsidiaries EEINEVNEIEE:A 29,859 44,492
Repayment to fellow subsidiaries mEZMNBARER (10,756) (84,799)
Advance from related parties MR 7 20 834 =
Issue of shares BITRD 629,620 74,511
Share issue cost paid BT D BEITRA (28,273) (3,746)
Dividends paid to owners of the Company T FARRBEA L (39,944) =
Repayments of leases liabilities HEBREN (3,272) -
Capital contribution from a fellow subsidiary SEpk & @ E4E 51—
prior to completion of Group Reorganisation R ZKIBRAREE - 10,000
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ®EZEEFEREFE 674,268 42,237
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH BeRELEEY
EQUIVALENTS EnFEE 603,566 16,627
NET CASH FROM PANYU COMMERCIAL EEBENEEERY
PROPERTY OPERATIONAL SERVICE ERFMBHRLTE
BUSINESS - 18,432
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FYzHeRES
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR ZEY 200,331 164,373
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXEH s HE 18,994 899
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END ERXRZRERRE
OF THE YEAR AND REPRESENTED BY ZEYy 0
Bank balances and cash SRITHEBEIRE 822,891 200,331

RERBELEEEEARAR —T—NFR
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FeaMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019

GENERAL

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited (the
“Company”) is a company with limited liability
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and with its shares
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 18 March
2019. The Company was incorporated and registered
as an exempted company with limited liability in the
Cayman Islands under the Cayman Islands Companies
Law Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) on 13 December 2016. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in corporate information section
to the annual report.

The Company’s immediate holding company is Main
Trend, a limited company incorporated as an exempted
company with limited liability in the British Virgin
Islands. Its ultimate holding company is Joy Pacific, a
limited liability company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands which is controlled by Mr. Guo Zi Wen.
China Aoyuan, a company which is incorporated as an
exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman
Islands and with its shares listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange is an intermediate holding company
of the Company.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. Its subsidiaries are primarily engaged in
the provision of property management services and
commercial operational services. The particulars of the
Company'’s subsidiaries are set out in note 41.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“"RMB"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company and the subsidiaries.

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

GROUP REORGANISATION AND BASIS
OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

In preparing for the listing of the shares of the Company
on the Stock Exchange (“the Listing”), the companies
now comprising the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) underwent a group reorganisation as described
in the annual report of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2018 (the “Group Reorganisation”).

The Group Reorganisation was completed on 13 August
2018. The consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2018 have
been prepared to present the results and cash flows
of the companies now comprising the Group, as if the
group structure upon the completion of the Group
Reorganisation had been in existence throughout the
year ended 31 ended 2018 or since their respective
dates of incorporation/establishment/acquisition, where
applicable.

2.

meaMBRERME
BE-2-NF+-A=+—ALEE

SEEHRGESMBEBRNE
HEZ2FEH

RERARE I KB L (T Em )
B AREIREMBAR([AEH])BRF
BETRARETAREBE_T—\F+=
A=t BLEEZFEMIEERER
(T=EE4E]) -

SEEER-_FT-N\FNAAT=BZK
BE T \F+_A=+—HIFEHN
FEEaEMEANRER  SERaE
BREGEHERNERCTHENUZINAE
BREETARZEERASRE - B
REBEEHEZKENEERBEREE-F
—NF+ZA=1T—BLEFEXEREFS
B AL Beaz, Ui iE B (T8 ) —
BERFE -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

& M B H R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE—

192

APPLICATION OF INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(THE “IFRSs”)

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
IFRSs issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(the”lASB") for the first time in the current year.

IFRS 16 Leases
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
Amendments Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
to IFRS 9
Amendments Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement
to IAS 19
Amendments Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
to 1AS 28
Amendments Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle
to IFRSs

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to IFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

APPLICATION OF INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(THE "IFRSs") (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases

The Group has applied IFRS 16 for the first time in the
current period. IFRS 16 superseded IAS 17 “Leases”
("IAS 17"), and the related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply
IFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 “"Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease” and not
apply this standard to contracts that were not previously
identified as containing a lease. Therefore, the Group
has not reassessed contracts which already existed prior
to the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1
January 2019, the Group applies the definition of a
lease in accordance with the requirements set out in
IFRS 16 in assessing whether a contract contains a lease.

As a lessee

The Group has applied IFRS 16 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2019. As at 1 January 2019, the
Group recognised additional lease liabilities and right-
of-use assets at amounts equal to the related lease
liabilities by applying IFRS 16.C8(b)(ii) transition. Any
difference at the date of initial application is recognised
in the opening retained profits and comparative
information has not been restated.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
GaMBEERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019

APPLICATION OF INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(THE "IFRSs") (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)
As a lessee (Continued)

When applying the modified retrospective approach
under IFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the
following practical expedients to leases previously
classified as operating leases under IAS 17, on lease-by-
lease basis, to the extent relevant to the respective lease
contracts:

o relied on the assessment of whether leases
are onerous by applying IAS 37 “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” as
an alternative of impairment review;

o elected not to recognise right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities for leases with lease term
ends within 12 months of the date of initial
application;

o excluded initial direct costs from measuring
the right-of-use assets at the date of initial
application; and

o applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with a similar remaining terms for similar
class of underlying assets in similar economic
environment.

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases
previously classified as operating leases, the Group has
applied incremental borrowing rates of the relevant
group entities at the date of initial application.
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates
applied by the relevant group entities was 3.875% for
underlying assets located at Hong Kong and range from
6.55% to 8.94% for underlying assets located at the
mainland China, respectively.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBEERME

For the year ended 31 December 2019

APPLICATION OF INTERNATIONAL

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(THE "IFRSs") (Continued)
IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

BE-2-NF+-A=+—ALEE

3. EREBRRMEESEN([EE
MEREEN]) @)

HERMEREENE16RER (B

ERAA ()

At 1 January

2019
R-B-—IF
—HB—H
RMB‘000
ARBT
Operating lease commitments disclosed RZE-N\F+ZA=+—H
as at 31 December 2018 BEOCEHERE 11,430
Lease liabilities discounted at relevant REMES AR EE
incremental borrowing rates MEEAE 10,274
Less: Recognition exemption-short-term leases W RS — RAAERAEHR
and other leases with lease terms ended BB B 75 R 5 A BI B 1 65%
within 12 months on the date of initial HAMER BB 2@ A WE R
application of IFRS 16 WHEAMIE S (1,050)
Recognition exemption-low value assets ERBE-EEBEEE (140)
Lease liabilities relating to operating BHER—_Z—NF—H—HEAR
leases recognised upon application of BB B i s RS 165712
IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 ERERECEHENHERRE 9,084
Analysed as DT
Current T ED 3,058
Non-current FE 7t & 6,026
9,084
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FeaMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF INTERNATIONAL 3. EHERMHGHREER ([EF
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS MEBEWEEN]) &
(THE "IFRSs") (Continued)
IFRS 16 Leases (Continued) ERHMEBREEANE16REAR (&)
As a lessee (Continued) fERBERBA ()
The carrying amount of right-of-use assets as at 1 January RZZE—NF—A—H FRAEEEMNE
2019 comprises the following: HEBSFENTRIE
Right-of-use
assets
EREAE
RMB'000
ARBT T
Right-of-use assets relating to operating 5 78 e PR B B B 7 S 5 M R S8 1657

leases upon application of IFRS 16 BEEHENFEREEE 9,084

By class: RERS
Office premise WARE 8,637
Staff quarters BIFE® 447
9,084

The application of IFRS 16 does not have a material
impact on the retained profits at 1 January 2019. The
following adjustments were made to the amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at 1 January 2019. Line items that were not
affected by the changes have not been included.

FERBEERMBRELERNFIHREN_-F
—hF-—A-BNRBREMNAEAEBEANF
£ -N_T-NF—A-BNKEEHBR
MARPERNSHACAFLATHE - L&
AARTREBHFENIHER -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBEERME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_Z—NFT_A=+—HILLFE

APPLICATION OF INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(THE "IFRSs") (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

Non-current Assets ERBEE
Right-of-use assets CREEE
Current Liabilities RBEE
Lease liabilities HEBE
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Lease liabilities HEEE

3. EREBRRMEESEN([EE

MEREEN]) @)

HERMEREENE16RER (B

ERRBA (B)

Carrying
amounts
previously
reported at
31 December
2018

JE AT
—E-NF

+=A=+—8H

WEMREE
RMB'000
ARBTIT

Adjustments

BE
RMB’000
ARBFT

9,084

3,058

6,026

Carrying
amounts
under

IFRS 16 at

1 January
2019
R-B-h%F
—A—H
Eilt3pr S e
ERISE165%
B THREE
RMB’000
AR®T T

9,084

3,058

6,026
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FeMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. APPLICATION OF INTERNATIONAL 3. EHERBRMEREERN([EE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS HIEREER ) =)

(THE "IFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not ERGERKREMBMITRIEEITER
yet effective M58 & 28
The Group has not early adopted the following new and NEFBUVEEEFEAATEEBMBENKRE
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but not yet WE T E] R A& TE R B 15 i & £ A -
effective:
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts' RRHBRLENE17E  RRAY
Amendments Definition of a Business? RRETEREEREIR  EBENTH
to IFRS 3 CHES)
Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor BRI RREENEI0% REEEEBENAR
FRS 10 and IAS 28 and its Associate or Joint Venture: LEReHEAE8%  AECEZEHESR
(P}EW) EABES
Amendments Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current® Hp e E 15 BEN B AN AN
to 1AS 1 (L HES)
Amendments to IAS 1 Definition of Material* AERet S 15 R EAMATESR
and IAS 8 G-
(B3T%)
Amendments to IFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform? BRBBREERFR - FIREEHE
IAS 39 and IFRS 7 ER &5 ERIE39% &
EillaSepr e e
EFEACHES)
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 1 R-E-_—F— A B Z2ERABNERE
2021 HAR A R
2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions 2 BB RAAE-—E-_EFE—HF—Hx 2%
for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning FA R B FE R R Mn 2 B R
of the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January A REEWEEW
2020
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to 3 RET B 2 BRABNFEIEB AR
be determined
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 4 RZZEZTF—A—ARZEABRNEE
2020 HARE A2
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 5 R-ZE-_—F—HA—HRZERHBENFEE
2022 B A
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

APPLICATION OF INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(THE "IFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (Continued)

In addition to the above new and amendments to IFRSs,
a revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
was issued in 2018. Its consequential amendments, the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework
in IFRS Standards, will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

Except for the new and amendments to IFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of all other new and amendments to
IFRSs will have no material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements and IAS 28 Investment in Associates and
Joint Ventures deal with situations where there is a
sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. Specifically, the
amendments state that gains or losses resulting from
the loss of control of a subsidiary that does not contain
a business in a transaction with an associate or a joint
venture that is accounted for using the equity method,
are recognised in the parent’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that
associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses
resulting from the remeasurement of investments
retained in any former subsidiary (that has become an
associate or a joint venture that is accounted for using
the equity method) to fair value are recognised in the
former parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the
unrelated investors’ interests in the new associate or
joint venture.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

& M B H R

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE—

B e =1T—"HILFE

APPLICATION OF INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(THE "IFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 “Definition of
Material”

The amendments provide refinements to the definition
of material by including additional guidance and
explanations in making materiality judgements. In
particular, the amendments:

o include the concept of “obscuring” material
information in which the effect is similar to
omitting or misstating the information;

o replace threshold for materiality influencing users
from “could influence” to “could reasonably be
expected to influence”; and

o include the use of the phrase “primary users”
rather than simply referring to “users” which
was considered too broad when deciding
what information to disclose in the financial
statements.

The amendments also align the definition across all IFRSs
and will be mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual
period beginning on 1 January 2020. The application
of the amendments is not expected to have significant
impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group but may affect the presentation and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

APPLICATION OF INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(THE "IFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (Continued)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 (the "New Framework”) and the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in IFRS Standards

The New Framework:
o reintroduces the terms stewardship and prudence;

o introduces a new asset definition that focuses on
rights and a new liability definition that is likely
to be broader than the definition it replaces,
but does not change the distinction between a
liability and an equity instrument;

o discusses historical cost and current value
measures, and provides additional guidance
on how to select a measurement basis for a
particular asset or liability;

o states that the primary measure of financial
performance is profit or loss, and that only in
exceptional circumstances other comprehensive
income will be used and only for income or
expenses that arise from a change in the current
value of an asset or liability; and

J discusses uncertainty, derecognition, unit of
account, the reporting entity and combined
financial statements.

Consequential amendments have been made so that
references in certain IFRSs have been updated to the
New Framework, whilst some IFRSs are still referred
to the previous versions of the framework. These
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2020, with earlier application
permitted. Other than specific standards which still refer
to the previous versions of the framework, the Group
will rely on the New Framework on its effective date
in determining the accounting policies especially for
transactions, events or conditions that are not otherwise
dealt with under the accounting standards.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FeMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. APPLICATION OF INTERNATIONAL 3. BEREEMBEREER ([EE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS HIEREER ) =)

(THE "IFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of BEEestENE1E (BT AESES

Liabilities as Current or Non-current wERIERH

The amendments provide clarification and additional BT AR S B A RS IERBNABES

guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement QEL BREPMEE L+ - R EE

for at least twelve months from reporting date for R IR EEE R EEINES| - HA
classification of liabilities as current or non-current,

which:

o specify that a liability should be classified as non- o TN EREARET DB IES
current if an entity has the right, the classification EEENSEMYERTEEN12
should not be affected by management intentions BERERNEEBRRE  HEBEESEA
or expectations to settle the liability within 12 JETE)
months;

o clarify that if the right is conditional on the o EEMABER NB IR AR
compliance with covenants, the right exists 2 BEZE MR B R EER
if the conditions are met at the end of the BRERRES BB ABER L
reporting period, even if the lender does not test HEW T RR AR 0 &
compliance until a later date; and

o clarify that if a liability has terms that could, o EEMBEBSHEBER  ITER
at the option of the counterparty, result in its S FHERIEBEEREETEZAIHN
settlement by the transfer of the entity’s own RERITEETAEE  B|EES TR
equity instruments, these terms do not affect EERRMERERERE3I2% S
its classification as current or non-current only BMTH: 27| EBMI2EEEIEE
if the entity recognises the option separately as BREBZEEANBR TITZEGERATT
an equity instrument applying IAS 32 Financial SEBH OB ATEINIETRE o
Instruments: Presentation.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31 HEHRARKEFR -_ZE—HLhE+_A=+—H

December 2019, the application of the amendments will MAEERAE Eﬁﬁ;i:{ HEN N

not result in reclassification of the Group’s liabilities. HEHFH>BEANEENEBE -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis and in accordance
with [FRSs issued by the IASB. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements included applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based
Payment, leasing transactions that are accounted for in
accordance with IFRS 16 (since 1 January 2019) or IAS
17 (before application of IFRS 16), and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2 Inventories or
value in use in IAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

The principal accounting policies are set out below:
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities and
business controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
where the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

4.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FeaMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_ZT—NFT_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EX®itE% »

(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary or business begins
when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary
or business and ceases when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary or business. Specifically, income and
expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date of the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary or business.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries or business is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant
components of equity and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution
of relevant reserves between the Group and the non-
controlling interests according to the Group’s and the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-
controlling interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable IFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under IFRS 9 or,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FeaMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses, other than business
combination under common control are accounted for
using the acquisition accounting. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured at fair
value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-
date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance
with IAS 12 Income Taxes and IAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively; and

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangement of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangement of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with IFRS 2 at the acquisition date;
and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard; and

o lease liabilities are recognised and measured at
the present value of the remaining lease payments
(as defined in IFRS 16) as if the acquired leases
were new leases at the acquisition date, except
for leases for which (a) the lease term ends
within 12 months of the acquisition date; or (b)
the underlying asset is of low value. Right-of-use
assets are recognised and measured at the same
amount as the relevant lease liabilities, adjusted
to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of the
lease when compared with market terms.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree
(if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are initially measured at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets or at fair value.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FeaMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Merger accounting for business combination
involving entities or business under common
control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements items of the combining entities
or business in which the common control combination
occurs as if they had been combined from the date
when the combining entities or business first came
under the control of the controlling shareholder.

The net assets of the combining entities or business are
consolidated using the existing carrying values from the
controlling party’s perspective. No amount is recognised
in respect of goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest
in the net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over cost at the time
of common control combination, to the extent of the
continuation of the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income include the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses from the earliest date
presented or since the date when the combining entities
or businesses first came under the common control,
where this is a shorter period, regardless of the date of
the common control combination.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, which
represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period,
the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit (or group of cash-
generating units). Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in profit or loss and is not reversed
in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FeaMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)

Interests in joint ventures

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of joint ventures used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method,
an investment in a joint venture is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the joint venture. Changes in net assets of
the joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless
such changes resulted in changes in ownership interest
held by the Group. When the Group’s share of losses
of joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that
associate or joint venture (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group's net investment in the joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the joint venture.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)

Interests in joint ventures (continued)

An interest in a joint venture is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes a joint venture. On acquisition of
the investment in joint ventures, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in a joint venture may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
IAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised is not allocated to any asset, including
goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When a group entity transacts with a joint venture
of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the joint venture are recognised in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to
the extent of interests in the joint venture that are not
related to the Group.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
GaMBEERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to customers.

Control of the service may be transferred over time or
at a point in time. Control of the service is transferred
over time if one of the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If control of the service transfers over time, revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the service.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with IFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a net
basis.

Property management services

The Group provides property management services, sales
assistance services and community value-added services
to property developers, property owners and residents.
Revenue from providing services is recognised over time
in the period in which the services are rendered.

For property management services fee income from
properties managed under lump sum basis, where the
Group acts as principal and is primary responsible for
providing the property management services to the
property owners, the Group recognises the fee received
or receivable from property owners as its revenue and
all related property management costs as its cost of
services.

Sales assistance services to property developers mainly
includes cleaning, greening, repair and maintenance
services to property developers at the pre-delivery stage.
The Group agrees the price for each service with the
customers upfront and issues the monthly bill to the
customers which varies based on the actual level of
service completed in that month.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FeaMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_ZT—NFT_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Property management services (continued)

For community value-added services, it mainly includes
() common area and advertisement space leasing
services; (ii) home living assistance services such as
purchase assistance for groceries, laundry, repair
and maintenance of home appliances and furniture,
telecommunications, turnkey furnishing and move-
in services; and (iii) property agency services. Revenue
is recognised over time in the period when the related
community value-added services are rendered. Payment
of the transaction is due immediately when the
community value-added services are rendered to the
customer.

Commercial operational services
The Group entered into agreements with property
developers or owners to provide the following services

to their shopping malls:

Market positioning and business tenant sourcing
services which primarily involve:

o market research and positioning service and
business tenant sourcing service.

Commercial operation and management services which
primarily involve:

o property management services including security,
cleaning, repair and maintenance services;

o business tenant management and rent collection
services; and

. other value-added services, including car park
management, at the post-opening stage.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Commercial operational services (continued)

The performance obligations of the contract of
provision of market positioning service and business
tenant sourcing services of which the Group does not
have an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date, represent the grand opening of the
shopping mall which have to be happened following the
achievement of certain occupancy rate of the related
shopping malls as agreed. Accordingly, the revenue
was recognised at a point in time when the milestone is
achieved.

The Group has other certain contracts with customers
for the provision of market positioning services and
business tenant sourcing services separately and the
stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined
at contract inception. The performance obligation of
contract solely for the provision of market positioning
services represented the achievement of the market
positioning research and the design plan of related
shopping malls as agreed. Accordingly, the revenue was
recognised at a point in time when the performance
obligation is completed.

On the other hand, the performance obligation of
certain contracts solely for the provision of business
tenant sourcing services of which the Group has
an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date, represented the achievement of
leased area of the related shopping malls upon signing
of tenancy agreements. Accordingly, the revenue was
recognised over time. The progress towards complete
satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured
based on output method, which is to recognise revenue
on the basis of direct measurements of the leased area
of the related shopping malls to the total leasable
area under the contract, that best depict the Group’s
performance in transferring control of services.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FeaMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Commercial operational services (continued)

The provision of commercial operation and management
services represent providing the property management
services, business tenant management and rent
collection services, and other value-added services to
the property owners or tenants at the post-opening
stage of their shopping malls, the Group recognises the
fee received or receivable as its revenue over time in the
period in which the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as services are performed by the Group
and all related property management costs as its cost of
services.

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts
the promised amount of consideration for the effects
of the time value of money if the timing of payments
agreed (either explicitly or implicitly) provides the
customer or the Group with a significant benefit of
financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer. In those circumstances, the contract contains
a significant financing component. A significant
financing component may exist regardless of whether
the promise of financing is explicitly stated in the
contract or implied by the payment terms agreed to by
the parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payments and
transfer of the associated goods or services is less than
one year, the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the transaction price for any significant
financing component.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether
the nature of its promise is a performance obligation
to provide the specified goods or services itself (i.e.
the Group is a principal) or to arrange for those goods
or services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the
Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good
or service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is
to arrange for the provision of the specified good or
service by another party. In this case, the Group does
not control the specified good or service provided
by another party before that good or service is
transferred to the customer. When the Group acts as
an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount of any
fee or commission to which it expects to be entitled
in exchange for arranging for the specified goods or
services to be provided by the other party.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FeaMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_ZT—NFT_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Costs to fulfil a contract

The Group incurs costs (including labour costs, utility
expenses, materials and consumables and others) to
fulfil a contract in its commercial operational services
contracts. The Group first assesses whether these costs
qualify for recognition as an asset in terms of other
relevant standards, failing which it recognises an asset
for these costs only if they meet all of the following
criteria:

o the costs relate directly to a contract or to
an anticipated contract that the Group can
specifically identify;

. the costs generate or enhance resources of
the Group that will be used in satisfying (or in
continuing to satisfy) performance obligations in
the future; and

o the costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset so recognised is subsequently amortised to
profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent
with the transfer to the customer of the goods or
services to which the assets relate. The asset is subject
to impairment review.

Deferred contract costs capitalised at the end of the
reporting period are costs incurred to fulfill a contract,
of which, the performance obligation is not yet satisfied.
Deferred contract costs are recognised as part of cost of
services in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income in the period in which
the performance obligation is satisfied and revenue
related to the contract is recognised.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)

Leasing

Definition of a lease (upon application of IFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 3)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is
or contains a lease based on the definition under IFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date,
as appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of IFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 3)

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the aggregate
stand-alone price of the non-lease components.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FeaMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)
Leasing (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of IFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 3) (continued)

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract (continued)

The Group also applies practical expedient not to
separate non-lease components from lease component,
and instead account for the lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component.

As a practical expedient, leases with similar
characteristics are accounted on a portfolio basis when
the Group reasonably expects that the effects on the
consolidated financial statements would not differ
materially from individual leases within the portfolio.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of staff quarters and equipment
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. It also applies the recognition exemption for
lease of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis or another systematic
basis over the lease term.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)
Leasing (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of IFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 3) (continued)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group

in dismantling and removing the underlying
assets, restoring the site on which it is located or
restoring the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the
lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“IFRS 9”) and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
GaMBEERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Leasing (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of IFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 3) (continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at that
date. In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or
rate as at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise the
option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if

the lease term reflects the Group exercising an
option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)

Leasing (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of IFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 3) (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change
in the assessment of exercise of a purchase
option, in which case the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in
market rental rates following a market rent
review/expected payment under a guaranteed
residual value, in which cases the related lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 January 2019)

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FeaMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

Borrowing costs

All the borrowing costs not directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans and state-managed retirement benefit scheme
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered services entitling them to the contributions.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another IFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual leave and
sick leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
during the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
tax because it excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FeaMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with interest in
subsidiaries and interests in joint ventures except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)
Taxation (continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
each reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-
of-use assets and the related lease liabilities, the
Group first determines whether the tax deductions
are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies IAS 12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities separately. Temporary
differences on initial recognition of the relevant right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised
due to application of the initial recognition exemption.
Temporary differences arising from subsequent revision
to the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of lease
liabilities and lease modifications, that are not subject
to initial recognition exemption are recognised on the
date of remeasurement or modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.

Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

FEMERRMEE
BE_ZT—hFEt+-A=1+—BItFE

BEXEHBE #®

R|R (&)

EXEHBABREENTERBRAKER
EHRERRAHREHEELEERARE
MEREEMN D AREENHBRR -

RAKEERERREEELBHEEERR
MBEERZTEEEVIAR - AKEEL
EEMEREELRRAEAEEELMEE
afE-

PRERAFRBENHERENEERS
AEERBERSHENF12RAEHRR
TEBEANERAEEERHEERE - @
RERBERERH R - THERERHERE
RERAREENHERBMELANERE
BoHEMGTEHERERBANISER
HEeMmHEERR  BHOEREEERE
ERRREEREEITEENERZEN
EXETEREET AR -

EAATE AT AN R E E R
VAR R ER - AR E EFER — 5%
HEAYFE —ERRERBUNASHER
B BEASREERAGRYS TLAKN -

BIHI SR AER RN B FERR - B b
EHEARERNESRRNERARE
BRON » LB T - BV MR ER IR IT
AR EMEERSE RN ESER -

R EH AL &t AT E LR
SRR - BERBEEETAEBKE
PEEVEF AR o

RERBELEEEEARAR —T—NFR

227



228

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FeaMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building

For payments of a property interest which includes
both leasehold land and building elements, the entire
property is presented as property, plant and equipment
of the Group when the consideration cannot be
allocated reliably between the non-lease building
element and undivided interest in the underlying
leasehold land.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented as
“right-of-use assets” (upon application of IFRS 16) in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of the year, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use
of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date
(which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful
lives are reported at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses, being their
fair value at the date of the revaluation less subsequent
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets
that are acquired separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset
is derecognised.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, intangible assets and deferred
contract costs other than goodwill (see the
accounting policy in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets, intangible assets
with finite useful lives and deferred contract costs to
determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, and intangible assets
are estimated individually. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
GaMBEERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, intangible assets and deferred
contract costs other than goodwill (see the
accounting policy in respect of goodwill above)
(continued)

In addition, corporate assets are allocated to individual
cash generating units when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be established. The Group assesses
whether there is indication that corporate assets may
be impaired. If such indication exists, the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit or
group of cash-generating units to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying
amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units.

Before the Group recognises an impairment loss for
assets capitalised as contract costs under IFRS 15, the
Group assesses and recognises any impairment loss
on other assets related to the relevant contracts in
accordance with applicable standards. Then, impairment
loss, if any, for assets capitalised as contract costs is
recognised to the extent the carrying amounts exceeds
the remaining amount of consideration that the Group
expects to receive in exchange for related goods or
services less the costs which relate directly to providing
those goods or services that have not been recognised
as expenses. The assets capitalised as contract costs
are then included in the carrying amount of the cash-
generating unit to which they belong for the purpose of
evaluating impairment of that cash-generating unit.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, intangible assets and deferred
contract costs other than goodwill (see the
accounting policy in respect of goodwill above)
(continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares the
carrying amount of a group of cash-generating units,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group
of cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount
of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit or the group of cash-generating units. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest
of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount
of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other
assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating units.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating
units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FeaMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on
a first-in-first-out basis. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts and payments (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
(including trade and other receivables, amounts due
from fellow subsidiaries, related parties, joint ventures,
a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary and bank
balances and cash) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost:

J the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash
flows; and

o the contractual terms of the financial asset give

rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
fair value.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period. If the
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting
period following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit-impaired.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FeaMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_ZT—NFT_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EX®itE% »

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL"”) model on financial assets
(including trade and other receivables, amounts due
from fellow subsidiaries, related parties, joint ventures
and a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary and
bank balances), which are subject to impairment under
IFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables (including trade related amounts due from
fellow subsidiaries, related parties and a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary). The ECL on these assets
are assessed individually for debtors with significant
balances and/or collectively using a provision matrix
with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor;
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FeaMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_ZT—NFT_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EX®itE% »

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued) &MTRZ)
Financial assets (continued) THEE(B)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) 2 EERE (E)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease
in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt

(i)

EE R kAR i ()

. BEHAMEE - BRI
REAERAFAEHEANTH
e BHEBAEBERR
B BE T KRR A -

obligations.
Irrespective of the outcome of the above T EAET AR - BE AR
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit E@aHBAE30R - AIAEERSR

risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a debt instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition
if the debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk
if 1) it has a low risk of default, ii) the borrower
has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term and iii) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions in
the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes
past due.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
GaMBEERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EX®itE% »

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued) &MTRZ)
Financial assets (continued) THEE(B)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) 2 EERE (E)

(iii)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets (continued)

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower;

. a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

° the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

o it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, for example,
when the counterparty has been placed under
liguidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries
are recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due
to the Group in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available,
the financial instruments are grouped on the
following basis:
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
GaMBEERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_ZT—NFT_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EX®itE% »

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued) &MTRZ)
Financial assets (continued) THEE(B)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) 2 EERE (E)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

° Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the
Group’s trade and other receivables from
individual customers, amounts due from
fellow subsidiaries, a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary, related parties
and joint ventures are each assessed as
a separate group. Trade receivables from
corporate customers are assessed for
expected credit losses on an individual

basis);
° Past-due status;
° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue
to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through
a loss allowance account.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt and equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the group entities are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
bank borrowings and amounts due to fellow subsidiaries
and related parties are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
GaMBEERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and
recognises an associated liability.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when, and
only when, the obligation specified in the relevant
contract is discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 4, the management of
the Group is required to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The following is the key assumption concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of each reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FeaMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated impairment of trade receivables
and trade related amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries and related parties

The Group follows the guidance of IFRS 9 to estimates
the amount of loss allowance for ECL on trade
receivables and trade related amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries and related parties that are measured at
amortised cost based on their respective credit risks.
The measurement of ECL requires the application of
significant judgment which include the expected future
cash flows and forward-looking macroeconomic factors.
The loss allowance amount is measured as the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows with the consideration of expected
future credit loss of the respective financial instrument.
The assessment of the credit risk of the respective
financial instrument involves high degree of estimation
and uncertainty. When the actual future cash flows are
less than expected or more than expected, a material
impairment loss or a material reversal of impairment
loss may arise, accordingly. Details of the ECL on trade
receivables and trade related amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries and related parties are disclosed in note 43.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the recoverable amount of a cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated,
which is the higher of the value in use or fair value
less costs of disposal. The value in use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, or change in facts and circumstances which
results in a downward revision of future cash flows, a
material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December
2019, the carrying amount of goodwill is RMB3,491,000
(2018: RMB3,491,000). Details of the recoverable
amount calculation are disclosed in note 17.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBEERME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_Z—NFT_A=+—HILLFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT 6. WARSEEH
INFORMATION
Disaggregation of revenue A 5%
2019 2018
—B-RF  —EF)N\F
RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARBTT

Type of services i % % Rl

Property management services MEEIRIRTE
Property management services M E R R 390,122 305,997
Sales assistance services 56 o B) AR 7% 172,876 98,907
Community value-added services L& 12 (B AR 7% 66,924 48,324
Others HAft 16,465 -
646,387 453,228

Commercial operational services EEEE R

Commercial operation and BEELK
management services B8R 160,902 102,577

Market positioning and business miSEMN &
tenant sourcing services & BB AR 93,511 63,030
254,413 165,607
Total HEt 900,800 618,835
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FeaMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_ZT—NFT_A=+—HILFE
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 6. BWARSWBEH )
INFORMATION (continued)
Disaggregation of revenue (continued) WAREE)
2019 2018
—E-hEF —EF-N\F
RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARET ARBT T
Type of customers EFER
Property management services MEEIRIRTE
External customers INERE P 380,357 282,561
Fellow subsidiaries EEX-ING 256,402 163,961
Other related parties L {h BE B 9,628 6,706
646,387 453,228
Commercial operational services EESA T
External customers SNERE P 156,881 80,836
Fellow subsidiaries B Z M B A Al 85,284 84,771
Other related parties Hofh BEEE 7T 12,248 =
254,413 165,607
Total HET 900,800 618,835
Timing of revenue recognition W e 5 R
Over time —EBREREA 852,178 555,805
A point in time & {E R ] 2 48,622 63,030
Total HET 900,800 618,835

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2019



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

Segment information

The Group's operating segments are determined based
on information reported to Chief Executive Officer,
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM") of
the Group for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance, focuses on types
of services provided. The accounting policies applied in
determining segment revenue and segment results of
the operating segments are the same as the Group's
accounting policies described in note 4 above. Segment
results represent the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of central administrative costs, net
exchange gain and finance costs.

The CODM considers the Group has two operating and
reportable segments which are based on the internal
organisation and reporting structure. This is the basis
upon which the Group is organised.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments are as
follows:

a. Property management services

The Group engaged in the provision of property
management services, sales assistance services
and community value-added services for both
residential and non-residential units to property
developers, property owners and residents.

b. Commercial operational services

The Group engaged in the provision of
commercial operation and management services
and market positioning and business tenant
sourcing services to commercial property
developers and commercial property lessees.

No analysis of segment assets and segment liabilities
is presented as these information are not regularly
provided to the CODM for review.

FEMERRMEE
BE_ZT—hFEt+-A=1+—BItFE

ARSEEE 2

WASE (&)

AEBHEENFIRBHNOEERK
A D BRI A RRE IR EERER) W
BOMAAKRENTRAEAR (ATERKE
RERE([TELERRE] ) EFNER
BEE - -BEDRURERELD B2 ORE
REPTEM 2 8t IR A EXME4pmit 2
AEEEHBRMR - DA FARRILE
DEFRITEANER TS D BHAEHE
A - SRR O 5 R E R R B RO

IBLLERRERBRAGEEMEEZ R
AI2HOE - THIRIE A ERAR A & B AR AR
B o WIHAKEMARBAMESE -

AEBHELER 2| FMT

a. WK EE R

AEEBRERAMEFER - XX
REFRHTEEEMIHEEETHY
XEERS - HEWBRS RLR
KA RS

b. BREEZRHE

AEERERAAEYERERD R
BEYEABARETISEL N E
FRERBARBREL REER
i‘% o

B mE ST B RREE 2R B
AERHBEEAN - MLMEIIZEE
K o

RERBELEEEEARAR —T—NFR

247



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

8 M5 H R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 6. BWARSBEH =
INFORMATION (continued)
Segment information (continued) WA Z)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and UTAREBRIZREL N A 23RDIFE|ID M
results by operating and reportable segment: AR DT

Property = Commercial
management  operational

services services Total
NEEBRYE WEEERE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTT ARETR

Year ended 31 December 2019 BZ-E-NE+Z=A
S+-HLEFE
Segment revenue RN 646,387 254,413 900,800
Segment results DEES 163,473 73,553 237,026
Net exchange gain 0 5 a3 5 18,994
Gain on deemed disposal of subsidiaries RIELEMB AR K 4,576
Central administrative costs BEITHAAR (21,296)
Share of results of joint ventures FELEEEER (2,434)
Listing expenses Nl (15,919)
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEMS (817)
Interest on bank borrowings BITETHE (1,517)
Profit before tax BR BRI A 218,613
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE_Z-N\F+=A
=t+—HItFE

Segment revenue AHEA 453,228 165,607 618,835
Segment results DEEE 111,213 30,397 141,610
Net exchange gain B 3 s 5 5,474
Central administrative costs BETHEUK A (23,065)
Listing expenses FHRY (15,513)
Interest on bank borrowing RITIETH 2 (1)
Profit before tax BREE AT A 108,495
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBEHRRME
BE—ZE— A& —A=t+—BILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2019

REVENUE AND SEGMENT 6. WARZSBEH =
INFORMATION (continued)
Other segment information HEtoBIE
Property Commercial
management operational
services services Unallocated Total
NEEBRYE  BEELRE RORE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT ARBTT AREFT
Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-E-AE+ZA
=t-RLEE
Segment information included inthe AR HBEENENHBER -
measure of segment results:
Depreciation of property, n% - BEREENE
plant and equipment 3,772 1.211 2,465 7,508
Amortisation of intangible assets BREESH 1,076 - - 1,076
Depreciation of right-of-use assets RAEEENE 868 1,079 1,605 3,552
Amortisation of deferred contract costs & HiELA HKA - 29,067 - 29,067
Impairment losses under expected RERRRNBEEEER
credit loss model recognised in BATHRESE  MEEE
profit or loss, net of reversal 3,161 386 - 3,547
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-E-N\£12R
Zt-ALFE
Segment information included inthe AN HBEEHERHHER
measure of segment results:
Depreciation of property, n%  BEREHENE
plant and equipment 2,062 742 115 2,919
Amortisation of intangible assets BYAESH 898 - - 898
Amortisation of deferred contract costs  #SERLA KA = 34,687 = 34,687
Impairment losses under expected REERANEEEERR
credit loss model recognised in BETHHESSE  MRED
profit or loss, net of reversal 987 - - 987
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FeaMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_ZT—NFT_A=+—HILFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 6.

INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information

The Group’s revenue from customers is derived solely
from its operations and services rendered in the PRC
and over 97% of the non-current assets of the Group
are located in the PRC.

Information about major customers
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years

contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the
Group are as follows:

Fellow subsidiaries (note) EESENGIGED)

MARSEEE 2

= R
AEENEPWAERENRFERE R
PRIt RTS - BEARAEEBBI7 %3k
B EEMRTE -

FEEFRH

BEFERERFHRAGARERBITA
BI10% A F - A -

2019 2018
—B-nE —TN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

341,686 248,732

Note:

The revenue was derived from property management services and
commercial operational services segments. The fellow subsidiaries
are the subsidiaries of China Aoyuan (excluding the Group).

MEE

WAELEMEEERGELEEELRS - A
EHBARATRRENMBAR (TEEAE
®) e

7. OTHER INCOME 7. Halk A
2019 2018
—E-hE —T-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARBTIT
Bank interest income RITH B WA 4,824 320
Net exchange gain b H I a H R 18,994 5,474
Others HAh 5,844 835
29,662 6,629
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

meaMBRERME
BE-2-NF+-A=+—ALEE

FINANCE COSTS 8. HMBE=F
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET AREEFTT
Interest on bank borrowings SRITERFE 1,517 1
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEF B 817 =
2,334 11
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FBKREX
2019 2018
—E—-hF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR T ARBFT
Current tax BNHEARR 18
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") R PTIST
([EZEmFH) 52,407 36,199
Overprovision in prior years BEFERBEEE (1,450) =
50,957 36,199
Deferred tax (note 19) PEAEREIE (F7E19) 4,546 (5,959)
55,503 30,240

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax was made as the
Group did not have any assessable income subject to
Hong Kong profits tax for both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on EIT
(the “EIT Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of the
EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%.

BN A EBRZMF B EEREER
BROBRVUA - RELF BRI EHIE
A

BIBFPEARAMBEEEMAEHE (TR

Fris®isk]) ROECEMESFIAEHIEN - &
BB AR M EE25% °
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
GaMBEERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

According to the provisions of Caishui [2011] No.58
and Guoshui [2012] No.12, Chongging Sui‘ao Property
Management Services Company Limited and Chongging
Aoyuan Square Commercial Management Company
Limited., subsidiaries of the Group and branches
of Guangzhou Aoyuan Property Services Company
Limited, established in the western region of PRC,
enjoy preferential income tax policies for enterprises
developing in the western regions in 2019 and 2018,
and pay enterprise income tax at a reduced rate of 15%
for both years.

According to the provisions of Caishui [2019] No.13
and Guoshui [2019] No.2, Tianjin Aoyuejia Commercial
Management Company Limited, Tianjin Aoyuan
Yuemeiju Commercial Management Company Limited,
Tianjin Aoyuan Yuejiankang Management Company
Limited, Kunshan Aoyuan Property Management Services
Company Limited, Guangzhou Aoyuan Yilian Peninsula
Property Services Company Limited, Chongging Runhui
Property Management Co., Ltd and Xiangtan Yagao
Property Management Co., Ltd, subsidiaries of the
Group, enjoy preferential income tax policies for the
small and low profit enterprises during the current year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled

to the profit before tax as follows:

meaMBRERME
BE-2-NF+-A=+—ALEE
FrSMFAYX 2

1A P 15 B 5 2 B BR B A s A 89 3 BR 10
T

2019 2018
—E—-hF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARBTT
Profit before tax B 253 Al i A 218,613 108,495
Tax at the PRC EIT rate of 25% BRPBEREMREHTE25%
SFHEETIE 54,653 27,124
Tax effect of share of results of joint BIREETEEENTRETE
ventures 609 =
Tax effect of expenses not deductible EERB NG 2
for tax purpose 2,158 3,106
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax EAEBRW AL E
purpose (4,598) (1,368)
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBRBEE (1,450) _
Tax effect of deductible temporary RFER A R E R = B R 7
differences not recognised A - 322
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised  FERHIBEENHIETE 9,870 2,421
Utilisation of tax losses previously AR AR RN T BB
not recognised (3,073) -
Effect of tax exemption and preferential #& T E i B A R ERKNFIIE
rates granted to certain PRC subsidiaries 3% REREFRMNFE (2,480) (1,365)
Others HAh (186) =
Income tax expense P15 i 2 55,503 30,240

Details of deferred tax are set out in note 19. FEIEREF B HRMIFE19 ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_ZT—NFT_A=+—HILFE

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 10. EE - FETHABRERFH
AND EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS B

The executive and non-executive directors of the
Company were appointed on 6 June 2018. Details of FRARNBEZE - RFA - EFNART]
the emoluments paid to the directors of the Company EENMe (BREKXARARESIINEG
(including emoluments for the services as employees of EERECEEMEHRBOMS) F15

ARBRTESFEIFATEFR=_F—N

254

the group entities prior to becoming the directors of the wmr
Company) during the year are as follow:
Contributions
to retirement
Salaries and  Discretionary benefit
Fee other benefit bonus scheme Total amount
HMR BB
we AR R HE LS ag
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR AEBTT ARBTT
Year ended 31 December ~ BE-E-A&E+=R
2019 St-RLEE
Executive directors HITEE
Miao Si Hua BRE - 1,009 169 28 1,206
Tao Yu BT - 808 394 20 1,222
Non-executive directors FHITEE
Guo Zi Ning PE - 118 - - 118
Chen Zhi Bin RER - 118 - - 118
Independent non-executive  BUHEHTEE
directors
Hung Ka Hai Clement HEERERZE-NE
(appointed on “R-t-REZEHA)
22 February 2019) 250 - - - 250
Li Zijun (appointed on FFEBE(MZE-NE
22 February 2019) —A-t-BEZE) 189 - - - 189
Wang Shao (appointed on IREEMZZ-NE
22 February 2019) R T-BEEA) 189 - - - 189
Total Bt 628 2,053 563 48 3,292
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

10. EF - FETHRARRERH

meaMBRERME
BE-2-NF+-A=+—ALEE

5, NE)

Contributions
to retirement

Salariesand  Discretionary benefit
Fee  other benefit bonus scheme  Total amount
HMER BB
e HiEH BB HE S pki
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETTL
Year ended 31 December ~ BE-E-N\E+=F
2018 =t-ALEE
Executive directors HITEE
Miao Si Hua BRE - 1,203 491 23 1,717
Tao Yu (appointed on BF(R-Z-N\E AAH
6 June 2018) EZ2f) - 467 246 19 732
Non-executive directors HFHTEE
Guo Zi Ning HEE - - - - -
Chen Zhi Bin R - - - - -
Total @i - 1,670 737 4 2,449
Note: The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for W : LlBTESTFMARSERETEARRR

their services in connection with the management of the

affairs of the Company and the Group.

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above

were for their services as directors of the Company.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of the

Company.

REEETE PR AR B Hr BN -

RERTEEFMARERBAAAT

EEMEHRBOEH -

ERBI AT EEHM A REREER

AREFMMRERBEHFH -

RERELEEEERAR — T NER
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10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

Mr. Miao Si Hua is the chief executive officer of the
Group, and his emoluments disclosed above include
those for services rendered by him as chief executive
officer.

No remuneration was paid or is payable to certain
directors of the Company in respect of their services
during the prior year.

Mr. Hung Ka Hai Clement, Dr. Li Zijun and Mr. Wang
Shao are appointed as independent non-executive
directors of the Company as at 22 February 2019 and
no remuneration was paid to them for the year ended
31 December 2018.

The discretionary bonus is determined based on the
performance of individual and market trend for the
year.

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included
2 (2018: 1) directors for the year ended 31 December
2019. The remunerations of the remaining 3 (2018: 4)
individuals for the year ended 31 December 2019 are
set out below:

10. EF - FETHRARRERH

5, NED)

HEERERAEETETHRAEL - £t
BENFHEFEFESERTHRARREHR
RGO HFH -

RAFEREFE  BERAETEEOR
765 11 5§ 8 1) L S ASHE AR 7 B

HEEEE FTFEBERTEREERS
E-NE-A-+-REZTALRATE
NIEMITES  AARAREE=ZT—N\
F+_A=+—HALEFETERARSIH

BISTEAERFANEAXRRETISEE
-

HE_TZ—hAhF+-_A=1+t—BLFE
AEEREEaTHAIRERE (2
—NF: —Z)EF -HE-_FT—NF
+ZA=+—HLEFE #HT=%(ZF
—\F : MH) ALHFHE T ¢

2019 2018

—E-NE —E-N\F

RMB’'000 RMB’'000

ARET T ARET T

Salaries and other benefits FekHEMEHN 2,153 2,890

Discretionary bonus BB TEAT 1,269 1,797
Contributions to retirement benefit RIRE T B R

scheme 65 79

3,487 4,766
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10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 10.

AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

The emoluments were within the following bands:

Nil to HKD 1,000,000 (equivalent

meaMBRERME
BE-2-NF+-A=+—ALEE

21,000,000 7T (A& R

to nil to RMB876,000)
HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000
(equivalent to RMB876,001
to RMB1,314,000)
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000
(equivalent to RMB1,314,001
to RMB1,752,000)
HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000
(equivalent to RMB1,752,001
to RMB2,191,000)

T & AR#876,0007T)
1,000,001% 7L E 1,500,000/ ¢
(IHERARER76,001 TE

AR¥1,314,0007T)
1,500,001 7T E2,000,0007% 7T
(HERARE1,314,001 TE
AER#1,752,0007T)
2,000,001 7L E2,500,000% 7T
(HEENARE1,752,001 TE
AR#2,191,0007T)

EF FETBRARRERTH
BH ()

HINN T AT EHE -

2019 2018

—E-NEF —E-N\F

No. of No. of

employees employees

EEHE EBEHA

3

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to any of the directors or the five highest paid
individuals (including directors and employees) as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. In addition, no directors
waived any emoluments during the year.

REAR > AEERERTAESSIAER
BEFMAL(BRESRESR) I EMR B
T ERRSIMARIMAREE RN ES
SAERBERAE - s RFER - BEE
EREEAHE -

RERBELEEEEARAR —T—NFR
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11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

ncial Statements

e TR et m B = 1+— B IEEE

11. £AEF

2019 2018
=E-NF —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FT ARBEF T
Profit for the year has been arrived FNm FAEHBR AT
at after charging: RIEGH :
Auditors’ remuneration % SR B 2,630 1,880
Directors’ emoluments (note 10) E=W< (FTsE10) 3,292 2,449
Other staff’s salaries and other benefits  Hth 8 T Bl & H 18 7 291,645 238,695
Other staff's contributions to retirement EHfth 8 T 7 R K18 Az 2 5%
benefit scheme 48,301 37,572
Other staff’s contributions to HEMWET Z7EEABESHK
housing provident funds 11,142 9,402
Total staff costs BT KA 354,380 288,118
Amortisation of deferred contract costs  #$5iEIE S 49K AN 29,067 34,687
Depreciation for property, plant and ME - BERRETE
equipment 7,508 2,919
Depreciation for right-of-use assets FREEENE 3,552 =
Amortisation of intangible assets B EER
(included in cost of services) (T ABRTS A ZAR) 1,076 898
Late charge for tax filing (included in MIBRMB NS
other expenses) (FFAHAF ) - 5,293
Late charge for retirement benefit RKEMETEIRERE
scheme and housing provident funds Ntk = 518
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBEHRRME
BHE_E—hE+-_A=+—8L&EE

EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. SREF
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per RAREEANBLBREAREEEFTY
share attributable to owners of the Company is based BIBEATEIREE -
on the following data:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARBEF T
Earnings: ZH
Earnings for the purposes of basic BARETEERERK
and diluted earnings per share, EERNMHOEF (WEA)
as appropriate (Profit for the year (RRE B AEL
attributable to owners of the F R F)
Company) 162,478 78,144
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
Number of shares: RGEE :
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ AR EEREAEFH
shares for the purposes of basic LB
earnings per share 683,267,123 472,496,809
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BeErLTaRNTE
shares:
- Over-allotment option — R Ao AR 297,211 N/A
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ ARFTEEFREERFH
shares for the purpose of diluted T RAR NAE 1 B
earnings per share 683,564,334 N/A

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share
were based on the assumption that the capitalisation
issue as in note 33(ii) had been completed on 1 January
2018. No diluted earnings per share were presented for
the year ended 31 December 2018 as there were no

potential ordinary shares in issue during that year. A e

BERERNRBERNIRBENMCEETD
RZE-NF-A-BERHORKRFAE
(RLPFE33(i) - ARZFAALEEED
BTEER Bt YERBEE—FT N
Ft-A=THLFEEINEREER

RERBELEEEEARAR —T—NFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_ZT—NFT_A=+—HILFE

13. DIVIDENDS 13. KR
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZT-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARBTT
Dividends, recognised as distribution RE - REFADIK :

during the year:

2018 final dividend of —E-N\FREARKRE
RMBO0.055 per share Bl AK®0.0557T 39,944 -
2017 dividend declared by ZE—t+FHBAA
the subsidiary (note) TR AR (KT5E) = 132,600
39,944 132,600
Note: Prior to the completion of Group Reorganisation, Aoyuan fizE : REESZATKA 0 BEGRESE (EIMN)
Healthy Life (Guangzhou) Group Company Limited (B2[E fE SEERAR (AIBERREREYMEE
BRAEE (BIN) £E@MAR AR formerly known as Guangdong BERAR)AHERESREREARKE
Aoyuan Commercial Property Management Limited (f& 132,600,000t R —ZE— NFE+HF—H
REAEEEMEEEBMR AR )declared a dividend of FERERRARMBRARMNEEEES&
RMB132,600,000 to China Aoyuan and settled through the i o
current account with its fellow subsidiaries on 1 July 2018.
For dividend declared by the subsidiary, the rate of KB RARERMNBREMS * ARKRER
dividend and the number of shares ranking for the above k=Z=H LB 2D e YERE B SR
dividend are not presented as such information is not RMETEER  WUEZF|EHEER -
considered meaningful having regard to the purpose of the
consolidated financial statements.
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final RIEHME&ERE st ERHREBEEHD
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 726,250,000k B BT ERAR - EF R
2019 of RMB0.09 per ordinary share, in an aggregate EMAE T AT+ -_A=+—BIHF
amount of RMB65,363,000, taking into account the ERMABKRESRTE @A ARE0.097T
726,250,000 ordinary shares in issue at the reporting (&H AR¥65,363,0007T) @ MEAZFEAR
date, have been proposed by the Board of Directors AEIREREERFBFAE EHESE
and is subject to approval by the shareholders of the EE - SREHIRE EZH IR AR B
Company in the forthcoming annual general meeting. BRZEGAVBBRRERREAE -

The final dividend proposed after the end of the
reporting period have not been recognised as liabilities
in these consolidated financial statements.
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FaMBEERME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_Z—NFT_A=+—HILLFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ¥ - BER "

Office Motor Leasehold
Buildings equipment vehicles  improvements Total
EF BAERE RE HEXR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT

cosT S
At 1 January 2018 RZZ-\E-A-H 606 7,523 1,008 4,686 13,823
Additions ME - 4,607 467 4,959 10,033
At 31 December 2018 RZEB-NETZA=1-R 606 12,130 1,475 9,645 23,856
Additions AE = 13,782 57 5772 19,611
Acquisitions of subsidiaries KRB AR (335

(note 35) - 210 - - 210
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) &M B (Hix36) = (2,109) S (2,742) (4,851)
At 31 December 2019 R-B-NF+-H=1-H 606 24,013 1,532 12,675 38,826
DEPRECIATION k|
At 1 January 2018 RZE-\§-A-H 58 4,719 796 2,670 8,243
Provided for the year EERE 29 1,778 178 934 2,919
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\F+ZA=1—-H 87 6,497 974 3,604 11,162
Provided for the year EERE 29 4,797 160 2,522 7,508
Eliminated on disposal of HEH B A (FiE36)

subsidiaries (note 36) - (92) - - (92)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-AE+ZA=1-H 116 11,202 1,134 6,126 18,578
CARRYING VALUES HHEE
At 31 December 2019 R-B-NF+-H=1-H 490 12,811 398 6,549 20,248
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\ET-A=1—H 519 5,633 501 6,041 12,694
The above items of property, plant and equipment are it - HmERBREEE IR R EE
depreciated over their useful lives as follows, after FIAEBEBIL Ty R EHNIRE G
taking into account the estimated residual value, on a T E
straight-line basis:
Buildings 20 years R 204
Office equipment 3 to 5 years WA= 3E 54
Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years Ve 3E 54
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of relevant HENR VA HRE3E

lease term or 3 to 5 years SEZEBEE

RERELEEZEEARAT —Z—hER 261



& M B H R

262

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR et m B = 1+— B IEEE

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2019

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 15. EHESEE
Office Staff  Leasehold
premise quarters land Total
WAEYE BIE: HELH @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AREFTT ARET:T
As at 1 January 2019 RZE-N$¥—A—H
Carrying amount HEE 8,637 447 = 9,084
As at 31 December 2019 RZZ-NF+-A=1+—H 15,660 205 84,918 100,783
Carrying amount REE
For the year ended HEZZ-NF
31 December 2019 TZA=t-RILEE
Depreciation charge NERY 3,252 300 = 3,552
Expense relating to short-term leases S EAFAARRARH % 3,305
Expense relating to other leases with BB HITE & X E A B BT A5 3R
lease terms end within 12 months of ~ &S%8|F 165 B £:H 121
the date of initial application of IFRS 16 ANEIH v £t EH B
ER 1,191
Expense relating to leases of low-value EKEBEEMRE TBEREE
assets excluding short-term leases of ~ BEEHHE) HBEH X
low-value assets 37
Total cash outflows for leases HEZBReRLaE 93,540
Additions to right-of-use assets NEEFAEEE 95,251



15.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

The Group leases various offices premise and staff
quarters for its operations. Lease contracts are entered
into for fixed terms of two to ten years. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. In determining
the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition
of a contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for
staff quarters and office equipment. As at 31 December
2019, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the
portfolio of short-term leases to which the short-term
lease expense disclosed in this note.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
acquired a parcel of land located in Shanghai, the PRC,
with a total area of approximately 30,369.2 square
meters, which will be developed into a healthcare and
medical beauty industrial complex. Lump sum payments
were made upfront to acquire the parcel of land, and
the land use right certificate was obtained by the Group
on 30 December 2019.

FEMERRMEE
BE_ZT—hFEt+-A=1+—BItFE

15. (FHESEE =

AEEHERERLAEMEREIEER
REZ - HEARNEH2EE10FE
FEHIRRAT AL - MERFRTYE [E R B L i
A BREETRGER LGS - REEHE
HANFHE AT RESENRER - A&EH
EAGRMNERILERE A R R RGBT
HiR -

AEBTERRETEE RPARBILE
HHE -R-_T—-NF+-_A=+—8"
FEHIE E AR A RN AN TR E R B
HERXZEHEEES -

RBE-_ZT—NWF+-A=+—HLHF
B AREWRBARTR LGN BT
W #ATEFEX30,369.2F 5K - #EAE
BEREERBEERNEXIKAE -DRATY
H—RERRANEZIR - BEASER
R-E—NWF+_A=1+tHRELHFER

*g?éa °

RERBELEEEEARAR —T—NFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_ZT—NFT_A=+—HILFE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. | HE
Property
management
contracts
MESEEN
RMB’'000
ARETT
cosT R
At 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F—H—HBXk
- \F+=ZA=+—8 4,493
Acquisitions of subsidiaries (note 35) g % — 1 B B A ) (B9 3E35) 2,365
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+-_A=+—H 6,858
AMORTISATION By
At 1 January 2018 RZE—N\F—H—H 564
Charge for the year FANEMA 898
At 31 December 2018 RZZB-N\F+-A=+—H 1,462
Charge for the year FANEHR 1,076
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NF+-_A=+—H 2,538
CARRYING AMOUNTS AR EE
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NF+-_HA=+—H 4,320
At 31 December 2018 R_ZE-\F+_A=+—H 3,031
The property management contracts were acquired from MEEBEHNNERBBENEARBE L
third parties through the acquisition of subsidiaries. FE=ZFEE -
The intangible assets have finite useful lives and EmEEEEBRERAFH  WNT=EHR
amortised on a straight line basis over the remaining FHFIERE N ER NI EREEH -

contact terms ranging from 2 to 5 years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_Z—NFT_A=+—HILLFE

GOODWILL 17. B&
RMB’'000
ARET T
COST AND CARRYING AMOUNTS BARREE
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 WKRZ-ZE—N\F—A—H ' —E—N\F+=A
and 31 December 2019 =t+—BEk-_Z—hF+_A=+—H 3,491

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
acquired ZHHMWERBEER LT Anhui Hanlin
Property Services Company Limited (“Anhui Hanlin"”)
from an independent third party, which is engaged in
providing property management services (“Anhui Hanlin
Business”) in Bengbu, Anhui Province, the PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group acquired FRYIFERYEEEBFMR AR Shenzhen
Huazhong Property Management Company Limited
("Shenzhen Huazhong”) from an independent
third party, which is engaged in providing property
management services (“Shenzhen Huazhong Business”)
in Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, the PRC.

Goodwill acquired in business combinations is allocated,
at acquisition, to the cash generating units (“CGUs") of
Anhui Hanlin Business (RMB1,602,000) and Shenzhen
Huazhong Business (RMB1,889,000) that are expected
to benefit from those business combinations.

The recoverable amounts of CGUs of Anhui Hanlin
Business and Shenzhen Huazhong Business have been
determined on the basis of value in use calculations.
Their recoverable amounts are based on certain similar
key assumptions. The value in use calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial forecast approved
by the management of the Group covering a 5-year
period. All set of cash flows beyond the 5-year period
are extrapolated using a zero growth rate. This growth
rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts
and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate
for the relevant industry.

BE-_ZT—A"F+-A=+—HLTFE "
AEBBBYE =T WEZHBMHYER
BERRA ([REBM] - ZEHMR G
B2 A SR MR HMEEERE ([ 27
MR

BE_ZT—tF+t-_A=1T—HLEE "
AEBEBIE=THEFRINETYDEE
BERAR(DRINES ] RINERRF
BB RE R IR 9 5% & 1 iR (TR
FERERL) o

W EBAHESHEEEIRE
TEEBRZEREHTR XL E BN
¥ (AR¥1,602,0007T) R RIIZES
% (AR 1,889,0007T) MRS EL BAL
(BEELEM] -

RRBMEB LR EHEBRSELSE
R BB B IERNEREBENEE
T AIRESBERE THUNEZRKR
BE ECHAEEECRAAKEEEER
HERERFHVBREANRSRER
Rl BBRFHR AR RELRTIE
RXHEERFH - ZIERXDRBABITE
BRBAET - B TEBEEBITR2TH
RHERER -

RERBELEEEEARAR —T—NFR
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17.

18.

GOODWILL (Continued)

Cash flow projections during the budget period for
both Anhui Hanlin Business and Shenzhen Huazhong
Business are based on the budgeted services revenues
and expected gross margins during the budget period
and the inflation of the PRC during the forecast
period. Expected cash inflows, which include budgeted
services revenues, gross margins and inflation
have been determined based on past performance
and management’'s expectations for the market
development. As at the year end date, the recoverable
amounts based on value in use calculations exceed the
carrying amount of the CGUs, no impairment losses are
recognised.

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

Unlisted cost of investment FE LM E KA
Share of post acquisition loss FE(R Y12 B4R

e TR et m B = 1+— B IEEE

17. @8 %=

ZROBMER ORI FEh X BN IRE B
B IR &R 8 TR B0 TROR A e TR B IR 7%
Ui 2 K T8 HA S5 1) == DA B2 mp B0 BRI H R
BIREEL - FHBESRA(BREER
R e - EMERASBIRER) THTER
BAEXRBANEEBHMBSERNEAYE
E o REA/B - ERNERABEAENATI
CeREeReELBEMNEREE  BiE
FERIRIER 8 ©

18. REELEMHER

2019
—Z2-NF

RMB’000
AR® TR

10,889
(2,434)

8,455
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R e M BHwERME
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-_ZT—NF+-A=+—HILFE

18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continved) 18. MEEBLENER »)

Details of each of the Group’s joint ventures at the end AREEBNREHASAELENFEBN
of the reporting period are as follow: T
Place of

establishment/  Proportion of registered
principal place capital/voting rights

Name of entity of operation held by the Group Registered capital Principal activity
RIME,/ AEEBEEMER
BEZE RETTHE /REELHI EMER TEED
2019 2018 2019 2018

“E-0E ZFF ZBE-AE ZER
RMB000 RMB000
AR®TR  ARETR

Guangdong Aoruola Health Management ~ PRC 30% N/A 213,500 N/A  Provision of health
Consulting Co., Ltd (formerly known as ~ HE TER (not fully @A management
Guangdong Aoyue Health Management paid up) consulting services
Consulting Co., Ltd) ("Guangdong (AR2H3) RERREREH
Aoruola”) oS

EREANRFEEEFABRAF (LA
% BREGREERFAERAR)

((BRBEH])

Guangzhou Aoruola Medical Aesthetic PRC 30% N/A 1,000 N/A  Provision of health
Clinic Co., Ltd (formerly known as i TER (not yet THEA  management
Guangzhou Aoyue Medical Aesthetic paid up) consulting services
Clinic Co., Ltd) ("Guangzhou Aoruola”)* (GRS ) RERFERLA

BNREABEXAMDHERAA (LA R
4 ENRNBEEAFYHERAR)

(TEMREN])

Guangzhou Aoruola Linhe Medical PRC 30% N/A 1,000 N/A  Provision of health
Aesthetic Clinic Co., Ltd ("Linhe # AEA (not yet TEB  management
Aoruola”)* paid up) consulting services

BENREAMNBEXELMBERAR (HRHE) RERRERLH
([HAEEH]) ey

Guangzhou Aoruola Huacheng Medical PRC 30% N/A 1,000 N/A  Provision of health
Aesthetic Clinic Co., Ltd ("Huacheng H AEA (not yet @R management
Aoruola”)* paid up) consulting services

BNRENER BRI BERAR (BREE) RERRERLH
([TEm &EH]) ey

@ These companies are wholly-owned subsidiaries of * ZERNAAERRENEEHRE ©

Guangdong Aoruola.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

18.

The details of Guangdong Aoruola in relation to the
deemed disposal of subsidiaries is set out in note 36.

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

BE_Z-NAF+_A=+—HILLEFE

BHIFE36 ©

18. REELEMNER )

ERELZNERGIELENBRRNFE

The summarised financial information in respect of the ERRNEENS E DX 8 B 75
Group's interests in joint ventures are set out below: BEIEH MR
Guangdong Aoruola EREE 2019
—E-hE
RMB’000
ARBF T
Current assets mENE E 42,672
Non-current assets SEMBNVE E 45,931
Current liabilities e A& 27,266
Non-current liabilities ERBAE 33,135
Revenue & 2,775
Loss and total comprehensive expense
for the year FNEBEREERSEE 8,112
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_Z—NFT_A=+—HILLFE

DEFERRED TAXATION 19. BERR
The followings are the major deferred tax assets RERNERNEZBREHBELEE (BE) X
(liabilities) recognised and movements thereon during HE&HOT :
the year:
Impairment
losses on
Intangible trade
assets Tax losses receivables Others Total
EaERTE
BREE HIEER HERE it o
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT

At 1 January 2018 RZZ-\$—A—-H (982) 537 1,046 72 673
Credit to profit or loss for the st AF R (HE9)
year (note9) 225 4,875 248 611 5,959
At 31 December 2018 RZIZ-N\F
+=A=+-A (757) 5,412 1,294 683 6,632

Acquisitions of subsidiaries  WIEHIB AR (HiF35)

(note35) (590) - - - (590)
Credit (charge) to profit or loss Ft A (IR B) ERER
for the year (note9) (R59) 267 (5,228) 848 (433) (4,546)
At 31 December 2019 R-E-NF
+-A=1+-H (1,080) 184 2,142 250 1,496
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances AT REREE®RE B AR RIER IR R
for financial reporting purposes: DT
2019 2018
ZE-NEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®TR ARETT

Deferred tax assets RIETH IR EE 2,576 7,389
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFHIBAE (1,080) (757)
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19.

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At 31 December 2019, the Group had unused tax losses
of RMB54,061,000 (2018: RMB52,626,000) available to
offset against future profits. As at 31 December 2019,
a deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
tax losses amounted to approximately RMB736,000
(2018: RMB21,648,000). As at 31 December 2019,
no deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the remaining tax losses of RMB53,325,000 (2018:
RMB30,978,000), due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams.

The unrecognised tax losses will expire in the following
years:

19.

e TR et m B = 1+— B IEEE

EERIE (2

RZE—NF+_A=+—H *x5E
BARBAMIEBEIBARKS4,061,0007T
(ZZ—)\F : AR%52,626,0007T) A
BUEE AR AR - RZE—hLF+=
A=+—H AEEZREHREEELHA
RE#736,000(ZEE—N\F : AR
21,648,00070) RIELEHIBEE - N=
TE—NF+_A=+—8  @REKFE
AR TEAME  AEBETEHRG THIE
B8 AR#53,325,0007T (Z T — )\ £
AR#30,978,00070) RIELRIEE
E o

REEROBAB RGN T FHEIH

2019 2018

—E-hEF —T-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥T T ARBT T

2020 —E-FF 2,173 4,463

2021 —EZ—F 1,609 8,073

2022 —F-_= 8,026 8,760

2023 —E-=F 6,253 9,682

2024 =710 = 35,264 =

53,325 30,978

Tax losses THIAEE 53,325 30,978
Other deductible temporary differences — Hfth 5k #E 52 B] 080 & A5 = 58

not recognised (note) (=) 14,836 15,579

68,161 46,557

Note: The other deductible temporary differences mainly arose
from the accrued contribution to social insurance and

housing provident funds.
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19.

20.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary
differences attributable to accumulated profits of
the PRC subsidiaries amounting to approximately
RMB285,946,000 (2018: RMB165,270,000) as at 31
December 2019, as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

INVENTORIES

H Aty 11 £

Other materials

19.

20.

meaMBRERME
BE-2-NF+-A=+—ALEE

EIERIA (2)

BEFRCEMEHE BT \F—
A—Hi PR BARMESENE
KB IR BB MMTETL - AR AEEEN
RS AR AR - AERATFER R
RERFEBEAETSED - R4 MI5HR
KPR AR T NF+=-_A=+—
ANTEKBRARRERMN(BAEAR
#5285,946,000 L (ZF—N\F : AR
165,270,0007T) ) FE1H & B = 58I R B AT
FRIE -

&
2019 2018
—g-nE —TN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFTE  AR®TT
653 77

RERBELEEEEARAR —T—NFR
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

& M B H R

For the year ended 31 December 2019

21.

BE—

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

B e =1T—"HILFE

21. ES R HEHMEIRIA

2019 2018
—E—-hEF —E-)N\F
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR¥ET ARBTT
Trade receivables B 5 MW IR 76,271 53,595
Less: impairment losses under W TREAEAEAERT
expected credit loss model, KB EEE
net of reversal o (8,721) (5,174)
Total trade receivables B 5 W IREEE 67,550 48,421
Other receivables: o E W kIR
Deposits e (a) 27,806 10,561
Payments on behalf of residents RELR (b) 18,221 15,080
Prepayments TERT IR (c) 197,346 2,019
Deferred share issue costs IRFERR (9 B 1T A AR - 5,780
Others EAh 5,398 5,184
248,771 38,624
316,321 87,045
Analysis for reporting purpose: EREHEE 2D
Non-current assets FEMBEE 209,400 =
Current assets mENEE 106,921 87,045
316,321 87,045
Notes: oS
(a) The balance represented the amount paid to the service (a) RAAERRGHERZNHNIRESHE -
providers as deposit.
(b) The balance represented the amount paid on behalf of (b) FAERETER R RKE RS HE

residential communities and commercial tenants to the
utilities service provider for the service provided.

The balances included the advance payment to contractors
for the development of a healthcare and medical beauty
industrial complex on the newly acquired leasehold land
as set out in note 15 and for the development of the
commercial operational projects at RMB100,000,000 and
RMB90,000,000, respectively, which are expected to be
recovered after twelve months from the year-end date and
classified as non-current assets accordingly.
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21.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Property management service income under property
management service segment and commercial operation
and management services under commercial operational
service segment are generally required to be settled
by property owners and property developers within 60
days upon the issuance of demand note. Generally,
the counter-parties of market positioning and business
tenant sourcing services under commercial operational
service segment are required to make installment
payments in accordance with the payment schedule as
set out in contracts. However, depending on market
conditions and bargaining power of the counter-parties,
credit and payment terms may vary in accordance with
the contracts.

As at 1 January 2018, trade receivables from contracts
with customers amounted to RMB71,829,000.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables,
presented based on the date of demand note:

21.

FEMERRMEE
BE_ZT—hFEt+-A=1+—BItFE

HHREMBIRIT 2

MEEERE D BN EEERBKAR
BRELRH D FNEEES MEERS
WABRFRAXZEIEMERBEIRN BB
BHE6ORANER - —KME  AXEL
WG DEHISEM B RERBOR S
B FARES HMENRETEIET Y BN
Ko AT BEMRERXZHFHAERE
N GERXMGEREIEEHME -

R-ZE—N\F—A—H KEEFAHHN
S5 EWEIE A ARKET1,829,0007T °

AT REZERRFTIANRE DN - THER
HEERHZES

2019 2018

—E—-hF —E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET ARBTT

0 to 60 days 0E60X 22,744 16,389
61 to 180 days 61Z2180K 18,282 13,476
181 to 365 days 181E365K 17,172 11,263
1 to 2 years 1224 10,967 6,933
2 to 3 years 2&34F 4,134 3,192
Over 3 years BRI 2,972 2,342
76,271 53,595

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
RMB53,527,000 (2018: RMB37,206,000) as at 31
December 2019, which are past due at the end of
the reporting period. Out of the past due balances,
RMB8,433,000 (2018: RMB5,119,000) has been
provided for the impairment losses under expected
credit loss model. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

RZZE—AF+-_A=+—8 A&H
BORWREELEHKEREEAREAAR
53,527,000 (ZE—NEFE: AR
37,206,00070) MEMEBR X - ER®|E
HAEBE - ZSERHEHRERHOA
R#8,433,000c(Z 2 —N\F : ARK
5,119,00070) EFHRTAHA(E AIB AR AL
THRIBREBERE AEETERZZE
HIEBETMEAR -

RERBELEEEEARAR —T—NFR
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

& M B H R

For the year ended 31 December 2019

e TR et m B = 1+— B IEEE

21.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

The following table shows the movements in the
allowances of loss for trade receivables that has been
recognised for trade receivables during the year:

21. E5REMEWKKIE 2

FREGINE N E SR ERROE
5 R B 2

2019 2018

—E-NE —ZT-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBTTT

Balance at beginning of the year FEERR 5,174 4,187
Allowances of loss recognised on trade  #tE 5 FE U IE R K

receivables BEEE 3,547 987

Balance at end of the year TR G 8,721 5,174

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the counterparty has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or when the amounts are over one year
past due without subsequent settlement, whichever
occurs sooner. Trade receivables written off may still
be subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised
in profit or loss.

Included in the allowances of loss for trade receivables
are collectively impaired trade receivables with
an aggregate balance of RMB7,797,000 (2018:
RMB4,728,000) and individually impaired trade
receivables with an aggregate balance of RMB924,000
(2018: RMB446,000), respectively, details of which are
set out in note 43.

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable,
the Group considers any change in the credit quality of
the trade receivable from the date credit was initially
granted up to the reporting date.
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EAREFRES N PR -

BRIWHEEBEREDNBREEHE
BARKT7,797,000c(ZFE—N\F : A
R¥4,728,00070) M ERBEE F FEW
RIENEB BB ARKI24,000T (= F
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22.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

R e MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_Z—NFT_A=+—HILLFE

AMOUNT DUE FROM A NON-
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER OF A
SUBSIDIARY

22. FEMr— PR 2 T SF HE AR B R

®IR
2019 2018
—g-nE —TN\F
NOTE RMB’000 RMB’000

B E AR®TR ARBTTT

Trade nature B8 520 =
Non-trade nature FEESHE (a) 73 =
Total 4RET 593 =
Note: B 5%

(@) The non-trade amount advance to the non-controlling (a) 2 TR B RAREERRENIEEZ S

shareholder of a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

The Group generally grants a credit period of 60 days
for its provision of property management services to
its non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary. The
following is an aging analysis of trade amount due from
a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary presented
based on date of demand note:

0 to 60 days 0%Z60H

FALEER RS RREREE -

AEBE-—BUEERDEXEERBAHE —
B ARFERERRE FTE0RNEER
Hi o AT AW —EH B A R IEER IR
B ZFIAERE DN - DERUEERH

EXT

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARBTTT

520 =

RERELEEEERAR — T NER
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FeaMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_ZT—NFT_A=+—HILFE

23. AMOUNTS DUE FROM FELLOW

23. BREARBELATIRIE

SUBSIDIARIES
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZT-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREF T
Trade nature B25M4E 64,394 175,933
Non-trade nature (note) IFEZMHE (M) - -
Total @t 64,394 175,933

Note: The amounts advance to the fellow subsidiaries are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
The management of the Group considers the amount is
expected to be settled within twelve months after the end
of the reporting period and accordingly the amounts are
classified as current assets. In addition, the Company has
entered into agreements with China Aoyuan during the
year for which the non-trade amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries has been settled by offsetting arrangements
with the amounts due to fellow subsidiaries at the amount
of RMB22,276,000 as at 31 December 2019 (2018:
RMB25,638,000).

The Group generally grants a credit period of 60
days (2018: 365 days) for its provision of property
management services and commercial operational
services to its fellow subsidiaries. The following is
an aging analysis of trade amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries presented based on date of demand note:

iz : BNRRMNBARFASEER 28Kk
REREER - AEBEERERR  ZHKAE
AN RERRE T @A RNEE -
WHERBREDERRBEE 1o B
REF  ANREEPERER T
BB S RKRERMEARRRE N
ZE-NF+A=+—"BHENRRWNE
NEIRIBARMK22,276,000T (ZZ—N
F : AR¥25,638,0007T) BV H L HE 4
@ .

>

AEBRERRMBARREMEEER
BEREEELRBR KRR TFOR(ZE
—\F 365R)MEEH - AT AR
EERH2INERKFARMBARE SR
AR ERER D

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB‘'000

AR TR ARETT

0 to 60 days 0£60X 62,461 62,545
61 to 180 days 61Z2180K 1,933 46,705
181 to 365 days 181£365K - 48,569
1 to 2 years 1226 - 17,682
2 to 3 years 2E3F - 432

64,394 175,933
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24.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

R e MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_Z—NFT_A=+—HILLFE

AMOUNTS DUE FROM FELLOW
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

As at 1 January 2018, trade amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries amounted to RMB253,506,000. Included in
the Group's trade amounts due from fellow subsidiaries,
are receivables with aggregate carrying amount of nil
(2018: RMB18,114,000) at 31 December 2019 which
are past due as at the end of the year for which the
Group has not provided for impairment loss. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES

23.

24.

B RRMEATRIE 2

R-Z—N\F—A—H ERERKEBEAQ
RIME S IE A ARE253,506,0007T °
RZEBE—hF+—A=+—H x&£EE
WRIREMBARMNE ZHIBREERKR
BAZ(ZZT—/\F : AR®18,114,000
JO) KB SRIE - R FEREE - A
SEWEBERBEFIRES - NEBE IS
WERZSEBRTETMERD -

& 1 R BBk 75 ®R IR
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000

B E ARBTR ARKETT

Trade nature BEH514E (a) 14,198 206

Non-trade nature FEBEFHIME (b) 78 -

Total #st 14,276 206

Notes: ffsE -

(a) The related parties are joint ventures and an associate of (a) AT ATRRENEECERBERD
China Aoyuan. Al e

(b) The related parties are joint ventures of China Aoyuan.
The non-trade amounts advance to the related parties are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

(b) Bl R BRENAERE - MR
RIEB SRR AELN - B ERIRERE

RERELEEEERAR — T NER
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

& M B H R

For the year ended 31 December 2019

24.

25.

26.

e TR et m B = 1+— B IEEE

AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES 24. FEURR S HIE =)

(Continued)

As at 1 January 2018, trade amounts due from related
parties amounted to RMB6,618,000. The Group
generally grants a credit period of 60 days (2018: 365
days) for its provision of property management services
and commercial operational services to its related
parties. The following is an aging analysis of trade
amounts due from related parties presented based on
date of demand note:

R-Z—N\F—HA—H EREHINE
SHREAANRYE,618,0005T © AEEF
HEam iRy EEERE L EEL R
T — R F60KR (ZF— )\ : 365K)
WEEH - L TREHEERHZI|ME
W EEE 5 B SR IAR BRI DT ¢

2019 2018
—EB-NF —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARBT T
0 to 60 days 0E60X 11,206 137
61 to 180 days 61Z2180K 2,992 69
14,198 206
AMOUNTS DUE FROM JOINT VENTURES 25. Bt S E ¥ RIF
As at 31 December 2019, the balance represents non- R-ZZE—NE+-_A=+—H &S558
trade amounts due from joint ventures, which was WELPENFEESFTIE  REEF 2
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. In BRIZEKERE - XRRMITEERAE
the opinion of the executive directors of the Company, TE AR B W HAR AR 1+ = & A Rk el 5k
it is expected to receive the amounts within twelve B ARZERBEEDBER/RNDEE °
months from the end of the reporting period, and
therefore the amounts are classified as current assets.
BANK BALANCES AND CASH 26. RITHEBRRAR

The bank balances carry interest at variable rate with
an average interest rate of 0.59% (2018: 0.18%) per
annum at 31 December 2019.
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27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBEERME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_Z—NFT_A=+—HILLFE

27. B5REMEFRIE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARETR ARBTT
Trade payables B 5 RIE 59,082 27,374
Other payables: B fh FETFRIE
Receipts on behalf of residents aE =l N (a) 29,900 20,729
Deposits received BBz (b) 100,613 92,520
Accrued staff costs i = NN 59,014 34,659
Accrued contribution to social FEET it & RiE &
insurance and housing provident  EFEABE R
funds 11,382 12,125
Accrued share issue cost/listing FERTRR D B 1TR AN,
expenses X - 5,170
Other tax payables H fth fE TR IE 9,685 7,107
Accrued expenses JERTF S 12,168 7,509
Other payables B IR 15,797 19,040
Total other payables Hfh fe T FRIB R 238,559 198,859
Total trade and other payables B 5 R EAEN RIBLRTE 297,641 226,233
Notes: MizE -
(a) The balances represented the receipts on behalf of (a) RARERTEREPKEMNNRIE - ARGER
community residents to settle the utilities bills from utilities KEH-EE A KEIRE o
suppliers.
(b) The balances mainly represented by the utility deposits (b) EHRFERBHEREFPREFEEIO A
received from the community residents and commercial FEZSE -
tenants.

RERBELEEEEARAR —T—NFR
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FeaMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_ZT—NFT_A=+—HILFE

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 27. B REMEMATHE 2
The credit period granted by suppliers to the Group RER  RYITAEEHEFNEEHRN T

ranges from 30 days to 90 days during the year. 30KEIOK - M TNARNSHREHRER

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables HEAHHZINE S ENIENERER D

presented based on the invoice date at the end of each Mo

reporting period:

2019 2018

ZE-NF —ZE-)N\F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥F T ARETTT

0-60 days 0&E60X 41,541 15,918
61-180 days 61£2180K 13,742 8,682
181-365 days 181E365K 2,951 2,401
1-2 years 1526 763 332
2-3 years 2E34F 62 39
Over 3 years 3FMNUE 23 2
59,082 27,374

28. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

28. AAR

BHBBEREBEYMEEERBEHEES
RIEHFFER - I HEREEBRFAR
SEMFEERGEHORAXELRTE

The contract liabilities represented the advance from
customers for property management services and
commercial operational services. The payment terms

vary and depend on the terms of the Group’s property
management services contracts and commercial
operational service contracts.

KGRI TE °

2019 2018

—E-NEF —E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET AREF T

Property management services YEEE RS 60,513 83,345
Commercial operational services 5B S RS 33,428 37,444
Total Bt 93,941 120,789
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBEERME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_Z—NFT_A=+—HILLFE

CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued) 28. S¥WER»

RZIEBE-N\F—FA—HB ANEBBAAR
#45,078,0007T ° F&REHNDF AT A
EHEBEHNEEREE - RFR - I
EEREB L FEXNBOETHK
o BMEEBLRBAYVNTBEMEREP
RERSAHNEEREBEESHEXRER
—TEKFrER AW -

As at 1 January 2018, contract liabilities amounted
to RMB45,078,000. The following table sets out the
revenue recognised that was included in the contract
liabilities balance at the beginning of the year. There
was no revenue recognised during the year that related
to performance obligations that were satisfied in a prior
year. The contract liabilities from the market positioning
and business tenant sourcing services of commercial
operational service contracts are recognised as revenue
following the achievement of certain occupancy rate of
the related shopping malls.

2019 2018

—E-hE —E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARBTTT

Property management services e ESRLE 83,345 29,177
Commercial operational services 7B A R 36,983 12,854
120,328 42,031

The unsatisfied contracts related to the provision
of property management services and commercial
operational services at the end of each reporting period

are as follows:

EREPREARERY X EERS KB
RELERBORTKEHMT

2019 2018
ZE-NF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET R ARETT
Expected to be recognised FEHAR —F AR
within one year 125,192 166,756
Expected to be recognised TEEIR —FEER
after one year 7,700 21,700
132,892 188,456

RERBELEEEEARAR —T—NFR



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FeaMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_ZT—NFT_A=+—HILFE

28. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued) 28.

The following table sets out the contract liabilities was
due to the following parties:

—Eoh-Ki A€

TREJEN TS TNEHNEE -

2019 2018

—E—-hEF —E—N\%F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETIT

External customers SNERE 73,483 57,679
Fellow subsidiaries (note 1) EEX=INGICIESD) 17,977 56,960
Related parties (note 2) R s (MY5E2) 2,481 6,150
93,941 120,789

Note 1: The contract liabilities due to fellow subsidiaries decreased
as contract liabilities, which were mainly arising from
advances for sales assistance services, was recognized as
revenue when the relevant services were provided during
the current year.

Note 2: The related parties are joint ventures and associates of
China Aoyuan.

sk -

FfizE2 -

ERNRARMEBARZENEERD  Ex
BREHEHPRIE AN RERAFE
R RIS R R PR

& o

BRI RTRERENSELEREE

29. AMOUNTS DUE TO FELLOW 29. EFEARMELATRIE
SUBSIDIARIES
2019 2018
—E2-NF —FN\F
NOTES RMB’'000 RMB’'000
B ek AR¥T T ARET T
Trade nature 25 hE (a) = 3,486
Non-trade nature IFEEHIEE (b) = 3,173
- 6,659
Notes: MEE -

(a) There is a credit period of 60 days granted by the fellow
subsidiaries.

(b) The amounts advance from the fellow subsidiaries as at 31

December 2018 are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.
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30.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

R e MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_Z—NFT_A=+—HILLFE

AMOUNTS DUE TO FELLOW
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following is an aging analysis of trade amounts due
to fellow subsidiaries presented based on respective
date of demand note:

29. EFNRARMELATRIE @

AT RESHEEBH27WENREFRH
BAREZFENRE D

2019 2018
—B-hE —TN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ TR ARKETT

0 to 60 days 0E60X - 2,345
61 to 180 days 612180k - 600
181-365 days 1812365k - 541
- 3,486

AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES 30. FEFTRREES RIE
2019 2018
—E—-hF —E-N\F
RMB'000 RMB’'000

Non-trade nature B SMHE

AR®TR ARBTT

834 =

834 =

The amounts advance from the related parties as at
31 December 2019 are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

RZB-AF+ZA=+—0 BB
RREMR REREEREE -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
GaMBEERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE—

31.

32.

B e =1T—"HILFE

LEASE LIABILITIES 31. #HHERAR
2019
—EB-NF
RMB’'000
ARET
Lease liabilities payable: EFfHEHEEE
Within one year —F R 3,313
Within a period of more than one year BB —FETHBIEBME 2 2H
but not more than two years 2,449
Within a period of more than two years fBBMFEETRIGERF 2 HHH
but not more than five years 6,330
Within a period of more than five years F LA F 2~ B[ 4,053
16,145
Less: Amount due for settlement with 12 8 @ W+ =@ 8 REHEE 2 A
months shown under current liabilities (Bl &R EE &) 3,313
Amount due for settlement after 12 RTZERBEBPEE 2%
months shown under non-current B BIEREEE)
liabilities 12,832

BANK BORROWINGS

The bank borrowings are denominated in RMB, carried
at fixed rate and the weighted average effective interest
rate on bank borrowings for the year is 5.53% (2018:
7%) per annum. The amounts are repayable within THZER
twelve months from the end of the reporting period and

shown under current liabilities.

32. SRITER

RA5 53% (=
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEaPMBEERERME
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-_ZF—hAF+_A=+—HILFE
SHARE CAPITAL 33. i&&E
Details of movements of authorised and issued share RARNETEDBITIRANESEISHT
capital of the Company are as follows:
Number
of shares Share capital
BB EE €N
HK$'000
BT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BR0.01EBT 2 EBK
Authorised: EERAE
At 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018 R-Z—\F—A—HARK
—NE+=A=+—H 38,000,000 380
Increase on 22 February 2019 RZE-NFZAZ+ZHBENM  9,962,000,000 99,620
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+—A=1+—H 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRBERA :
At 1 January 2018 R-ZZE—NFE—F—H 10,000 —*
New ordinary shares issued on 30 May 2018 R-ZE—\FHA=1H
(Note (i) BAT 23 g AR (P aE() 10,000 —*
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-NF+_A=1+—H 20,000 —*
Capitalisation issue (Note (ii)) B A B 17 (B EEG)) 524,980,000 5,250
Issue of new shares upon initial public BRARBEREITHRG
offering (Note (iii)) (PR = (i) 175,000,000 1,750
Exercise of over-allotment option (Note (iii)) 171 #A %A A B (P 5% (i) 26,250,000 263
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NF+-_A=+—H 726,250,000 7,263
* Less than HK$1,000. *1,0008TTAAT ©
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TR ARBTT

Shown in the consolidated statement of FI|R 44 B AR L&

financial position 6,207 -
All the new ordinary shares issued in 2019 and 2018 RZEBE-NFRZZE-N\EFEETHMER
rank pari passu with the then existing shares in all R EIRERDEMETEZ8 RS
respects. i1 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

33.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

The Company was incorporated and registered as an
exempted company in Cayman Islands on 13 December
2016 with an authorised share capital of HK$380,000
divided into 38,000,000 shares of nominal value of
HK$0.01 each.

Pursuant to the issue of shares and the capitalisation
issue approved by shareholders’ written resolution
dated 22 February 2019, the authorised share capital
of the Company was increased from HK$380,000 to
HK$100,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000 shares by
the increase of 9,962,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each.

Notes:

(i) Pursuant to the shareholder’s resolution passed on 30 May
2018, the Company issued 5,100 shares, 3,900 shares and
1,000 shares with a par value of HK$0.01 to Main Trend
Limited, Dawn Agile Limited and Winfield Investment
Limited respectively. The aforesaid shares issued to Main
Trend, Dawn Agile Limited and Winfield Investment
Limited are at cash consideration of HK$51 (equivalent to
RMB42), HK$72,540,000 (equivalent to RMB59,305,000)
and HK$18,600,000 (equivalent to RMB15,206,000),
respectively.

(i) On 18 March 2019, the Company capitalised the sum of
HK$5,250,000 (equivalent to RMB4,487,000) standing to
the credit of the share premium account of the Company
and applied the amount towards paying up in full
524,980,000 shares of nominal value of HK$0.01 each for
allotment to the shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company immediately before
the listing of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange.
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33. &+

RARRZE—R"F+ZA+=BRHE
HEAMALEELEEREBR AR
VA TE MR ZN380,000/%8 7T 5 438,000,000/%
SR EEO0.01B TR ©

REROGEBETER_TE—NLF_A=-+=
AREEERZERIAEZE AN B8
7 ARAIWEERAH3I80,000%
TTEIME100,000,0008 L ° 25
10,000,000,000% i 1n © L EREE
0.01/ 7T 519,962,000,000A% AZ {7 °

GEX

(i) BER-_Z-—N\ERTA=THERBHNK
BARZR AQFHRIMBEHE - Dawn
Agile Limited&Winfield Investment
Limited®475,100% + 3,900/% % 1,000
[REEO.O1TAETHARM « Lill&ITT
BHEL - Dawn Agile Limited XWinfield
Investment Limited®I i J3 9 B4k
RERBS1BT(HERARKA2
JT) ~ 72,540,000 T (HEERARK
59,305,0007T) %.18,600,000/% 7t (1%
MR AR#15,206,0007T) 31T ©

(ii) R=ZFE—NAE=A+N\8 ARAEX
AAE B EIR#EBRIE5,250,000/8 7T
(HERARK4L,487,0007T) BEFRER
WA IEETREECONETELHER
524,980,0000& A% 17 + WA AR BRI
B A2 B BT 2 AT B3 T R 5 AR RIRER A
MEIREER -



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

33. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

On 18 March 2019, in connection with the Listing, the
Company issued 175,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each (a public offering in Hong Kong of 17,500,000 and an
international offering of 157,500,000 shares) at a price of
HK$3.66 per share (equivalent to approximately RMB3.13
per share) for a total of HK$640,500,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB547,416,000) with issuance costs
amounted to HK$35,864,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB30,699,000) being charged to the Company’s share
premium account.

In addition, on 2 April 2019, the over-allotment option
in connection with the Listing was exercised and as a
result, additional 26,250,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each were issued at a price of HK$3.66 per share
(equivalent to approximately RMB3.13 per share) for a
total of HK$96,075,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB82,204,000) with issuance costs amounted to
HK$2,409,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB2,062,000)
being charged to the Company’s share premium account.

The respective paid up capital amount was RMB1,720,000
and share premium arising from the issuance was
RMB627,900,000.

Share issuance costs mainly include share underwriting
commissions, lawyers’ fees, reporting accountant’s fee and
other related costs associated with the Listing. Incremental
costs that are directly attributable to the issue of the
new shares amounting HK$38,273,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB32,761,000) was treated as a deduction
against the share premium arising from the issuance.

R e MR R

BE_ZT—hFEt+-A=1+—BItFE

33. &)

Mt : (&

(iii)

R-ZFT—hE=A+N\B BEHmE -
RARZTR3I.66BTHERERYD
AR®3.137T) KB E17175,000,000
B (BB AFZE17,500,0000% & BB
%% 157,500,0000%) &R EEO0.01/8
TR E B - A 3£640,500,0007% 7T (47
ERHARKS47,416,0007T) © BT
N%35,864,0008 T (HHERH AR
30,699,0007T) sF AR R & MY AR 19 5 B
EE °

N R=ZZF—hAhFHUA=H - B@ L
MHRBELREETE Bt - IRER
3.668T(HERERHOAREK3.137T)
KB IEEESN3£1726,250,000 % F R E &
0.01B ML - &3£96,075,000%
T (HEERHARES2,204,0007T) »
TR AN 52,409,000/8 T (HHEROAR
#2,062,0007T) st AR R AKX 5 (B
QE °

BHRBABARY,720,0007T R EETT
EENRMDEEAARYE627,900,000
7_E o

BRHDBITRAEEZRERDEHEAS - 2
& BRSMERE FHAROEMD
FRBAAAN o BTN E (R IEE R A
©%/538,273,0008 T (HHERHARE
32,761,0007T) * 13 A BEITRREERD
S B HIR o

RERBELEEEEARAR —T—NFR
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

34. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(a)

Related party transactions

During the year, the Group entered into the

e TR et m B = 1+— B IEEE

34. ABGIRE

(a) EHAEXH

RER - REBEETIZLATE AR B

following significant transactions with related RS
parties as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BT ARBTT
Property management services V¥ EE R
Fellow subsidiaries EEN VN 256,402 163,961
Related parties (note a) RAESL 77 (i 5Ea) 9,192 6,278
Non-controlling shareholder of a — R B A A EE R
subsidiary (note b) f&% 5 (i 5Eb) 397 402
Joint ventures BEE 13 =
Directors of the Company RAFIES 26 26
Total st 266,030 170,667
Commercial operational services BEELERE
Fellow subsidiaries EEYNENE 85,284 84,771
Related parties (note a) RAE 5 (fisEa) 12,248 =
Total aEt 97,532 84,771
Purchasing of commercial goods and BE&ERKRE
services
Fellow subsidiaries EEYNIEPNE 944 5,831
Non-controlling shareholder of a — B M B A A FEERR
subsidiary g3 - 119
Related parties (note a) AR (fista) = 275
Total 5 944 6,225
Expenses relating to short-term EREHANNERY
leases/lease expenses HERX
Fellow subsidiaries EESIEAND 2,280 1,963
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

34. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

R e MR R

BE_ZT—hFEt+-A=1+—BItFE

34. MBEHEE =

Related party transactions (Continued) (a) BWEXEHE)
Notes: B &E -
a) The related parties are joint ventures and associates (a) AT RTRRENEGERER
of China Aoyuan. i b/NT I
b) This entity has significant influence over a non- (b) ZERHAEE 2 EHE AR
wholly owned subsidiary of the Group. EREATE -
The Group is licensed by China Aoyuan to use AEBEFBEBEHFAIEBER MG
the trademark of “Aoyuan” on an exclusive and BrREEREBEEEGHIERIF
royalty-free basis. N
During the prior year, China Aoyuan assigned RAFE  FRHBEEE TFAEBRE
the Group its right to use certain purchased FERETEEENEIE XA
computer softwares and related equipments and AR MBEMER RS ER K
the respective fee was borne by China Aoyuan. o NAREE » REBK F Fitea
During the current year, the Group ceased the PFREREMLZHE  FEEEB AT
above arrangement with China Aoyuan and B K AR RR A o
purchased its own computer softwares and
related equipments.
Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities (b) HEZRMEBLATHNERAEIER
with fellow subsidiaries HEAR
2019 2018
—B-NF —ZT-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T R ARBTTT
Right-of-use assets EREEE 11,840 N/A
Lease liabilities (note a) HEaEFFa) 12,029 N/A
Interest expenses on lease HEBENTERX
liabilities 574 N/A
Note: Mzt :

(a) During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Group entered into several new lease agreements
for the use of office premises and Chinese medical
clinic with the fellow subsidiaries for five to ten
years. Except for short-term leases and low value
leases in which the Group applied recognition
exemption, the Group has recognised an addition
of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
RMB10,274,000 and RMB10,274,000 respectively.

(a) BHE_ZT—hhF+=-_A=+—H
LHFE AEERRZEKEAR
REAMAEMERPEDAE
NEZBEFEENRE  ABAET
F o BRAN KB FE R A M R
HERRKEERE)N  AEED D
AERENEAEEEAARE
10,274,000t RHEABEAAR
#10,274,0007T °

RERBELEEEEARAR —T—NFR
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBERRME
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

34. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Continued) 34. FABSEIKEE =)

(c) Lease commitments with fellow (c) RFRMEATHERIE
subsidiaries
2018
—N\F
RMB’'000
ARET T
Commitments for future minimum lease #Z& T4 T AR 2RI & R -
payments under operating lease:
Within one year —FR 1,534
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ZENF (BEEEMSF) 2,753
4,287
Operating lease payment to fellow subsidiaries Fﬂlﬁ?W%’“ﬁiﬁﬁ]?&‘éfﬂEﬁﬁ
represent rentals payable by the Group for its TIEANEB R ER A EYWENER
office premises. Leases are negotiated and rentals fﬁi cEmEZMHMR—ZERFMmMM
are fixed for terms of one to five years. Az HeAEEEE -
(d) Compensation of key management (d) TEEBARFHH
personnel
The remuneration of key management personnel FEEBABRFARNFTIAOT
during the year was as follows:
2019 2018
—E-AE —ZT-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR TR ARBTT

Salaries and other benefits e MEME 5,627 3,831
Discretionary bonus @”JI%?E 1,831 2,046
Contributions to retirement benefit BRIKEFETEIHE
scheme 165 111
7,623 5,988
The remuneration of key management personnel TEEBEASHNFMNHIZX2REAAR
is determined by reference to the performance of WREHEBHEET o

individuals and market trend.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the current year, the Group acquired following
subsidiaries at a total consideration of RMB500,000.
These transaction has been accounted for as business
combinations using acquisition accounting. Upon
completion of the acquisitions, following companies
became indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Company. The principal activities of acquired
subsidiaries are engaged in the property management
services.

Place of establishment/ Acquisition

Name of subsidiaries acquired

FrigiEmBARNER

incorporation

Zhuhai, the PRC
REKE

(Zhuhai Aoyuan Hongri Property Management
Co., Ltd) ("Zhuhai Hongri")
KEMREERNETEARAR(TEEA))

(Chongging Runhui Property Management Co., Ltd)
("Chongging Runhui”)
ERFRENEERERAR(EEEE])

THER

(Xiangtan Yagao Property Management Co., Ltd)
("Xiangtan Yagao”)
HERRWEEREAAR(DAERS])

Xiangtan, the PRC
RERE

(Enping Shuihetian Property Services Co., Ltd)
("Enping Shuihetian”)
BYKREMERBAERRA ([BFKRE])

Enping, the PRC
hERF

Acquisition-related costs were insignificant and have
been recognised as an expense in the current year and
included in the administrative expenses line item in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Chongging, the PRC

35.

R/ REA A 4

FEMERRMEE
BE_ZT—hFEt+-A=1+—BItFE

e S B I 22 W)

REAFE  AEBMUBEREARE
500,000 T ELA T B AR - ZFER S
FRAKBEFEARIEXEBE 6 - IiE
TKE LT RRIKBEAARNEEEE
MEBAR - FTRENBARNEZES A
WEREMEEERY -

Equity interest

completed in acquired Consideration

KETRER  EGHRE K&

RMB

N

July 100% 1
+HA

July 100% 1
A

July 100% 500,000
A

October 100% 1
1A

YEBRBAR AT RE - ERAFEHER
RAX - Ut AGE RS REM2E RS
REOITHFEANXHBA °

RERBELEEEEARAR —T—NFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

35. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities recognised at

e TR et m B = 1+— B IEEE

35. kBB AT (&)

REERMmEBEENRMERBEND

the dates of acquisition are as follows: EEIT
RMB'000
ARETIT
Property, plant and equipment S 210
Intangible assets mEE 2,365
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk E b E WA 5,163
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR MRS 420
Trade and other payables B 5 M EMEN IR (6,022)
Contract liabilities AHEE (1,046)
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIBAE (590)
Consideration KB 500

Consideration transferred: FresE (8

Cash Re 500

The fair value of trade and other receivables at the
date of acquisition amounted to RMB5,163,000. The
gross contractual amounts of those trade and other
receivables acquired amounted to RMB5,163,000 at
the date of acquisition. The best estimate at acquisition

B 5 R EARBGRIER BB B BN AFE
BARYS 163,000 - RIWERHE - %
ZEWENES R EMBEWKIENRE L
SR B ARES, 163,000 - RAUkEE B H
HEFEZRR 2 ELRERE 2 RIER

date of the contractual cash flows not expected to be FTRETT -
collected is nil.
RMB’000
ARBTTT
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:  UWEEE £ HFHE
Consideration paid in cash NIR & IR E (500)
Bank balances and cash acquired FrEE ARITAE SR R IRE 420
(80)

Included in the profit for the year ended 31 December
2019 was a profit of RMB2,399,000 attributable to
the additional business generated by the acquired
subsidiaries. Revenue for the year ended 31 December
2019 includes RMB12,214,000 generated from the
acquired subsidiaries.

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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35.

36.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2019,
the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December
2019 would have been RMB906,717,000, and profit
for the year ended 31 December 2019 would have
been RMB163,713,000. The pro forma information is
for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 January 2019, nor is it
intended to be a projection of future results.

DEEMED DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the current year, Guangdong Aoruola, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, increased
its registered capital by equity contribution from an
independent third party. This resulted in a deemed
disposal of 70% equity interest of Guangdong Aoruola.

Under a contractual agreement dated 26 June 2019,
the independent third party agreed to contribute
RMB149,450,000 which represents 70% of the enlarged
registered capital of RMB213,500,000 in Guangdong
Aoruola by capital injection. On the other hand, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company agreed to
contribute RMB64,050,000, which represents 30% of
the enlarged registered capital in Guangdong Aoruola.
Both parties had not yet made the capital injection as
at the date of disposal, however, they are committed
to fully inject the registered capital on or before 31
December 2050. Under the contractual agreement, the
Group holds the remaining 30% of equity interest in
Guangdong Aoruola and controls 30% of the voting
power in general shareholders meetings thereafter.
Guangdong Aoruola is jointly controlled by the Group
and the other joint venturer by virtue of contractual
agreements among venturers; of which all directors’
approval is required for the key business/operating
decisions of Guangdong Aoruola. Therefore, Guangdong
Aoruola is classified as a joint venture of the Group as
at the period end date. Guangdong Aoruola and its
wholly-owned subsidiary, Guangzhou Aoruola, became
joint ventures of the Group since 26 June 2019 as set
out in note 18. The loss of control of the 70% equity
interest in Guangdong Aoruola is considered as a
deemed disposal of subsidiaries.

35.

36.

FEMERRMEE
BE_ZT—hFEt+-A=1+—BItFE

IiBME AR (2

W EEERA—E—NF—A—B%TK -
HE-_Z-NF+-_A=1+—"HBILFEHN
AEBWZE A AREE06,717,0007T ¢
HEZZ-NGF+T-A=1T—"HILFEHD
A A ARB163,713,0007T © BBEE
FHERFREAR - KU RBINKIESIE
R-Z—NF— A —HEEAEBERE
EHNNEREEEE - HWIEEETRE
RIRELE o

i 1k i &5 B B 2 B

REAFERN  ARRI2ENBARIERR
ERNFERBE = HRELESMEFM
BEAR - WREHAELHERRRAENH
70%[%HE o

BEARA-T—AFNA-tBZAE
“E BYF=ZARBELNIENAR
HEARB149,450,0007t (BBERER
BENFMERARKE213,500,0007TH]
70%)° Z—FHHE ' ARARIZEEWNBA
AIRELE ARYE64,050,000T (HHER
BRERBEENAMEAN30%) - EHRH
ERHMEKFEE A BEEAER-Z
AEFE+-A=+—HH BB TEH
MEX - REZEOHZ  AEBRFEE
RRENGT30%REINERZBRN
BEARE FHEHB0%NRER - ERHR
BRTTAASERS —Z5EPEERE
BEDEEMNA N HBEERER - Hh
ERBENMEBER EIERKHES
REEAMEERSAEE - Al ERERA
NRAHEEEAEDBALAEBNEE
¥ -BEREZNREZEWE AT EIMN
BENEA -_Z—NFENA-F+/HEKS
REEMNEGELE(MMEF18AH) o X
2= Y B B BB A1 7.0 % AR RE B 22 ) R AR
ABEELEHRBAR °
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
GaMBEERRME
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

36. DEEMED DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 36. RIEHEMBELAT &)

(Continued)

Subsequent to the deemed disposal, the wholly-owned BIEREL  AATHEZEBHERT
subsidiary of the Company and the joint venturer BFALMESRTAGSHER AR
injected the registered capital of RMB12,850,000 and 12,850,0007C % AR#29 850,0007T °

RMB29,850,000, respectively.

Details of the net assets disposed of in respect of above AR ik 5 E 4 E SIS
transaction are summarised below: T
RMB’'000
AREF T
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB R&E 4,759
Inventories FE 805
Trade and other receivables Z 5 K& H i FE Y IR 2,581
Bank balances and cash fEﬁ HER LB e 596
Trade and other payables B 5 N A M R FRIE (1,789)
Amounts due to subsidiaries of the Group EHK%IWJ* AIFIA (13,489)
Net liabilities disposed of Frit & & & Fa8 (6,537)
Gain on deemed disposal of RIELEHE QAW =
subsidiaries
Cash consideration RERE -
Obligation in excess of interest in a joint  BBRAE D EERS 2 EE
venture 1,961
Less: net liabilities disposed of B ML EREFE (6,537)
(4,576)

Net cash outflow arising from deemed HERELHEMBATELENRSREFE
disposal of subsidiaries:

Cash consideration received BWIRSRE —
Less: bank balances and cash of the W RIEHERNRITEREIRS
deemed disposal (596)

(596)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBEERME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_Z—NFT_A=+—HILLFE

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or the
future cash flow will be, classified in the Group's
consolidated financial statement of cash flows from
financing activities.

37.

M E B EE R R

TRALAEEREZDAEERENE
8 BRAESKIFREED - BEFDAHN
EENBEARSRECHARAKEALRE
BRAEENGEMBRRADERBE

REAERERENEE -

Non-cash changes

FReRy
At Accrued  Non-trade At
1 January Financing  Finance cost  share issue amounts Dividend Non-cash 31 December
2019 cash flow  of the year cost  offsetting declared financing 2019
RZB-1% Eithet  #EFER R-B-1%
-f-B HERLNE HBAHE BITHE ¢8 CERRE  FHEWE toR=t-A
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR
Bank borowings 7R 1,779 97,017 1,517 - - - - 100,313
Amountsdueto  ENRZNELR
fellow subsidiaries 3B (38 5)
(non-trade) 3173 19,103 - - (22,276) - - -
Amountsdueto  FERBEAFE
related parties - 834 - - - - - 834
Accrued share issue — EHRGZIMA
cost 1,292 (28,213) - 26,981 - - - -
Lease liabilties HEAR 9,084 (4,09) 817 - - - 10333 16,145
Dividend payable k& - (39,944) - - - 39,944 - -
15,328 44,648 2,334 26,981 (22,276) 39,944 10,333 117,292

RERBELEEEEARAR —T—NFR

295



296

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

& M B H R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

37. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES

37. REREHMELARHHIR

ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (#&)
(Continued)
Non-cash changes
3k
At Accrued Non-trade At
1 January Financing Group  share issue amounts Dividend 31 December
2018 cash flow  Reorganisation cost offsetting declared 2018
RE-NE EitRiy it RIB-N\F
-A-B  RER&NE EBEA BRA  FBREE  BERRE toA=t-R
RIMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RIMB'000 RIMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR ARETR  ARETR
Bank borrowing RfER - 1,779 - - - - 1,779
Amounts due to fellow Fgﬁﬂ ZHEAR
subsidiaries (non-trade) WA (FE%) 150,995 (40,307) 32,863 - () 132,600 3173
Accrued share issue cost Wéuﬂ%xf Il 807 (3746) - 4231 - - 1,292
151,802 (42,274) 32,863 4,231 (272,978) 132,600 6,244

38. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the current year, the Group entered into the
following significant non-cash transactions:

(a) The Company had entered into an agreement with
China Aoyuan for which the non-trade amounts
due from fellow subsidiaries had been settled
by offsetting arrangements with the non-trade
amounts due to fellow subsidiaries at the amount of
RMB22,276,000.

(b) During the year, the Group entered into new lease
agreements for the use of office premises, Chinese
medical clinic and staff quarters for two to ten
years. On the lease commencement, the Group
recognised RMB10,333,000 of right-of-use assets and
RMB 10,333,000 lease liabilities.
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38. EXFHEXH

RAFE  AEEFTZATERFRER
5

(a) $’“TEEEPI B a3 — 190
CUEBREETHENENRER
Bﬁ%"ﬂ# S MBERIEARKE
22,276,000 LA E R E R B
PNAEIMIEE HAEBERIE -

by RER AEEREAWRLE
¥ PEPHEEIBREI V-2
T EHAE R -  NHEERBE -
AEBBERERAEEEARARKE
10,333,000t R HEBBEARAR
#10,333,0007T °
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
entered into the following significant non-cash
transactions:

(@)

On 1 July 2018, the Company had entered into
an agreement with China Aoyuan for which the
non-trade amounts due from fellow subsidiaries
had been settled by offsetting arrangements with
the amounts due to fellow subsidiaries (namely
the declared dividend of RMB132,600,000) at the
amount of RMB132,600,000 as at 1 July 2018.

On 30 September 2018, the Company had
entered into an agreement with China Aoyuan
for which the non-trade amounts due from
fellow subsidiaries had been settled by offsetting
arrangements with the amounts due to fellow
subsidiaries (including the cash consideration
arising from Group Reorganisation at total sum
of RMB58,917,000, respectively, and other non-
trade amount of RMB81,461,000) at the amount
of RMB140,378,000 as at 30 September 2018.

R e MR R

BE_ZT—hFEt+-A=1+—BItFE

38. EXIHRERXH @

N

—
Q
-~

%

ET-NF+ZA=+—HFE -
BEIMATERFRERS ¢

R=ZT—N\FtHA—H AArFH
FRERBETL—MDHE - LEB
BHER_ZE—N\NFLtA—BLH
MNESRAENB AT RBEAREK
132,600,000 (AP E TR E A
K #132,600,0007T) 45 & e Ut A
A B ARIMIEE S EFIA o

R-ZZTE—NFALA=1+H  &AA
RIERBEBEY—HiHE - N
BEREER_ZE—NFENLA=+
HLZHERMERR XM B AR KE
ANE#140,378,0007T (BIEE &
ESHEAMRSNERBEARE
58,917,000t R HAM3IEE 5 1HE
HIBARES1,461,0007T) EE &
WRAKWB AT MIEE S EE XK
1A o

39. OPERATING LEASES 39. EEHE
The Group as lessee XREESEERBA
2018
—E-N\F
RMB’'000
AREF T
Minimum lease payments paid under REABAEEMHED
operating leases in respect of rented KEMENER
premises during the year AR E 5K 7,180

RERBELEEEEARAR —T—NFR
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& M B H R

For the year ended 31 December 2019

e TR et m B = 1+— B IEEE

39. OPERATING LEASES (Continued) 9. EBHE »
As at 31 December 2018, apart from lease commitments RZBE—NF+_A=+—H  BH=E
with fellow subsidiaries as detailed in note 34(c), the B4(C)FTE R XM B A A HHE & E
Group had commitments for future minimum lease O ARBEE=Z SR IABESCEHEE
payments under non-cancellable operating leases with BNEBBAEMERETIBTENARARE
third parties in respect of office premises and staff KA E R PAERENT :
dormitories which fall due as follows:
2018
—Z-N\F
RMB’'000
ARETTT
Within one year —FR 3,311
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFRF(BREERMF) 3,832
7,143
Operating lease payment for the year ended 31 ME34(OfMBEERE-E—N\F+=A
December 2018 to fellow subsidiaries as disclosed in =+t—HIEFERRRWEB QR Z ALK
note 34(c) represent rentals payable by the Group for its EHENTEASERERAETMERSD
office premises and Chinese medical clinic. Leases are EZMNENES BmELHBAR—ZH
negotiated and rentals are fixed for terms of one to five FmABARNzHeRETHE -
years.
40. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 40. BEFKIE
2019 2018
—E-NE —ZT-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARBTTT
Commitments for acquisition of property, &5 #1{E R PR A B F iR &K
plant and equipment contracted for BENEEYE -
but not provided in the consolidated R 55 B 5% 15 O A
financial statements - 7,890
Construction cost commitments for a BRI AVBE R ERE B 15 Tk
healthcare and medical beauty BENRERBEREREE
industrial complex contracted for RE B EEN A RE
but not provided in the consolidated
financial statements 399,339 =
Commitments for registered capital BEREIMERTEAE
injection in a joint venture 51,200 -

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2019



41.

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBEERME

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has
direct and indirect interests in the following subsidiaries:

Name of company

ARER

Directly held:
ERRE

RERREEERARAT
Aoyuan Healthy Living Holding Limited
(formerly known as Aomygod Holding

Company Limited)

RERFEEERARAT
(RREXERARLR)

Indlirectly held:
FERE

RERREERERRAR

Aoyuan Healthy Life Investment Limited
(formerly known as Aomygod Cross
Border E-commerce Limited)

RERREEREARAA
(MEREZEREREEARAA)

RRRRERE (R ERAD
Aoyuan Healthy Life (Hong Kong)

Limited

RERELE(BR) ARAA

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
AL/
Rt

BVI
RERARES

Hong Kong
30

Hong Kong
B

Issued and
fully paid capital/
registered capital

BETRAR
B/ EREs

US$1,000
1,000%7

HK$1
1T

HK$1
1A

41. BT

Equity interest

attributable to the Group

AREELRE

At 31 December

Rt=A=+-8
2019 2018
ZE-hE 2B\
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Principal Activities

TEER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

BE-2-NF+-A=+—ALEE

RIEEH - AATRTIMEAAES
B R

Legal form

ARER

Limited liability company
RRAAAT

Limited liability company
EREFLA

Limited liability company
EREfAT

RERELTEEEGRAT —T—hFH 299
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

& M B H R

For the year ended 31 December 2019

41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
Place of
incorporation/
Name of company establishment
iR/
AAER HIBE

Indlrectly held (Continued)
FEHE (8
BEEREE (BN £8ERAR PRC
Aoyuan Healthy Life (Guangzhou) Gl
Group Company Limited* (formerly
known as EREEBXNXERAR
28] Guangdong Aoyuan Commercial
Property Management Limited)
BERREE (BN SBERAR (iR
BRERBFNFERARLA)

BNRREMEEERARDA PRC

Guangzhou Aoyuan Innovation Asset &l
Management Company Limited*

EMREEHAEERERAR

EMRENZRHEARAT PRC
Guangzhou Aoyuan Property Services
Company Limited*

ENRENXREARAT

TLRREERREARAA PRC
Zhongshan Aoyuan Property H
Management Services Company
Limited*
Pl RENFERREERAR

RURENEERREARAT PRC
Kunshan Aoyuan Property Management S
Services Company Limited*

RURENZERREARLE

Issued and
fully paid capital/
registered capital

ERIRAR
Ba&/EREs

RMB50,000,000

not fully paid up
AR%50,000,0007C
(Rm2fs)

RMB500,000
ARHS500,0007C

RMB10,000,000
AK10,000,0007

RMB3,000,000
ARH3,000,0007

RMB3,000,000
AR3,000,0007

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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41. B LTHE 2

Equity interest

attributable to the Group

AREEERE

At 31 December

Rt=A=t-8
2019 2018
ZE-F  ZEF\F
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Principal Activities

IRRH

Investment holding

REER

Provision of property
management services

RENFERRS

Provision of property
management services

RENFERRS

Provision of property
management services

RENFERRS

Provision of property
management services

REDZEERE

Legal form

ATFA

Limited liability company
EREfAT

Limited liability company
ERELEAA

Limited liability company
EREfAT

Limited liability company
EREfAT

Limited liability company
EREFLA



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBEERME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_Z—NFT_A=+—HILLFE

41.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 41. BELTEEFE®)
(Continued)
Place of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid capital/ Equity interest
Name of company establishment registered capital attributable to the Group Principal Activities Legal form
AL/ BETRAR
rAER HYHE Ra/EfER AEREGRE TTER AR
At 31 December
Rt=A=t-H
2019 2018
B0 ZEB)N\E
Indlrectly held: (Continued)
FE#E (8
BEARNEREERAT PRC RMBS,000,000 100% 100% Provision of property Limited liability company
Shenyang Aoyuan Property Services ARH5,000,0007 management services  AREEAT
Limited* (formerly known as B2 RENEERRE
ENFERREERAR Shenyang
Aoyuan Property Management
Services Company Limited)
EGRARNZREERAR (I
ERARNEERREERA)
IHEENERBEARAR PRC RMB3,000,000 100% 100% Provision of property Limited liability company
Yulin Aoyuan Property Services i AEH3,000,0007 management services  BREFAT
Company Limited* RENFEERE
IHEENEREARAT
ERRANFERRBARLA PRC RMB3,000,000 100% 100% Provision of property Limited liability company
Chongging Sui'ao Property ] AR3,000,0007 management services  AREEAT
Management Services Company RENEERRY
Limited*
ERRRNEEEREARAR
RERINERBEARAA PRC RMB1,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of property Limited liability company
Anhui Hanlin Property Services hE AR1,000,0007 management services  AREEAT
Company Limited* RENEERRH
REBRIEREARAR
M ERNEERERAT PRC RMB1,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of property Limited liability company
Shenzhen Huazhong Property i ARE1,000,0007 management services  BREMAT
Management Company Limited* RENEEERH

RIERNRERARAT

RERBELEEEEARAR —T—NFR
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FeaMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES . BEBATENE 2
(Continued)
Place of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid capital/ Equity interest
Name of company establishment registered capital attributable to the Group Principal Activities Legal form
AL/ ERIRAR
AAER iRt Ra/EfER AEERIERE IEER ARRR
At 31 December
Rt=A=t-H
2019 2018
“E-pfF ZT)\§
Indlrectly held (Continued)
FERE - (8)
ENERRREEERERAA PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100% Provision of commercial  Limited liability company
Guangzhou Aoyuan Commercial Gl not fully paid up operational sevices  BREFAA
Operation Management Company AR%10,000,0007 REBZELRE
Limited* (Rr2fs)
BNARBXAEERARDA
B REEZEEERAT PRC RMBS,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of commercial Limited liability company
Foshan Aoyuan Commercial P not yet paid up operational services  BREEARF
Management Company Limited* ARES5,000,0007 REBZELRE
FIRRARXERERAT (HAEE)
IHAEEEERARAR PRC RMB5,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of commercial Limited liability company
Jiangmen Aoyuan Commercial T not yet paid up operational services  AREMLH
Management Company Limited* ARES5,000,0007T REBRESRE
IHAEEXEEARAT (AR
REARRGREEEARAT PRC RMBS,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of commercial  Limited liability company
Shaoguan Aoyuan Square Commercial ~ % not yet paid up operational services  BREFAA
Management Company Limited* AEH5,000,0007 REBEELRE
PEARRAHEEEARAT (AR
AR EERER AT PRC RMBS5,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of commercial — Limited liability company
Liuyang Aoyuan Square Commercial ~ H not yet paid up operational sevices  BREFAA
Management Company Limited* ARES5,000,0007 REBZELRE
A ARRSHEERARAR (HAGE)
ERRRRSEEEEERAA PRC RMBS,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of commercial  Limited liability company
Chongging Aoyuan Square Commercial 4 not yet paid up operational services EREEAA
Management Company Limited* ARE5,000,0007 RUBXEZRE
ERRERAREERARDA ()

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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FaMBEERME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_Z—NFT_A=+—HILLFE

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 41. BELTEEFE®)
(Continued)
Place of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid capital/ Equity interest
Name of company establishment registered capital attributable to the Group Principal Activities Legal form
iR/ BEARAR
AAER RY%E B/ EREs AEREGRE IEXH AR
At 31 December
Rt=A=t-8
2019 2018
B0 ZEB)N\E

Indlrectly held: (Continued)
BEHE - (B)

ERERAEEERERAA PRC RMB5,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of commercial Limited liability company
Zhuhai Aoyuan Square Commercial hE not yet paid up operational services  AREAH
Management Company Limited* ARE5,000,0007 REBZELRH
HERERSHEERARAR (HAEE)
RERRRGEXERARLA PRC RMBS, 000,000 100% 100%  Provision of commercial  Limited liability company
Wuhua Aoyuan Square Commercial not yet paid up operational services  AREMLF
Management Company Limited* ARE5,000,0007 REBZELRY
IERRRGAEEEARAT (HAREE)
SRARSRESHENEERARAT PRC RMBS,000,000 100% qogs  Trovsoncfaommerdal e bl company
Shenyang Aoyuan Convention Plaza i ARHS,000,0007 operét\?nil IS EREMAF
Commercial Property Management RABRELRD
perty g
Company Limited*
RERReRESRRNFERERAA
ERRERSREERARAR PRC RMBS,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of commercial  Limited liability company
Jiaoling Aoyuan Square Commercial not yet paid up operational sevices  BREFAA
Management Company Limited* AEE5,000,0007 REBXELRY
ERRRRAHEERARAT (HASE)
BNEEARREFERAA PRC RMB1,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of health Limited liability company
Guangzhou Aoyuan Health Industry & not yet paid up management consulting  EREEAF
Company Limited* (formerly ARE1,000,0007T services
known as M EERRBEERA (HAREE) RERREEZARE

7 Guangzhou Jiayuan Networks

Technology Company Limited)
ENEEARREZARAT

(IRENEENHBEERAR)

RERELZTEEERAT —T—hFEk 303
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41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES . BEBATENE 2
(Continued)
Place of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid capital/ Equity interest
Name of company establishment registered capital attributable to the Group Principal Activities Legal form
AL/ ERIRAR
AAER iRt Ra/EfER AEREGRE IEER ARRR
At 31 December
Rt=A=t-H
2019 2018
“E-pfF ZT)\§
Indlrectly held (Continued)
FERE - (8)
M REREREARAT PRC RMBS5,000,000 100% 100%  Enhanced property Limited liability company
Shenzhen Aojia Network Technology B not yet paid up services and operation ~ BREFAA
Company Limited* ARH5,000,0007T of the mobile
MIRERENRARAR (HAEE) application
KunEhEhEehaE
A
INRERRAZERARDA PRC RMBS,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of commercial  Limited fiability company
Yulin Aoyuan Commercial Operation not yet paid up operational sevices  BREFAA
Management Company Limited* ARES5,000,0007 REBHZELRE
INRRRRAEERARDA (HAEE)
ENZEERBEEEERERAT  PRC RMBS,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of commercial  Limited fiability company
Guangzhou Aoyuan Luogang Gl not yet paid up operational sevices  BREMAT
Commercial Management Company ARES5,000,0007 REERECRY
Limited* (A
BNRARZHEXOLERARD
ERARBRAEERARDA PRC RMBS,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of commercial  Limited fiability company
Ningdu Aoyuan Commercial Operation % not yet paid up operational services  ARERDH
Management Company Limited* ARE5,000,0007 REFZERY
EARARFEEERERAA (AR
BNREEELSNERBERAT  PRC RMB1,000,000 0% 70%  Provision of property Limited liability company
Guangzhou Aoyuan Yilian Peninsula &l AR%1,000,0007 management services  AREEAT
Property Services Company Limited* RENEEERE
BNRRGET BNEREARAA
ENEERERHEERERAA PRC RMBS5,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of commercial  Limited liability company
Guangzhou Panyu Aoyuan Commercial ~ H & not yet paid up operational sevices  BREFAA
Management Company Limited* ARES5,000,0007 REBZELRE
ENEEREREERARAR (HAEE)



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

R e M BHwERME
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-_ZT—NF+-A=+—HILFE
PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 41. BELTEEFE®)
(Continued)
Place of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid capital/ Equity interest
Name of company establishment registered capital attributable to the Group Principal Activities Legal form
AL/ BETRAR
rAER L% Ra/EfER AEERIERE IEER ARAFR
At 31 December
Rt=A=t-H
2019 2018
B0 ZEB)N\E
Indlrectly held: (Continued)
FE#E (8
FEMENELENEERERAT  PRC RMB500,000 100% 100%  Provision of property Limited liability company
Qingyuan Qingxin Lexin Property hE AR500,0007 management services  AREEAT
Management Company Limited* RENEERRH
BRMENERENFERERAT
ENRETEMDBERAT PRC RMB1,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of health Limited liability company
Guangzhou Aoyuan Traditional hE not yet paid up management consulting BRETAA
Chinese Medicine Out-patient Centre AR 1,000,000 Services
Company Limited* (HABEE) RERFEEZARE
BNREREMDBERAA
BNRRTEDHARLA PRC RMB1,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of health Limited liability company
Guangzhou Aoyuan Traditional Chinese % not yet paid up management consulting BRETAT
Medicine Clinic Company Limited* AR1,000,0007 services
BNEEDED MARAR () RERRERZ AR
BNEERFEZRBEARAR PRC RMB1,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of health Limited liability company
Guangzhou Aoyuan Health Care Service & ARE1,000,0007T management consulting EREEAF
Company Limited* (formerly known as services
BHRRRFEERTERAT RERRERZ AR
Guangzhou Aoyuan Healthy Life
Design Company Limited)
ENREREEZREARAT (MR
BNRERREERHARDA)
ENRERREEEMACERAT  PRC RMB1,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of cleaning and  Limited liability company
Guangzhou Aoyuan Healthy Life hE ARE1,000,0007 qardening services EREMfAT
Gardening Company Limited* REBZREZRE

ENRERFLEEMELARAA
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41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 41. B2 EEFE @)
(Continued)
Place of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid capital/ Equity interest
Name of company establishment registered capital attributable to the Group Principal Activities Legal form
iR/ BRIRAR
AAER Ry %E Ba&/EREs AEREGRE IEXH AR
At 31 December
Rt=A=t-8
2019 2018
“E-pfF ZT)\§

Indlrectly held (Continued)
FEHE (8

ENRAZIHZEZERERAT  PRC RMB1,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of commercial Limited liability company
Guangzhou Aoyuan Xianyu Commercial % not yet paid up operational sevices  BREFAA
Management CompanyLimited* ARE1,000,0007 REBZELRE

BN ARSI AE A ERERAT (HAEE)

ERAERRESREASEERAT  PRC US$100,000,000 100% N/A  Investment holding Limited liability company
Guangdong Aoyuan Health Industry % not fully paid up MER  REER EREMfAF

Investment Group Company Limited* 100,000,000% 7

BRARRRESREEHARAT (Rr2fs)

BRARERRERAA PRC RMB10,000,000 100% N/A  Provision of design Limited liability company
Guangdong Aozhiyun Technology Gl AK10,000,0007 NEA  management and EREMfAF

Company Limited* consulting services

BRAREREERAT RERTEE Rt AR
PRREFRERRERAA PRC RMB250,000,000 100% N/A  Provision of health Limited liability company
Shanghai Aohuiyan Health Technology &l not fully paid up @A management consulting BREFAR
Company Limited* AR%250,000,0007T services

LEREFRERRERAT (Rm2fs) RERRERZARY

ERETANERERAT PRC RMBS,000,000 100% N/A  Provision of human Limited liability company
Guangdong Liancai Human Resources % not fully paid up TEH  resource management  AREAH
Company Limited* AR 5,000,000 Services

BEBTANERERAR (Rm2fs) REANEREERE
ERARNBRRARRAR PRC RMB50,000,000 100% N/A  Provision of health Limited liability company
Guangdong Aoyuan Yue Health T not yet paid up @A management consulting ARERLF
Investment Company Limited* AK50,000,0007C services

BRARNERRERRAA () RERRERZARY

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Name of company

ARER

Indlrectly held: (Continued)
BEHE - (B)
KETRERANZERERAT
Zhuhai HongRi
KETRERANFERERAT

RERERFEHRERARAT
Tianjin Aoyuan Yuemeiju Commercial
Management Company Limited*

REREHXERZERARLA

RRREGREERERAT

Tianjin Aoyuan Yuejiankang
Management Company Limited*

REREHRREEERAD

RERUFBXEEERAR
Tianjin Aoyuejia Commercial
Management Company Limited*

RERERARERERAA

RERRNRARALLT
Xiangtan Yagao
RERENEERALLT

ERRENFERRRAT
Chongging Runhui
EREENZERERAA

BYDARENZERARAA
Enping Shuihetian
BYDARANEERARLT

Place of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid capital/
establishment registered capital
iR/ BETRAR
HIBE Ra/EfER
PRC RMB555,000
RE AR #555,0007
PRC RMB1,000,000
i not yet paid up
AE%1,000,0007

(HA&E)

PRC RMB1,000,000
i not yet paid up
ARE1,000,0007

(HA&R)

PRC RMB5,000,000
i not yet paid up
ARH5,000,0007

(HASR)

PRC RMB500,000
hEl AR#500,0007
PRC RMB1,000,000
hE AR%1,000,0007
PRC RMB500,000
hE not yet paid up
AR500,0007

(AR

41. 8

Equity interest

attributable to the Group
AREEERE
At 31 December
Rt=A=t-8
2019 2018
B0 ZEB)N\E
100% N/A
Oyl
100% N/A
Byl
100% N/A
MER
100% N/A
AER
100% N/A
Bl
100% N/A
ki
100% N/A
oyl

Principal Activities

IRRH

Provision of property
management services

RENFERRS

Provision of decoration
and furniture services

R REMRHE

Provision of decoration
and furniture services

AR R AR

Provision of decoration
and furniture services

R REARE

Provision of property
management services

RENFERRS

Provision of property
management services

RENFERRS

Provision of property
management services

RENFERRS

NS RE )

BE-2-NF+-A=+—ALEE

Legal form

ATFA

Limited liability company
ERELRA

Limited liability company
BRERAR

Limited liability company
RREAAT

Limited liability company
EREMfAT

Limited liability company
EREFLA

Limited liability company
BREAAT

Limited liability company
EREALH

RERBELEEEEARAR —T—NFR
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41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 41. B2 FEHE @
(Continued)
Place of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid capital/ Equity interest
Name of company establishment registered capital attributable to the Group Principal Activities Legal form
AL/ BRIRAR
AAER HIBE k& /ERER AEERIERE ITER ARFR
At 31 December
Rt=A=t-H
2019 2018
ZE-F  ZEF\F
Indlrectly held (Continued)
F#RE - (8)
ENBAmEEER AT PRC RMB1,000,000 100% N/A  Provision of design Limited liability company
Guangzhou Chaowan Advertising Gl not yet paid up MEA  management and EREfAT
Company Limited* AR1,000,0007 consulting services
ENImESARAR (HAEE) Rt E R LR
EETH)IEREEXERERAT  PRC RMBS5,000,000 100% N/A  Provision of commercial  Limited liability company
Chongging Nanchuan Aoyuan T not yet paid up TER  operational services  BRETAA
Commercial Management ARES5,000,0007 REBZELRE
Company Limited* (HREE)
EETAERERFERERAA
* The English name is for identification purpose only. * BT AR
None of the above subsidiaries had issued any debt RZZE—NF+ZA=1+—8 LB
securities at 31 December 2019. NAMEETEMNEBES -

308
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43.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank
borrowings, non-trade amounts due to fellow
subsidiaries, net of cash and cash equivalents, and
equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising share capital, reserves and retained profits.

The management of the Group reviews the capital
structure periodically and considers the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital and
balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends and new share issues as well as the issue of
new debts or the redemption of existing debts.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a. Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets SREE
Amortised cost SR R
Financial liabilities tREE
Amortised cost SR R

42.

43.

ReEMERERME
BE-T-NE+-A=+HILEE
BXEBEE

AEFBERHEAUBRAEEETER
#HTF?%%% - A BBERCER kR
ﬁ%%ﬂx%’“ﬁfﬁ@#ﬁz AEBEER
n,\iﬁﬁ’ﬁh B o

AEENEARBEERTER  BNHR
AMBARERE SR (KRS LF S
FEWM) RARRHREAREREN - 81
B - R R R E A

AEEEEBTEHRMIEAR T%&%)%ﬁ
ARAREREHERERBRNRER -
B IR A B ,m&?é‘ﬁ%ﬁﬂx%&?é‘ﬁ%ﬂfﬁ%jz
BOREEHFEEEBEANRRE -

&*MITR

a. ®MIREH

2019 2018

—g-nE —2-NF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®FR  ARMTR

1,012,138 454,804

206,747 173,271
RERBELEEEEARAR —T—NFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

43.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives

and policies

The Group’s financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries, a non-controlling shareholder of
a subsidiary, joint ventures and related parties,
bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables, bank borrowings, amounts due to
fellow subsidiaries and related parties. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in

respective notes.

The management of the Group monitors and
manages the financial risks relating to the
operations of the Group through internal risk
assessment which analyses exposures by degree
and magnitude of risks. The risks included market
risk (including interest rate risk and foreign
currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below and remained unchanged from prior year.
The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rate on bank balances. The
management considered that interest rate risk of
bank balances is insignificant and accordingly no

sensitivity analysis is presented.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to fixed-rate bank borrowings
(see note 32 for details of these borrowings). The
management will review the borrowing in fixed

rate and ensure it is within reasonable range.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Foreign currency risk

The Group’s transactions were mainly conducted
in RMB, the functional currency of the Company
and its subsidiaries, and its major receivables and
payables are denominated in RMB. The Group is
subject to foreign exchange rate risk arising from
the assets which are denominated in currency
other than the functional currency of the relevant
group entity. The majority of the Group's
foreign currency transactions and balances
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The
management closely monitors foreign currency
exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

The Group’s foreign currency denominated
monetary assets are mainly bank balances at the
end of each reporting period and the carrying
amounts are as follows:

Assets BE
Hong Kong dollars B TT

R e MR R

BE_ZT—hFEt+-A=1+—BItFE

43. €MIR»

b.

eRERETEEEARREE(E)

5 m e (E)

S E JE B

AEBMRZFHEEUARRE REHK
BARMNEEBARKET  H
EFERUGALEMNFTEAUAR
®olE - ARBEEKRAEREEE
BUEERIIMBERTENEE
EERSMNERR - NEBABAE D
SNER B N AESRIA B TTEHE o B
BEEEZYEEINERR - XHRE
FEREZEBH PEANINERR -

REJBERRAKEHSINEFTEE
KEEXTBERRITAER  HEEE
o -

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETIT
107,628 15,981
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 43. @M I R »

b. Financial risk management objectives b. &RAMEEEERBEKE)
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued) m 5 E (&)

Foreign currency risk (Continued) SNE SR B (48)

Sensitivity analysis BRED N

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity TR A B A R S I
to a 5% decrease in RMB against the relevant e [ RN FE5 % SRS © FTER A
foreign currency. The sensitivity rates used ZHREREEEEHERNGEE
represents management’'s assessment of the FB)PTER TG o T A IE SRR
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange REERBMEBSEFEARYE LB
rates. A positive number below indicates an HNBEFE RN [E5%BSI2 A E -
increase in post-tax profit for the year where RMB AR S HBINENERSE T
weakens 5% against the relevant currency. For 5% -+ BIBR B 18085 % 2 B S 308
a 5% strengthening of RMB against the relevant BROFE  UTEHRBEEEH -

currency, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the post-tax profit and the balances
below would be negative.

2019 2018
—g-nE  —FNF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Hong Kong dollars BT
Profit for the year F RN 4,036 799

312  Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2019



43.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s
counterparties default on their contractual
obligations resulting in financial losses to the
Group. The Group’s credit risk exposures are
primarily attributable to trade receivables,
bank balances, amounts due from a non-
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary, fellow
subsidiaries, related parties and joint ventures,
other receivables. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements to cover
its credit risks associated with its financial assets.

The Group has significant concentration of credit
risk on amounts due from fellow subsidiaries,
related parties and joint ventures as at 31
December 2019 with details set out in notes
23, 24 and 25. The management of the Group
has made periodic individual assessment on
recoverability based on historical settlement
records and adjusts for forward-looking
information. In view of the strong financial
capability of these fellow subsidiaries, related
parties and joint ventures and considered
the future prospects of the industry these
counterparties operate, the management of the
Group consider their probability of default and
exposure of default are low, and accordingly,
no impairment was recognised in respect of the
amounts due from fellow subsidiaries, related
parties and joint ventures.

BE—

ReEMERERME
—NE+-A=t+-ALFE

43. €MIR»

b.

REREEEREARAR —F

eRERETEEEARREE(E)

FEmEE
EERBEASEHFIERES
BREB M ERANE B ELEM I E
BoRER - AREEERNEERR
ETBREBZHEWFKE - RITE
g~ B W — [ B A R IR AR
R -RARMBRA - @I REE
EEFANEMERHIE - NEH
I EFF A AR R E M ERE
RERARERSREERRNE
B -

ﬁﬁl%::—ﬂ¢+:ﬂz+—
HMEXEERRETFEREIFZR
HMEAR - ﬁ%E&A“ﬁ%m
TH o FBEHNMFE23 ~ 24K 25 °
AEBEEERBELEELER
BLATHE 14 & RHE A F3 2 8 A] [B1 L
M E BAE B EE S - ERZER
ZMBAR - B A REEDEDN
BIMIFEE N - RERIZERS
HFLERMETERNRKRRS + &
SEERERAMENEL TN
MEARBRE ) - Bt - WEGLE
WRRMBAR - B REED
HERIEERRME -
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 43. @M I R »

314

b. Financial risk management objectives b. &RAMEEEERBEKE)
and policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued) EERE (Z)
Trade receivables HZENFE

As part of the Group’s credit risk management,
the Group applies internal credit rating for its
customers by reference to past default experience
and current past due exposure of the debtor,
and an analysis of the debtor’s current financial
position. The Group has applied the simplified
approach in IFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance
at lifetime ECL.

The ECL on trade receivables are assessed
individually for corporate customers with
significant balances and/or collectively for
large number of small customers with common
risk characteristics using a provision matrix
with appropriate groupings. During the year
ended 31 December 2019, the Group provided
RMB923,000 (2018: 442,000) and reversed
RMB445,000 (2018: RMB479,000) loss allowance
on ECL based on individually assessed corporate
customers and provided RMB5,350,000 (2018:
RMB2,889,000) and reversed RMB2,281,000
(2018: RMB1,865,000) loss allowance on ECL
based on the provision matrix.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The estimated loss rates are estimated based
on historical observed default rates over the
expected life of the debtors and study of other
corporates’ default and recovery data from
international credit-rating agencies including
Moody’'s and Standard and Poor’s, and are
adjusted for forward-looking information (for
example, the current and forecasted economic
growth rates in the PRC, which reflect the general
economic conditions of the industry in which the
debtors operate) that is available without undue
cost or effort. Such forward-looking information
is used by the management of the Group to assess
both the current as well as the forecast direction
of conditions at the reporting date. The Group
rebutted the presumption of default under ECL
model for trade receivables over 90 days past due
based on the good repayment records for those
customers with continuous partial settlement.
Large number of small customers are assessed
collectively based on provision matrix based
on historical credit loss experience adjusted by
forward-looking estimates. Individual customers
with significant balances are assessed individually
for the credit risk based on their probability of
default and exposure of default. The grouping
is regularly reviewed by the management of the
Group to ensure relevant information about
specific debtors is updated.

R e MR R

BE_ZT—hFEt+-A=1+—BItFE

43. €MIR»

b.

eRERETEEEARREE(E)

EEmE (&)
B S EWHIE ()

et ERERTREB AR F YN
BELBEMBENR - RERE
RS (BEMoody RIFEE
M) AREMARNELNRE WX
MR AR - YHAERHHBZK
R % 4 BN Al 15 #9 B RE 1 B (B
me REERREAREERE
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43.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

e TR et m B = 1+— B IEEE

43. €MIR»

Financial risk management objectives b. EREAMEEAEREE (&)
and policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued) =EERE (&)
Trade receivables (Continued) B 2 EN i IE (1)
The following table provides information about TRV EBAEBETBENEER
the Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for S NR - E—HER T — N\F
trade receivables that are assessed collectively +-A=+—BHRAFEHESE
(excluding corporate customers that are assessed W IBEHZEEE (TR @R
individually) as at 31 December 2019 and 2018: A EER)NER
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
BEHEEXR IREEARE BEEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T AR®TR
As at 31 December 2019 R=Z—AF+=A
=+-8
Current (not past due) BUER (R HA) 0.11% 12,743 14
1 - 120 days past due BEI1E120K 2.20% 13,074 287
121 to 365 days past due #HI121%E365K 6.45% 11,052 713
1 — 2 years past due BHE1E2F 29.39% 10,948 3,218
2 - 3 years past due BH2E 3 34.59% 4,134 1,430
Over 3 years past due 81 HRER B 35 65.34% 2,972 2,135
54,923 7,797
As at 31 December 2018 R=ZE—N\E+=HA
=+—H
Current (not past due) BNER (R HR) 0.09% 15,239 14
1 - 120 days past due BMEI1E 120K 2.13% 12,180 260
121 to 365 days past due #HI121%E365K 6.28% 10,325 648
1 — 2 years past due BME1E2F 24.82% 6,679 1,658
2 — 3 years past due BME2E3F 29.07% 3,192 928
Over 3 years past due B ERHR iR 3 52.13% 2,342 1,220
49,957 4,728

In order to minimise the credit risk with the
corporate customers, the management of
the Group has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits and credit
approvals. Other monitoring procedures are in
place to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade related amounts due from a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary, fellow subsidiaries
and related parties

In determining the recoverability of trade
amounts due from a non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary, fellow subsidiaries and related
parties, the Group considers any change in the
credit quality of these trade amounts from the
date credit was initially granted up to the end
of the year and no impairment is considered
necessary for those balances which are past due as
these entities are the subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates of China Aoyuan with good credit
ratings.

The management of the Group considers that
there is no significant ECL recognised for
the trade receivables from a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary, fellow subsidiaries
and related parties based on historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the debtors
and are adjusted for forward-looking information
(for example, the current and forecasted
economic growth rates in the PRC, which reflect
the general economic conditions of the real
estate industry in which its fellow subsidiaries
and related parties operate) that is available
without undue cost or effort. The Group rebutted
the presumption of default under ECL for trade
receivables from a non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary, fellow subsidiaries and related
parties that over 90 days past due based on the
strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations, good credit rating and continuous
partial settlement of these counterparties. The
management of the Group consider that the
default risk is low based on their probability of
default and exposure of default.

R e MR R
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43.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)
Other receivables

In determining the ECL for other receivables, the
management of the Group has taken into account
the historical default experience and forward-
looking information, as appropriate, for example
the Group has considered the consistently
low historical default rate in connection with
payments on behalf of residents, and concluded
that credit risk inherent in the Group’'s
outstanding other receivables is insignificant.
The management of the Group has assessed
that other receivables have not had a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition and
probability of default is insignificant.

Bank balances

The management of the Group considers bank
balances that are deposited with state-owned
banks or financial institutions with high credit
rating to be low credit risk financial assets. The
directors of the Company consider that the
probability of default is negligible on the basis of
high-credit-rating issuers during the year.
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b.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBEERME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE—

43. €MIR»

SAFT—_A=+—HIFE

Financial risk management objectives b. &RAMEEEERBEKE)
and policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued) EERE (Z)

The Group's internal credit risk grading ANEB RN EEE R TR T B A
assessment comprises the following categories: THA R -

Trade related

Internal credit rating  Description balances

1S AR it g 2B

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of Lifetime ECL
default and does not have any (not credit impaired)
past-due amounts.

N RZHFHROARRE FHRBEERR
MR E B ERRIE o (W EEAEEERIE)

Medium risk Debtor frequently repays after due Lifetime ECL
dates but usually settle after due (not credit impaired)
date

e BREAKERIBARERNEA FHRBEERR
BRFRIBBERES (W EEHAEERIE)

High risk There have been significant increases  Lifetime ECL
in credit risk since initial recognition (not credit impaired)
through information developed
internally or external resources

= AR INRPTIS E R FHEBEERRE

EERMBGERAREZEN EEFLEERE)

REREEEREARAR —F

Other financial
assets

HtteMEE

12m ECL

NREABHREEER

12m ECL

NREABHREEER

Lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired)

2HEREEEHR
(BELEEERE)

—NER
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 43.

b. Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The table below details the credit risk exposures
of the Group’s financial assets, which are subject

e TR et m B = 1+— B IEEE

®MIR @
b. SBEREEAMREE (D)
EEmE (E)

TRALAEERETRREES

to ECL assessment:

Internal credit

2019 Notes rating

“E-hE i =E B s AR

Financial assets at amortised cost

REHEK A RN EREE

Trade receivables 21 Low risk

B S EMGR KRR
Medium risk
RERR
High risk
BER

Other receivables 21 Low risk

H et R I8 {igENE
Medium risk
L

Amount due from a non-controlling 22 Low risk

shareholder of a subsidiary

JE Y — R B A R JE AR AR R R Rk

Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries 23 Low risk

B R 2K B AR FIE Rk

Amounts due from related companies 24 Low risk

3 NG Rk
Low risk
el

Amounts due from joint ventures 25 Low risk

FREECERR EE b

Bank balances 26 Low risk

RITHEH Rk
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BRfENeREENEERRAR

E
Gross
carrying
12m or lifetime ECL amount
NEARZHEREEESRE BEHE
HK$'000
TET
Lifetime ECL 58,198
(not credit-impaired)
(note (i)
2HEREERB(UEEER
SRE) (F5i)
Lifetime ECL 15,101
(not credit-impaired)
(note (i)
2HERCERR(UERER
SRE) ()
Lifetime ECL 2,972
(not credit-impaired
(note (i))
2HEHCEFR(UERER
SRE) (F330)
12m ECL (note (iii) 6,111
1218 A FEH{= E B 18 (PR k(i)
12m ECL (note (iii)) 16,832
1218 A T H (= 5 s 18 (B 3 (i)
Lifetime ECL (note (i)) 593
2 HEREEEE ()
Lifetime ECL 64,394
(not credit-impaired)
(note (i))
2HEHREEHE (WEELR
SRE) (F30)
Lifetime ECL (note (i)) 14,198
2 BBHEEEHE )
12m ECL (note (ii)) 78
1218 A EHEEEE ()
12m ECL (note (ii)) 19,491
1218 AEHEE BB ()
12m ECL (note (iv)) 821,842
1218 ATe = EEE (HEv)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Notes:

(i) The Group determines the expected credit losses on
lifetime ECL for trade receivables collectively using
a provision matrix with appropriate groupings and/
or individually assessed for corporate customers
with significant balances based on historical
credit loss experience adjusted by forward-looking
estimates.

(ii) For the purposes of internal credit risk management,
the Group has used the financial information of a
non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary, fellow
subsidiaries, joint ventures and related parties to
assess whether credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition. These related parties are
considered by management to have sound financial
position and thus the loss allowances for the
amounts due are expected to be very minimal.

(iii) The Group has used the historical past-due
experience and forward-looking information to
assess whether credit risk of other receivables has
increased significantly since initial recognition. The
loss allowance is assessed to be minimal.

(iv) For bank deposits and bank balances, as these
counterparties are banks with high credit rating
assigned by international credit-rating agencies, the
loss allowance is assessed to be very minimal.

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the
Group’s management monitors and maintains
a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the
Group's operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.

All of the Group’s liabilities are carried at
amounts not materially different from their
contractual undiscounted cash flows as all the
financial liabilities are repayable on demand or
within three months at the end of the year other
than bank borrowings and lease liabilities.

R e MR R
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

43. €MIR»

b. Financial risk management objectives b. &RAMEEEERBEKE)

and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group's

mBEZmE (E)

TERHNAEEECRABREER

contractual maturity for its financial liabilities BERAHEIEER - ZRIIBES

and lease liabilities. The table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial

BAEBEZARBRAESRELAEE
AREBRNRZEBHRER -

liabilities based on the earliest date on which the

Group can be required to pay.

Liquidity tables TEEDx
2019 —E-hEF
Weighted On demand
average or less
interest  than60  61-180  181-365 Over
rate days days days 1-2years 2-5years  5years Total Total
METHE  RERL  GMRE 181RE
HlE  HR60K 180% 365% 12268 2E58  SENE it @it
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AEETR ARETR ARMTn ARBTR ARETR ARWTR AR¥TR ARETR
Trade and other payables ZHREABERTE - 105,600 - - - - - 105600 105,600
Amounts due to related parties [ BB/ 7178 - 834 - - - - - 834 834
Bank borrowings RIAERN 5.79% 968 86,238 15220 - - - 102,426 100,313
107,402 86,238 15,220 - - - 208,860 206,747
Lease liabilities RERE 1.86% 753 1,446 2,169 3,336 8,622 4525 20,851 16,145
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

FEMERRMEE
BE_ZT—hFEt+-A=1+—BItFE

43. €MIR»

b. &RMEREFEERREE(E)

Liquidity risk (Continued) &R (Z)
Liquidity tables (Continued) BB 27 (&
2018 —E-N\F
Weighted ~ On demand
average  or less than 61-180 181-365
interest rate 60 days days days Total Total
mEFEE  EEE 61%Z 181X2
fE AR60R 180% 365% it it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RIMB'000 RIB'000 RIMB'000
ARBTR  AR®TR ARETR ARRTR  ARETR
Trade and other payables EHREMERTE = 164,833 = = 164,833 164,833
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries JERZNBAFZE = 6,659 = = 6,659 6,659
Bank borrowing RIAER 7% - - 1,904 1,904 1,779
171,492 = 1,904 173,396 173,271

Fair value measurement of financial
instruments

The directors of the Company consider that
the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated statement of financial position
approximate their fair values.

c. EMTRZAFEANE

ARBEERR  HREPBIRRE
PREERAARNEREERS
MEEMNEEEREQATERS -

RERBELEEEEARAR —T—NFR
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

& M B H R

For the year ended 31 December 2019

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

OF THE COMPANY

e TR et m B = 1+— B IEEE

44. FLFIMBRAE

2019 2018
—E-hF —ZT-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE TR ARET T
Non-current asset EREBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—HERB AR ZIRE 546,412 70,007
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H 4t fE W08 109 5,780
Amount due from a subsidiary &M — R B A Bl IR 8,341 1,443
Amount due from immediate holding FEW E B PR A B RIE
company 1,989 —
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBRER S 89,100 =
99,539 7,223
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H fth fE T kI8 - 5,170
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE{STB B A B 7R 38,490 17,708
38,490 22,878
Net current assets (liabilities) RBEE (BE)FE 61,049 (15,655)
Total assets less current liabilities BEEBRRBERE 607,461 54,352
Capital and reserves EXRFE
Share capital [ 6,207 =
Reserves i 601,254 54,352
Total equity WSS A RR 607,461 54,352
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMBEERME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_Z—NFT_A=+—HILLFE

44.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

44. X LTFIMEBERAR 2

Movement in the Company’s reserves EAFIEBER
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
B3 aE ZtER et
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AREF T ARET T ARET T
At 1 January 2018 R-—Z—N\F—H—H - (4,646) (4,646)
Issue of shares BITR D 74,511 = 74,511
Loss and total comprehensive FRNBEREZERAEZ
expense for the year 4% - (15,513) (15,513)
At 31 December 2018 RZE—NF
+—-_RA=+—H 74,511 (20,159) 54,352
Issue of shares (note 33 (iii)) BT (MH5E33(ii) 627,900 - 627,900
Capitalisation issue of shares B BETRG
(note 33(ii)) (MFE330i)) (4,487) = (4,487)
Share issuance costs A& 1D 34T K AR
(note 33(iv)) (BfF5E33(iv)) (32,761) = (32,761)
Dividend declared (note 13) EEIRRS (Ft3E13) (39,944) = (39,944)
Loss and total comprehensive FABBLREEMX
expense for the year 4B =E = (3,806) (3,806)
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF
+=-—A=+—8 625,219 (23,965) 601,254

RERBELEEEEARAR —T—NFR
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FeaMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

45. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The following significant events took place subsequent
to 31 December 2019:

(i) The outbreak of COVID-19 and the subsequent
quarantine measures as well as the travel
restrictions imposed by the Chinese government
and many countries may lead to a negative
impact on the operations of the Group, as
most of the Group’s operations are located in
Guangdong Province in Mainland China.

Given the dynamic nature of these circumstances
and unpredictability of future development,
the directors of the Company consider that the
financial effects on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements cannot be reasonably
estimated as at the date of approval of the
consolidated financial statements, but will
be reflected in the Group's future financial
statements for the financial year ending 2020
and beyond.

(i) On 13 March 2020, the Company (for itself and
as trustee for the benefit of other members
of the Group) entered into supplemental
agreements with China Aoyuan (for itself and
as trustee for the benefit of other members of
the China Aoyuan Group) pursuant to which
the parties agreed to revise the annual caps for
the provision of the relevant services under the
master property management agreement and the
master commercial operational agreement for
the year ending 31 December 2020. Details of
the transaction are set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 13 March 2020. The
transaction has not yet completed up to the
date of approval of the consolidated financial
statements.
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REZFB-NF+-A=1T—HRERELUT
BAER:

(i) FAE AR S A RIS 3 R B
¥ LA R 7 % B R B 14 BRER B0 A8 2 48
AR IR EEPR sk 2B R AL E
MEEERAATE  REALSE
B Y K B 48 4 1 7 R B P 3 B BR
5 o

ERRBBERTE R R RKER
BARTERINE - ARABEFERE
AREEAREMFAERN A SR
AEBERETREAMBERROY
BEE BERZESRRINASE
BRE—FT_FTFUIHBRFER
HIRZ KRR BEHREF -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

45. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (Continued)

(iii)

On 13 March 2020, Shanghai Aohuiyan Health
and Technology Company Limited* (L/8RZ
WEERBRBERAT) (“Shanghai Aohuiyan”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and Guangzhou Aoying Investment
Company Limited* (EMBEEEBRRAA])
("Guangzhou Aoying Investment”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of China Aoyuan,
entered into a cooperation agreement in relation
to the land plot situated in Fengxian Industrial
Comprehensive Development Zone No. 11A-01A,
Fengxian District, Shanghai City, the PRC (the
“Land Plot”), pursuant to which Shanghai
Aohuiyan and Guangzhou Aoying Investment
shall carry out cooperation on the project for the
development of the Land Plot (the “Project”),
whereby (among other things) Guangzhou
Aoying Investment shall be responsible for the
overall development, construction, operation
and management of the Project and be entitled
to 70% of the economic benefits arising from
the Project. Details of the transaction are set
out in the announcement of the Company dated
13 March 2020. The transaction has not yet
completed up to the date of approval of the
consolidated financial statements.

R e MR R

BE_ZT—hFEt+-A=1+—BItFE

45. i EIE &)

(iii)

R-TE-_ZF=A+=H" BB
ERRBERMEERAR([LERE
D (ARREEEEH B AR)H
BMBREEERAR ([EMER
BE]) (FRRENEEE2ENE
AN ABUNTE FEHE
EETIEGFAMERERI1A-01A%
3R ([ZHR ) & EHE - &
It EBREHREMNBRICER
BIEE A EMEZME([EE]) -
(EFaE BNREIREEEE
HEMEEAE  EE . BEERE
B WEERZEEEELNEER
mM70% c RSFBHNR AR A
BHRA-Z-_ZF=A+=HHA
S o B ELRE MIEIRER LA T B
BE  ZRXBHEATK °
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Financial Summary
MEEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

=T Wt H =t BIEEE

e

E

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=t—HLFE

2016 2017 2018 2019
—FE-RF ZE—tF ZT-N\F ZEB-hEF
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREFT AREBTFT ARETFT AR®TR
Revenue B A 265,440 435,977 618,835 900,800
Profit before taxation [ F5 A Y ) 59,393 100,406 108,495 218,613
Income tax expense TSR~ (18,365) (30,474) (30,240) (55,503)
Profit for the year FIE A 41,028 69,932 78,255 163,110
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, EQUITY AND FEEE RE8RAR
LIABILITIES
As at 31 December
R+=-—RA=+—H
2016 2017 2018 2019
—EAF —FtF —T-N\F ZEB-NF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB"000 RMB’'000
ARETFIT AREBTT ARETT AR¥®T:R
Assets BE
Non-current assets IEnEEE 12,829 17,873 29,962 352,155
Current assets mENEE 317,449 553,006 473,084 1,034,190
Total assets BEE 330,278 570,879 503,046 1,386,345
Equity and liabilities EERkEE
Non-current liabilities ERFBEE 498 982 757 13,912
Current liabilities mEAE 248,936 458,903 375,998 526,117
Total liabilities FEN=R 249,434 459,885 376,755 540,029
Equity attributable to owners of  ANAFEA AFEGREZ
the Company 80,521 110,489 125,675 845,068
Non-controlling interests e AR A = 323 505 616 1,248
Total equity and liabilities BiE= A E 330,278 570,879 503,046 1,386,345

Aoyuan Healthy Life Group Company Limited Annual Report 2019






	Cover
	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Financial Highlights
	Year in Review
	2019 Honor and Awards
	Chairman’s Statement
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Biographical Details of Directors
	Profile of Senior Management and Company Secretary
	Project Overview
	Corporate Governance Report
	Environmental, Social and Governance Report
	Report of the Directors
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
	Financial Summary
	Back Cover

